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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC

ACCOUNTANTS ON UNAUDITED INTERIM Pistreili, Diaz y Asociados
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Fima Miembxo de Anderer
25 de Mayo 487
1002 Buenos Aires
To Argentina
COMPANIA INTERNAGCIONAL T ey oto wrnr

DE TELECOMUNICACIONES 8.A.:

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Compaiia Internacional de
Telecomunicaciones S.A. (an Argentine Corporation) and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002
and 2001 and the related consclidated statements of income, cash flows and changes in shareholders' squity
for the six-month periods ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, all expressed in Argentine pesos (Note 2.3.).
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Argentina. A review
of Interim finanuial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures to financial data and
making inquiries of perscns responsible for financial and accounting matters, A review is substantially less in
scope than an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, t_he objactive of
which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial staterents taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do

not express such an apinion.

As described in Note 22. to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, in the current year, a deep
change has been implemented in the economic model of Argentina as well as in the Convertibility Law that
was in place since March 1999 (whereby the Argenling pesv was pegged at parity with the US dollar). The
main consequences of the set of measures adopted by the Argentine Federal Govemment, which are detailed
in the above mentioned note, are (a) the devaluation of the Argentine peso with respect to the US dollar and
de-dollarization of certain assets and liabilities in foreign curency held in the country; (b) the default on the
payment of the Government’s extemnal debt; (c) the implementation of restrictions on the withdrawal of funda
deposited with finangial institutions; {d) the restriction on transfers abroad on account of financial loans and
dividend distributions without prior authorization from the Banco Gentral de la Repabliva Argernting; {(a) the
increase in domestic prices and (f) in the case of Telefonica de Argentina S.A. ("Telefénica™), the need to
renegotiate with the Argentine Federal Government future rates that Telefénica will charge to its customers for
telecommunications services (Note 12.4.). The future development of the economic erisis may require further

meaasures fram the Argentine Fedaral Gavernment. The accompanying consolidated financial statements
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should be read taking into account the issues mentioned above. The recoverability of the amount booked as of
March 31, 2002 of certain noncurrent assets totaling $3,867 millian, considering when applicable the
Company's ownership interest in Telefénica, depends on the effect that the outcome of the rate renegotiation
may have on Teletenica's operations. Additiunally, as deacribed in Note 21, to the accompanying
consclidated financial statements, due to de devaluation occurred in the period January through March 2002,
the Company carries negative shareholders” equity amounting to $533 million and accurmutated losses

amounting to $2,003 million.

As described in Note 2.3. to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, following the accounting
rules issuad fy the regulatory agency for public companies, the Company has not recagnized the effects of
the changes in the general purchasing power as from January 1, 2002, as required by Resolution MD No,
3/2002 of the CPCECABA (Professional Gouncil of Economic Sciences of the City of Buenos Aires). If such
resalution had been applied, (a) the Company ‘s ghareholders’ equity ag of March 31, 2002, would have
increased and losses for the six-manth period ended on such date would have decreased by approximately
$498 million and $48 million, respectivsly, and (b) all balances as of March 31, 2001 and income from
operations for the six-manth period then ended weould have been restated far comparative purpases to

recognize the effects of changes in the general purchasing power for the period January through March 2002.

Based on our reviews, we ara not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the consolidated
financial statements referred to above in order for them to be in conformity with the relevant regulations of the
Business Associations L.aw and the National Securities Commission ("CNV”) and, except for the omission of
tha racngnitinn of the effects of changes in the purchasing power of moneyimentioned in paragraph 4., with
generally accepted accounting principles applicable to conselidated financial statements in Argentina
(“Argentine GAAP”).

The financial statements of the Company and Telefonica as of March 31, 2002 have been prapared assuming
that these companies will continue as a going concern, As discussed in Nate 8.1, to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, the Company's consclidated current assets in foreign currency are lower
than the respective current liabilities in foreign currency and it is uncertain whether the Company and
Telsfonica will obtain refinancing or additional credit tines to be able to pay their current debts or whether the
Banco Central de la Repliblica Argentina will authorize transfers abroad 1o pay o foreign creditors. Because
of the situations described above and the potential advarse effect of the outcome of the pending rate
negatiation of Telefonica mentioned in paragraph 3., the Company and Telefonica may be unable to continue

as a going concern. The financial statements as of March 31, 2002 do not include any adjustments relating to
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the recoverability and classification of assat carrying amounts or the amount and classification of liabilities

that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties

7. Certain accounting practices of the Company used in preparing the accompanying consolidated financial
staternents conform with Argentine GAAP, but do not conform with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (see Note 18, of the notes tu e accompanying congolidated financial

statements).
Buenos Aires, PISTRELLS, DIAZ ¥ ASQCIADOS
May 14, 2002 C.P.C.E.C.F.Yol. 1 fFol. 8

EDUARDO:C. CODURI
Partner
Certified Public Accountant
Buenos Aires University
C.P.C.E.C.F. Vol. 163 - Fol. 202




COMPARNIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A.

Registered Address: Tucumén 1 - 18t fioor, Buenos Aires

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF MARCH 31, 2002 AND 2001 {

{stated in Argentine pesus — sec Nota 2.3.)

Principal Business: Direct or indirect participation in businesses related to the areas of telocommunications, other
forms of communications and energy.
Registration with the Public Registry of Commaerce:

- Of the articles of incorporation: October 4, 1980.
- Of the last change to the bylaws: October 28, 2001. See Note 19,

Registration number with the “Ingpeccién General de Justicia™ ("1GJ” the govemmaenta! regulatory agency of
corporations): 1,528,250.

Duration of the corporation: through October 1, 2089,
Fiscal year-and; September 30.

Capital structurs: See Note 8.

MIGUEL ANGEL GUTIERREZ
Vice-President




COMPANIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF MARCH 31, 2002 AND 2001

{stated in million of Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and banke (Note 3.9)
Investmanta (Notas Z3.a) and b)
Trade recelvables (Note 3.b)
Other raceivables (Note 3.d)
Inventories (Note 3.¢)

Total current assats

NONCURRENT ASBETS

Trade receivables (Note 3.b)

Other receivablasa (Nowe 3.0)

Investments (Note 23.a)

Fixed assets (Note 23.¢)

Intangitle assets ard dafarred charges (Note 23.d)

Total noncurrent assets
Total assats

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables (Note 3.e)

Bank and other financial payables (Nots 3.)
Payroll and social security taxes payabia (Note 3.g)
Taxea payable (Notc 3.h)

Other payables (Note 3.i)

Raservesa (Note 23.e)

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT UIABILITIES

Trade payables (Nota 3.¢)

Bank and other financial payables (Nots 3.f)
Payroll and social security taxes payable {Note 3.g)
Taxes payeble (Note 3.h)

Qther payables {Note 3.i)

Ressrves (Note 23.¢)

Tatal noncurrent liabitities

Total llabilities

MINORITY INTEREST IN CONTROLLED COMPANIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (per related statement)

Total liabiliies, minority interest in controlled companies and shareholders' equity

2002 2001
66 21
o8 52
812 757
178 154
13 42
a87 1,028
14 -
128 18
18 100

5,321 4,608
476 231

5,957 4,954

8,924 5,880

BREZISS SEENET

448 309

3,340 1,439
69 84
83 74
51 42
3 1

3,974 1,928
30 32

3,155 1,411
37 38
12 -
83 85
100 61

3,417 1,607

7,391 3,538
66 1,014

{533) 1,430

6,924 5,080

== ———

The accompanying Notes 1 to 24 are an integral part of these stataments.

MIGUEL

va\/

GEL GUTIERREZ
ce-Prasident

e e e e
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COMPANIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 AND 2001 (1)

(stated in million of Argentine pesos, except for per share amounts which are stated in
Argentine pesos - 06 Note 2.3.)

2002 2001

NET REVENUES 1,284 1,380
COST OF SERVICES PROVIDED (Note 3.j) (675) (702)
Gross profit | _-5—8; _-6-7.’;
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Note 23.h) | ' (145) {183)
SELLING EXPENSES (Note 23.h) @77 211)
Operating income __:é; —-3—04
LOSS ON EQUITY INVESTMENTS (2) m
QOTHER EXPENSES, NET (Note 23.h) ' (41) (50)
FINANCIAL INCOME (LOSS) ON ASSETS, NET (Note 23.h) 167 (42)
FINANCIAL LOSS ON LIABILITIES, NET (Note 23.h) (3,131) {102)
(Loss) income for the period from continuing operations befare income tax ---—- T
and minority interest in controlied companies (2,340) 108
INCOME TAX (Note 2.6.) (30) (68)
MINORITY INTEREST IN CONTROLLED COMPANIES 806 (53)
Net loss for the period from continuing operations —(_';:;5:) --—(3-;)
NET LOSS OF TELEFONICA'S SPUN-OFF BUSINESSES (Note 4.2.) - (21)
Net loss for the periad 21_9;) —ﬂ(-;)
Eamings attributable to preferred shareholders (2) (1)
Loss attributabla to common shareholders ?1—.-9-8;) {2 _-(-;2‘)
Losgs per share (-0-;:;) (:)-;1— (;.)

(1) See Note 4.
(2) Total may not sum due to rounding in miltions,

The accompanying Notes 1 to 24 are an integral part of these statements.

o

MIGUEL ANGEL GUTIERREZ

ice-Prosldent

e e e e e




COMPANIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 AND 2001

(atmted in million of Argentine pescs - see Note 2.3))

The accompanying Notes 1 to 24 are an integral part of these statements.

v

MIGUEK ANGEL GUTIERREZ
Vice-Prasident

2002
Shareholders” investment
Common Prefatred
Capital Capltal
stock stock Adjustment to
Face Adjustmanttc  Premium on Face Adjustment redemption
Datcription value capitsl share lssus value to capitnl vakie Totm

Balanca st baginning of year 531 413 15 14 2 1 L
Effect of Telefonica’s spun-oft businesses (1) -
Inerense In prnfamad atnck’s radamption value (2) (C))] 51
Net ks for tha period - - . .
Balanca at end of period 534 82 15 4 12 52 o8

—_— ER ns = == = amn

2002 2001
Retained samings
Raserve for
Legas future Unnppropristad
Dencription resarve dividends sarnings Total Total
Balance 8t beginning of yeer 103 884 {18} 1,454 1470
Effact of Telefonica’s apun-off businesses (1) 2
Increasa in prefemed stock's redemption value (2)
Nat loss for the pariod (1.984) {1,984) (51)
Batance at end of pariod 103 3 (2,003) (533) (3) 1,430
- a=m . 2eARE AmEEX sNanK

(1) See Note d.
{2) See Note b
(3) SeaNate 21.
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(2)
3
4
(5)

(8)
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COMPARIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (1)
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 AND 2001

(atated in million of Argentine pesnsx - sae Note 2.3)

Cash and cash equivslents {investmants with an ariginal maturity not excesding three montha), See Note 2.5.
Supplamental informatian on cash flnws, sar Note 17,

Inclucas thase nol involving movement of funds.

Net of 83 milion corresponding to the exchengs differance genemted by cuh fiows,

CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2002 2001 (8)

Cash and cash squivalents at end of pariod (2) 164 73

Cash and cazh equivalents et baginning of yeer bk} 404

Increase (Latraane) In cash ard cash equivelenta 134 (331)
wEE= Fe=on

CAUSES OF CHANGES |N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash flows from oporating activitias:

. Net loss for the pariod (1,884) {51).
Nat joas of Talefonica's spun-off businssses - 21
Adjustments to reconcile net (s to net cash provided by operations:

Financial sxpenses (3) (4) 2953 54
Fixed assots depreciation 7Y 303
Material consumption 11 16
Nat book value of fixed assels retired . 2
Amorilzation of intangible assais and defarred charpes 8 14
Cost of services providad 14 42
Incraase in aliowances and resarves 200 100
Loas on equity investments 2 1
Minority Interest in controlled companies {336) 53
Payment of dividends to minority sharehoiders (53) (74)
Othar (L)) -
Changes in assats and liabilities:
QOthar receivabies (8) {104) (82)
inventories 3) (58)
Payro# and soclal security taxas payabla 3 (38)
Taxes payable {18) (53) .
Other payabias 8 8
Trade racaivables . (47) (49)
Yrada payables . - “ 81)-
Tota! cash provided by opamtions 480 129
Cash fiows from investing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets (5) (137) (156)
Total cash paid on investing activities (137 (156)
Cash fiows from financing activities.
Increasa In bank and other financisl payables 83 1,174
Decraasa in bank and ather finanrist payables (308} (1.482)
Incresss i intanglible assets - 1)
Tolal cash pald on financing activitias (222) (312)
Spun-off cash and cash aquivalens - (88)
Cash flows provided by Talefénica’a spun-off businesses (7) - 4
Total increase (decreass) in cash and cash equivalents 3 (331)
ndpREE MMEEDE

Net of 5 rllllon ang 22 mllhnn fnancad by trade and bank and financial payables for the six-month pariods ensad March 31, 2002 and 2001,

raspectivaly.
Sah Note 4.

The braakdown affact on consolidated cash fiows For the six-month period ended March 31, 2004 of apun-off businesses is Incluced in Nota 4.

in 2001, net of 83 million rejated to the seitiamant ol mummpwy mcammes mmugh the assignment of fnancial foang and of 30 miltion reditad to

reciasaincation of Patriotic Burm llum nencumant ir

The accompanying Notes 1 {0 24 are an integral part of these statements.

ca-Prasident

GEL GUTIERREZ




COMPANIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF MARCH 31, 2002 AND 2001

(stated in Argentine pesos - eee Note 2.3.)

CORPORATE OBJECTIVE

Compafia Internacional Je Telecomunicaciones S.A. (*Cointel” or “the Company®) contmis Telefonica de
Argentina S.A. (“Telsfénica") which has a license for an unlimited peried of time to provide Basic Telephone
Sarvices to the Southern Ragion of Argentina. The license as granted was exclusive through November 8,
1997, with the possibility of a three-year extension. On March, 1998 the National Executive Power has
issued Dacree No. 284/88 which generally extended the period of exclusivity with respect to the provision of
Basic Telephone Services until late 1989 and over liime opening the telecommunications sector in Argentina
to increased competition. In this context, the Secretary of Communications ("SC”) issued Resolution No.
1,686/99, which provided that the transition period to competition in telecommunications ended on October
10, 1999. In this respect, on March 31, 1899, Telefénica signed a contract with the SC whereby Telefonica
was granted a license for an unlimited period of time to provide local and domestic and intemational long-
distance telephone services and telex services in lhe Northern Reglon. Telefnica’s abligations under this
license, mainty relate to service quality and coverage of the areas ta be serviced. Additionally, on June 8,
2000 the National Executive Power Issued Dacree No. 465/00, which provides for the total deregulation of the
telecommunication market since November 9, 2000, On September 3, 2000, the National Executive Power
issued Decree No. 764/2000 which, in the context of such deregutation approved the Rules for Licenses for
Telgcommunication Services, the Rules for Interconnection, the Rulee for Universal Service and the Rules for
the Managemaent and Control of Radioelectric Spectrum.

Additionally, on April 10, 2002, Telefénica’s QOrdinary and Special Shareholders' Mesatings approved the

- amendmant to the corporate purpese. The corporate purpose was broadensd for Telefénica to be able to
engage in other type of businesses not strictly related to rendering telecommunications services, including
purchasing equipment, infrastructure, and telecommunications-related goods, as well ag rendering any type
ot sefvices, such as consulting and gccournling, hiuman resources and tax administration serviocs. In view of
the reform of the corporate purposes, it is necessary to obtain the related authorization of telecommunication
regulatory authorities; the requast for which alrsady made to the SC is pending, tharefore the mentioned
reform is sublect to administrative approval by the SC.

Telefonica, S.A. ("TESA"), a Spanish company, indirectly controlling the Company, has carried ocut a plan to

make a global reorganization of Its group operations by line of business. As a result of tha ahave-mantioned
reorganization, Telefénica and, consegquently, the Company, no longer hold an interest in certain companies
indirectly controlied by them. See Note 4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1. Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statemeants of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in Argentina ("Argentine GAAP") applicabla to consclidated financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of the Comisién Naclonal de Valores ("CNV") and are
presented in Argentine pesos (see Note 2.3.). The consolidated financial statements also include certain
reclassifications and additional disclosures in order to conform more closety to the form and content
required by the Securities and Exchange Commisslon of the United States of Amertica ("SEC”).

In accordance with Argentine GAAP and current Argentine legislation, the presentation of the parent
company's individual financial statements Is required. Consolidated financial statements are to be
included ag supplementary Information to the individual financlal statements. For the purposs of these
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financial statements, individual financial statements have been omitted since thay are not required for
SEC reporting purposes.

Following the procedure established by Technical Resolution ('RT") No. 4 of the Federacién Argentina de
Consejos Profesionales de Cienclas Econémicas (*FACPCE") and the applicable standards of the CNV,
the Company has congolidated, line by fine, its balance sheet as of March 31, 2002 with the consol!dated
balance sheet included in the consolidated financial statements of Telefénica and its subsidiary Telinver
S.A. ("Telinver") as of March 31, 2002; companies In which Cointet holds sufficient votes to detammine the
corporate will whether directly or indirectly. Moreover, due to Telefénica's and Talinver's ﬁ'sca| year-end
date change (see Nate 2.7,) the Company has consolidated, ling by line, its statements of income and
cash flows for the six-month period ended March 31, 2002 with the consolidated statements of income

and cash flows included in the consolidated financial statsments of Telefonica and Telinver for the three-
month fiscal year ended Uecember 31, 2001, plus the consolidated statoments of income and cash flows
included in the cansolidatea financiul statements of Teletonica and Telinver for the threa-month pariod

ended March 31, 2002.

The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2001 were prepared using the financial
siatements as of that date of Telafonica and its subsidiary Telinver.

All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

As of March 31, 2002, the data reflecting corporate control is as follows:

Capital % of capital
stock stock and
Company Business {1) % of votes  Shareholdin
Telefénica Telecommunications services, amang others (5)  1,748,052,429 (4) 64.83 (20 Direct
Telinver Commercial, investment and
telecommunications services, among others 49,623,217 £9.99 (3) Indirect

(1) Total face value, in Argentine pesos.

(2] Sae Note 4,

(3) Telafsnica's interast in Telinver.

{4) tncludes 2,355 treasury sharas. See Note 4.2.

(5) See Note 1.
. Generally accepted accounting principles

In preparing these financial statements, the Company used the valuation methods required by applicable
ragolutions of the CNV which, in the Company's case, do not differ, except for what is mentioned in Note
2.3., from those required by the FACPCE, and approved by the Consejo Profesional de Clencias
Econdmicas de la Ciugdad Autdnoma de Buenos Alres FCPCECABA”). See Notes 2.3, and 2.9.

Presentation of financial statements in constant Argentine pesos

The financial etatements fully reflect the effacts of changas in tha purchasing power of money through
August 31, 1995, by the restatement of amounts to constant pesos. Effective September 1, 1885, for
Argentine GAAP purposes, and considering the then current economic stability conditions and according
to the requirements of General Resolution No. 272 of the CNV, the Company discontinued the
application of the restatement method but maintained restatements recorded until that date. This criteria
has bean accaptan nndar Argentine GAAP until December 31. 2001.

Considering the new inflationary context {(increase of the applicable index for restatements of financial
statements was 32% in the period January through March 2002) and the conditions created by the new
system sstablished by the Public Emergency and Exchange System Reform Law, which are described in
detail in Note 22,, on March 6, 2002, the CPCECABA approved Resolution MD No. 3/2002 which sets
forth, among other provisions, the reinstatament of the inflation adjustment for the interim periods or
fiscal-years ended March 31, 2002, inclusive, and provides that all recordod amounts restated by
changes in the general purchasing power until the Interruption of such adjustments and any other
aDmount: orizgggated in transactions during the stability period are to be considered stated in currency of
ecember 1.




The restatemnent in constant Argentine Pesos method must be applied to the \falue of boaked costs
immediately prior to the capitalization of the exchange differences mgnﬁoned in Notes 2.6.d) and e),
which are capitalized so as to have the effect of an advance of gpplymg the restatement method for
recognition of changes in the general purchasing power and which capitalization woul_d be subsequently
absorbed by the value restated in congtant Argentine Pesos of the assets mentioned in such notes.

As of the date of issuance of these finandial statements, the CNV had not yet implemented the standards
provided by Resalution MD No. 3/2002 of the CPCECABA, related to infiation adjustment. Therefoa:e, to
implement them, the Company will have to wait until they are approved by the CNV. If suc:h resolution
had been applied, (a) Company's shareholders’ equity as of March 31, 2002, would hgve mcreased_qnd
logses for the six-menth period ended on such date would have decreased by approximately 498 million
and 48 million, respectively, and (b) all balances as of March 31, 2001 and income from operations for
the six-month period then ended, for comparative purposes would have been restated to recognize the
effacts of changes in the general purchasing power for the perod January through March 2002,

2.4. Financlal instruments with off-balance sheet risk and concentration of credit risk

The Company has nat had a fixed palicy of entering into derivative financial instruments for managing its
exposure to market risk. As of the date of these financial statements, Telefénica has entered into the
following instruments to manage the exposure to the risk of fluctuation of the exchange rate of significant
indebtednsss denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar.

1. Effective September 29, 1999, Telefénica has entered into a foreign cumency swap agreement with
Citibank N.A. to hedge the risk of fluctuations of the yen-dollar exchange rate, in connection with a
loan amounting to 8.8 billion Japaness yen granted by The Export Import Bank of Japan (curmently
the Japan Bank for International Cooperation) and matunng in February 2011, which accrues interest
.at arate of 2.3% per annum. Such swap agreement pravides a fixed exchange rate of 104.25 yen
per US doliar. The interest rate to be paid to Citibank N.A. during the term of the loan for the dollars
received Is 7.88% per annum. As of March 31, 2002, the related hability taking into account the
effect of the above-mentioned swap and the additional interest accrued, amounts to US$84 million.
The contract establishes, amung other provisions for thia type of trancaction, certain events of
default under which the creditor may accelerate payments terms. Events of default include failure to
pay financial debts for amounts in excess of 2% of Telefdnica shareholders’ equity.

2. During Dacember 1998, Telafénica entered into a foreign currency swap agreement with Citibank
N.A. to hedge the risk of fluctuations of the eura-doliar exchange rate, in connection with the net
position of assets and liabilittes in eurg, including the balanae of the foan granted by The Istituto
Centrale Per || Credito a Medlo Termine (*"Mediocredito Centrale™) which matures in November 2014,
and accrues interest at a rate of 1.75% per annum. Such swap agreement has an 8-year term until
Navember 2007 and provides a fixed exchange rate of 0.988 eurc per US dellar, The interest rate
paid to Citibank N.A. during the validity of the loan for the dollars to be received is 2.61% per annum.

The only significant vuncentration of credit and operations aa of March 31, 2002 and 2001 was with the
Argentine Govermnment (Federal, Provincial and Municipal Government and Governmental agencies).
Trade receivabies from the Argentine Government as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 amounted to 98
million and 77 million, respectively. The percentages of net revenues derived from services rendered to
the Argantine Government for the six-month periods ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 were 3.3% and
3.7%, recpectively.

QOut of the above-mentioned balances as of March 31, 2002 not yet collected as of the date of issuance
of these financial statements, approximately 92 million were past due as of March 31, 2002, On the basis
of Telefénica's current collection efforts and the information avallable as of the date of issuance of these
financial statements about Argentina’s future economic perspectives, Telefénica's Management has
resstimated the possible collection terme and conditions of the receivables from govemment entities
meanhoned above. The estimated financial effects of Lhe possible deferratl of collectiona from such
govemment agencies has been considered to determine the allowance for doubtful accounts as of March
31, 2002, The portion of net value related to these recalvables that Telefénica estimated will be collected
over 12 months has been classified as noncurrent as of March 31, 2002 (see Note 3.k).




As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, the Company does not have any other financial
instrument that would create off-balance shest risk associated with such instruments.

2.5. Statement of cash flows

In the statemant of cash flows, the Company conaiders all highly liquid Investments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

2.8. Valuation methods

in connection with certain accounting issues related to the Public Emergency and Currency Exchange
System Raform Law, in January 2002 the CPCECABA lssued Resolution MD No. 1/02 that established,
among other things, that assets and liabilities in foreign currency as of December 31, 2001, were valugd
at the exchange rate effective as of the last day on which transactiuns In foreign currency were made in
Argentina. in the case of the US dollar, the applicable exchange rate was US31 - §1, which was the
exchange rate effective under Law No, 23,928 (Convertibility Law) as of December 31, 2001,
Additionally, In line with the above described, on January 23, 2002, the CNV approved General
Resolution No. 392

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
Argwmitina requires managcment to make astimates and assumptiang that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabillties at the date of the financial
statements and the reparted amounts of revenues and expenses during each period. The ultimate
rasuls could differ from thoge estimstes.

The principal valuation methods used in the preparation of the financial statements are as foliows:

a) Cash. trade receivables, current investments, other receivables, payroll and social security taxes and
other payables (except bank and financial payables):

— inlocal eurrency (Argentine Pesos): at nominal value, including financial income/éxpense
accrued through the end of each period, if applicable,

-~ Inforeign currency: they are stated at the selling or buying exchange rate in effect at the end of
each period, including accrued financial iIncome/expenses, if applicable, The exchange
differences. net of those capitallzed as described in Notes 2.6.d) and e), wers credited/charged to
incomel/expense of each period. The related detarl is digclosed In Note 23.9).

Government securities (*Bocon”) have been valued at the market value as of the end of each period,
net of estimated salling expenses. Ses Note 23.a).

Trade recetvables include services and setiements with foreign correspondents billed, and service
and seitlements accrued but unbilled as of the end of each period, the lattar being determined based
upon information about actual consumption, subsequent billings and estimates using historical data.

Trade receivables ar¢ disclosed net of the allowance for doubtful accounts, which has been
aseessed based on historical data and the estimated trend of collections. Telefonica includes as a
receivable the portion accrued as of each peried end of the surcharge for late payment included in
the invoices far payments until the “second due-date” of the invoice. For amounts that are past-due
beyond the second due date provided in the original invoice, the interest for late payment is recorded
in the cacaes in which Telefdnica estimntas that it |2 likely that it will recover it.

Prepaid services: includes payments made to iBM Argentina S.A. (*IBM") in excess of the portion of
the contract’s total cost accrued through the period-end for having received the basic service (see
Note 11.1.). Such amount is disclosed net of the unaccrued balance of the income from the sale of
the assets transferred to IBM, which will be accrued on a straight-line basis over the term of the
contract,

“Patriatic Bond™; was valued at face value in foreign currency, stated at the buying exchange rate in
effact at the end of the pericd ended March 31, 2002, pius the financial Income accrued urtil that
date. Telefonlca intends to hold the Patriotic Bond untit the related maturity date and use them to
compansate taxes to be payable (see Note 15,1.).

— e v E———
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Tax credit certificate (“TCC"): was vslued at face value plus the financial income accrued until the
end of the period plus the benchmark stabilization coefficient and the interest accrued until that date. )

Telafénica intends to hoid the tax credit certificates untit the related maturity date and uze them to
compensate taxes to be payable (ses Note 15.2.)

Payroll and social security taxes payable include pre-retirement agreements with employees of
Telefonica. The pertinent amount is calculated on the basis of the present value of such agreements
(see Note 3.9).

Universal Service contribution: Telefonica calculates the charge for the universal service
contribution, cansisting in 1% of revenues from telecommunications services, net of automatic
daductions (deductions not requiring regulatory upproval) admitted by the related Regulation and, if
resulting in balance payabie to the universal service fund, auch net amount ig booked as liabllity. On
the othar hand, all deductions or subsidies which must be first approved by the reguiatory entity, as
well as any balance receivable to Telefonica that may arise from the above calculation, are booked
by Telefénica as receivabie in the period in which its reimbursament is approved by such entity (see
Note 14.a).

Other payables (other) mainly include: a) the amounts payable for the settiement of certain legal
actions Involving the contributions that Telefénica Is required to make to the employee's
*Compensatory Fund®, which was racorded at the present value of the future payments agreed upon.
Also, other payables include the amounts payable under the agreement of extraordinary contribution
to the Compensatory Fund executed by Telafnica that was recorded at the present value of the
paymaents agresd upon and b) Benwefits under the Collective Lobor Agreemants for Telefénica's
employees who retire on reaching normal retirement age, or earlier due to disability or death. The
fiability for thase benefits is stated at the present value and has been detarmined based on the
number of employess in service as of the end of each period and the probability of their qualifying for
this benefit.

b) inventories:

Raw malerials have been valued at replocament ¢ost, which does not sxcsad thair astimated
reatizable value, )

Directories in edition process have been valued at cost. The value does not significantly differ from
reproduction cost and does not exceed their estimated realizable value.

Equipment and supplies (including telephone accessories and cellular prepaid cards) have been
valued 8t the purchase price, which does not significantly differ from replacement cost and does not
exceed thelr estimated realizable value.

Inventorias are disclosed net of the allowance for Impairment in value and slow tumover, determined
based on inventory recoverability analysis at each period-end.

¢} Noncument investments:

The 50% interest in E-Commerce Latina S.A. ("ECL") as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, was valued by
the equity method based on the financial statements as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, respectivety,
prepared in accordance with accounting principles conslstent with those used by Telefénica.

As of March 31, 2002, Telafonica holds an equity interest of about 1% In Tele Brasil Sul Celular
Participagfes S.A. (‘“TBSCP"). The equity interests in TBSCP as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 wery
valued at acquisition cost, up to the value ca!cqlated by the equity method.

Other investments represent Telefénica's share in International Telecommunications Satellite
Organization (*Intelsat™ and share in New Skies Satellites N.V. as of March 31, 2002 and 2001.
They have been valued at the U.S. dollar amount of paid-in ¢apital, stated at the buying exchange
rate.in effect at the end of each period. These entitios allocate benefita and operating axpanses and
other costs and expenses to their members, Telefénlca accounts for these allocations as they are
reported by these entities. The contract signed by Telefénica and Intelsat provides that Telafénica
may nat sell its entire interest in Intelsat without prior approval of the Regulatory Authority.
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Listed shares of Telefénica as of March 31, 2001: relates to Telefénica shares 'suld by the Company
under repurchase agreements. They are stated st their market value net of gstimated selling
expenses since the Board of Directors decided the free disposition of these shares (See Note 8.2.1.)

Fixed assets:

Fixed assets received from Empresa Nacional de Telecomunicaciones ("Entel”) have begn valued at
their transfer price to Telefonica restated as indicated in Note 2.3., and subsequent additions have
heen valued at cost, depreciated by the straight-line method over their remaining useful lives. The
cost of work in process, whose construction stretches over a period of time, includes the financial
cost generated by third parties, related to the investment during the construction period through the
time the asset is ready for uge. Capitalized interest and exchange differencea inciuded in
construgtion in process, for the six-month periods ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 totaled 40 million
{includes 34 miltion of caphalized exchange difference) and 23 million, reapectivaly.

For those assets whose operating condition warrants replacement earlier than the end of the useful
life allocated to the fixed asset category concerned, Telefénica calculates depreciation charge based
on the estimated remaining useful life assigned, in accordance with the investment plan.

CNV General Resolution No. 388 provides, under exceptional circumstances, for the application of
CPCECABA Resolution MD No, 3/2002 mentioned in Note 2.3., which provides that the exchange
rate differences arisen as from January 6, 2002, related to liabiiities in forelgn currency as of such
date must be allocated to the cost of assets acquired or constructed with such financing, as long as
a series of conditions and reguiremente eetablished in such professional standards are complied
with. Such allocation will be made provided the relation between financing and acquisition,
construction or production of the assets qualifying for allacation of such exchange rate differences
{fixed assets, intangible assets and equity interests in other companies organized in the country and
existing as of January 6, 2002) is direct. Such financing, whether total or partial, relates to the
financing granted by the suppliers of goads Invaieed in foreign currency or the financing obtsined for
similar purposes from financial entities. In the cases in which the relation betwaen financing and
acquisition or production and construction of qualifying assets is not direct, such exchange rate
differances may be allecated, under certain conditions, at the cost value of such assats.

Under such provisions, Telefénica and Telinver have capitalized 856 million In fixed assets for
exchange rate losses derived from liabilities in foreign curency disclosed in Note 23.g), existing as
ot January B, 2002, which werae used for financing such essets. As of March 31, 2002, auch accets
include accumulated exchange rate losses, net of depreciation, in the amount of 878 million. i
financial statements had been inflation-adjusted as mentioned in Note 2.3,, the capitalized exchange
rate loss would have been reduced to 718 million.

Fixed assets relating to Telefénica’ s telecommunications business were valuad calculating their
recoverable value on the basis of Telefénica's management best estimate of future cash flows of its
telecumrmunications business, considering sumant information and future telophone service rates
estimates. However, owing to the regulatory uncertainty regarding rates evolution which, as
described in Note 12.1., derive fromn the pending renegotiation with the Govemment, the
recoverability of the bocked value of fixed assets as of March 31, 2002, in tha amount of 5,310
million, will depend on the outcome of such renegotiation.

Intangible assets and deferred charges:

Goodwill on investmant in companies: reprasants the exrars of tha invastment cost over the
Investment valugd by the equity method related to: (a) Telefénica's equity interast, for the portion not
yet fully amortized, which is amortized over 240 months by the stralght-line method, (b) as of March
31, 2002 "goodwill” reflects the acquisition casts of the continuing portion of the internet business
that used to be operated by Advance Telecomunicaciones S.A. ("Advanca”), Satlink $.A. and
Compuserve S.A. Argentina ("Compuserve”), and as of March 31, 2001, "goodwill” refiects the
portion of the acquisition costs of the business that used to be opersted by Advance, Satlink S.A.,
Compuserve and Aki S.A. CAki"), exceeding such business valuation calculated by the equity
method based on financial statements as of the effective acquisition dates or as of dates at which
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such value was not materially differant from the one that would have been detemtmd as of the
acquisition dates. These goodwills are amortized over & 10—ypar term by the strgnght-hne methqd as
from the respective acquisition dates and (c) the capital contributions made yvlth issuance premmm
to ECL (merged into Telefénica in connection with the corpor_ate reorganization mentioned in Note 4.)
which respective goodwill is being amortized by the straight-line method over a ten year tem.

The recaverable value of the Company’s investment in Telefénica and the related goo_dwm asof
March 31, 2002, were evaluated on the basis of the Company’s management best estimate of
future cash flows of Telefonica, considering current information and future telephone service rates
estimates. However, owing to the regulatory uncertainty regarding rates evolution which, as
described in Note 12.1., derive from the pending negotiation with the Argentine Govemment, as
well as on the results of negotiations of Telefdnica to obtain financing or to settie its current
liabilities in the normal course of its business and maintain its normal operations, as described in
Note 8.1., the recoverability of such investment and the ielated goadwill as of March 31, 2002, in
the ameunt of 539 million, will depend on the outcome of the above-mentioned issues,

Trademarks were stated at their acquisition cost restated in constant pesos as indicated in Note 2.3.
and the license to use the logo was stated at cost, restated in constant pesos In accordance with the
above-menticned note, net of accumulated amortization, which was calculated based on the
remalning duration of Telinver contract, until October 2007.

The licanses to use links have been valued at the restated acquigition cost and are amortized by the
straight-line method over a fifteen-year term.

The assignment to Telinver of Meller Comunicaciones S.A.'s rights pursuant to the contract for
publishing Telefénica's telephons directories and the "not to compete” commitinent undertaken by
Meller Comunicaciones S.A., are being amortized as from QOctober 1, 1987 through September 30,
and October 1, 2007, respeciively, according to the terms of the above-mentioned contracts.

In line with Resolution M.D. No. 3/2002 from the CPCECABA, as described in Note 2.8.d), the
Company and Telinver capitalized 254 million and 10 million, respectively, In intangible assets over
the six-month period ended March 34, 2002, on account of cxchange rate logsst genarated by
liabilities in foreign currency disclosed in Note 23.g) existing as of January §, 2002, which were used
for financing such assets. As of March 31, 2002, such assets include accumulated exchange rate
losses, net of amortization, in the amount of 280 million. if financlal statements had been inflation-
adjusted as mentioned in Note 2.3, the capitalized exchange rate loss would have been reduced to
169 miliion.

Bank and other financial payables;

In local currency: at nominal value plus interest accrued, payable on the respective maturity
dates calculated at the contractual interast rate in effect as of March 31, 2002 and 2001.

- Inforeign currency: at nominal value plus interest accrued, payable on the respective maturity
dates, converted at the exchange rate in effect at the end of each period or at the exchange rate
effactive before that date if the exchange rate was not available calculated at the contractual
interest rate in effect as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, S&e Note 22.

Income tax and Tax on minimum presumed income:

The Company calculates the Income Tax charge by applying the effective tax rate of 35% to the
taxable income for the period. The efective tax rate was caiculated by applying the current tax rate of
35% to the taxable income estimated as of the end of the fiscal year. The Company does not
consider the effect of temporary différances between Net Income and Taxable Income for the
calculation of the income tax provision. Additionally, the Company c¢alculates the Tax on Minimum
Presumed income by applying the effeclive tax rate of 1% on certain production asseta aa of tho end
of the year. This tax is supplementary to Income Tax. The Company's tax liabilities shail be the
higher of these two taxes. However, if the tax on minimum presumed income exceeds income tax
during one fiscal year, such excess may be computed as prepayment of any income tax excess over
the tax on minimum presumed income that may arise in the next ten fiscal years.

e ———
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As Cointel estimates that the income tax and the tax on minimum presumed income will not generate
any charge at the end of the fiscal year, no income tax or tax on minimum presumed income was
accrued for Cointel in the statement of income for the six-month periods anded March 31, 2002 and
2001.

For the fiscal year ended September 30. 2000. Cointel has determined a total charge for minimum
presumed incorne tax of 0.4 million, which was included in *Other receivables®. Additionally, as of
Saptember 30, 2001, the Company has an accumulated income tax loss carryforward of about 193
million according to the respective tax returns filed as of that date, which might be used to offset the
future taxable income as follows:

Last yeur In which avallable Tax loss carryforward
2002 17
2004 48
2005 60
2006 a8
193

Every year in which offsetting is verified, the tax benefit will be realized if Incomae tax (net of the
offget) is equal to or exceeds the tax on minimum présumed income, but will be reduced by any
excess of the |atter over income tax.

In the three-month period ended March 31, 2002, Telefénica has estimated the existence of income
tay lnas of abnut 2,072 millinn And has determined 5 eharge for the tay on minimum presumens
income of 12 million, which was capitalized ag "Other non-current receivables”, because it is
estimated as recoverable based on the Company's tax projection. In the three-month fisca! year
ended December 31, 2001 and for the six-month period ended March 31, 2001, Telefénica's income
Tax amounted to 30 million and 86 million, respectively. These amounts were higher than the tax on
minimum presumed income corresponding to those periods and ware charged to expense of each
poriod and included in the "Income Tax* aoccount. -

As provided in the Public Emergency and Exchange System Reform Law, the loss resulting from
applying the exchange rate as of January 11, 2002 to the Company’s net position of assets and
liabilities in foreign currency as of January 8, 2002, which amounted to about 232 million, will be
deductible from Income tax at the rate of 20% per annum over the five fiscal years ending after the
Law's effective date.

Reserves:

Charges have been recorded for cortingencies whers it is probable for the Company to incur a
Nability. When estimating the amount, consideration has been given to the probability of occurrence,
after consideration of legal counsel's opinion regarding the matter.

Financial Instruments:

Telefonica employs currency swaps to reduce the exposure to fluctuations In the exchange rates of
the yen and the euro to the US dollar in relation to the obligations assumed in yens and suro detailed
in Note 2.4, Thus, Telefonica ensured a fixed exchange rate for such obligations. Telefénica valuss
the covered obligations at each period’s closing exchange rate and also recognizes separately the
amounts receivable or payable under such swap agreements upon each closing date. Consequently,
any gainfloss deriving from swap agreements is charysd W income together with the charges for
exchange rate fluctuations related to such covered obligations. The premium in the swap
agresments is deferred and amortized by the straight-iine method over the life of such agreements.

m e e e = e —
.
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In addition, as from this year, Telefanica discloses the bal i

cition, ) ance of such financial instrument
c{assnﬁed into current and noncurrent based on the matunty of the associated loans. Suchs
disciosure t?as been made retroactively to March 31, 2001, reclassifying 20 million from current to
noncurrent in “Other payables - Financial Instruments”.

j) Shareholders' equity aceaunts:

- Common‘capital stock: it has been disclosed at nominal value and the adjustment required to
restate it in constant pesos as stated in Note 2.3, Is carried In the "Adjustment to common
capltal’ account, This account also absorbs any adjustment to the redemption value (shortfal or
excess) of the preferred stock as explained In the foliowing paragraph.

- Pfefewed capital stock: it has been disclosed at its redemption value calculated In accordance
with the issuance conditions as explained in Note 5., through the following itens:

* Face value of praferred shares.

¢ Adjustment to capital stock; restatement of the preferred shares in constant pesos as stated
in Note 2.3,

*  Adjustment to the redemption value: it represents the difference between the restated value
of the preferred shares as stated in Note 2.3. and their redamption value.

Premium on share issue: this account discloses the additional contribution over and abave the
face value made by the Class B commun strareholders, restatad In constant pesos as stated In
Note 2.3.

- Legal reserve and unappropriated eamnings: rastated in constant pesos as stated in Note 2.3.

- Reserve for future dividends: the Shareholders” Meeting of December 18, 2000, voted & 129
million increase in the balance of the resarve for future dividends out of retained eamings as of
the prior year-end. The Board of Directors is entitied to revarsa suech alinration and pay
dividends to shereholders at such time as [t may deem fit basad on the Company's situation and
financial ability. However, as described in Notes 7.d) and 21., the Board of Directors is currantly
not able to dispose such reserve for paying cash dividends.

k) Statement of income accounts:

Revenues and expensges are credited or charged to income on an accrual basis, Chargas for the
installation of telephone lines are recognized as revenues when the sefvice connection Is made.

Charges for consumption of nonmonetary assets valued at historical cost are computed based on
adjusted amounts of such assets as stated in Note 2.3. The accounts which accumulate monetary
transactions are not restated, See Note 2.3,

The line “Net loss of Telefénica's spun-off businesses® includes the incomefioss of the businesses
that were spun-off, whether from Telefonica, or from companies which Telefénica used to control or
joint control until the spin-off. See Note 4,

2.7. Flecal yoar-end change

On September 18, 2001, the Specisl Shareholders’ Meeting, approved the amendment of the fiscal year
section of the Articles of Incorporation. This amendment consists in changing Telefénica's fiscal year-end
from September 30 to December 31 of each year. The Comision Nacional de Comunicaciones ("CNC")
issued resolution No. 1,322 whereby it authorized Telefonica to change its fiscal year-end date.
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2.8. Amounts expressed in milllon of Argentine pesos

The amounts in million of Argentine pasos contained in these financial statements have heen rounded up

or down in order to facilitate the footing of notes and tables in wh i
rouning s aot mete, g n which they are included. The effact of such

2.9. Modification of Argentine GAAP

E:ﬂ’ectlve December 8, 2000, the Governance Board of the FACPCE epproved Technical Resolutiona

( RT')'NosA 186, 17, 18 and 19, which provide for changes In professional accounting principles related to
valuation and disclosure, On the other hand, on December 21, 2001, CPCECABA approved, with certain
madifications, such RTs through its resolutions Nos. 238, 243, 264 and 262 and required mandatory
application thereof for fiscal years beginning July 1, 2002, and thereafter. As of the date of issuance of
these financial statements, the CNV is analyzing the scope and timing for adopting such standards.

BREAKDOWN OF THE MAIN ACCOUNTS {amounts expressed In million of Argentine
pesos)

As of the end of each period, the main accounts were made up as follows (foreign cumrency balances ars
presented in Note 23.9):

a) Cash and banks:

2002 2001

Cash 12 1
Banks (1) 54 20
66 21

(1 In 2002, includes 16 miltion from provincial bonds, which circulate in lisu of currency.

b) Trade receivables:

2002 2001
Current Noncurrant Current Noncurrent

Past due (1) 585 52 (3) 507 -
Current (2) 380 - 448 -

Subtotal 845 52 955 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts

{Note 23.8) (333) (38) (198) -

Total 612 14 757 -

(1) As a rasult of the refinancing of past-due recelvables, about 27 miftion of refinanced receivables are disclosad as
current receivables as of March 31, 2002, ‘

(2) Includes approximately 14 million and 68 million that were to be adjustable for variation In the Gold Francs end U.S.
dollar exchange rate, respectivaty. Howavar, Law No.25 581, effactive January 6, 2002 resolves to cancel any
adjustment clause for variations in U.S. dollar or any other forelgn currency exchange rate in public sarvices
commitments (see Note 12.1.).

(3) Sea Nota2.4.

2
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¢) Inventories:

Gurrent
2002 2001

Raw materials and supplies 2
Directories in edition process 8 10
Telephony equipment 10

Subtotal 20 48

Allowance for impairment in vaiue
and slow tumover (1) ) (4)

Total 13 42

(1)  See Note 23.¢)

d) Other receivables:
2002 2001
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent

Guarantee deposits 7 8

Prepayments to vendors 9 9

Prepaid rentals (1) 8 5

Prepaid services 14 24

Related companies — Telefonica
Comunicaciones Personales S.A,
("TCP"), Advance and Atanto
Argentina S.A. ("Atento”)

Related companies — Telefénica Holding
de Argentina S.A. ("THA")

Tax credit certificates (2)

Legal deposits

Value Added Tax

Tax on minimum presumed income

Patriotic Bond (3)

Other

-~
o
) % S
uy
~
‘ No

—

e
-
~

w
D -
|8}
[ &
@
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Total

n -
-3
2 ]
—
n
©
—
—-a
[d ]

(1) Expiring in October 2003,
{2) Ses Nota 15.2.
(3) See Note 15.1.

e) Trade payables:
2002 2001

Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent

Vendors, cantractors and

correspondents 342 - 239 1
Managemaent fee 48 - 26 -
Billing on account and behalf of cellular

and audiotex companies 29 - 32 -
Services collected in advance —

Emergia Argentina S.A, 3 ao 4 3
Prepaymente from customare 2 - - -
Other 24 - 8 -

Total 448 30 309 32
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Bank and other financial payables;
2002 2001
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent

Credit balances with banks 8 - 31 -
Bank loans and long-term

financing 158 307 244 208
import financing 60 37 44 34
Rolated company = TISA (2) 2,729 - 678 ' -
Negotiabie obligations (1) 385 2,721 441 1,169
Total 3,340 3,166 1,439 1,411

(1) Sese issuance conditions in Notes 8.2.2. and B.3.1.

{2) In 2002, includes 171 milllon corresponding tn the Company, (see Note 10.2.), 2,450 milllon comesponding to
Telefénica (zes Note 10.2.4.) and 108 million corresponding to Telinver.

Payroll and soclal security taxes payabls:
2002 2001
Current Noncurrent Currant Noncurrent

Vacation and bonus accrual 38 - a2 -
Social security taxes payable 11 - " -
Pre-retirement agreements (1) 12 37 10 38
Other 7 - 11 -

Total B9 37 64 38

e 444 = —4—]

(1)  Pre-ratirement agreements mature through 2009, and do not have adjustment clause. The amount includes 7 million
refated to benefits granted to employees included In such agreements, which are to be allocated by them to social
security tax payments corresponding to the yaar batween the date of the agreements and March 31, 2002 and are to
be paid by Telefdnica until the worker qualifies to abtain legal pension benefits.

Taxes payable:
2002 2001
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent

Income tax accrual (net of

prepayments) . - - 28 -
Tumover tax accrual (net of

prepayment) 15 - 18 -
Health and safety agsessment 18 - 14 -
Valug added tax 24 - 2 -
Tax on minimum presumed

incnme - 12 .
Othar 8 - 11 -

Total €3 12 74

1l
1l

M

o




I} Other payablas:

18

2002 2001
. Current  Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
Financial instrument 3 50 - 20
Internationai Telecommunications Unlen 21 - 18 -
Debt with TYSSA Telecomunicaciones y
Sistemas S.A. ("TYSSA"), TCP and Atento 2 - - -
Advances for advertising - - 4 -
Cther 25 33 22 45
Total 51 83 42 s
I) Cost of services provided:
2002 2001
Telecommunications servicas (Note 23.h) 6852 645
Cost of services provided (Note 23.f) 23 87
Total 675 702
k) Aging of assets and llabllities:
Aszets Liabllities
Invastments Recelvables Loans (b) Other payables {c)
Past-due (a):
Up to thres months . 239 - 42
Fram three to six months - 109 - 14
From six to nina months . a8 . 7
From nine to twelve months - 40 - 3
From one to two years - &8 - 2
From two to three years ) - a8 - B
At sight: - 44 47 67
Current:
Up to thres months 88 437 1,488 433
From thres to six monthe - 29 1,218 19
From six to nine months ~ 15 552 8
From nina to twalve months - 13 kY 30
From one 1o two years - 92 o8 37
From two to three ysars - 24 1,762 24
From three to four years - - 77 19
From four to Nva years - - 36 17
Ovar fiva years - 12 1,182 84
Subtotal 88 1,303 6,495 782
Allawance for doubtful accounts - (371) - -
Benefits under the Collective Labor
Agresmaents . - - 1
Total 88 932 5,485 793
-t s Mmoo EENE
Percentage accruing Interest at fixed rata 100 8 50 - {®)
Percantage aceruing interest at variable
rate - 53 (d) 50 -
Average interest rate 2% 51% (d) 9% 8%

(8) Recaivablas batances include 52 millian classified as non currant toking into acsount Telefénica’s managemsant
estimates regarding probable collection tarms (3as Note 2.4.}

(b) Includes bank and other financial payables,
(e) Inctudes total liabilties except loans and reserves.

{d) Such percantage is related to the portion of receivables over which surcharges are applicable for being In arrears. The
indicated rate cormesporis to bills collected with such surcharges,

(@) Percantage iess than 1%,

PR -
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4.2,

. Tendar offer for Telefonica shares

On January 12, 2000, TESA launched a tender offer for the stock of Telefénica whereby T

exchange for its own stock any and all Telefénica Class B shares not already directly ovylnc!;:lsr:;;f :r;g g;
TESA. The Telsfonica shares subject to the TESA tender offer represented 48.2% of Telefdnica capltal
stockAat that moment. As a result of the above-mentioned exchange of sharas, and the transactions
desoribed in Note 10.2.1. -"Agreeinent signeq by the Company’s Shareholders’-, 88% of Telefonica
vating rights are indirectly controlled by TESA.

Telsfénica rearganization

As a consequence of TESA's plan to effect a global reorganization of its group operations by line of

businass, on January 30, 2001 and March 30, 2001, the Company's and Telefénica’s Board of Directors

:3:1 Telefonica's Special Shareholders’ Meeting, respectively, resolved to reorganize some of its
sinesses.

After the above-mentioned reorganization, Telefénica, and consequently the Company, no longer hotd an
Interest in TCP, Advance and TYSSA, whose businesses had previously been reorganized. According 1o
the Board of Directors and the Special Shareholders’ Meetings of Telefénica and the above-mentioned
subsidiaries, Telefénica’s equity interasts in the above-mentioned former subsidiaries were spun-off (and
therefore Telefonica's capital stock was reduced) and those equity interests were mergad into certain
companies indirectly controlled by TESA (those cuinpanies uperating the related specific business lines
- Mobile and Data).

Furthermore, as approved by the Company and Telefénica's Board of Directors and Teleftnica's Special
Sharehclders' Meeting, the minority shareholders that are not related to TESA exchanged their
Telafonica shares for shares of the companies into which the spun-off businesses were merged, in
proportion to their intersst in Telefonica. As a result of the capital reduction caused by the spin off, the
shares exchanged by the minerity sharehcolders were cancelled, and minority shareholdws huld an ogual
equity interest percentage in Telefénica and in the companies into which the spun-off businesses were
merged. Telefénica’s capital reduction amounted to approximately 385 million, from 2,141 million down
to 1,746 million by setting 394,789,234 class B shares, face value $1 per share. The effect of the
recrganization on Telefénica's Shareholders’ equity as of October 34, 2000, which amounted to 825
million, was allocated to proportionately reduce the capital stock. The remaining amount wae allecated to
reduce the balance of the “Irrevocable capital contributions for future subscriptions” and "Comprehensive
adjustment to irevecable capital contributions for future subscriptions” accounts until the balances were
axhausted, and “Comprehensive capital stock adjustment” account. The effact on spun-off assets and
liabilities resulting from the operations of these businessas from November 1, 2000 to the effective
recrganization date, which amounts to a net aceots decroase of 24 million, hae been allocoted to
Telefonica's amount of “Unappropriated retained eamings” as of the effective reorganization date. On
July 26, 2001 the CNV issued Resolutions 13,807, 13,908 and 13,909 whereby it approved the public
offering filing of Advance and Telefénica Méviles Argentina 8.A. (“TMA", an Argentine company indirectly
controlled by TESA) and congented to the corporate reorganization described In this note. Registration
with the Public Registry of Commerea of tha above-menlionad rrorganization, hecama affective
November 16, 2001 and the share exchange mentioned above was completed on December 12, 2001.
Telefénica acquired, at their listing valua, the fractions of Telefonica shares held by minority
shareholders. Total treasury shares amount to 2,355 and ware acquired in the amount of $1.021 per
share. According to the Argentine Business Assoclation Law No. 19,560 (“LSC"), these shares must be
sold within 1 year of acquisition.

As a consequance of the above-mentioned transactions, the Campany did not receive shares of the
companies into which the spun-off businesses were merged. Consequently, as from the effective
reorganization date (February 1, 2001) the Company's equity interest in Telefonica Class A and B shares
was increased from 51.0% to 62.5% and from 1.9% to 2.3%, respectively.

Telefénica recrganization trangactions did not change tho Company's financial poeition ae of October 31,
2000, as the shareholding interest increase in Telefénica described above was compensated by
Telefonica’s shareholders’ equity reduction resulting from the reorganization transactions. The effect of
Telefénica's spun-off assets and liabllitles amounting to 2 million, which is the result of. a) the increase of
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the Company’s ownership Ir)terest in Telefénica as from the effectiva reorganization date, b) the effect of

the spun-off assets and liabilities resulting from the o

: . perations of these businesses from Nove
2000 to_the effective reorganization date, and c) the differential of the Company's ownership inm:rs:ih
Telefdnica (frorp 51.0% {o 62.5%) on the dividends approved by Telefénica on March 12, 2001, has been
allocated to Cointel’s balance of *Unappropiated retained earnings” in Cointel's statemer;t of ch'anges In
shareholders’ equity for the year ended September 30, 2001.

Described below are the commitments approved by Telefonica, TCP, Telinver, TMA and Advance Board

of Directors and Special Shareholders' Maeetings on January 30, 2001 and M j
( ' ) , arch 30, 2001, f
in conhection with the reorganization transactions: Y P01, respeciely

8) Agreement between Telefonica, Telinver, TCP and Advance whereby:

-~ Telinver spu_n-oﬁ the assets and liabilities related to the sale of equipment and peint of sales
network businesses and those assets and liabilities were merged into Telefénica.

- TCP spun-off certain assets and liabilities related to the data transmission business, inciuding
the authorization to use Band “B* of the Table 1.2. of Frequencies inciuded In Exhibit 1 of
Resolution No. 869/98 of the SC in the Buenos Alres Metropolitan Area, Rosario, Santa Fe,
Cordoba, Rio Cuarto, Catamarca, Resistencia, Parand, Concordia, Tucuman, Corrientes, La
Rinja, .ujuy, Salta, Posadas, Formesa, Santiago del Eetero, Neuquén, Mendoza and Bahla
Bianca. The authorization had been granted to Aki under Resoiution No. 18,766/09. Those
assets and llabilities were merged into Telefénica.

- Advance spun-off certain assets and llabilities related to the Intemet Access business (including
all its customers other than corporate customers), point-to-paint linas in tha snuthem region,
80% of the Stamet network, 80% of the Satellite Network (aquivalent to 40% of all such
network) and 100% of the |P network (Intemet Protocol Network), Those assets and liabilities
were merged into Telefénica.

According to the commitment, the above-mentioned spin-off-mergers were effective as from
January 1, 2001 (*Date of the First Reorganization®).

b) Agreement between Telefonica, Advance and TMA whereby Tetefonica spun-off: (i) the assets and
liabilities related to the data business, Including Telefénica’s intemational data business (comprised
of 100% of the identiflable assets necessary for the provision of international data services, 14.40%,
29.56%, 23.60%, 19.30%, 80%, 16.67%, 83.64% and 15.79% of the Unisur A Segment, Unisur B
Segment, Unisur C Segment, Americas {, Americas I}, Panamericano, Atlantis 1l and Columbus
cables, iespuclively, 10.84% of the rights of use of the Transbrasll cable and certain receivables ang
liabilities related to such business), the partion of Telefonica’s goodwill related to the Advance data
business and the ownership interests in Advance, and (ji} Telefénica's consulting business (related
to Telefonica’s interast in TYSSA) that were merged Into Advance. In this sense, Advance reduced
its capital stock and shareholders’ equity as a consequence of having received its own shares from
Telefénica. Additionally, Telefdnica spun-off the mobile communications business related to
Telefonica’s interest in TCP. That business was merged into TMA. The corporate reorganization
described in this paragraph was effective as from February 1, 2001 ("Date of the Second
Reorganization™).

The shares resulting from Advance and TMA capital increases related to the incorporation of
Telefonica’s assets and liabilities spun-off mentioned in the preceding paragraph, have been
exchanged for Telefonica’s shanes held by Telefdnica Datacorp. S.A. and Telefonica Méviles S A,
{companies indirectly controlled by TESA), respectively and by Telefnica's minority sharehclders.

c) As from Fabruary 1, 2001 ("Date of the Third Reorganization™), Telinver spun-off and merged with
Telefonica the assats of its e-commerce business, including its 50% interest in ECL. The preliminary
spin-off/merger agreement was approved by Telefénica's Board of Directors and Special
Shareholders’ Meeting on February 15, 2001 and March 30, 2001, respectively.
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The companies agreed to use spin-off-merger-purpose balance sheets as of October 31, 2000 in the
case of the rearganizations described in &) and b) and December 31, 2000 in the case of the
reorganization described in ¢) above, for the purpose of obtaining the reorganization approvals by the
Board of Directors and Shareholders’ Meetings of the companies. Considering the effective Date of tha
First Reorganization, the Second Revrganization and the Third Reorganization (the “Reorganization
Dates") established in the refated spin-off-merger agreements, the shareholders’ equity computed for
purposes of these reorganizations included the changes arising out of the operations of the spun-off
businesses from November 1, 2000 (in the case of the recrganizations described in a) and b)), and from
January 1, 2001 {in the case of the reorganization described in ¢)) ta the respective Reorganization
Dates.

Due to the tax effects of the reorganization and regarding its exemption from income and value-added
taxes, section 77 of the incoma tax Iaw provides that Telefénica and its Indirect controlling company
shall, among other things, keep for & period of two years as from the reorganization date:

a) the activities deveioped by the reorganized companies (or similar activitles), and

b) its ghares listed on self-ragulated stock-exchange markats (or, otherwise, Telefénica shareholders
ghall maintain an interest in the capital stock of the successor companies of at least 80% of the
capita} stock of the restructured companies as of the reorganization dates).

Teleftnica and its indirect cantrolling campany intend to fulfill the requirements mentionad in a) and b)
above.

The following tables show the approximate effect of the spun-off businesses on the consolidated
statamants of income and cash flows for tha six-month period ended March 31, 2001.

. Consolidated loss of Telefonica's spun-off buginesses:

The results of operations related to TalefaAnica’s spun-off busineseas for eix-month peried ended
March 31, 2001, are as follows:

2001 (a)

Net revanues 292
Cost of services provided (186)
Administrative expenses (36)
Selling expenses t1g)
Operating loss N
Financial logs on assets @
Financial logs on liabilities (22)
Net (oss of spun-off businesses @
Minority interest of spun-off buginesses

Company's interast in loss of spun-off businesses 21)

(@) Includes operations for the four-month period up to the effective raorganization date.

. Consolidated cash flows of the spun-off businesses:

The cffcot of the spun-off operations in the cash fluws for the glx-maontn penod ended March 31,
2001, Is as follows:

2001 (a)
Cash used in operating activities (6)
Cash uged in investment activities (33)
Cash provided by financing activities 113
Total net cash provided by spun-off businesses 74

{8) Includas operations for the four-month period up to the effective reorganization date.
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PREFERRED SHARES

As detailed in the Statement of changes in sharehclders’ equity and in Note 8., the Company’s capital stock
ie comprised of common and preferred shares. The main issuance clauses of the preferred shares related to
dividend payments, preferences among the various classes of preferred shares and the latter and common
shares and the redemption of preferred shares, ag may be saen from the issuance minutes, are as follows:

a) Three different classes of praferred shares were issued, A, B and C. Each class accrues an annual
preferred dividend at the rates established in the issuance clauses. Class G shares were amartized in
two equal installmants on Aprit 30, 1996 and 1995,

b) The redemption value of preferred capital is established in US dollars.

c) The first accrusi period of preferred dividends started on November 8, 1980 and ended on December 31,
1991, and thereafler, to June 28, 1888 coincides with the Company’s flscal year-end. The Special -
Shareholders’ Meeting held on June 29, 1988, resalved to modify the Company's year-end date. Such
Meeting also established that the pariods for aceniing prafarmed dividends will be computed as from
January 1 through December 31 each year, irrespective of the Company’s year-end date.

d) Preferred dividends are cumulative. The Issuance clauses of preferred stock state that such shares
enjoy preference over common stock. Likewise, Class A preferred stock enjoys preference over Class B
preferred stock. Dividend preferences include a priority order for voting and approval as well as for
payment.

e) Preferred dividend payment dates are as foflows:

1. Preferred dividends on Class A shares: the first date was April 30, 19984 and thereafter dividends are
paid on the 30th day of April in each year to and Including 2003.

2. Preferred dividends on Class B shares: the first date was April 30, 1992 and thereafter dividends are
paid on the 30th day of April In each year to and including 2007,

On each payment date any dividend accrued during the immediately preceding accrual period shall be
paid.

fy Preferrad capital amortization dates are as follows:

1. Class A shares of Preferred Stock: the first date was April 30, 1997 and thereafter, amortizations are
made on the 30th day of April in each year until and including 2003, in installments equal to a
saventh of the preferred capital of this type of stock, The Regular and 3pecial Sharecholders'
Meeting hetd on March 31, 1987 voted an early redemption of Class A preferred shares for a total
US$38,460,047 (face value of 20,308,905).

2. Class B shares of Preferred Stock: beginning on April 30, 1998 and thereafter, amortizations shall be
made on the 30th day of April in each year until and including 2007, in instaliments equal to a tenth
of the preferred capital of this type of stock. The Regular and Special Shareholders’ Meeting held on
March 31, 1997 voted an early redemption of Class B preferred shares for a total US$37.848,336
(face value of 19,983,921).

g) Preferred dividend payment and preferred capital amortization shall be made in pesos.

h) For the preferred capital amortized and to the extent that there shall be any preferred dividends unpaid,
beneficial bonds shall be issued pursuant to Section 228 of LSC, as amended. Bondholders shall have
the same preference as the holders of Preferred Stock. Amortization payments shall be made from liquid
realized profits or fres reserves.

i) If, for any reason, preferred capital amortization cannot be made on the appropriate date, such payments
shall be made on the next succeeding amortization date.

i) Inthe event of liquidation of the Company, for whatever reason, the holders of Preferred Stock shall
coflect first any prefarrad unamortized capital and then any preferred dividends accrued.
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k) The Company, ameng other provisions detailed in the Issuance conditions, has agreed:

1. Not to reduce its holding of shares of common stock of the controlled company to less than a

majority thereof, without the prior consent of the holders of Preferred Stock in a Special Meeting of
Preferred Shareholders.

2. To control decislons inside the Board of Directors and Genaral Shareholders’ Meeatings of the
controlled company.

3. To make no investment other than in shares of the controlled company and assets incidental to the
holdings of such shares by the Company and to incur no debt through debentures or Negotiable
obligations or debt securities of any kind or otherwise that shall cause all the debts of the Company
to exceed at any time the amount of US$50 million over and above the liabilities of the Company as
of the date of approval of tha Jssuance Conditions without the prior approval of the holders of
Preferred Stock as above.

As of the date of these financial statements, the Company has met all obligations arising from the
isgsuance conditions of preferred stock.

1) The holders of Preferred Stock shall have no right to receive stock dividends of any class whether from
capitalization of reserves, capital adjustments or otherwise.

m) The holders of Preferred Stock shall have no voting rights except () as provided in Sections 217 and 244
of LSC as amended, (if) If voluntary dissolution of the Company has baen elected by the Company or if
ite dissolution is decided by the appropriate corporate body or authority and, (iil) if thera I8 any preferred
capital unradeemed and in default. In these cases the holders of Preferred Stock shall have one vote per
share,

The right to vote shall cease after the Company has complied with all its obligations, has ceased all acts
that may prejudice preferred shareholders, after the delay is corrected or after the noncompliance is
remedied or its effects are compensated.

The detail of capital determined in accordance with the issuance clauses prevailing and the preferred
dividends accumutated, unpaid but not yet due as of March 31, 2002 as established in the issuance clauses,
is ag follows:

Capital stock (1) Accumulated
Face value In dividends as of Twaifth preferred  Total preferred
Class of million of Amount  Dacembar 31, 2001 dividend period dividends
Preferred Argentine inmilllon  (In million of USS) (in million of USS) (In million of
Stock pesos of US$ (2) (3) usst)
A’ 2 3 - - -
‘B 13 24 2 - 2
14 (4) 27

[ LI, ]
'
nN

(1) See Note 8.

(2) Itis related to the preferred dividends accruad during the twalve-month period ended December 31, 2001, which are unpaid
as of March 31, 2001.

(3) Preferrad dividends accrued duting the three-month period ended March 31, 2002 for Class A and B preferred stoek, a8
stated in the issuance conditions, amountad to approximately US$23,000 and US$384,000, respactivaly.

(4) The table may not sum due to rounding In mitions.

As of March 31, 2002 prefarred stock adjusted for inflation as stated in Note 2.3. amounts to 26 million, while
preferrad capital stock determined in accordance with the issuance clauses amounts to 78 million. The
Company belleves that the increase of 52 million in the value of preferred stock represents a redistribution of
the total value of the Company's capital stock between its common and preferred shareholders. The increase
as of March 31, 2002 is comprised of & 1 million beginning balance and an Increasa of 51 million, generated
by exchange rate gifferences on net balance of the pretemred stock, which is denominated in US dollars.
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The issuance provisions of the Company's preferred A and B sharas provide that, should there be no realized
income and in cash or freely available reserves, the Company would not partlally amortize prefarred capital or
pay the respective preferred dividende, Shoukd thera be preferred un-amortized past due capital, the
issuance provisions of preferred A and B stock provide that preferred stockholders would be sntitied to one
vote per share, Accordingly to the above-mentioned and the situations described In Notes 7.d) and 22. the
Company did not amortize preferred siuck nelther pay the respective preferred dividends corresponding to
the aleventh period, which matured on April 30, 2002.

CAPITAL STOCK

Below is the Company’s capital status as of March 31, 2002:
Subscribed, paid in, issued

and registered with the

Public Registry of
Commerce

Comman shares, series "A" (Face value $0.10, one vote per share) 441,492,779.70
Common ghares, series “B* (Face vaiue $0.10, one vote per share) 89,147,510.90
Subtotal 530,640,280.60
Class *A” Preferred Shares (Redemption value US$3.280,000) 1,734.840.00
Class *B" Prefarred Shares (Redemption value US$24,180,000) 12,787,040.00
Subtotal 14,498,880.00
Total 545,139,179.60
b — e e

The Special Shareholders’ Meetings held on April 30, 2001, April 28, 2000 and April 30, 1998 voted partial
rademptions of Class A and B preferred shares for a total, in each redemptioh, US$1,640,000 (face value
865,820) and US$4,030,000 (face valua 2,127,840), raspectivaly, as set forth In the issuance conditions of
such shares. These reductions were ragistered in the Public Registry of Cammerce on June 12, 2001, July
21, 2000 and Saptambear 10, 1999, respactively.

LIST OF CONDITIONS AND THE TRANSFER CONTRACT ~ EXCLUSIVITY OF
THE LICENSE - OTHER RESTRICTIONS

a) The regulations governing ENTel's privatization state that, upon the occurrence of certain defauits under
the List of Conditions for ENTel's privatization and after imposing other penalties such as wamning and
fines, the license which the eonirnlind company holde for providing the telocommunications service may
be revoked upon the fulfiliment of the proceadings set forth in the List of Conditions “List". Upon such
ravocation, the Company must transfer Telefonica's ghares to the National Telecommunications
Commission ("CNT"), now the CNC, sa that it may proceed to sell the shares by public offaring.
However, this revocation will not be effected if the Company incurs in any of these situations under prior
authorization by the Regulatory Authority.

The principal obligations of the Company and Telefénica under the List of Conditions and the Transfer
Contract still in force are as follows:

1. Telefdnica is to meet certain objectives related ta the services provided, The mos! important of
these objectives are efficiency and services quality. In addition, suppilers of data and value added
services are to he given equal access to telaphnna lines. Tha assets contributed to Telefénica used
in providing telecommunications services may not be sold, assigned, transferred or encumbered in
any way. Additionally, Telefonica has to maintain afl or a substantial part of the provision of the
telephone service and Telefonica's main business and principal place of business in Argentina may
not be changed,
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2. THA and Telefonica Intemational Holding B.V. ("TIHBV"), as members of the Consortium which was
gwarded the shares of the controlled company, may under no circumstances reduce thelr investment
in the Company to percentages below twenty and ten percent (20% and 10%), respectively, of the
common shares with voting rights, without the prior authorization from the Regulatary Authority.

3. The Company may not reduce its investment, ag a whole, below fifty-one percent (51%) of
Telefonica's tutal capital with voting rights, without prior authorization by the Reguiatory Authority.

In addition, Decree No. 264/98 sets forth both optional artd mandatory operating conditions with respect
to thg provision of basic telephone services. Such mandatory conditions, include mainly to parmit other
providers to interconnect to the Company’s network (including voice and data transmission services), and
the installation of a minimum number of new lines.

In thg opinion _of the Company's management, the Company and Telefonica have met il of the above-
mentioned obligations.

Although the effectiveness of Decres No. 264/98 (mentioned in Nate 1.) was subject to the conciusion of
certain legal proceedings, the Argentine Govemment has implemented Decree No. 264/88, and
Telefonica believes that it is unlikely that the outcome of those proceedings would significantly slow the
trend toward [ncreasing compaetition.

Decrae No. 264/98 issued by the National Executive Power, established subject to the results of the
above-mentioned legal proceedings, a period of fransition to competition in the telecommunications
industry, during which all of Telefénica’s rights and obligations related to the exclusivity of the license not
otherwise modified, should remain in affect. Decree No. 264/08 established a timetable for the
liberalfization, subject to issusnce of related regulations, first liberalizing the area of public telephones
followed by liberalization of the rural telephone market, the liberallzation of the market for basic telephone
services with the addition of up to two new licanses (two new operators) to provide such services at the
end of the period of exclusivity and concluding with the total liberalization of local, domestic and
intarmational long-distance services on November 8, 2000.

In this contaxt, the SC issued Resolution No. 1,686/99, which provided that the transition period to
competition in telecommunications ended on October_‘lo, 1699,

On March 31, 1999, Telefénice aigned a license agreement with the SC for an unfimiled peripd of time, to
provide local and domestic and intemational long-distance telephone services and telex services in the
Northern region of the country. Telefénica's obligationg under the license mainly related to service quality
and coverage of the areas to be serviced.

Algo, on June D, 2000, the National Executive Power iasued Decree No. 465/00, which provides for the
total deregulation of the telecommunications market as from November 9, 2000. On September 3, 2000,
the National Executive Power issued Decree No. 764/2000 which, in the context of such deregulation
approved the Rules for Licenses for Telecommunication Services, the Rules for Interconnection, the
Rutes for Universal Service and the Rules for the Management and Control of Radicelectric Spectrum.
These rules constitute the current regulatory framework applicable to Telefénice. The above-mentioned
rules provide, among other issues, the requirements to obtain the licenses to render telacommunications
seyvice, the conditions to establish rates and the providers' obligations, the technical and economic
aspects for intercannection to the networks of different providers, the programs, administration and
economic issues of the Universal Service, as well as the principles that will govern the management and
control of the radioelectric spectrum. On Saptember 19, 2000, Telefdnica filed a reconsideration petition
against certain issues of Decree No. 764/2000. The Court has not as yet ruled on this issue.

The principal strategic objective of Telefénica is to compete successfully and to maintain a teadership
position in the Argentine telecommunications industry. Telefénica has been preparing to do so; however,
there can be no assurance that the consequences of the introduction of competition would not materially
and adversely affect the business, the financial conditions or resuits of operations of Telefonica. While
there can be no such assurance, in the opinion of Talefénica’s management, the implementation of
Telefénica’s business strategies will continue to have a baneficial effect on the future competitiveness of
jts telecommunications business, mitigating the negative effects of the increasing competition in the
Argentine market.
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Furthemmore, Telefénica has signed a Management Agreement with the o j
perator TESA. Under this

Agreement, the full management of Telefonica is entrusted to the Operator. Such agreement was

extended through 2003 and may be extended again through 2008, at the operator's option.

Leggl reserve: In accordance witr] Argentine legal requirements currently in force, 5% of the year's
realized income must be appropriated to legal reserve until reaching 20% of adjusted capital stock.

Dividends: ag far as the restrictions related to the dividends of preferred and common shareholders are
concerned, see Note 5.

As of Mgrph 31, 2002, the Company has negative retained eamings of 2,003 million and a reserve for
future dividends of 381 million, Consequently, the dividend distributian is restricted. See Note 21,

FINANCIAL DEBT

8.1.

Financing

The Company has funded the working capital requirements, interest payments and amortization of
debt out of dividends from Telefénica. Also, if the Company had to obtaln funds from other sources for
these or any other purposes, 1t couid obtain external financing from banks or institutional lenders, from
capltal markets, additional issuances of equity securities, and loans from related companies granted
under market conditions. Telefénica has followed a financing policy that has combined the use of
internally generated funds with the use of third-parties and majority sharehelder financing.

As of March 31, 2002, consolidated current assets in foreign currency are lower than consoclidated
current liabilities in foreign currency in the amount of 3,350 million {equivalent to US$1,172 million as

of March 31, 2002).

The Company and Telefdnica have prepared their financing projections and plans expecting to cover
future fund nesds to continue Tefefénica’s investment plan and face short and long-term debt mainly
with funds generated by the operations plus bank loans and access to capital markets. Alternatively,
they wouid request for long-term refinancing of their payables.

However, owing to the macroeconomic situation described in Note 22, as of the date of isguance of
these financlal statemunts, thitd parties’ credit lines are not avallable th amounts sumciant to enabte
the Company and Telefénica to, together with Internally generated funds, meet current debt

obligations. Furthermore, it is not possible to determine whather this situation will evolve favorably in

the short term.

Since early December 2001, Argentine authorities implemented a number of monetary and currency
exchange control measures that mainly included restrictions on the withdrawal of funds deposited with
banks and tight restrictions for making transfers abroad, with the exception of those related to foreign
trade and ather authorized transactions.

Subsequently, the Cantral Bank of Argentina ("B.C.R.A.") provided that funds transferred abroad,
among other transfers, by the non-financial private sector on account of financial leans principal
service, profits and distributions of dividends, carried out within 80 days as from February 8, 2002,
shall require B.C.R.A. previous consent. Thig shall not be necessary when the cbligation arises from
payables to multilaterat organizations, banks that financed investment projects jointly with such
organizations, and governmental credit agencies or those guaranteed by such entities. Subsegquent
regulations of the B.C.R.A. established that from March 25, 2002 to August 12, 2002, such institution
must authorize any payment of principal or Interast on financial debts abroad, except for the above-
mentioned organizations, '

While the above restriction is in force, or ehould it be maintained beyond August 12, 2002, the
Company and Telefénica are unable to ensure that the B.C.R.A. will authorize principal payments to
foreign craditors over the repayment tenm and under conditiong established originally. Current debt
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maturities affected by this situation amount ta 3.0 billion. In addition, the amount of 3,155 miltion
classified as noncurrent in the balance sheet, result from agreements providing that the amounts owed
would become immediately due and payable (after certain steps have been followed) if other
obligations are not met as could be the case of the current payables above. If default is declared on
the basis of the abave-mantianed reasnn, smounte that were disciosed as noneurrent in tho balance
sheet as of March 31, 2002 on the basis of the conditions originally agreed with creditors, may bacome
immediately due and payable.

THA, a sharehalder of the Company, is evaluating Cointel’s financing needs cansidering the Argentine
economic situation and the current difficulties to have access to cradit, and has £o agreed with Cointel,
to use its hest efforts to provide such financing directly or indirectly and, subject to THA"s own fund
availability, which depends on the evolution of the issues affecting THA s financial situation.

On tha nther hand, TESA has advised the Company and Telefénica that, as of the date of isguance of
these financial statements, it was still evaluating the Argantine macroeconomic context and analyzing
financing alternatives for such companies, inciuding the possibility of refinancing or not over long-term
ite current loans to such companies and, if necessary, providing additional financing.

Consequently, the Company's and Telefénica's ability to settle their payables to local and foreign
creditors depends upen the possibility of obtaining financing or, if not possible, of refinancing financial
payables, as well as, if necessary, the granting of additional financing by Its direct or Indirect
controlling companies.

Should no financing altermatives be available for the Company and Telefénica or should the Company
and Telefonica not succeed in obtaining refinancing, such companies woutd not have sufficient funds
available to meet their current liabilities (including those disciosed as current on the balance sheet as
of March 31, 2002 and those liabilities that would tumn into current payables if creditors claimed a
default) payable to local and foreign creditors.

Although the Company and Telefénlca will make thair best effort to obtain such financing, as of the
date of irauance of these financial statemants, it is not possibla to ansura what the rasult of such
negotiations will be or if the restrictions for making transfers abroad will enable the Company and
Telefénica to settle their curent liabllities In the normal course of business and maintain their normal
operations.

The Company

8.2.1. Repurchasa agreements Involving Telefénica Class B shares

During the first quarter of 19988, the Company executed agreements with Merill Lynch
Intemational (“ML" and Namura Bank International Plc. (*Nomura®) whereby the former
delivered 40.2 million Telefénica Ciass B shares, with the obligation to repurchase such
‘shares on May 28, 2003 for US$123 million under the respective repurchase agreement.
These agreemants accrued interest at a fixed rate of 8.126% and 7.825% on principal
amounts of US$82 million and US$41 million, respectively; such interest was to be paid
semiannually, on February 27 and August 27 of each year for the debt of US$82 million and
on March 11 and September 11 of each year for the debt of US$41 million, through May 28,
2003, when the transaction fell due.

Due to the above-mentioned transactions the Company booked since 1998 a loan secured by
Telefénica shares which was allocated in the balance of the “Noncurrent - Banks and other
financial payables” and clagsified 40.2 million Telefénica Class B shares fraely disposable as
noncurrent, valuing them at their market value net of estimated selling expenses at the end of
each period.

©On June 30, 2000, Nomura and ML subscribed an agreement pursuant to which Nomura has
transferred all its rights under the contract described in the first paragraph to ML.

On June 5, 2001, the Company and ML executed a termination agreement whereby Cointel
paid ML a total of US$132.6 miilion (out of which US$125.6 million was for principal and
intereet and US§7 million wasg the sarly sattloerment charga). ML delivered to Colntel 40.2
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million Telefénica shares and both parties agreed to terminate the repurchase agreements
executed in 1998, In view of the above and of the plans of the Company’s controliing
shareholder, TESA, the Company’s managament has ceased to consider such shares as
freely avallable and decided that they will be used to maintain a controlling sharsholding in
Telefénica. Accordingly, as from September 30, 2001, such shares are carried in noncurrent
assets together with Telefnica Class A shares and are valued by the equify method. As of
March 31, 2001, and as described in the second paragraph of this note, the Company valued
such shares at their listed price less estimated selling expenses; recognizing a loss
amounting to 53 million for the six-month period ended March 31, 2001, corresponding to the
difference in the listed price of investments.

In addition, en March 6, 1998 the Company had granted ML a call option on 40.2 mitiion
Telefonica Ciass B sharas to be exercised on May 28, 2003, fur an approximate value of 8.2

per share adjusted for the dividend distributions made by Telefénica through that date. On
June 30, 2000, the Company and ML amendegd certain condiions of this agreement, whereby
ML has the right to require from Cointel, on May 28, 2003, the delivery of capital stock of
TESA instead of Telefonica shares, modifying the strike price of the call option for such
TESA's shares, In proportion to the prica offerad for Telafénies shares in the TESA Tander
Offer described in Note 4.1. If, on May 28, 2003, the market price of TESA ADRs is higher
than 104,85 (the exercise prics), ML may acquire from the Company 2.23 million TESA ADRs
at the exercise price. The call option market value as of March 31, 2002 amounts to
US$29,670.

Negotiable obligations

The Regular and Special Shareholders’ Meeting held on March 31, 1987, approved the
creation of a Global Program for the issuance of Negotiable obligations (the *Program”).

Such Negaotiable obligations are nonconvertible into shares, for a maximum outstanding
amount during the term of the Program of US$800 millien or its equivatent amount in other
currencies, unsecured, to be issued in different classes and/or successive series, which could
be accumulative or not; such bonds are to allow for early rademption in cash or In kind, in the
latter case with securities of other companies, In addition, the above-mentioned
Shareholders’ Meeting delegated broad powers to the Board of Directors to datermine the
timing, features and other terms and conditions of the issuance,

Under the Program, the Company's Board of Directors decided the issuance of two series of
Negotiable obligations: *A" Series for US$225 million and "B” Series for 175 million; the
maturity data is August 1, 2004, for both series. On July 3, 1997 the CNV approved the
issuance. On July 24, 1897, the Company placed all of the issuance on tha market. The net
proceeds of this transaction which totaled approximately US$395 million were used to
refinance bank debts maturing from January through Septemnber 1998,

The main terms and conditions of this issuance of Negotiable obligations are:

a) Face value: US$1 and $1 for the "A® and "B" Series, respectively, bearer and registered,
ordinary, nonconvertible into shares.

b) The total amortization of the Negotiable obligations is to take place in one single
installment payable at seven years for both series. Such amortization, as well a5 accrued
Interest, is to be paid in US dollars in the case of the "A® Series, and in US dollars or
Argentine pesos in the case of the “B" Series (at the discretion of the obligee). The
Company may redeem such abligations for fiscal reasons, at 100% of their face value
plus interest accrued through the redemption date.

C) The securilies acue an annual inteiesl of 8.85% and 10.375% un “A”" Saiivs and *B”
Series, raspectively, payable half-yearly in arrears with due dates on February 1 and on
August 1 of each year and beginning on February 1, 1968,

d) This issuance does nat constitute either a secured or a subordinated debt of the
Company, ranking pari-passu -with no preferences- in respect of the Company’s current
and future unsecured and unsubordinated debts.
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Thg prospectus for this issuance gives a detailed descripti jti

main stipulations concerm: a) a commitment of the Comga:; :;tlttzn";jr:l:grc;?:::tn;;m
property rights, with certain exceptions, on its assets or present and future revenues uniess
me Company complies with certain requirements, b) conditions for the early redemption of the
!SSuanF:e, and ) nauses of default that would aflow obligees tu cunsider such bonds as
immediately due and payable, such causes being, among others, nonpayment of the
Negotiable abligatians, the sale of all or a significant propartion of the Company’'s assets, the

Io?s of control over Telefénica’s corporate decisions and noncompliance with certain financial
ratios,

The meetings of the Holders of the Company's Negotiable obligations were held on
Decqmber 28, 2000. Those meetings approved certain amandments o the tarms and
conditions of issuance of those negotiable obligations which allowed TESA’s reorganization
described in Note 4. The Company paid bondholders that approved the reorganization an
“authorization fee" equal to 0.75% of the amount of the principa! for those bondholders who
voted in favor, in the aggregate amount of 2.2 million plus 1.3 million corresponding to fees
and other related expenses. Additionally, the Company obtained the approval for the
amendments to other debt agresments Lhat permitted TESA's reorganization.

8.2.3. Other financial debt

On April 30, 1997 a debt instrument was issued in favor of a preferred shareholder who
accepted an early redemption of Class B preferred shares, for a face value of US$23 million
with an interest rate equal to the dividend of the preferred shares being redeemed and
amortization of the principal amount in ten equal and consacutive annual instaliments as from
April 30, 1998. Principal amount plus interest accrued through March 31, 2002 amounts to
US$14.56 million. This debt instrument was cancelled on May 9, 2002 (see Note 24.2)

8.3. Telefénica

8.3.1.Negotiable obligations
As of March 31, 2002, there are three Negotiable obligations issues outstanding:

Month and year Face value Term Maturity Rate per Use of
of lssuance {in millions) in years month/year annum % proceeds
11/94 US$ 300 10 1172004 11.875 @)
05/08 USS 400 (a) 10 052008 9.126 ()
07/99 Uss 100 3 07/2002 8.875 (b)

(a) In August 1898, Telefonica bought and cancelled in advance US$31.5 million of the first claes under the global
program. Accordingly, the amount of principal owad as of March 31, 2002, for such lssuance is US$388.5
millian.

(b} Financing of capital expenditures m Argentina.

The prospectuses related to the issuance of these Negotiable obligations describe the issuance
conditions in detail. The main stipulations concem: a) commitment of Telefénica not to mortgage
or charge, except certain permitted charges, its present or future assets or revenues, unless
Telefénica's commitments under the Negotiable obligations meet certain requirements; b)
conditions for the early redemption of the lssuance and ¢) events of default in which event the
bondholders could declare the lapse of all due dates, such causes being, among others, failure to
pay on the securities, default on other debts in amounts equal to or exceeding US$20 million,
attachments which in the aggregate exceed US$10 million, among others.

Telefdnica has a globsl program in effact to Issue Negotiable obligations for a total of up to
Uue$1,800 millien, potsa or any surroney or surranciae, eacuritiaoe at par, and ropayslbla in 24
days to 30 years, The covenants and commitments are the usual ones for this kind of

transaction. The issuances of Negotiable obligations of May 1998 and July 1999 have been
isguad under that program. Telefdnica obtained an authorization to make public offering of
Negotiable obligations under such global program from the CNV and from the Luxembourg Stock

Exchange.




8.3.2.Long-term financing

Telefénica has borrowed funds from major financial institutions in an armount of 364 million.
These funds have been borrowed under terms and conditions customary in this kind of
transactions, which generally refer to the commitment not to encumber or grant security interests
on its agsets or on present or future revenves, other than certain penmitted encumbrances or
unless certain predetermined conditions are met.

Telefénica has received from a foreign organization not related to Telefonica a credit facility for
an armount of US$14 million, which is due for payment in the long term under otiginally agreed
conditions. Under certain cavenants included in the loan agreement axacuted with such
organization, and due to the effects of the Argentine economic crisis on Telefonica's financial
statements and financial position, the creditor has hecome entitied to deciare, upon expiry of the
stipulated graca perind, the amount reccivable from Teleldnica to be immediately due and
payable. On April 26, 2002, Telefonica has requested from the creditor a specific waiver
regarding such instances of noncompliance, which was obtained as it relates to financial
staternents as of March 31, 2002.

Additionally, Telefénica uses other long-term bank credit lines to finance importa from different
commercial banks.

8.3.3. Other financing ~ Related Partles

As of March 31, 2002, Telefénica owed a total amount of approximately 2,450 million (US$860
million as of March 31, 2002) to related parties, which matures until October 2002 (see Note
10.2.4.). These agreements established the usual commitments for these kind of transactions, as
well as clauses that establish that the creditor may accelerate the terms of Telefénica’'s payables
(“events of anticipated maturity”) if thare are changes in Telefénica’s equity, ecanomic and
financial situation that due to their adverss nature may affect Telefénica’s capacity to comply with
the obligations assumed in the agreements or if there are restrictiona that may limit the capacity
of Telefénica to repay its debts. The craditor hag advised Telefdnica that for the twelve-month

period as from February 25, 2002, (beyond the due date of sucti debt): (i) the effects of the Public

Emergency System implemented In Argentina by Decree No. 1,570/01, Law No. 25.581, as
supplemented and amended, in force ghall not be considered by the creditor as an event of
anticipated maturity; and (jl) the creditor shall not consider that, as of such date, loans have
become immediately due and payable in accordance with the agreements.

As of the date of these fingncial statements, thae Company and Telefénica have met all obligations arising
from the lssuance of tha above-mentioned debt instrumants.

REGISTRABLE ASSETS OF TELEFONICA

On October 27, 1994, ENTel in liquidation jesued Resolution No. 86/64 whereby It undertakes to perform all
acts necessary to accomplish the transfer of title of registrable assets for such time as may be necessary,
notifying Telefonica 60 days before the date that may be defined ag the expiration of ENTel's commitment.
This resolution recognized that the licensee companies will be entitled to claim the indemnity stipulated in the
Trangter Contract for the real property whose title had not been conveyed to them by the time of the
oxplration of the abuve inentioned period. As of March 31, 2002 these assets have a net book value of about
297 million, of which approximately 2687 million have been reglstered in Telefénica's name. In Telefonica's
opinion, the registration of title of a major portion of the most significant assets contributed by ENTel will be
successfully completed. Accordingly, in Telefénica's Management opinion, the final ocutcome of this matter
will not have a significant impact on Telefonica’s results of operations and/or its financiat position.
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10. ACCOUNTS AND TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES AND RELATED

COMPANIES

10.1.

10.2.

Afflllates (amounts expressed In million of Argentine pesos)

10.1.4,

10.1.2.

Parent companles and related companies

Tellnver (See Note 4.)

On December 28, 2000 and June 28, 2001, Telefdnica made imevocable capital contributions
to Telinver in an amount of 17 million and 36 million, respectively, the first one through the
settiement of certain receivables outstanding with Telinver.

On June 28, 2001, the Special Shareholdors' Meeting of Tolinver decided to use the Reserve
for tuture gividends distributing cash dividends of 32 millioh to Telefénica on June 29, 2001,

Current liabilities in foreign currency of Tefinver exceed current assets in foreign currency by
approximately US$36 million and, In addition, total liabilities exceed total assats, resulting in
negative shareholders’ equity in the amount of 21 million. Should the situation remain
unchanged in the annual financial statements as of December 31, 2002, Telinver will fall
under the conditionz for mandatory diesslution for loss of company eapital due to
accumulated losses set forth in Sectlon 84 of the LSC. Telefonica is evaluating Telinvers
financing needs considering the Argentine economic situation and the current difficulties to
have access to credit, including the possibllity to grant direct financing te cover short-term
cash requirements and, if applicable, grant additional financing. However, if the current
difficultias to obtain refinancing or additional loans and negative shareholders' equity for
Telinver continue, Telefonica plans, and has 80 agreed wilh Telinver, to use its best efforts to
provide such financing directly and, if necessary, making the required capltal contributions
subject to Telefonica’s own fund availability, which depends on the evolution of the issues
affecting Telefonica’s financial situation and cash flows described in Notes 8.1. and 12.

ECL

As of March 31, 2002, Telefénica holds together with Alto Palermo S.A. ("APSA™ a 50%
interest in ECL for the development of an e-commaerce shopping center. Thus, Telefonica, as
succassor of the rights and obligations assumad hy Telinver with respect to this business,
was bound to make, together with APSA, irevocable contributions for the amount of US$10
millian, which were made effective in equal parts on Aprit 30, 2001.

Additionally, the parties undertook to make a capital contributionifor the development of new

busineas lines for a maximum of US$12 million, 75% of which is to be contributed by
Telefénica.

Parent Companies

Until December 15, 2000, THA provided all administrative servi
billing approximately US$174,000 annually. Starting from this
provided by Telefénica. During the six-month period ended Mar
recalved services from Telefénica for approximately 45,000 for

raquired by the Company,
te, these services are

31, 2002, the Company
ministrative services.

During the year ended September 30, 2001, TESA (as lender) and the Company (as
korrower) had executed four loan agreements. These loans ac interest at three-month
LIBOR plus a differential, payable quarterly; the principal had a fixed repayment term as from
disbursement date, renewable automatically unless TESA notifies in writing its intention not
to extend the contract at least three business days before sxpiration date. In addition, under
the terms of thege loans, TISA guaranteed TESA that all obligations and labilities under the
loans would ba met, undertaking |oint and seversl liability with the Company. In consideration
for the guarantee provided by TISA and while such guarantee remains in effect, Cointel
would pay TISA a fee per annum on the amount guaranteed. Orjvl:lavember 8 and 15, 2001,

the Company made early partial repayment, for a face value of US$92 million, of the principal

e e ey < e e mn
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of the loan that had been granted by TESA for a total amount of 127.5 miltion, plus 0.9 million
in interest and fees for the guarantee,

On December 12, 2001, and as a result of an internal rastructuring procass of Telefénica
Group's business in Argentina, the Company executed an assignment agreement with TESA
and TISA whereby TESA assigned TISA all the rights and obligations applicable under the
above-mentioned loan agreements; aa of such date, the princlpal amuunted to US$358.8
miilion. In addition, it was agreed that the guarantee commigsion to be pald by the Company
to TISA under the original agreements would be added to the differential interest originally
established, Subsequently, the Company and TISA executed an amendmant to these loan
agreements whereby the differential was increased as disclosed below and they agreed that
TISA could determine, prior written notice, the capltalization of acerued interests as of cach
due date. As of March 31, 2002, eapitalized interests under the above-mentioned loans
amounted to US$0.6 million.

The detail of the loans, after the restructuring process described in the preceding paragraph,
is as follows:

Principal
Agreement {in milllon of Differantial Period
date uss$) interest (%) maturity
N&-01 127.8 (a) 7.0 (o) Annual
07-01 10.0 7.0(c) Semiannuat
07-01 2.0 7.0(c) Semiannual
08-01 42(b) 8.0 (d) Semiannual

(a) On November 8 and 15, 2001, the Company made earty partial repayments, for a face value of
US$92 millon. Consequently, as of March 31, 2002, the principal amounted to US$35.9 millicn,
which includes US$0.4 million corresponding to capitalized interests.

{b) TESA delivared to the Company US$1 miflion, US$1.7 million and US$1.5 million on September
17, 26, and 28, 2001, respectivaly.

(L) The interest rate computable 18 LIBO plus 7.0%

(d) The intarast rate computabia is LIBO plus 9.0%.

As of March 31, 2002, the book value of the above-mentioned loans amounts to US%$58.9
million of which US$59.4 milllen coresponds to the principal amount and approximately
US$0.5 million to interests.

In obtaining the above-mentionad loans, the Company has undertaken certain commitments,
mainly invelving restrictions on the sale of assats and on the encumbrance of certain assets,
on the Company or any of Ita affiliates bacoming a party to mergars or acquieitione, with
certain exceptions. In addition, the loans shall forthwith becoma due and payable upon the
Company defaulting on any of the obligations undertaken under the loan agreemant,
changes in the Company's controlling shareholders, the Company or its affiliates defaulting
on their obligations, changes in the Company's main business activity and should the
Company of any its affiliates ioge the government licenses obtained and should the
Company’s financial and econumic posttion be altered In such g way that, based on the
adverse nature thereof, they could affect the Company's ability to meet the terms and
conditions assumed on such agreement should there be any restrictions affecting its ability to
settle the payables to TISA. Through a letter dated February 25, 2002, TISA has advised the
Company that for the twelve-month period as from February 25, 2002, (bayond the due date
of such debts): (i) the effacts of the Public Emergenay System implemented in Argentina by
Decree No. 1,5670/01, Law No. 25,561, as supplemented and amended, in force shall not be
considered ag an event of default ag defined under the loan agreement; (i) TISA shall not
consider that, as of such date, laansg have become immediately due and payable due to the
restrictions affecting the Company’s ability to settle tha payables to TISA in connection with
the loan agreements and (iii) shall not consider that debts have become due and payable for
the Company’s failure to meet certain financial ratios.

On January 30 and 31, 2002 Telefénica and the Company subscribed two loan agreements
whereby Talefénica dellverad to the Company US$6.8 million and 9.8 million. The above-
mentionad loan agreements matured on March 1, 2002, On such dats, the principal amount
plus accrued interast of these lcan agreements were renewed, establishing April 12, 2002 as




10.2.1.

10.2.2,

33

maturity day {see Note 24.1.). As of March 31, 2002, the book vaiue of the above-mentioned
loans amount to US$7 million and 8.9 millien, corresponding to the principal amount plus
accrued interests. As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, Telefénica
transferrad these loans to TISA. See Note 241,

During the six-month period ended March 31, 2002, the Company accrued interest and fees
with companies relating to Section 33 of the LSC for an amount of 4.5 milllon,

During the six month periods cnded March 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company collected cash
dividends for an amount of 87 million and 79 million, respectively, from its investment in
Telefénica.

Talefénlca's shareholders’ equity

As of March 31, 2002, due to the situation described in Note 22., Telefénica carrlas
accumulated losses amounting to 2,507 milllon, which have consumed reserves and more
than fifty per cent of capital stock.

Should the situation remain unchanged in the annual financial statements as of December
31, 2002, Telefénica wauld fall under the conditions for mandatory capital stock reduction
due to accumulated losses set forth in Section 206 of the LSC. Such reduction will be
required unless shareholders agree to restore capital.

Tetefonica's Management is continually assessing the development of the above mentioned
situation and its impact on Telefénica's financial position and results of operations.

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements Telefonica cannot provide any
assurance that, should the situation described above occur, the shareholders would decide
to restore capital stock nor that Telefénica, consequently, would be able to maintain the
ordinary development of operations.

Balances with Cointel’s related Companln

As of March 31, 2001, Cointel'a balancea with related companies amounted to 21 mililon and
2 million comrespending to the principal amount and accrued interests of loans, respectively,
with Citibank N.A. = New York. As of March 31, 2002, Citibank N.A. — New York is not
Cointel’s related company. See Note 10.2.1. Additionally, during the six-month period ended
March 31, 2001, the Company accrued interest with related parties for an amount of 1.2
mitlion.

Agresment signsd by the Company’s Sharehoiders

On April 11, 2000 certain affillates of Hicks, Muse, Tate & Furst, incorporated (“Hicks Muse”),
including Republica Heldings, Ltd. and a Citibank N_A. affiliate (*CE! affiliates”) and TESA
have entered into a Stock Exchange Agreement (the “Contract™}, in relation with certain
future transactions whereby, after certain conditions were met, as of December 15, 2000,
CEl (now THA,) vriginal shareholders transferred to TESA, shares representing 80.9% of the
capital stack and 84.7% of tha votes of THA, in exchange for TESA common shares issued.
On June 29, 2001, TESA natified THA that the former had transferred ali its shares in the
latter to ita aubaidiary TIEA. Addltionally, aa of December 31, 2001, as a result of THA' 3
capital stock reduction, TESA indirect equity interest in THA, increased from 80.9% to

89.99%.
TCP (See Note 4.)

In July 1999, Telefénica provided to the Argentine Govermment for the benefit of TCP
performance guarantees under the PCS licenses obilgations in the amounts of US$22.5
million and (jointly with Telecom Argentina Stet France Telecom S.A. ("Telecom™)) US$45
million. As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, the CNC has not completed
the technical audit related to the performance guarantees mentioned above.
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Advance (S86 Note 4.)

On August 20, 1989, the CNC charged Telefénica and Advance with noncompllance with
Decree No. 62/80 and Decree No, 266/98 for alleged infringement of the provisions on
subsidies granted by the Basic Telephone Service Licensees to their subsidiariag and
affiliates. On September 30, 1999, Telefénica provided the relevant defenses, and as of the
date of these financial statements, the issue is pending resolution by the CNC. 1n the opinian
of Telefdnica’s manegament and its legal advisore, there are reaacnable legal greunds to
consider that the possibility of an adverse outcome is unilikely and remote.,

Telefénica's outstanding balances and transactions with related companies (amounts
expressed in milllon of Argentine pesos)

The common shareholders of the Company executed an agreement to regulate certain
corporate decisions of Telefonica such as the dividend policy and preferential rights held by
some of them (members of the consortium, as defined in tha Transfer Agreement, and its
affiliates) to provide assets and services under terms equal or maore favorable than those
offered by third parties. Telefonica made certaln transactions with the Company’s
shareholders and companies related thereto, including the services rendered by the operator,
TESA, and those rendered by other third parties related to the Company's shareholders.

The expense recognized in the consolidated financial statements under the management
agresment with the operator, the transactions with other shareholders related to the
furnishing of goods and services, and certain charges related to bank commissions, intetest
and administrative servicas during the six-month pefiods ended March 31, 2002 and 2001
are as follows:

2002 2001
Management fee 47 58
Supply of goods and services 39 15
Interest charges 30 1

Transactions with Banco Reptiblica relating to rental expenses and other anclllary sefvices
amounted to 3 milllon during the six-month period ended March 31, 2001 and 1 million for the
period from October 1 through December 30, 2001 (date on which the Republica Group
divested of its interest in Telefonica Group). As of December 31, 2001, Banco Republica is
not longer a company related to Telefonica.

Talafnira's halanres with the nperatnr and other of tha Company's shamholders and other
related companies as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 are (in million of Argentine pesos):

Asset/ (Liablity)

2002 2001 (1)
Bank deposits - 8
Prepaid rent - 14
Related companies recelvables 131 61
Prepaid expenses - 14
Related companiss payables (83) (88)
Top Program coverage cost-TESA (see Note 16.) ©) -
Credit balances with banks - (22)
Bank and other financial payables - TiSA (2) (2.450) 616)

(1) Includes transactions with TCP, Advance and TYSSA, which were subsidiariea through the spin-off date
{sea Note 4.). Additionally, it includes receivables from and payables to companies related to Citigroup
and the Republica Group that sold their interest in Telefonica as of Dacember 31, 2001.

(2) Sme Note 8.3.3.

On May 28, 2001, the National Executive Power issued Decree N° 877/01 which provides
that any minority shareholder of Telefénica may demand that TESA makes a purchase offar
to all of Telsfdnica's minority shareholders, in which case TESA could make an acquisition
statement of Telefénica’s capital stock owned by third parties or make a tender offer of such
Teleténica’s shares. Such acguisition offers or statements may be carried out by providing
an exchange option for controlling shareholders’ listed shares. Should any of the above
transactions be conducted, once the acquisition has been completed and the established
procedure has bean met, Telefénica would be automatically left outside from the share public
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trading and listing system. However, Telefonica's negotiable obligations would still remaln in
such system.

11. COMMITMENTS
11.1. IBM - Telefénica Contract

On March 27, 2000, Telefénica's Board of Directors approved, considering the benefits foreseaan by
Telefénics based on the proposals received, the outsourcing through IBM of the operation and
maintenance of the infrastructure of certain Telefénica’s information systems. Telefanica, TCP,
Telinver and Advance (referred to jointly herein as *the Companies”) have executed certain contracts
(tha “Cantracts™) with IBM whereby the operation and maintenance of the information tachnology
infrastructure is outsourcad to IBM for a six and a half-year term  Algo, under this agreement, the
Companies transferred gradually to IBM the assets used to render the services outsourced under the
Contracts. In consideration for the assets transferred, IBM committed to pay 37.5 million and has the
obligation to renew the assets transferred periodically. Telefonica transferred such assets during
August 2000. At contract expiration, |BM shall transfer to the Companies for a price of 22.5 million
the assets at such date dedicated to providing the services. |BM has hired the parsonnal of some of
the Companies that had been assigned to rendering the services. Over the duration of the Contracts
the companies shall pay IBM decreasing monthly installments in consideration for the base line
services to be received under the Contracts and other charges for the use of additional resources.
The smount to be accrued on account of the base service reception through the end of the
agreement term (August 2007) totals 157 million.

11.2. Other

Telefonica signed contracts covering works to be executed in the outside and ingide plant, of which
approximatcly 204 million ere pending.

12. TARIFF SYSTEM

12.1.  Tarlff agreement

Decree N° 764/00 on telecommunications deregulation establishes that providers may freely set
rates and/or prices for the services rendered and for customer categories, which shall be applied on
a nondiscriminatory basis. However, if there were no effective competition, the *histerical” providers
of such areas shall respect the maximum rates established in the General Rate Structure. Below the
values established in such rate structure, such providers may freely set their rates by areas, routes,
long-distance legs and/or customer groups.

To determine the existence of effactive competition, the historicat providers shall demonstrate that
another or other providers of the same service obtained 20% of the total revenues fer such service in
the local araa of the Basic Telephony Service involved. Effective competition shall be considered to
exist in the provision of national or international long-distance services for the calls originated in a
local area of the Basic Telephony Service, when the customers in such area are able to choose,
through the dialing selection method, among more than two service providers, if each of them, offers
more than one long-distancs destination.

Except for areas and services where effective competition is demonstrated to exist, the rate
agreements established a maximum rate per pulse denominated in US dollars. These agreements
also provided for the right of Telefonica to adjust this rate for changes In the Consumer Price Index
of the United States of America on April 1 and October 1 of each year.

However, Law of Public Emergency and Currency Exchange System Reform No. 25,561, datad
January 8, 2002, provides that, in the agreements executed by the Federa! Adminlstration under
public law regulations, including public works and services, indexation clauses bused on foreign
countries price index or any other indexation mechanism are annulied. In this regard, it sets forth that
the prices and rates resulting from such provisions shalt be established in pesos at a one peso ($1) =
one U.S. dollar (US$ 1) exchange rate. Furthermore, Section No. 8 of the above-mentioned Law
authorizes the National Executive Power to renegotiate the above contracts taking into account the




following criteria in relation to public utility services: (a) the Impact of the rates on the
competitiveness of the economy and on distribution of income; (b) service quality and investment
plang, when such aspects are contemplated in the contracts; (c) the interest of users and access to
the services; (d) the security of the comprised systems; (e) the profitabllity of the companies.

Under the rate regulation mechanism in effect known as price cap, Decree No. 284/98 provided a 4%
raduction {in constant dollar terms) in rates, in torms similar to the method provided by paint 12.5.1.
of the List of Conditions, to be applied during each year of the transition period to basic telephone
service rates; and 90% of such reduction to be applied to domestic long distance services. Telintar
and now Tetefénica as it successor was required to apply the same 4% reduction to international
rates.

On November 3, 1999, the SC issued Resolution No. 2,925/99, whereby, based on the assumption
of the nonexistence of effective competition as of such date. provided a 5.5% reduction in telaphone
basic service rates for the period Navember 8, 1999, through November 2000. Such reduction was
applied to detailed billing, domestic and intemnational long-distance services. Likewise, the starting
time of the domestic and intemational long-distance reduced rate was brought forward.

In April 2000 and March 2001, Telefénica, Telecom and the SC executed rate agreements which,
subject to the approval by the Economy Ministry and of Infrastructure and Housing, provided the
terms under which the price caps would be applied:

iy  Price Cap as of November 8, 2000. the SC established that the rate reductlon for the period
November 2000/2001 would amount to 8.75%. The reduction would be applied through: a)
discount pians that were effective as from March 2000 (commercial and government basic
rates, local measured service, and the application of certain preferential rates for intermnet
access), the non-application of charges set forth in Reselution N° 2,026/99 untll November 8,
2001 and the non-application over the year of the two semiannual adjustments to the pulse
value for the US Consumer Price Index; b) given that such plans were brought into effect before
schedule, the accumulated effects of the above-mentioned rate reductions would be applied to
the computation of price caps for the periods beginning November 2000, 2001 and 2002
adjusted at an interest rate of 12% per year; and c) furthermore, it was established that the
difference between the effect of the discounts already granted and that of a 6% reduction would
be applied on November 8, 2000 across different items of the tariff structure, and the additional
0.7%% reguction would be applied as defined by the Licensess.

iy  Price Cap as of November 8, 2001: the SC established that the efficiency factor for the price
cap applicable for the period November 2001/November 2002 would amount to 5.6%. This rate
reduction is to be implemented through: a) the non-application of the two adjustments to the
pulae value for the US Consumer Price Index for the year, adjusting the effect at the 12%
annual rate in order to measure it against the total expected 5.6% reduction, b) any balance’
resulting from the non-application of the adjustment to the value of the telephone pulse in the
period 2000/2001, as well as any balance remaining in respect of a variety of items included in
the 2000/2001 price cap; ¢) any unapplied price cap portion remaining after the rate reductions
mentioned in a) and b) above with respect to the 5.8% rate reduction, should be applled in the
following manner: 70% as provided by Telefonica, 15% to the local service, and 15% to other
services as required by the SC, other than monthly basic charges and the local measured
service.

iy Price Cap as from November 8, 2002 through November 7, 2003: The SC established that the
efficiency fautur cuuld not exceed 3%, but it did not set its vatue.

Although the reductions mentioned in point i), and the early reductions referred to in point Ii), are
being applied by Telefénica, the related agreements have not been yet approved by the Economy
Ministry and of Infrastructure and Housing. Ag of the issuance date of these financiat statements, the
effect of the discount plans implemented has not been established as compared to rate reduction
percentages provided by such agreements, and the regulatory agency has not approved how to
apply the rate reduction mentioned in point i).

On the other hand, in relation to the compiaint filed by Consumidores Libres Cooperativa Limitadz de
Provisién de Servicios Comunitarios ("Consumidores Libres”), mentioned in Note 13.¢), on Octaber
4, 2001, Court Room IV of the Federal Appellate Court on Administrative Contentious Matters of the
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City of Buenos Aires awarded a precautionary measure requested by the plaintiff ordering the
National Government, Telefénica and Telecom “to refrain from applying the corrections set forth In
Section 2 of the Agreements approved by Dacres N° 2,585/91 untit final judgment is rendered in the
case”, which means that the rates may not be adjusted by the US consumer price index.

In the opinion of Telefdnica’s Management and its legal counsel, the outcome of these issues could
exclugively affect the maximum rates for future earvices that Telcfonica I8 authorized to charge its
customers regarding services, areas, or customers In which the government did not declare the
existence of effective competition. As of March 31, 2002, these maximum rates are datermined by
applying to rates effective as of November 7, 2000, the discounts appliad in order to implement the
price caps related to November 8, 2000, and Novembear B, 2001, under the above-mentioned
agreements.

1he rate reauction percentage and the services to which such raductions will eventually apply
depend on the final approval of the above-mentioned rate agreements, and on the outcome of the
legal proceedings commenced by Consumidores Libres regarding the effactive rate system.

Based on cumrent rate regulation mechanisma and considering Telefénica’s defense against the
above-mentioned legal proceedings, in the opinion of Telefonica’s Management and its legal
counsel, the cutcome of these issues will not have a negative impact upon Telefonica's financial
position or a significant adverse effect on its rasults of operations.

In connection with the agreements executed by the Federal Administration under public law
regulations, including public works and services, Law No. 25,561 provided for: (1) the annulment of
dollar or other foreign cumrency adjustments and indexing provisions; (2) the establishment of an
exchange rste for dollar-denominated prices and rates ($1 = US$ 1); and (3) the authorization for the
National Executive Power to renegotiata the conditions of the above contracts taking into account the
following criteria: (a) the impact of the rates on the rampatitiveness of the economy and on
distribution of incoma; (b) service quality and investment plans, when such aspects are contemplated
In the contracts; (c) the interest of users and access to the services; (d) the security of the comprised
systems, (e) the profitability of the companies.

Decree N° 293/02, dated February 12, 2002, entrusted the Economy Ministry with the renegotiation
of such agreements, including agreements that govern the provision of basic telephony services. The
contractual renegotiation proposals must be submitted to the National Executive Power within 120
days after the effective date of this Decree. Tetefénica has fulfilled its duty to submit the information
required by the Govemment.

In addition, Decree No. 764/2000 has reduced the interconnection price for the origin and destination
of the calls in the local areas to 1.1 centa/minute for districts with more than 5,000 inhabltants or a
telephone-set density above 15 telephones every 100 inhabitants and to 1.3 cents/minutes for the
rest of the districts and in the areas included In the original license of independent oparators and to
0.30 cents/minutes for the transit within local areas. A 3% semi-annual price cap will apply during
the two first years after these rules and regulations become effective.

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, Telefénica's Management is unable to
foresee the fina! result of the negotiation under Law No. 25,561 or the rate scheme to be effective In
the future; it iz pogsible that such rate scheme will not maintain its value in U.S. dollars or constant
pesos over time in accordance with any patential future increase in general price levets ("GPL").
Although, according to Telefénica's legal counsel opinion, under general administrative law
princlples applicable to the Transfar contract and List of eanditinna, fitura ratas should be fixed at a
level which is sufficiently falr to cover service costs, if future rates evolve at a pace well balow GPL, it
would have a material adverse effect on Telefonica's future financial position and results of
operations. .

Tariff restructuring

The tariff restructuring granted by Decras No. 82/87, effective on February 1, 1997, established an
Increasea in the price of the monthly basic charge and in domestic service rates, and a decrease in
the rates for domestic long distance and intemational services and for Telefonica's local and
domestic lotg distance public phone service for longer distances, The net impact of the rate
restructuring was to be neutral on revenues during two years after Its effectiveness. On December 1,




1999 the SC has issued Resolution No. 4,269/39, which established the SC's final determination of
the impact of the tariff restructuring as an excess in revenues of 18 mitlion {which had previously
been provisionally determined by the SC in 14 million). Resolution No, 4,269/99 also states that the
SC will determine the form and time of implementation of the future rate reduction to compensate
such excess revenues, Telefdnica has filed an appeal for revision of this resolution, on the grounds
that the calculation method used by the SC to determine the impact of the tariff restructuring
established by Decree No. 92/97 has defacts and should be challenged. As of the issuance date of
these financial statements such appeal has not been resolved.

in the opinion of Telefonica's Management and its legal counsel, the outcome of these issues could
exclusively affect the maximum rates for future services that Telefénica is authorized to charge its
customers regarding services, areas, or customers in which the government did not dectare the
existence of effective competition. Tharafore, in tha apinion nf TelefAnica’s Managemant and its legal
counsel the outcome of these issues will nat have a negative impact upon Telefonica’s financiat
position or a significant adverse effect on its results of operaticns.

13. LAWSUITS AND CLAIMS
&) Labor lawsuits attributable to ENTel

The Transfer Contract provides that ENTel and not Telefénica is llable for all amounts owing in
connection with claims based upon ENTel's eantractual and statutory obligations to former ENTel
employees, whether or not such claims are made prior to the Transfer Date if the events giving rise to
such claims occurred prior to the Transfer Date. Howaver, using a theory of successor enterprise liability
that thay agsart Is hasad upon generally applicable Argentine labor [aw, certain former employees of
ENTel have brought claims against Telefénica, arguing that neither the Transfer Contract nor any act of
the National Executive Power can be raised as a defense to Telefonica’s joint and several liability under
allegedly applicabie labor laws.

In &n attempt to clarify the issue of successor liabllity for labor ctaims, Decree No. 1,803/92 was issued
by the National Executive Power. It states that various articles of the Wark Contract Law of Argentina
(the “Articles™), which are the basis for the foregoing claims of joint and several liability, would not be
applicable to privatizations completed or to be compieted unoer the State Reform Law, Although the
issuance of Decree No. 1,803/92 should have been seen as favorabla to Telefdnica, it did not bring about
a final solution to the abave claims. in effect, in declding a case brought before it, the Supreme Court of
Justice upheld the provisions of the law and declared the Decree inapplicable.

in 217 cases where Telefonica was named as a co-defendant with ENTal under this theory of successor
enterprise liability, it was hetd that Telefénica is not jointly nor severally liable on the labor claims. Some
of these judgments have been appealed and no final dacizion has yat baen handed down.

As of March 31, 2002, the claims filed against Telefénica and accrued interest and expenses with respect
thereto totaled approximatety 85 million. Telefénica has not booked an accrual for possible adverse
judgments in such legal actions since (8) in the Transfer Contract, ENTel has agreed to indemnify
Telefonica in respect of such claims and (b} the Argentine Government has agreed to be jointly and
severally liable with ENTel in respect of such indemnity obligations and has therefore authorized
Telefénica to debit an account of the Government at Banco Nacién Argentina for any amount payable by
Telefonica. Under the Dabt Consolidation Law, ENTel and the Argentine Government may discharge
their above-described indemnity obligations by the issuance to Telefonica of 16-year bonds. As of March
31, 2002 Telefénica has pald approximately 3.4 million In cash for the above-mentioned claims.
Telefonica recently initiated a claim for indemnification and reimbursement in connection with this matter,
and neither ENTel nor the Argentine Govemment have yet responded to such request, nor has any court
passed judgment on the related legal issues.

Regardless of the number of rulings that have already been held in Telefonica’s favor, court decislons
have followed the precedent !aid down by the Supreme Court of Justice in the area of joint liability in
labor matters mentioned in the second paragraph, criterion that Telefénica and its legal counsel consider
that will apply to pending cases. Notwithstanding this and the instruments that may be used by the
Argentine Government to reimburse the amounts that would be paid, given the obligation Incurred by the
Argentine Government in the List of Conditions and in the Transfer Contract, on the one hand, and on the
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basls of the opinion of Telefénica's legal counsel regarding the poasible amount for which existing claims
may be resolved, on the other, in the opinion of Telefénica and its legal counsel the final outcome of the
issue should not have a material impact on Telefénica's results of operations or financial position.

b) Reimbursement of Value Added Taxes (“VAT"} paid by Telintar

On April 24, 1995, Telecomunicaciones Internacionales de Argentina ("Telintar”) filed an application with
the AFIP-DGI for the reimbursameant of approximataly 71 3 milllan ariging from the modifications of
cartain prior positions originally taken by Tellntar with respect to the computation of VAT credits
applicable to certain transactions for the period January 1, 1983 through February 28, 1995. In addition
and as a consequence of the situation mentioned above, Telintar applied for the reéimbursement of
approximately 5.9 million in income and asset taxes.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 1897, the AFIP-DGI accepted Telintar's position on the first
claim and reimbursed 20.7 million of principal and 3.8 million of intarast to tha cnmpany. Since the AFIP-
DGt has still not given its opinion on the second clalm, Telefonica as a successor in TLDA’s business
has not recorded any amounts relating to the latter claim mentioned in the previous paragraph. In this
regard, should a decision be passed sustaining Telintar's case, the successor companies will then agree
on the criterion to be followed for distributing the resulting proceeds betwean them.,

c) Other

Consumidores Libres initisted a legal action against Telefonlca, Telecom, Telintar and the Federal
Government. The object of this action is to dectare the nullity, untawfulness and unconstitutionality of all
standards and rate agreaments issued since the Transfer Contract, Consumidores Libres’s cbjective
being to have the rates of the basic telephone service reduced and the amount supposedly collected in
excess refunded, limiting them in such a way that tha Licensees’ rate of retumn should not exceed 16%
per annum on the assets as determined in point 12.3.2. of the List of Conditions approved by Decree No.
82/90. Also, other points of Telafonica’s contracting policy have been called into question,

After analyzing the claim, Telefénica's legal counsel contested it, petitioning that it should be dismissed
on the grounds that it falls to state a claim with a basis in law. The court of original jurisdiction ruled in
Telefénica's favor, but this resoiution was revoked by the Court of Appeals that resolved that the claim
must not be dismissed but must be substantiated at the court of original jurisdiction. None of these
courts have yet ruled on the substance of the claim. Through its tegal counse!, Telefonica filed an appeal
to the Suprame Court of Justice againet the Appoal Court's resolution, which was denled. Telefénica
subsequently filad an appeal of such denial with the Supreme Court of Justice and a decision regarding
such matter is pending.

In this scenario, on October 4, 2001, Court Room IV of the Federal Appellate Court on Administrative
Contentious Matters of the City of Buenos Aires awarded a precautionary measure requested by the
plaintiff ordering the Federal Government, Telefénica and Telecom “to refrain from applying the
corractions set forth in Section 2 of the Agresments approved by Decraa No. 2,585/91 until final
judgment is rendered in the case®, which means that the rates may not be adjusted by the US consumer
price index.

Telefénica appealed such decision before the Argentine Supreme Court of Justica rejecting the
arguments stated therein. No decision on the appeal hag been rendered as of the date of these financial
statements.

In the opinion of Telefiniva’s inanagument and Ns legal counsel, it 18 uniikely and remote that the
resolution of this issue could have a negative effect on the results of its operations or financial position.

14. RULES GOVERNING THE PROVISION OF BASIC TELEPHONE SERVICES
a) Provision of basic telephone services
As from March 1992, and in compliance with its specific functions, the CNT, now the CNC, started to

regulate on certain aspects related to the basic and international telephone services, such as procedures

to make claims, contracting regime, bllling and sarvice quality, some of which have been the object of
appeals by Telafénlea.




b)
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Telefénica appealed Resolution No. 189/35 of the CNT which ordered Telefonica, Startel S.A. (“Starte!”)
and Telecom to avoid rendering certain services based on the use of joint facilities, unless they were part
of agreements that had been approved by the CNT and reported to any potentially interested competing
provider of those services and Resolution No. 1,197/85 disallowing the agreements made by Telefénica '
and by Telecom with Startel related to the lease links owned by the licensees for the purposse of

rendering services handled by Startel. The resvlulion also states that the Licensees shall tranafer to

Startel, for valuable consideration, the equipment and other assets that they placed at the disposal of

Startel for the rendering of such services.

As a consequence of the granting of an appeal that had been petitioned by Telefénica in a lawsuit
initiated by IMPSAT S.A. in relation with this matter, Resclution No. 100 of the Ministry of the Economy
and Public Works and Utilities (Ministerio de Economia, Qbras y Servicios Pablicos) "M.E. y 0.8.P.")
(which had been igsued subsequently to the above-mentioned resclutions, and had repealed them)
ramaing effective as of the date of these financial statements.

However, in the event the issue were not favorably resolved (i.e that Resolutions No. 100 of the ME.y
0.5.P. were annulled), the evolution of the regulation after the issuance of the resolution pravides that
the annuiment thereof should have na further practical implications since the obligation of interconnecting
to the networks held by the service praviders, as well as the possibility that they reciprocally lease the
use ot such networks hasg baen cleany established by the regulation which o date Is fully effective
(Dacree No. 764/00).

Telefonica's management believes that it Is unlikely that the appealed regulation (including as they may
be modified in response to Telefonica's objections) will have any materiat adverse effect on Telefénica's
results of operations or financial position.

In the ¢ontext of the transition to competition in telecommunications, the SC has issued the following
resolutions:

— Decrae No. 764/2000, which approved the Rules for granting of Licenses for Telecommunications
Services, the Rules for Interconnection and the Rules for Management and Control of Radicelectric
Spectrum, that constitute the current regulatory framework applicable to Telefonica. See Note 7.

- Decree No. 764/2000 repealed Resolutions No. 18,971/98 and 16,200/99 and approved the
Universal Service niles and regufations to promote the access to telecommunications services by
customers elther located in high-cost access or maintenance areas, or with physical limitations or
special social needs. Such rules and requiations effective from January 1, 2001, establish that the
deficit for the provision of these services will be financed through the payment by all
telecommunications providers (including Telefénica) of 1% of total revenues for telecommunications
services net of taxes, the “Universal Service Fund®. As of the date of these financlal statements, the
SC has nat defined the mechanism through which Telefénica should recaver the cost incurred for
rendering these services.

— The SC issued Resolution No. 18,927/99, establishing, once the transition to competition in
talecommunications ended, the derpgulation in the provisian of goods, services and works required
by the licensees of Basic Telephone services.

Other services

Through Resolution No. 109/00, the SC declared the radio spectrum administration and management in
state of administrative emergency for a term of 120 calendar days, thus suspending: the assignment of
frequencies related to certain radio bands, such as the ones assigned to “data trangmission and value
added services™ and “high-density systems"; the acceptance and/or processing of applications requesting
new frequency assignments; and any procedure related to licanse transfarring and/or modifying the
licenge terms and conditions. Through Reeclution No. 271/00, the SC subsequently extendad the term
of emergency unti} July 24, 2000. Decrss No. 764/00 dated September 3, 2000, approved new
regulations concerning the radio spectrum administration and management whereas the revision of
frequency assignmsnts under Resolution No. 109/00 continues.
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15. PATRIOTIC BOND AND TAX CREDIT CERTIFICATES

15.1. Patriotic Bond

In May 2001, Telefénica executed a Patriotic Bond subsgcription commitment (bond issued by the
Argentine Governmaent) for a total amount of US$ 30 million, which was completely paid in that
month. This bond is denominated in US dellars, is made out to bearer, and is negotiable in local and
foreign stock markets. It will be amortized in 5 equal and successive quarterly instaliments payable
fioim May 11, 2003 through May 11, 2004, It accrues interest equivalent to the average obtained from
the 30 days immediately precaeding each monthly interest period (including the first day of each
period) of the B.C.R.A. survey for fixed-term deposits In private banks with a term from 30 to 35 days
and higher than US$ 1 million, plus an annual 4.85%, payable on a monthly bagis past the due date.

Issuance clauses allow using this security to pay Federal taxes in the event that amortization and /or
Interast are not paid by the related due datesz. Linoe the fadaral Governmaent har nnt paid off cince

January 2002, the related interest on such bond, Telefénica has compensated such interest against
taxes.

168.2. Tax Credhit Certificates

During August 2001, Telefénica signed a TCC subscription sgreement for a total amount of US315
million, which was fully paid. Under the provisions of Decrea No. 410/02, a$ from February 3, 2002,
these certificates, originally denominated in US dollars, were converted Into pasos at the $1.40 =
US$1 exchange rate (increasing the amount of the subscription to 21 million), the banchmark
stabilization conffiriant helng effactive as from that data. Such bearer certificates accrue interest at a
maximum annual nominal rate of 2% (as from February 3, 2002, under Decree N*471/02) on the
original nominal value balances and may be compensated at their noticnal value against VAT or
income tax or any other substituting or replacing tax, both for payment of tax returns and for
prepayments. Such tax obligations may be hanored by compensating 25% of the total of such
certificates upon each expiration date as from January 1, 2003, July 1, 2003, January 1, 2004 and
July 1, 2004, After oxpiration of ono year and three monthe after each of the dates mentioned above
and until December 31, 2008, any unused tax credit certificate will be freely transferable, whether
fully or partially. The Federal Govemment may redeem, fully or partially, any unused amount of the
certificate after June 30, 2005, at their notional value as of the prepayment date. Otherwlise, any
unused balance of the tax credit certificates as of December 31, 2008, will be prepaid by the Federal
Government at their technical value as of that date. Telefénica plans to compansate taxes as from
tha earliast dates provided in tha conditions of tha TCC.

16. EXECUTIVE INCENTIVE PROGRAM AND STOCK PURCHASE AND STOCK
OPTION PROGRAM

As from August 9, 2000, an incentive program (the "TOP" Program) was created for executives, that consists
in granting TESA (one of the shareholders of Telefénica) stock options to 17 Teleftnica top exscutives who
ars bound to hold them for the Program term. During May 2001, each executive signed the incentive
program agreement and bought a preestablished number of TESA shares at market price to assign them to
the Program. The executives were granted a number of TESA stock options at a given strike price, cummentty
equivalent to 14,5052 euro per share, equal to ten times the number of shares purchased and assigned to the
Program, plus a number of TESA stock options at ancther given strike price, currently equivalent to 21,7554
euro per share, equal to ten times the number of shares purchased and assigned to the Program. The
program term is three years with three dates to exercise the options. The shares under the Program total
26,613 involving a total amount of 532,260 options.

. The total coverage cost of the program for Telefonica, which was signed with TESA, Is 4.48667 euro per
option, i.e. 2.4 million euro, which has been booked, based on its linear accrual within the term of the
program, in “Salaries and social security taxes and other expensges” in Note 23.h).

Additionally, TESA approved a program whereby all Telefénica employees who chose o join acquired a
number of TESA shares, which number was based on their annual compensation, for the equivalent of 5 euro
per share. In addition, TESA granted the particlpants 28 stock options for every TESA share purchased,
which can be exercised if the share price exceeds 20.08 euro (originally 24.5 euro and then modified to 20.09
eurn) at a strike price of 5 euro per aption. The program will be effective for four years and participating
employses may axercise the options granted on three different occasions during such four-year term.
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The benefits under this program are contingent on the participants continued employment with the Telefonica
group, L.e. they may not unilaterally and voluntarily terminate their employment with the group before the
exercise date without tosing the benefits under the program. Since the above benefita are granted by TESA
directly, this program daes not involve any expenses to Telefonica,

17. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

In the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of (amounts
expressead in millinn of Argentine pesos):

2002 2001
Cash 66 21
Investments which are cash equivalents a8 52
Cash and cash equivalents ‘ 164 73

18. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY

These financial statements are presented on the basis of Argentine GAAP. Certain accounting practices
applied by the Company that conform with Argentine GAAP do not conform with US GAAP.,

The Company has not presented a reconcitiation of the effect on the accompanying financial statements as of
and for the six-month period ended March 31, 2002 of the differences between Argentine and US GAAP. The
reconcitiation for the six-month period ended March 31, 2001 is included in the Company’s financial
statements as of March 31, 2001 and 2000 filed by the Company with the SEC.

19. AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS

Taking into account the provisions of the new Public Offering Transparancy Rules and Regulations, instated
by Decree No. 677/2001, which provides that the administration bodies may function, when allowed by
bytaws, with the members present or instead mutually in communication by media simultaneously
broadcasting sound, images or words, the Special Shareholders’ Mesting held on September 18, 2001,
decided to change Articles 15, 20 and 21 of the Corporate Bylaws to effect the addition of such system of
distance meetings for board meetings, and regular and spacial shareholders’ meetings, with the express
provision that quorum is to be computed considering members physically present as well as those
communicated by media broadcasting gsound, images or words, In addition, such Shareholders’ Meeting
amended Article 19 so that the first and second calls to regular and speclal shareholders’ meetings may be
simultaneous. On October 29, 2001, this amendment was registered with the Public Registry of Commerca.

20. RESTRICTED ASSETS

On the basis of Executive Power Decree No. 1570/01 and the Public Emeargency and Exchange
System Reform Law (Law No. 25,561) described in Note 22, as of the date of issuance of these
financial statements there are certain reatrictions on the availability of deposits within the banking
system, mainly related to cash withdrawals. As of March 31, 2002, Telefonica's funds (Cash and
Banks) subject to such restriction amounts to 21 million.

In the opinion of the Company’s Management, this restriction will not have a significant effect on the
Company's operations.




21. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

22.

As of March 31, 2002, due to the situation described in Note 22., the Company carries accumulated losses
amounting to 2,003 million and negative shareholders’ equity amounting to 533 million. Should the situation
remain unchanged in the annual financial statements as of September 30, 2002, the Company would fall
under the conditions for dissolution due fo the loss of its capital stock set forth in Section 84 of the LSC. As of
such date the Company’s shareholders will have to asses the measures to be taken to revert the situation
explained above. The Company Management is continually assessing the development of the above
mentioned situation and its impact on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements the Company cannnt provide any assurance that,
shouid the situation described above occur, the shareholders would decida to restore capital stock nor that
the Company, consaguently, would he abie to maintain the ardinary devalopment of oparatians.

EFFECTS OF THE ARGENTINA'S PESO DEVALUATION AND OTHER MODIFICATIONS TO
THE ECONOMIC REGULATION

Since early Decembar 2001, Argantina authnritias implamanted a numhber of monetary and cumrancy
exchange control measures that mainly included restrictions on the free disposition of funds deposited with
banks and the tight restriction of transferring funds abroad, with the exception of transfers related to foreign
trade and other authorized transactions. Later, the Government declared the official default on forelgn debt
payments. On January 6, 2002, the Argentine Congress approved Law No. 25,581 on Public Emergency and
Exchange System Refarm that introduced dramatic changas to the economic model implemented until that
date and that amended tha Convertihility | aw (the ruirrency bhoard that pegged tha Argentina pasno at parity
with the US dollar) approved in March 1991. The new law empowers the Federal Executive Power to
implement, among other things, additional monetary, financial and exchange measures to overcome the
economic crisis in the medium term,

Decree No. 71/2002 of the National Executive Power astablished an “official’ exchange system, mainly for
exports, certain imports, and bank debts, and the “freely floating™ exchange markat for the rest of the
transactions, which was regulated by the B.C.R.A, Official exchange rate was established at $1.4 to US$1
and the exchange rate of the “frec” market, as of the close of business of the firct day after the exchange
market (which had been suspended) reapened (January 11, 2002), was about $1.60/$1.70 to US$ 1 (bid
price).

Other regulations weare issued subsequently, amending aomsa of the above mentioned regulations. The main
aspects of such other regulations as of the approval of these financial statements are:

(a) as from February 8, 2002, pursuant to Dacree No. 260/02, the officially exchange rate system was
replaced by a single and free foreign exchange market system, through which all foreign exchange
transactions are to be channeled. As of May 13, 2002, the exchange rate on such market was 3.25
Argentine pegos to each US dollar, selling price.

(b) the conversion into pesos of all obligations, whatever their cause or origin, to provide sums of money
stated in US dollars or other foreign currency outstanding at the time of enactment of Law No. 25,561,
as well as bank deposits in foreign currencies; deposits were switched at the exchange rate of US$1 =
$1.4, while obligations stated in foreign curency undertaken in Argentina until January 6, 2002, were
switchad at the exchange rate of US$1 = $1; the dapaosits and debts thus converted into pesas are to be
adjusted by the benchmark stabllization coefficient that will be published by the B.C.R.A.; such
coefficlent Is to be applied as from February 3, 2002 (publication date of Decree No. 214/02 ) or the
wage adjuatment index, depending on the nature of the obligation, pius & minimum sat interest rate for
obligetions towards the financial system.

(c) issuance of a bond by the Argentine Government to compensate financial ingtitutions for the difference
generated by the application of the exchange rates mentioned above;

(d) de-dollanization of most obligations originally denominated in forelgn currency and governed by
Argentine law, as of January €, 2002 at a § 1 = US$ 1 rate and subsequent adjustment through the
benchmark atabilization coefficiant in tha tarms dascribed in (b), or the waga adjustment index,
depending on the nature of the obligation plus a minimum set interest rate for obligations towards the
financial system;




(e)

(f)
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de-dollarization of public service rates which were originally agreed upon in US dollars at a $1=US$1
rate and subsequent renegotiation on a case-by-case basis;

prior authorization by the B,C.R.A. will be required untilt August 12, 2002, for the transfer of funds abroad
by companies of the private sector, among others, to satiefy financial loan interest and principal
payments and, subject to certain exceptions, the distribution of dividends or profits. Such exceptions
refer to (i) payment of the principal of debts contracted with mulitilateral entities and official and officially
recognized credit agencies or barks participating in investment financing projects co-financed by such
intemational entities; (ii) payment on due date of the principal on debt bonds refinanced for a minimum
of 180 days and whenever such refinancing covers at least 80% of the unpaid principal; (jii)) payment on
due date of the principal on financial loans granted by foreign banks, parent companies or subsidiaries
which have been refinanced for at least 180 days; and (lv) payment on due date of the principal on
financial loans granted by foreign banks, parent companies and subsidiaries which have been
refinanced for at least 180 days covering at least 80% of the unpald pringipal amount. Altematively, in
the cases of (i) and (iv) above, the requirements will be deemed met if a new forelgn financing is
obtained for a tern no shorter than 180 days and for an amount no lower than B0% of the unpaid
principal within the related three-month period. The exceptions mentioned in (i) to (iv) above have been
temporarily suspended,

suspension of dismissals without a just cause for a 180-day period, as of January 6, 2002, and
penalization whereby the amount of the termination pay provided for in labor regulations would be
double, should employees be dismissed during such term;

suspengion for two years of the law on deposits intangibility or until the time the Executive Powsr
considers the financial amergancy to be concluded;

declaration of a state of emergency to last until December 10, 2003, covering production and credit
aspects, which implies among other issues:

1) the suspension, from February 14, 2002, and until December 10, 2003 or before, depending on
Executive Power decision, of foreclosure on collateral for financial debt that in any way may result in
tha tranafar of control of companias in insolvency procaedings or their subsidiaries:

2) the suspension, during 180 days as from February 14, 2002, of (i) all court-mandated and out-of-
court foreclosures, including of mortgages and security agreements of any origin, whether for debtors
in insoivency proceedings or any other private-sector debtors (1) the process of bankruptcy petitions,
without precluding the precautionary measures to protect the integrity of the debtor's assets, and (i)
precautionary measures, whether priorly standing or newly provided, involving those assels
indispensable to the debtor's normal course of business;

3) the extension of the exclusivity period in all insolvency proceedings govemed by Law No. 24,527 and
initiated before February 14, 2002, for at lenst 180 days beyond the such period’s original explration
date or from the end of the last extension granted. For new insolvency proceedings, the exclusivity
period is extended to 180 days that may be axtended a further 180 days (in both cases, this refers to
courts working days).

4) suspension for a 180-day term as of February 14, 2002 of all suits, precautionary measures, and
foreclosure proceedings on loans, debts, deposits, and financial reprogramming affacted by the new
oconomic regulations with certain excoptions.

As of the date of approval of these consclidated financial statements, the Federal Government is still
analyzing supplementary policies that will define, among other things, the way (n which secured loans in US
dollars related to the local public debt swap will be switched into pesos and the way in which extamal private
debt payments will be mads.

On the ether hand, and as a consequence of the changes implemented from January to April 2002, there was
an Increase in the Argentine consumer price index of 21.1% and an increase in the Argentine wholesale price
index of 60.7% according to the infarmation provided hy the INDFC (Argantine Institute of Statistics and
Census),
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As provided in the Public Emergency and Exchange System Reform Law, any loss rasulting from applying
the new exchange rate to the net position of assets and liabilities in foreign currency as of January 6, 2002,
will be deductible from income tax at the rate of 20% per annum over the five fiscal years ending after the
Law's effective date. If the effect is a gain, it will be considered taxable in the fiscal year ending December 31,
2002.

The net consolidated position of assets and liabilities in foreign cumrency that generate effects as a
consequence of the devaluation is disclosed In Note 23.9) to these consolldated financial statements, The
estimated effect on the net consolidated position in foreign currency maintained during the six-month period
ended March 31, 2002 and on the net consolidated poslition in foreign currency of Telefénica as of Mareh 31,
2002, related to the Company's equity investment in such company, on the basis of the exchange rate as of
March 31, 2002, gives rise to a negative exchange difference (loss) of about 1,943 miilion, net of the
exchange differences capitalized as described in Note 2.6.

The affacts over the Company's investmant in Telafénica and related gondwill, over Telafénica's fixed aseate
and over the Company's and Tetefénica’s financing projections, of the recent governmental announcements,
are disclosed in Notes 2.6.d), ) and 8.

These financial statements Include the effacts derived from the new economic and exchange policies known
as of the date of issuance of these financial statements. All the estimates made by the Company’s
Management have been made considering such policies. The effects of the additionally measures that could
be implemented by the Governmeant or the instrumentation of the measures previously adopted, will be
reparted In the financial statements when they become known.

23. OTHER FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION

The foliowing tables present additional consolidated financial statement disclosures required under Argentine
GAAP;

a) !nvestments in shares, bonds isgued in gerias and holdings In other companies
b) Otherinvestments

c) Fixed assets

d) Intangible assets and deferred charges

e) Allowances and reserves

f) Cost of services provided

9) Asseis and liabilities in foreign currency

h) Expenses incurred




a) INVESTMENTS IN SHARES, BONDS ISSUED IN $ERIES AND HOLDINGS IN OTHER COMPANIES (stated in
million of Argentine pesos, except otherwise indicated - see Note 2.3.)

March 31,
March 31, 2002 2001
Inflation  Value by
Denomination and featuros adjusted equity Book Book
of securities Clase  Faoce valuc (1)  Amount cost (3} method (4)  value valus
Current (9)
Government securities
Bocon Pro6 US$ 1.00 285,376 - - - -
Total current - .
Noncurrent (5)
Listed shares of Telefonica (8) - - - - - - - 92
Other inveatments - - - - - - 13 5
Subsidiaries and affilistes
ECL (8) Commeon $ 1.00 12000 15(M 4 4 2
Other
TBSCP - . . - - - 1 1
Total noncurrent 18 100
TOTAL 18 100

(1) In Argenting Pesos.

{2) Total shares,

(3) Restated In constant Argentine Pesas as stated in Note 2.3,

(4) Net of intercompany gains (fosses).

{5) See Note 2.6.c).

() SeeNoteB8.21.

(7) Includes frrevocable capitat contritutions for future subscriptions in an amount of 5 mittion.

(8) Financial statements for the nine-month period ended March 31, 2002 approved by ECL 'z Board of Directors on April 26,
2002 with auditor’s report by Abelovich, Polano & Asociados dated April 26, 2002, unqualified.

(8) SaaNote 2.8.a).




47

b) OTHER INVESTMENTS (stated in miilion of Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

March 31,2002 March 31, 2004
Main account and features Book value Book value

Current investments

Foreign currency deposits (Nate 23.9) a8 41
Local currency deposits -
Mutual funds

w o

Tatal 08 52
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C) FIXED ASSETS (stated in million of Argentine pesos — ses Note 2.3.)

March 31, 2002
Original value
Amountat  Capitallzation Nat Amount
beginning of exchangs retirement and  at the end
Main account of year (4)  differences (3) increass transfurs of period
Land 54 - - - 54
Buildings 7RR 15 - 2 805
Switching equipment 1,839 233 - 31 2,103
Transmission aquipmaent 1,547 229 - 73 1,849
Network instaliation 3,313 482 - 80 3,875
Telaphanas, switchboards and
booths 284 31 8 (N 316
Furniture and office equipment 308 6 6 ao 440
Automabiles 27 - - (8) 19
Gonstruction in procass az7 34 114 {214) 261
Materials (1) 80 . 11 (20) - 51
Prepayment to vandors L) - 3 - 7
Total 2002 (2) 8,641 1,030 142 (33) 9,780
Total 2001 (2) 8,335 178 @an 8,476
March
March 31, 2002 31, 201
Depreciation
Accumulated % Depreciation  Capltalization Accumulated
at beginning on net of sxchange Forthe attheend  Netbook Net bock
Main account of year (5) book valus diffarences  period Retiremaent of period value Valuo
Land . - - . - - 54 54
Buildings 179 36 - 10 . 189 818 614
Switching aquipmant 1,160 23.9 6 82 - 1,248 885 671
Transmisginn aniipmant 812 181 4 87 - 883 066 862
Network installation 1,413 10.2 & 98 - 1517 2,358 1,885
Telephonas, switchboards and
boaths 249 46.3 1 22 (13) 259 57 42
Furniture and office equipment 301 64.9 1 44 - (1) 345 95 70
Automobilas 26 49.8 - - (6) 18 1 1
Construction In procass - - - - - - 261 550
Materials - - - - - - 51 72
Prapayment to vendors - - - - - - 7 7
Total 2002 4,140 __1.8- 23 {22) 4,458 5,321
Total 2001 3,585 - 303 {20) 3,668 4,608

(1) "Net rstirement and transfars” includes transfers for @ milllon.
(2) Capftalized interest included in construction in process, for 2002 and 2001 totaled 6 millicn and 23 millicn, respectively.
(3) Includes 34 million in construction in process comesponding to the capitalized exchange differences. Ses Note 2.6.d).

(4)
(8

In 2001, net of 1,110 millien of the spun-off assets, See Note 4,
In 2001, net of 208 million of the spun-off assets. See Note 4.




d) INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND DEFERRED CHARGES (stated in million of Argantine pesos - see Note 2.3))

(1)
2
3

@
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March 31, 2002
Original valus
Capitalization
Atbeginning of exchange Atend

Maln account of year (1) differences Increase  of perlod
Goodwill on Investment in companies 278 254 - 533
License to use and trademarks 19 - - 19
Assignment of ights 10 10 - 20
No competition clause 3 - - 3
Other 18 - - 18
Total 2002 329 264 - g;:;
Total 2001 397 . 8 05

March 31, 2002 March 31, 2001
Amortization
At beginning For the At end Net book Net book

Maln account of year (2) period (3)  of period valua Value
Goodwill on investment in companies 88 8 (4) 96 437 197
License to use and trademarks 4 - 4 15 18
Assignment of rights 4 - 4 16 8
No comipetition clause 2 - 2 1 1
Other 8 2 11 7 11
Total 2002 107 10 117 476

=== Tmx ] ———

Total 2001 160 14 174 23

I 2001, net of £16 million of the spun-off assats. See Note 4,
In 2004, net of 146 million of tha spun-off aszats. See Note 4.
Includas the amortization of no competition clause, assignment of right and licenses and trademark amounting to $100,008, $503,141 and

$679,322; respactively,

Includes 2 milllon corresponding to the amortization of capitalized exchange differences.
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@) ALLOWANCES AND RESERVES (stated in million of Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

March 31, 2002 2001
Balances at Balances At the
: beginning atend and of the
Account of year Increase  Decrease of period period
Deducted from current assets:
For doubtful accounts 244 140 (51) 333 198
For impairment in value and slaw
turnover ‘ 7 - - 7 4
251 140 (&1) U0 202
Deducted from noncurrent assets.
For doubtiul accounts - 42 4) a8 .
Total 2002 251 182 (1) (65) 378
Total 2001 133 (3) B9 (1) (20) 202
Included in current liabilities;
Contingencies 3 - - 3 1
3 - - 3 1
Included in noncurrent liabilities:
Contingencies . 82 18 - 100 . 61
Total 2002 85 18 (2) - 103
Total 2001 51 (4) 11(2) - 62

(1) 1n 2002, includsed in saliing expanses. In 2001, 4 milion included in operating expenses and 85 million in selling expenses.
(2) Included in other expenses, nat.

{3) In 2001, net of 52 million of the spun-off assats. See Note 4,

4) 102001, net of 9 millian of the spun-oft assats. Ses Note 4.
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f) COST OF SERVICES PROVIDED (1) (stated in million of Argentine pesos — ses Note 2.3))

March 31, 2002 March 31, 2001

Inventories at beginning of year 30
Purchases 3
Operating expenses (Note 23.h) 9
Holding losses (Note 23.h) 1
Subtotal E
Inventories at end of the period (Note 3.c) (20)

Total 2

I

(1) Includes cost of telephone directories and telephone equipment.

(2) Net of 61 million of the spun-off assets, See Nota 4.

33(2)

55

15
103
(46)

57

=X
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (See Note 22.)

March 31, 2002 March 31, 2004
Amount In Amount in
foreign Book amount foreign Book amount
currency {In mi¥lon of currency (in milion of
(i million) Currency  Exchangs rate Argentiie n mikion) vurrency Argentine
pesos) pesos)
ABSETS
Current asaets
Cash 5 uss 275 12 - - -
Investmants 38 uss 275 98 4 Uss 4
Trads recaivables 19 uss 2.78 54 52 uss 52
2 SDR R E-1] e 2 SDR 3
Cthar racaivahlan 10 uss 276 20 -] UsS -
3 EURO 245 7 4 EURO 4
- . . . 47 PTAS .
Total cument assets 203 168
Noncurrent assats
Investmants 5 uss 276 13 H UES [1
Othar recetvables 32 Usy R75 ar [} uss 8
Total noncurrent asssis 100 14
Total ansats 303 180
1. —— ) asunE
LIABILITIES
Current liabiities
Trads payaties 54 uss 285 163 -] uss 55
11 SDR 358 40 13 &DR 16
7 EURO 2.54 17 - . -
. . . - 2 GF 1
- . - - (1) PTAS 5
- . - 2 FF -
Bank and other financia) payables 1,183 uss 2.85 3,318 1.8 uss 1,36
2 EURCO 2,54 8 2 EURO 2
543 ¥ 0.02 12 11,118 ¥ .U}
- - - . 206 m -
Other payables 1 uss 2685 3 B LIRS R
2 EURO 2.54 8 - . -
- . - - a5 PTAS -
Taxes payable - - . - 1 uss 1
Tetal current liabilitieg S.EE 1,492
Noncurrent (atilition
Trade payables - - - 1 USS 1
Bank and cther financis payablss 542 uss 285 2,743 1,218 uss 1,218
2 EURO 2.54 56 21 EURO 19
8,297 0.02 18 - . -
. - - . 2,198 L 1
Other payablas 17 uUss 2.86 50 20 uss 20
Total nancurrent tabilites 3,030 1.287
Total Kabilities €,583 2,748
BaE== [ -2 2t
uss: US dollars
L 3 Yana
PTAD: Peouias
ITL: Lirs
EURO: Europsan Currency Units
GF: Gold Frank
SDR: Spacial Drawing Rights

FE Franch Frank
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h) EXPENSES INCURRED (stated in million of Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

March 31,
March 31, 2002 2004
Opotating Other  Effects of funding on
Expensee Administrative Selling Expenses,
Account (1) SXpanses  expensas net Assets_ Llabliities  Total Totsl
Salaries, social security taxas
and other axpanses 120 28 28 - - - 178 154
Fixed assets dgpmciation 293 28 2 - . 18 341 303
Feey wind puyments for services 138 65 45 - - - 229 273
insurance - 4 - - - . 4 4
Metorial coansumption aird uthar
sxpanses 26 2 1 . . - 28 27
Managemant fas 41 8 - - - . 47 68
Transpartation 5 - - - - - [ [}
Taxes, charges and
eontributions -] 2 8 - - - 19 28
Rentale 27 2 2 - - - 31 31
Bank commigsions - . 11 - . - 11 )
Exchange diffarences - - - - (140) 2,948 2,808 -
Difference In the fistad prica of
Invastmants and holding
logaas (gains) - - - - (e}] - (1) 53
Intarast and financial charges - - - - (28) 153 17 76
Tax on intersat paid and on the
financlal eost of corporate
indeblodnass - - - - - 7 7 13
Allowanca for doubtful acsounts . - 182 - - - 182 85
Material's obsolescence - - - - - - - 4
Net book value of fixad assets
ratired . - - . - - - 2
Amortization of intangible aszets
and dofemred charges 2 4 - - - 4 10 14
Employes tarminations - - - 26 - .. 28 41
Tax on bank debits and credits - 13 - - - - 13
Other . - - 15 - 1 18 7
Total 2002 E 145 277 @1 {167) H13 4,088
EREw aSER RERE ==== T®Z TEEEN EAmEEE
Total 2001 660 163 211 42 102 1.228
== xEw EERFa n»ass iz T Rt E o o

(1} (ncludas 9 mikion and 15 million corresponding to cost of services provided for the six-month pariods ended March 31, 2002 and 2001,
raspactively,




24. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT AS FROM MARCH 31, 2002 TO MAY 44, 2002

241,

24.2.

Financial debt

On April 12, 2002, the Company subscribed with Telefonica and TISA an assignment agreement
through which, Telefénica assigned to TISA the rights and obligations arlsing from the loan
agreements subscribed with the Company on January 30 and 31, 2002 (see Note 10.2.). The assigned
amount is US$10.4 million, which includes principal amount plus accrued interests as of April 12,
2002,

Other financial debt

On May 9, 2002, the Company cancelled certain financial dabts with funds received from TISA. The
reocived funds amounted to US$14.6 million, accrue intcrosts at o 180 days LIBQ rato pluz a
differential of 8% and will be amortized in equal annual consacutive installments until April 30, 2007.
This agresment establishes the usual commitments for this kind of transactions.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS Of OPERATIONS

(Information not covered by the Raport of Independent Public Accountants)

Tha following discussion should be read together with the consolidated financial statements of Compafifa
Intemacicnal de Telecomunicaciones S.A. (“Cointe! or the Company”) for the six-month periods endad March 31,
2002 and 2001. Those financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Argentine genarally accepted
accounting principles {*Argentine GAAP"), which differ in certain respects from U.S. generally accepted sccounting
principles (‘US GAAP*). See Note 18. to tha notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Significant accounting policias have been described in the consolldated financial statements. Most critical
accounting policies adopted in preparing the financial statements relate to: i) the application of the going-concem
assumption in the valuation and classification of assets and liabllities (see Notes 8.1. and 12.1. to the notes to the
consolidated financial statements), ii) the assumption that the Company and Telefénica de Argentina S.A.
{"Telefénica®) will not default in the payment of their debt, with regard to the classification of thelr nen-current debt
{zec Note 8.1. to the nutes 10 the consolidated financial statements); lii) the valuation of investment in Telefénica
and the goodwill stated for such investment, which is based on management’s current estimates of future cash
flows (see Note 2.6.e) to the notes to the consolidated financial statements); iv) the valuation of cedain
Telefonica’s noncurrent assets, which is based on Telefénica’s management's curent estimates of future cash
flows; v) the creation of reserves for contingencies assessed as likely by Teleftnica’s management, based on Its
eatimates and the opinion of legal counsei (see notes with respect to unreserved contingancies); and vi) the
creation of allowances, amounting to 371 million in respect to 837 million past-due receivables, based on
Telefonica’s management’s estimates of passible future collection terms and conditions.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect tho
reported amounta of assels and dabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilittes as of the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and axpenses during the reporting years. The ultimate .

results could differ from those estimates. Future cash fiows could differ materially from estimates of Cointel’s and
Telefénica’s management depending upor, among other mattars, the outcome of the pending rate rensgotiation
with the govemnment described in Note 12.1. to the notes to the congolidated financial statements

Modification of Argentine GAAP

Effective December 8, 2000, the Governanca Board of the Federacidn Argentina de Consejos Profesionales de
Ciencias Econdmicas (‘"FACPCE") approved Technical Resolutions ("RT™) Nos. 16, 17, 18, and 19 which pravide
for changes in professional accounting principles related to valuation and disclosura. On the other hand, on
December 21, 2001, Consejo Profesional de Cienclas Econdmicas de la Ciudad Auténoma de Buenos Aires
(“CPCECABA") approved, with certain modifications, such Resolutions through its Resolutions No. 228, 243, 261
and 262 any regquired manastory application thereof for fiscal years beginning July 1, 2002, and thereafter. As of
the date of lssuance of these financial statements, the Comislon Nacional de Valores ("CNV") is analyzing the
scopé and timing for adopting such standards.

On March 6, 2002, the CPCECABA igsued a resolution for the treatment of the Argentine peso devaluation effect,
primarily in relation to the capitalization of exchange losaea as part of the cost of certain assets (if certain
conditions are met) and the restatement of amounts in constant Argentine pesos (see Notes 2.3. and 2.6.d) and e)
to the notes to the consolidated financial statements).

OVERVIEW

Some of the more significant influences that have historically affected, and that continue to affect the Company's
business and its results of operations are:




+ tha mannér in which the Argentine Gavernmant has managed the Argentine economy and directad exchange,
monetary and fiscal policies, including the manner in which it has attempted to restrain Argentine inflation;

« the regulated nature of the Argentine telecommunications market, including a framework of decrees of the
Nastional Executive Fower and verious resolutions that the Telecommunications Regulatory Authority has
adopted that impact the management and performance of TelefGiica’s buslihass; and

» the long-term strategic vision of Telefénica, which has guided the varlous steps that it has taken over the
years to improve profitabliity and to expand and modernize its operations and prepare itself for the competitive
environment.

Evolution of the Current Economic Siuation in Argentina
The Convertibility Plan

For saveral decades, Argentina experienced perinds of high inflation, slow or negative growth, declining
investment rates, significant devaluations of the Argentine curency and impositions of exchange cantrola. During
the 1980s, the limited avallability of foreign exchange required the Argentine Govarnment and all Argentine public
sactor entities to restructure portions of their foreign currency-denominated indebtadness to commaercigl banks,
The rate of inflation reached 4,923.8% in 1959, as measured by the Argentine consumer price \ndex, and Gross
Domestic Product "GDP") contracted that year by 6.2%. Argantina’s historically high inflation ralus resufted mainly
from the Argentine Government's inability to contro! fiscal policy and the money supply. In March 1991, after the
implementation of various plans designed to reduce inflationary pressures, which were only partially or temporarity
successful, the Argentine Govemment introduced a tax reform and expenditure reduction program almed at
reducing inflation and restructuring the economy and adopted the Convertibility Law, which became effective April
1, 1981 and psgged by law the Argentine peso at a parity with the U.S, dollar (such fiacal measuras and the
Conventibitity Law being collectively referred to as the "Convertibility Plan®). Following the adoption of the
Convertibility Plan, the annuaf rate of inflation measured by the Consumer Price index declined from 84.0% in
1891 to 3.9% in 1994 and Real GDP rose an average of 8% annually between 1981 and 1994.

The Convertibility Plan becamne the cornerstons of Argentine aconamic poliey for the enauing decade. iis success
depended on Argenting’s ability to aftract capifal inflows in the form of foreign direct investment, the repatriation by
local investors of foreign, mastly U.S. dollac denominated savings, the availability of extemnal means of financing,
and the preservation of U.S, dollar reserves generally, These elements, in tum, depended on the sound
management of external liabilities and the implementation of fiscal, regulatory, labor, judicial, lagal, polifical and
other structural reforms aimed at creating credible and sustainable afficiencies in both the private and public
sectors,

In addition, the Convertibility Plan depended on external factors beyond the control of Argentine policy makers,
such as the international prices of traditional Argentine export commodities, interest rates in the global capital
markets, the impact of criges in other emerging markets and trade conditions with neighboring countries and other
significant partners. Furthermore, the Convertibility Ptan relied on confidence in the strength of the local financlal
sector and the ability of banking regutators to preserve a liquid monetary base.

Since it was adopted, the Convertibility Plan endured a series of both intemally and extemally generated
challenges which progressively debilitated confidence in g long-term viability among the intemational financial
community as well as the lacal business community and leading political forces. These challenges inclixled the
devaluation of the Mexican peso in December 1984 and resulting liquidity crisiz in the Argentine banking sector,
contagion throughout the emerging market aconomies resulting from the Asian crisle in late 1897, Russia’s default
an part of ite sovereign debt and the devaluation of the ruble in 1998, the devaluation of the Brazilian real in 1999,
adversely affecting the demand for Argentine exports to Brazil, and Ecuador’s default on its foreign indebtedness
in 2000. These incidents significantly increased the cost of capital to the Argentine private and public sectors,
widening spreads on Goverrment sacurities, They led to growing capital outflows and diminished internationsal
reserves, They also exacerbated the recession and the mounting unemployrnent and deflation that had taken root
in the Argentine economy beginning in late 1888, During 1898, the Merval index of the Buenos Aires Stack
Exchange declined by 38.2%. GDP, which had increased by 8.1% in 1997, grew by 3.9% in 1898,
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Confronted with such developments, Argentina graw Increasingly dependent on aid from multitateral credit
agencies, principally the international Monetary Fund (“IMF*), which periodicslly organized substantial rescue
packages, including a US$2.8 billion three-year extended fund facility in 1898. Such ald involved the imposition of
targets and conditions for disbursements, such as modifications in the tax revenue sharing system between the
provinces and the Faderat Government, curbs on government spending and reforms in the labor markat,
budgetary procedures and the tax, health, pension and judicial systems. Macroeconomic factors and costty,
dilatory and debiiltating political compromises, repeatedly combined to hinder compliance with such targets and
conditions,

in 18889, the incumbent Peronist Party lost the general slection to the Alianza, a coaiition of left-leaning,formerly
Peronist factions, on the one hand, and the traditional, middie class, center left Radical Party, on the other, led by
Fermando de la Ria, in a campaign that concentrated on allegations of carruption in the outgoing administration of
Canos Saui Menem and the need to address tha “social cost® of the Convertibility Plan. During 2000, domestic
consumption was weak and private investment decreased sharply due to worsening global financial conditions for
emerging markets generally and uncertainty over the ability of the De la Ria administration to address the
structural economic changes needed to improve Argentina's competitiveness and to reduces its fiscal deficit. By the
fourth quarter of that year, the lack of signs of econamic recovary, agaravated by the perception of Increasing
palitical nsk, led the Argentine Government to negotiate with the IMF, the World Bank, the Inter-American
Development Bank an the governments of Spain, Italy and France a financial support package totaling US$38.7
biffion to ease government financing in 2001 and subsequent years.

In the firet quartar of 2001, allegations of bribery of senators by the executiva hranch in arder to pasa certain tatxa
reform legislation, led to the resignation of the Vice-President, the leader of the left-leaning component of the
Alianza. The prolonged recession and the weakening power base of President De la Riia compromised his ability
to pursue the orthodax measures required to sustain the Convertibility Plan and resuited in the resignation of the
Minister of Economy. When the announcement of stringent measures by his successor failed to gather political
support, President De la Rua appointed Domingo Cavallo, who had designed tha Convertibility Plan in 1981 and
gin¢a then had founded a minority opposition party, as Minister of Economy with far-reaching extraordinary powars
granted by Congress. Minister Cavallo enjoyed widespread support in the intemational financial community but
further isolated President De la Rua from his traditional power base. Minister Cavallo sent to Congress an
amendment to the Convertibility Law which added the euro to the U.S. dollar in a basket to set the peso's value
once the euro would reach parity with the U.S, dotiar. This measure was intended to improve tha compotitiveness
of Argentine expuils over ima, On June 21, 2001, Congress approved the Govemiment's proposal.

The consensus among the intemnational financial community, however, was that this measure did not address the
core, immediate Issue of Government spending and fiscal imbalarce, and sovereign spreads widened further.

On June 4, 2001, the Argentine government was able ta reduce its deht service requirements through 2005 by
US$16 hillinn through a US$26.6 billion globa! exchange of ts debt in the capital markets, retinng obligations with
significant near-term servicing requirements and extending the maturity profile of its overall indebtedness. Despite
the resulting fiscal benefits, popular discontent with the deepening recession led to criticism of the Government's
focus on external creditors among cerain political elements, including President De la Rua's own party. Private
sactor confidance In the ability of President De la Rua to garner sufficient political support to deliver on his
proposed reforms deteriorated rapidly in the following weeks, During July 2001, total bank deposits decreased by
US$6 billlon and the Merval index of the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange fell 20%.

On July 30, 2001, the Argentine Congress enacted the "zero-daficit” law, fo secure reductions in government
expenditures and to achieve a balanced budget in the near term, and announced its intention of embarking on
deap structural reforms of the political eystem, including the size of Congress and aspects of the electoral process.
Furthermore, in early August 2001, the government and the IMF began negotiating an extension of the financial
support package agreed to in December 2000 to boost investor confidence. These negotiations proved successiul
and, on September 10, 2001, the IMF disbursed a financial support package of USS$5 billion to Argentina (US34
billion to reinforce Central Bank international reserves and US$1 billion to finance Treasury requirements). Also,
from September to Navamber, 2001, the tocal financlal aystem received US$1.2 billion from existing lines of credit
to increase bank liquidity and to counter & continuing deterioration in investor confidance.

However, negative paliticat and pre-elaction circumstancas resulted in the increased uncertainty over the stability
of the peao and the continuity of the Argentine government's zero-deficit policy, an increase in sovereign risk, a fall
in intemational reserves. a continuing fisnal imbalance, and a docrease in total depusils in the financlal system.
Over the course of the final months of 2001, various Provincial Governments issusd quasi-cumency debt
instruments to cover their own fiscal deficiencies. Thesa instruments have been since then widely accepted as
Jagal tender by partles whose businesses have been most affected by the growing shertage of liquidity resuiting




from a cantracting monetary base. Despite the agreament signed with the IMF in August 2001, Argentina
weakertad as a cradit and spreads of Argentine sovereign bonds widened.

On December 3, 2001, following a week of massive cash withdrawals of U.S. doliar deposits form the banking
system and fearing a widespread bank run, the Government froze bank deposits, restricting cash withdrawals to
$250 per account par week and providing for the disposal of all other funds only by means of checks, wire
transfers and credit and debit card payments.

On Degember G, 2001, alleging the failure by the Argentine Gavernment to implement effective economic policies,

the IMF announced a suspension of disbursements under its credit programs to Argentina. As widespread social

gnrest mounted, Minigter Cavallo resigned on December 20, 2001, as did President De |a Rua on the following
ay.

Over 2001, the sovareign risk of Argentina, measured under emerging markets indexqs as a spread over risk free
benchmarks, had incroased by 4,408 basis points to 5,172 as of December 28; liquid reserves at the Central Bank
of Argentina ("B.C.R.A") decreased by US$10.6 billion, without including external tranches of financial aid and
contingent loans; and total deposits within the banking system decreased by US$18 billion.

Default, Devaluation and the Abandonment of the Convertibility Plan

On Decamber 31, 2001, after the failure of an inteim govemment to gather sufficient support, Congress appointed
Eduardo Duhalde, former governor of Buenos Aires Province and the Peronist Party candidate who had lost to
Presidant De ia Raa in 1099, as the new President of Argentina. While the legal support for the process leading to
his election has been chatlenged in the courts as has the proposed duration of his term, it is expected that
President Duhslde will remain in office until the explration of President De la Rua's term, Dacamber 2003,

The Interim government preceding President Duhalde announced the default on Argenting’s foreign debt on late
December 2001. Pregident Duhalde confirmed this anhouncement and sant a bill to the Argentine Congress fo
declare a national economic emergency and repeal the Convertibility Law. On January 8, 2002, the Argentine
Congress approved the Economic Emergency Law, introducad dramatic changes to the country's economic mods|
and amended the Convertibliity Law. The new law empowers the Federal Executive Power to implement, among
other things, additional monetary, financial and exchange measures to overcoma the economic crisls in the
medium term, including the power to establish a system to determine the exchange rate applicable to the
Argentine peso, i

Decree No, 71/2002 of the National Executive Power devalued the Argentine peso and established an “official”
exchange system, mainly for exports, certain imports, and bank debts, and the “freely fioating® axchange market
for tha rest of the trancactions, which was reguiated by the B.C.R.A. Official exchange rate was established at $1.4
to US$1 and the exchange rats for the “free” market, as of the close of business of the first day after the exchange
market (which had been suspended as from December 23, 2001) reopened (January 11, 2002), was about
$1.60/51.70 to US$1 (bid price). '

Monday, February 4, 2002, Dacrse No. 214/2002 was publishad in the Official Bulletin and with il significant
prugress nas been made in the de-dollarization of the Argentine economy, despite the structuring required to
adjust business benefits and costs in retation to a hard currency, the consaquences of which usually impact
consumer prices, thus increasing domestic infiation. The highlight of the Decree include:

()  All loans in foreign currency (whether granted by banks or nof) bormowed within the domestic banking
system, rogardiess of the wmount of such loans, will be switched into Argentine pesos at the $1 = USH1
rate, while deposits in foreign currency will be retumed at the US$1 = $1.40 rate.

(i) Additionally, the presidential decree abrogated the multiple exchange system mentioned above (official
exchange rate and free exchange rate) and replaced it with a free floating system that does not include
the axplicit intervention or a flatation goal by the B.C.R.A, (apptication uf flotation bana, scheduled
devaluation), However, the decree authorizes the B.C.R.A. to intervene in the exchange market if the
B.C.R.A. deams it necessary to defend the value of the loca! currency. It was announced that the
8.C.R.A. wauld have a monetary issuance goal.

(i) The presidential decres also suspends any fawsuits, precautionary measures or execution arising from
or againet the receivables, debts, obligations, deposits or financial rescheduling affected by the
provisions mentioned above. This measure was adopted as a response to a recant judgement by the
Argentine Supreme Court that established the unconstitutionality of Decres No. 1570/01 which
established the cash withdrawal restrictions dascribed in Note 20. to the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
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In the months following implementation of a freely finating Argentine poso policy, the colntry continued to
detorlorate further instiutionally, politicaily, financially, and socially, The absence of legal pratections and of a
sustamablq economic and fiscal plan, coupled by sweeping distrust in local financlal institutions, has not helped to
create a suitable climate for the recovery of the relevant financlal indicators; quite to the cantrary, the Argentine
peso has lost purchasing power as a hard curmency and to buy staple commaodity. Inflation continued to increase
though in a contained manner because public services mtes have becn frozen and due to the savare acanomic
rocaasion (accumulatea CPI through March: 8.7% - accumulated WP through March: 32.0%), one of the main
risks of prica escalation is inflation in terms of consumption by the medium- and low-income population (primarity
food and beverage, prescription drugs, and clothing).

The sharp contraction of credit avaflable to the private sector and the strangling of the financial intermadiation
between savings and invastments halp but to smother the econamic activity (primarily affecting Incividuals and
srqall and medium-sized enterprises (SME), but also large enterprises, many of which ace currently in default),
Tl:us. severe economic deterioration adversely affects employment opportunities, causing existing jobs to be
eliminated and rising the unemployment and underempioyment rate which, according to private estimates, would
approximate 25.0% of the working population in the next assessment of May by the INDEC (Argentine Statistics
and Census Instituta) The shed of value of aalaries In real terms and, in some cases, also in nominal terms
exacerbate the deterioration of the affective demand and create multiple social conflicts very difficult to resolve in
the short term, although slightly mitigated by the implamentation of the “Household Head Plan" by the Federal
Governmant censisting in the delivery of a monthly subsidy in cash with the prior authorization by the compatent
governmental authority.

Negotiations with muttilateral credit agencies (especially with the IMF) have practically stagnated due to the
widespread uncertainty and the lack of political and economic definition of President Duhalde's administration,
coupled by center-leftist Presidential speeches when addressing Argentina's position towards the rest of the worid.
The extemal financial assistance required has not been agreed upon yet and, on the basis of rumors, a potential
financial agsistance agreament would only cover current maturity payments to intamational agencies and no new
funding ie axpocted to finance existing imbalances, Such insignificant prograss made in the negotiations to obtain
extenal aid, along with hobbled projects submittad to Congress fo stop legal proceadings seeking enforcement of
constitutional protections to withdraw frozen deposits with local financial instituions and thus forestall the leakage
of funds from the local financial system, and the regulation of a Second External Bond (BONEX H) Plan to, provide
some solution to the deposits whose withdrawal was rescheduled by tha then ineumbent Economy Minister Mr.
Remcs Lenicov, finally caused his resignation on April 23 amid a new episode of institutional crisls with strong
rumors of an outgoing President with an impending announcement of anticipated presidential general elections.

Immediately after this avent, the summit meeting held by Prasident Duhalde, provinclal govemnors, Congressmen
from the Peronist (PJ), Radical (UCR) and Frepaso political parties, and trade uninn leadars ended with the
endorsement of a gereial pact including 14 highlights to integrate Argentina with the world; reach all necessary
agreements between the Faderal and Provingial govemments to finally seek a balance in gavernment accounts;
impiement the changes required by multilateral credit agencies in relation to the Bankruptcy Law Reform and
abrogation of the Economic Subvarsion Law; solve the existing problems in the local financial system to regain
confidenca and allow for its normal operation; and create the conditions to foster consumption, investrent,
employment, and econoriic activity, After several days of indefiniteness, the Economy Minisiry finally appointed to
reptace the outgoing Mr. Remes Lenicov was Mr, Roberto Lavagna who took offica last April 27 and will be
required to follow an economic policy in line with the above pact.

In this regard, Congregs has lately enactad the “anti-leakage” law to ban the withdrawal of money from banks as a
reault of constitutiunal protection-enforcement proceedings until a final and conclusive decision is rendered by the
Supreme Court of Justice. In addition, different altematives have been discussed to prevent the default with
multilateral credit agencies and resumea the halted conversations with international authorities, steadily make
progress with the Congress agreements regarding the laws mentioned in the preceding paragraph, study a
BONEX Il Plan including more sound guarantees and mere financially attractive terms, and design e monetary
policy in coordination with Central Bank authorities to contain the exchange rate of the Argentine peso to the US
dollar and prevent further escalation of domestic prices that translates Into social confiicts.

In any case, the lack of an extremely refiable team for the Economy Minister Lavagna so far and the prevailing
distrust in local institutions on the part of ecanomic agents does not halp draw conclusione on the likelihood of
success of raliure of his office. In the common opinion of anatysts, the success of the new minister’s office will
depend on the political success of President Duhaide.
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The decision to Jevalue the Argentine peso implies a number of further risks, some of which have begun te ccour:

(i) Decrease in salaries and in the price of agsets in US dollars: in the current recessive scenario and dus
to unemployment leval, it is evident that any increase in the general price ievel entails a decrease of the

salary purchasing powsr since galary rises are not likely. |t also details a decrease in the price of assats
in US dollars.

(i) Price control: Control of prices have not boen proposed 10 date. In Argentina they have been rarely
successful.

(lil) Stagration and shortage of goods: if inflation cannot be controlled, it is possible that inflation and
recesslon will continue to coexist. This Is a negative scenario where economy does not resume growth
and prices continue to increase.

Prospects for the current year show a strong adverse impact on the domestic economic activity and a continued
detarioration of financial indicators as a result nf the Argentinc peso devaluation (direct effect on the balance
sheets of govemnment, bank, corporate and family entities) and the quasi-generalized default of Argenting.

In such axtremely adverse institutional, polltical, ecanomic, financial, and soclal context, and given the dollarized
culture of the Argentine population, the application of a freely floating foreign exchange system will reflact its
sustainability or unsustainabitity and acceptance or nonacceptance on the foreign curreney price and genarai price
index. If the preaent initigtive fails, the foreign exchange rate and domestic prices are likely 1o spiral, thus
generating high inflation campounded by activity stagnation, with the potentisl of the creation of a new fixed
currency board of the Argentine paso with respect to the US doliar or the full doliarization of the Argentine
economy.

The following table sets forth rates of inflatiun, a8 measured by the Wholesale Price Index ("WPI") In Argentina and
the rate of real Argentine Gross Domestic Product ("GDP") growth for the periods shown. Numbers in parentheses
are negative.

March 31,
2002 2004
WPI (annual % change) (1) 32 (2.0)-
March 34,
, 2002(3) 2001 (2}
GDP Growth {annual % change) 7.8) (1.3)

(1) Price index figures are for the six-month periods ended March 31, 2002 and 2001.
) Official data,
(3) Projection estimated by the Company.

Telecommunication Rats Regulation

Decree No, 764/00 on telecommunications deregulation establishes that pmvidsr_s may freely set (atas and/or
prices for the services rendered and for customer categories, which shall be applied on a nondiscriminatery basis.
However, if there were no effsctive competition {which is the current sta;e in all regions of Argentina), tl:ne .
“historical” praviders in such areas (i.e., Telefénica and Telecom Argentina Stet France Telecom S.e‘._ (Je('le:co:wc)‘z
are 10 respect the maximum rates astablished in the General Rate Structure. Below the values esta ndI/s ;usft‘ Uel‘
rate structne, such providers may freely set thalr rates by areas, routes, long-distance segments and/or om

groups.

i iti to demonatrate that other providers
To determine the existence of effective competition, the historical pro_viders are t
of tha same service recgived 20% of the total revenues for such service In the 'Iocal area of Basic Ten|e|::.hon¥l
Service involved. Effective competition will be considered to egist inthe pm\gs:oT of nv::ic:‘ng'\. :r me;rr:‘;;t::r‘\: sﬁr;‘g-
icas for cails originated in a local area of the Basic Telephony Service, whe cus
gl:::r;c‘: :glr:to choose, mroggn the diating selection methed, among more than two service providers, if gach of

them offers mare than one long-distance destination.

( j ition i strated to exist, the rate agreemants
ent for areas and services where affective competition is demon .
E:fab‘?itafr?ed & maximum rate per pulse denominated in US dollars. These agreements alsp epgosvtiadt:: E;r ;r:arll‘%?;t
of Telafénica to adjust this rote for changea in the Consumer Price Index CCPI") of the Unit

on April 1 and October 1 of each year,




However, Law of Public Emergency and Currency Exchange System Reform No. 25,561, dated January 6, 2002
provides that, in the agreements executed by the Federal Administration under public law regulations, Including '
public works and services, indexation clauses based on foreign countries price indices o any other indexation
mechanism are annulled. in this regard, it sets forth that the prices and rates resulting from such provisions shall
be sstablished in pesos at a one peso ($1) = ene U.S. doflar (US$1) exchange rate. Furthermore, Section Na 9 of
the above-mentioned Law authorizes the National Executive Power tw renggotiste the above contracts taking into
account the foliowing criteria in refation to public utility services: (a) the impact of the rates on the competitiveness
of the economy and on distribution of income; (b) service quality and investrment plans, when such aspects are
contemplated in the contracts; (c) the interest of users and access 1o the services; (d) the security of the
compriged systems; (e) the profitability of the companies.

Under the rata requlation mechanism in effect known as price cap, Decree No. 264/08 provided a 4% reduction in
rates, on terms similar to the method provided by point 12.5.1. of the List of Conditions, that was to be spplied
during each year of the transition pericd to basic telaphone service rates; with 80% of such reduction to be applled
to domestic long distance services. Telintar, and now Tetefénica as its successor was required to apply the same
4% reduction to Interational rates.

On November 3, 1998, the SC issued Resolution No. 2,925/98, whereby, based on the assumption of the
nonaxistence of effective competition as of such date, provided a 5.5% reduction in talephone basic service rates
for the periad from November 1989 through November 2000, Such reduction was applled o detailed the following
services: billing domestic and international long-distance. Likewisa, tha starting time of the domestic and
international long-distance reduced rate was brought forward.

In Aprit 2000 and March 2004, Telefénica, Telecom and the SC executed rate agréemsnis which, subject {o the
appraval by the Economy Ministry and of Infrastructure and Housing, provided the terms under which the price
caps would be appiied:

iy Price Cap as of November 8, 2000: tha SC established that the rate reduction for the period November
2000/Navember 2001 would amount to 6,75%. The raduction would be applied through: a) discount
plans that were effective as from March 2000 {commercial and government basic rates, local measured
service, and the application of certain preferentiai rates of internet access), the non-application of
charges set forth in Resolution N° 2,926/98 until November B, 2001 and the non-application over the
year of the two semiannual adjustments to the pulse value for the above-mentioned U.S. Consumer
Price Index; b) given that such plans were brought into effect before schedute, the accumulated effects
ot the above-mentioned rate reductions would be applied to the computation of price caps for the
periods beginning November 2000, 2001 and 2002 adjusted at an interest rate of 12% per year, and ¢)
furthermore, it was established that the differance betwaen the effect of the discounts already granted
and that of a 8% reduction would be applied on November 8, 2000 across different items of the tariff
struciure, and the additional 0.75% reduction was to be appliad as defined by the Licensees.

ii) Price cap as of November 8, 2001: the SC established that the efficiency factor for the price cap
applicable for the pericd November 2001/Novamber 2002 would amount to 5.6%, This rate reduction is
to be implemanted through to: a) the non-application of the two adjustments to the pulse value for the
US Consumer Prics Index for the year, adjusting the effect at the 12% annual rate in order to measure it
apainst the total expected 5.6% reduction, b) any balance resulting from the nen-application of the
adjustment to the value of the telephons puise In the period 2000/2001, as well as any balance
remaining in respect of a variety of items included in the 2000/2001 price cap; c) any unappliad price
cap portion remaining after the rate reductions mentioned in a) and b) sbove with respect to the 5.6%
rate reduction, should be applied in the following manner: 70% as provided by Telefonica, 15% to the
local service, and 15% to other services as required by the SC, other than monthly basic charges and
the Iacal measured gervice.

iily Price cap as from November 8, 2002 through November 7, 2003: the SC established that the efficlency
factor could not exceed 5%, but it has not yet set its value.

Although the reductions mentioned in point i), and the early reductions referred to in point ii), are being applied by
Telefonica, the related agresments have not been yet approved by the Econormy Ministry and of Infrastructure and
Housing. As of the isstance date of theee financial statements, the eftect of the giscount plans implemented has
not been established as compared to rate reduction percentages pravided by such agreements, and the regulatory
agency has not approved how to apply the rate reduction mentioned in point i),
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On the other hand, in relation to the complaint filed by Consumidores Libres Cooperativa Lim! i
Servicios Comunitarios (*Consumidores Libras"), mentioned in Note 13.d) fo the zonso‘l,iz::;ndt:::n?am;::nt
on Octoba_r 4, ?001, the Fourth Chamber of the Federal Appellate Court on Administrative Disputes of the City of ‘
Buenos_ Aires issued a temporary injunction requested by the plaintiff ordering the National Government,
Telefonica and Telecom "to refrain from applying the corrections set forth in Section 2 of the Agresments approved
by Decres No. 2,685/81 until final judgment is randered in the case”, which means that the rates may not curmently
be adjusted based upon the U.S. Consumer Price Index.

In the opinion pf Telefénica's Management and its legal counsel, the outcome of these issues could exclusively
affec_:t the maximum rates for future services that Telefonica is authorized to charge its customers regarding
services, areas, or customers in which the govemment did not declare the existence of effective competition. As of
Mareh 31, 2002, lhese maximum rates are determined by applying to rates affective as of November 7. 2000, tha
discounts applied in order to implement the price caps related to November 8, 2000, and November 8. 2001, under
the above-mentionad agreements. ' ,

The rate reduction parcentage and the services to which such reductions will eventually apply depend on the final
approval of the above-menticned rate agreements, and on the cutcome of the legal proceedings commenced by
Consumideres Libies regarding the effective rate system.

Based on current rate ragulgtion mechanisms and considering Teleftnica’s defense against the above-mentionad
legal proceedings, in thg opinion of Telefonica’s Management and its legal counsel, the outcome of these (ssues
will not have a negative impact upon Telefonica's financial position or a significant adverse effect on its results of
operations.

in connection with the agreements executed by the Faderal Administration under public taw ragulations, including
public works and services, Law No. 25,561 provided for: (1) the annulment of dollar or other foreign currency
adjustments and indexing provisions; (2) the establigshment of an exchange rste for dollar-denominated prices and
rates (§1 = US$ 1); and (3) and the authorization for the National Executive Power to renegotiate the conditions of
the above contracts taking into account the following criteria: (a) the impact of tha ratas on the competitivernioss of
the econemy and on distribution of income; (D) service quality and investment plans, when such aspects are
contemplated in the contracts; (c) the interest of users and access to the services; (d) the security of the
comprised systems; () the profitability of the companies. .

Decree No. 293/02, dated February 12, 2002, entrusted the Economy Ministry with the reneqotiation of such
agreements, including agreements that govern tne provision of basic telephony services, The cortractual
renegotiation proposals must be submitted to the National Executive Power within 120 days after the effective date
of this Decree. Telefbnica has fulfilled its duty to submit the information required by the Government.

in addition, Decree No. 764/2000 had reduced the interconnection prica for the arigin and dastination of calls in
local areas to $1.1 cents/minute for districts with more than 5,000 inhabitants or a telephone-set density above 15
talephoneas every 100 inhabitants and to $1.3 cente/minutes for the rest of the districts and In the areas included in
the original licanse of independent operators and to $0.30 cents/minutes for the transit within local areas. A 3%
semi-annual price cap will apply during the first two years after these rules and regulations becomae effective.

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, TelefSnica’s Management is unable to foreses the final
result of the negotiation under Law No. 25,561 or the rate scheme to be effective in the future; it is possible that
such rate scheme will not maintain its value in U.S, dollars constant pesos over time In accordance with any
potential future increase in General Price Lavels (“GPL"). Although, according to Telefénica’s legal coungel
opinion, under general administrative law principles applicable to the Transfer contract and List of conditions,
future rates should be fixed at a lavel which is aufficientty fair to cover service costs, If fulure rates evolve at a pace
well below GPL, it would have a material adverse effect on Telefonica’s future financial position and resuits of
operatians.

Taxes

Turnover tax: the rate of the tax on gross revenuss depends on the jurisdiction in which revenue s generated and
ranges from 2% to 6%. Operating revenues in the Company's financial statements are shown net of tumover tax.
By its Resolution No. 2,345/94, the CNT required Telefonica, based on clause 16.9.3 of the Transfer Agreement,
to transfar aver fo users the turhover tax rate reduction enforced by the City of Buenos Aires effactive 1881, While
Telefénica met the requirement containad in the resolution by depositing in & speclal bank account 5.2 millien
relating to amounts purportadly collectad In excess and applying the required rate reduction, it also filed @ motion
for reconsideration and an appeal in the altemative against that resolution. The CNT refused remedy sought by




Telef6nica in Resolution No. 1,513/95, as did the Economy Ministry, Public Works and Ulilities through its
Resolution No. 139, of which Telefdnica was formally notified on January 30, 1988, On February 14, 1958, the
CNT issued Resolution No. 86/96 requiring that, in the first billing failling dus on or after April 1, 1996, Telefénica
should refund to owners of telephone lines in the City of Buenos Aires approximately 8.0 million in principal and
17.5 million in interest. While Telefénica has compliad with the requirement, it still believes that tha procedure
uzed by the CNT o calculate the refundable capital and interast is debatabla, and has filed u motion for
reconsidaration and an Ancillary Appeal requesting that Resclution No. 88/38 be revoked. The CNC replied the
formal notice and attached thereto a certified copy of CNC Resolution No. 84/89, which dismissed the request for
reconsidaration of Resolution No. 86/98 by Telefonica at the time. In view of this situation, the judge hearing the
constitutional protection action declared a nonsuit and ruled that Telef6nica should bear court costs and expenses
and tegal counsaels’ feas.

Subzequantly, through Resolution No. 4 583/89, the SC dismissed the Ancillary Appeal against Resolution No.
86/96 that Telafénica had filed, Telefénica then filed the respective motion for reconsideration against Resolution
No. 4,583/99, whose outcome is pending to date.

Income Tax and Tax on Minimum Presumed Incomae: The Company calculates the Income Tax charge by
applying the affectiva tax rate of 35% to the taxable income for the period. The efective tax rate was calculated by
applying the current tax rate of 35% to the taxable income estimated as of the end of the fiscal ysar. The Company
does net consider the effect of temparary differences between Net Income and Taxable Income for the calculation
of the income tax provision. Additionally, the Company calculates the Tax on Minimum Presumed Income by
applying the effective tax rate of 1% on certain production assets as of the end of the year This taxis
supplementary to Income Tax, The Company's tax liabllities shalt ba the higher of these two taxes. However, if
the tax on minimum presumed income exceeds income tax during one fiscal year, such excess may be computed
as prepayment of any income tax excess over tha tax on minimum presumed income that may arise in the next tan
fiscal years.

As Cointel estimates that the income tax and the tax on minimum pregsumed incoma will not generate any charge
at the end of the fiscal year, no Income fax or tax on minimum presumed income was accfued for Cointel in the
statement of income for the six-month periods ended March 31, 2002 and 2001.

FFor the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, Cointel-has detarmined a total charge for minimum presumed
income tax of 0.4 million, which was included in “Other receivablas®. Additionally, a3 of Eepternber 30, 2001, the
Company has an accumulated income tax loss camyfarward of about 183 million according to the respective tax
retums filed as of that date, which might be used to offset the future taxable income as follows:

Last year in which available Tax loss carryforward
2002 17
2004 48
2005 80
2008 68
183

===

Every year in which offsetting is verified, the tax benefit will be reaiized if income tax (net of the offset) is equal to
or excesads the tax on minimum presumed income, but will be reduced by any excess of the latter over income tax.

In the three-month period ended March 31, 2002, Telefonica has estimated the existence of income tax loss of
about 2,072 million and has determineq a charge for the tax on minimum presumed income of 12 million, which
was capitalized as “Other non-current receivables’, bacause it is estimated as recoverabls based on the .
Company's tax projection. In the three-month fiscal year ended Dacember 31, 2001 and for the slx-month period
ended March 31, 2001, Telefénica's Incame Tax amounted to 3¢ million and 86 million, respectively. These
amounts were higher than the tax on minimum presumed income corresponding to those periods and were
charged to expense of each period and included in the ‘income Tax" account,

As provided in the Public Emergency and Exchange Systam Raform Law, the loss resulttg\g from applylng the
exchange rate as of January 11, 2002 to the Company'’s net position of assets aqd liabilities in foreign cuirency as
of January 6, 2002, which amounted to about 232 millien, will be deductible from income tax at the rate of 20% per
annum over the five fiscal years ending after the Law’s effective date.

TR T S
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Tax on Interest and financlal cost of corporate Indebtedness: this tax applies at a 15% rate to interest and
other financial expenses paid by the companies residing in Argentina Republic as a result of Joans granted by
financial institutions under Law N° 21,526 or corporate bonds that are exempted under Law N° 23,576, and held
by individuals or legal entities residing abroad or individuals residing in Argentina Republic. The Law passed by
Congress last November 15, 2000, reducsd the tax rate to 10% for the period January 1, 2001 through June 30,
2001 and to 8% as from July 1, 2001,

Value added tax ("VAT"): VAT does not have a direct impact on the results of operations of the Company. VAT
rates for revenues are 21%, 27%, 40.5% and 44.1%, depending on the type and tax situation of the customer.

The weighted average rate for current Telefénica's customers is between 24% and 26% of revenues. Beginning
April 1, 1885, banks must withhold, on behalf of the Argentine Govermment, 8% of revenues on the bills they
coliect on behalf of Talefénica. VAT actually doposited by Teleféniva is the net amount resulting from the amount
billed to customaers minus the aum of the amounts withheid by banks and the amounts charged to Telefonica by its
suppliers in connection with the purchage of goods and services. See Tax Reform.

Other taxes: the tax assessed on Telefonica to finance the activities of the Regulatory Authority is levied on
Telefénica total monthly revenues from the provision of telecommunications services, net of any applicable tax.

Decrea No. 764/2000 approved the Rules for Univeraal Service which provide a subsidy mechanism for certain
customer categories and zones considered of relative high-cost as to rendering the basic telephone service,
financed with a special contributian called "investment contribution commitment” of 1% of the revenues obtained
from rendering the telecommunications services, net of any applicable tax,

A "Radioslactric rate" Is also paid io the Regulatory Authority every four months in relation to radioslectric stations.
Telefdnica also pays provincial stamp taxes and other provinciat and municipal taxes.

Tax Reform:

From the end of the year 2000, the National Congress passed the tax reform law that introduced, in addition to the
ahove-mantionad changes, the following amendments:

Value-added tax: Law No. 25,380 allows VAT credits generated by depraciable real property acquired after
November 1, 2000 to be offset against other taxes, or their reimbursement to be requested, provided that such *
credits can not be offset against VAT obligations arising from a year's business, and on condition that the property
of reference is still part of the tax payer's assets. Decree No. 483/01 established a 50% reduction of the capital
goods VAT rate, and at the same time revoked certain exemptions (lease of commercial real property and others).

Law No. 25,453, which became effective on July 31, 2001, granted the National Executive Powear the powers to
amend all the aspects of the law necessary for adopting the cash basis for the tax to become due and payable
{collection of billed amounts, including the tax), instead of billing. As of the date of issuance of these financial
statements the National Executive Power has not used the granted powers.

Decree No. 363/02 amended Law No. 24,760 on "Factura de Crédito" (invoice covering a credit sals which the
debtor has acknowiedged, which can be used by small and medium-gized companies as a security for bank
credits) and, sffective May 1, 2002, included as a requirement for the computation of the tax credit that the seller,
lesser, or service provider ghould issue the Factura de Crédito, when required to do 8o, and such invoice should
be accepted by the buyer, lesses, or service beneficiary, or replaced by some of the payment methods provided
by the same law. AFIP (Argentine Public Revenue Administration) General Resolution No. 1,255, also effective
May 1, 2002, regulated the systern and established as a requiremant for the computation of tax credits in agreed-
upoen cash payment transactions, payment within 15 calendar days of the earlier of delivery or completion of
service or issuance of the involce, or had a Factura de Crédito been |ssued, accounting for the receipt of the
Factura de Crédito until the last business day of the month following delivery or completion of service.

Bank chacking account transactions tax: Law No. 25,413 (effective as fram March 28, 2001) added a new tax of
up to 0.6% an certain bank checking account debits and credits. The Federal Executive was [n charge of setting
the conclusive tax rate within the range authorized by Congress, The rate was ssat at 0.25% by Decree No.
380/2001 as from April 1, 2001, and it was subsequently increased to 0.4% by Dacree No. 503, 2001, in force as
from May 3, 2001. As from that date, 37.5% of this tax may be computed as payment on account of income tax,
value-added tax, or tax en minimum presumed income. On July 34, 2001, Law No, 25,453 became effective. This
law repealed certain exemptions and authorized this tax to be computed as payment on account of social security
contributions (besides the above-mentioned taxes). The Federal Exacutive, through Decree No. 9898/01, raised the
tax rata to the maximum value allowed by law, and provided that 58% of the tax may be computed as payment on
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account of other taxes. Both would be effective as from August 1, 2001. Later, Presidential Decree No. 1676/01, .
published in the Official Bulletin on December 20, 2001, reduced the computabls tax to 10% effectiva as of
January 1, 2002, and limited its computation as value-added and income tax. Finally, Presidential Decree No.
315/02 published in the Official Bulieting on February 18, 2002, abrogated computation of 10% of this tax as
payment on acemint of tha taxes mentionad abova.

Social security contributions: as from July 1, 2001, Decree No. 814/01 increased to 16% the social security
contributions related to the foltowing subsystems: reticement, family allowance, employment fund, and healthcare
organization for retirees and pansioners. Contributions related to the healthcare organizations system were kept at
5%. At the same time, it provided that a percentage of such contributions, variable depending on the geographic
area where the payroll-employee work is performed, be computable as a VAT credit. The net effect of both
measures is nil with tespect o the rates effective through June 30, 2001.

Law No. 25,453 raised, as from August 1, 2001, the above rate from 16% to 20% for companies from the
commercial and services sector.

Decree No. 1387/01 established that contributions —other than those due to heaithcare organization system and
workers’ compensation system premiums-- will be fully compitabla as VAT credit as from April 1, 2003,

Of the section 80.Law No. 25,565 increased statutorily mandatory contributions to health plans from 5% to 8% and
the unified contribution created by Decree No. 814/01 from 16% to 17% or from 20% to 21%, as appropriate,
intended for the INSSJP (National Institute of Social Services for Retirees & Death and Disabllity Pension
Beneficlaries).

Anuther section of this Law that eliminated the cap for salaries subject to employer and employse contributions
under Law No. 24,241 was partially vetoed by the Federal Executive,

Tumnover tax: Law No. 12,727 of the Province of Buenos Aires increased the tumover tax rate by 30% as from July
1, 2001 for taxpayers who in 2000 paid more than 200,000 In such tax. In the case of the telephone service, this
meaans raising the rate for such jurisdiction from 3.5% to 4.55%.

The above rate was passed on by the Company to the rates applied to customers receiving the service in Buenos
Aires, under the tax stability rules of the regulatory framework. - )

In addition, through Law No. 745 and effactive January 1, 2002, the elements of the tax base for the intemational
telecommunication service were amended to include all compensation to which the company residing in Argentina
is entithed.

COINTEL REVENUES

Cointel’s sole substantial activity is owning a cantrolling interest in Telefonica’s common stock and its sole
substantial source of cash revenues is dividends paid on such stock.

COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31, 2002
AND 2001

All referenues made brelow to 2002 and 2001 are 10 the gix-month periods ended March 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, and are presented in compliance with tha criteria provided for in Note 4, to the notes to the
consolldated financial statemenits and therefore, do not include the spun off loss from spun-off operations.

As explained in Note 2.1. to the notes to the consolidated financial statements the Company has consolidated, line
by line, its statement of income for the six-month period ended March 31. 2002 with the rangolidated statement of
Income included in the consolidated financiat statements of Telefénica and Telinver for the three-month fiscal year
ended December 31, 2001, plue the consolidated statements of income includad in the consolidated financial
statemeants of Telafénica and Telinver for the three-month period ended March 31, 2002

Net Revenuss
Net revenues decreased to 1,264 million in 2002 from 1,380 million In 2001.

T e e e e e
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The following table shows operating revenues in milllons of pesos by category of services for 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001

Basic telephone service

Measured service 384 415

Manthly basic charges (1) 238 337
Special services 147 143
Installation charges 23 28
Publi¢ phoneg 93 120
Access chargas 118 149 '
Intemational long-distance service 52 72
Telephohe equipment 14 42
Publishing of telephons directories 24 13
Other 7 61
Total 1,264 1,380

=SERS o ———

(1) Includes monthly basic charges and charges for supplemental services.

Measured service includes revenues that Teiefénlca collects from the traffic consisting of local and domestic long-
distance calls made by its own customers to other of its own customers through Telefdnica’s network, and to
customers of other operators routed through Telefénica’s networks as well as other operators’ networks. In this
latter case, Telefonica bills and coflects revenues from its customers for the call, but pays other operators for the
cost of uging their netwoerks (see "Cost of Sarvices Providad, Adminietrative Expenaes and Selling Expurizes”,
“Fees and payment for services®),

Measured service decreased by 7.5% to 384 million in 2002 from 415 million in 2001. The change was principally
due to a decrease in the average number of billable domestic long-distancs fines (considering increases and
decreases in long-distance lines as a consequence of competition through the so-called *presubscription”
process) and a decrease in long-distance and local services in pulses consumed primarity as a result of the
country's econamic situation. These sffecte are offsct by a decrease in commerdial and low-consumption
discounts.

Monthly basic charges, which include the monthly basic charges of measured service lines, as well as of prepaid
lines, amounted to 338 million in 2002, ag compared to 337 million in 2001, not belng significant variation between
both perlods.

Special services increased by 2.8% to 147 million In 2002 from 143 million in 2001. The changes were principally
due to an increase in the uee of prepaid cealling cards. Such increase was partially offset by & decreased in
revenues from DTA (Digital Trunk Actess) services mainly due to the granting of greater commerdial discounts on
basic rate and measured service and by a decreass in revenues from internet calls (internet traffic decreased by
21.5% to 2,813 million minutes in 2002 from 3,711 million minutes in 2001.

Income from installation charges decreased by 17.8% to 23 million in 2002 from 28 million in 2001, Tha ahange
was pringipally due to a decrease in the amount of basic telephone lines installed during 2002. The variation was
partially offset by a decrease In the commercial discounts.

Revenues for public phones decreased by 22.5% to 93 million in 2002 from 120 million in 2001. The decrease was
due to decreased average interconnection of pay-phones operated by third parties (“telephone stations™ and an
decreasas in consumption of street pay-phones Iines. This vanaton was partially offset by a decrease in the
commaercial discounts granted to telephone station owners.

Access charges decreased by 20.8% to 118 million in 2002 from 148 million in 2001, The decrease was principalty
due to a decreasa of interconnection from long distance operators and cellular telephony dus to lower
consumption. Additionally, revenues from caliular interconnection dacraased due to commercial discounts granted
to customers and a decrease in average rates. Such decrease was offset by an Increase in revenues from the
lease of lines to public telephony services providers.

international long-distance service revenues decreased by 27.8% to 52 million in 2002 from 72 million in 2001.
The changes were principally due to & decrease in consumed minutes.

Telephone equipment revenues decreagsed by 86.7% to 14 millioh in 2002 fram 42 million in 2001, The change
was due to the country economic situation and the reduction by Telefénica of the offared product variety as from
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_.Il_zu:‘:ry 2001, when Telinver spun-off the equipment and point of sales engagement that would be merged by
efonica.

!’-"ublishing of telephona directories incraased by 84.6% to 24 milfion in 2002 from 13 million in 2001. The increase
in 2002 was due to the rescheduling of the effective distribution of directories in certain areas during the quarter
Qctober-December 2001 including mainly the cities of Mar del Ptata, Neuquen, Chubut and San Juan.

Other revenues increased by 16.4% to 74 million in 2002 from 81 million in 2001, The change was principally due
to an increase during the quarter October-December 2001 in the lease of digital direct lines and an approximately
35 million increase in other sales to Advance.

Cost of Services Provided, Administrative and Selling Expenses

Cust of services provides, administrative and selling expenses increased to 1,097 million in 2002 from 1,078
million in 2001.

The following table shows the breakdown of expenses in miliions of pesos for 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001
Salarigs, social security taxes and other personnel expenses 175 194
Depreciation and amortization (1) 320 315
Fuus und payments for sanvices 239 273
Management fee 47 58
Material consumption and ¢ther expenses 28 27
Allowance for doubtful accounts 182 85
Equipment sales cost 14 42
Other 83 82
Total 1,097 1,076

(1) Exciuging the portion coresponding to financial expenses.

Salaries and soclal security taxes decreased by 8.8% to 175 million in 2002 from 184 million in 2001, The variation
was mainiy due to a significant headcount reduction in Telefénica, which decreased to 9,418 in 2002 from 9,420 in
2001, Lines in service per employea increased by 8.1% ta 483 in 2002 from 447 in 2001, -

Total depreciation and amortization increased by 4.4% to 329 million in 2002 from 315 million In 2001. Inthe
Company, there was a decrease due to the amortization of the intangible agsst that resulted from the acquisition of
a 51% of Telefonica's common stock in November 1880 and the organization and preoperating expenses, which
wera amortized over a ten-year period by the straight line method, being totally amortized during the quarter ended
December 31, 2000. Telefénica’s depreciation increased due to the completion of different works in progress and
the acquisition of fixed agsets after March 31, 2001, the depreciation of which started as of guch date.

Fees and payments for services decreaged to 238 million in 2002 from 273 milllon in 2001; which represents a
decrease of 12.5%. The variation was basically generated by a decrease in: (i) advisory and consulting expenses
primarily as a result of expenses incurrad in 2001 due to the business reorganization (see Note 4. to the notes to
the financial statements; (ii) building maintenance expenses rasulting primarily from commarcial office refurbishing
in 2001, (iii) advertising expenses related to the completion of certain advertising campaigns carried out in 2001,
(iv) sales commission expenses and (v) charges for interconnection with other operators due to rate reduction and
decreased consumption.

Material consumption and ather expenses increased to 28 million in 2002 from 27 milllon in 2001, which
represents a 3.7% increase. This variation is primarily the resuit of price changes in certain imported supplies.

The allowance for doubtful accounts charga increased by 114.1% to 182 million in 2002 from 85 million In 2001.
This change arises mainly from the astimated effect of the Argentine macroaeconamic situation on collection terms
and delinquency lavels, which has affectead significantly certain type of customers.

The blggest part of the increase resulted from Telefénica Management's estimation, computing the corresponding
financial effect, of the possible collection terms and of the receivables from the Argentine Govemment considenng
collection efforts in progress and the last information availahle on the basls of Argentina’s perepeotives,

Equipment sales cost decreased by 66.7% to 14 million in 2002 from 42 million in 2001. The decreased cost of
sales results mainly from the decrease of telephony equipment and accessory sales.
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Other Expenses, Net

Other expenses, net decreased by 18% to 41 million in 2002 from 50 milfion in 2001. This change arose mainly
from decreased charges due to less employes termination and net book value of fixed assets retirad. Such
decrease was partisily offset by increased in allowance for contingency.

Financial Gains and Losses

in line with Resclution M.D. No. 3/2002 from the CPCECARBA, as described in Notes 2.6.d) and e) to the notes to
the consolidated financial statements, the Company capitalized (net of amortization) 1,240 million in fixed assets
and intangible assets over the six-month period ended March 31, 2002.

Net financial logs increased to a loss of 2,884 million in 2002 from a loss of 144 million In 2001. The change was
mainly due to the effact of the Argentina’s paco devatuation on the net position of assets and labilities in foreign
currency of the Company and its affiliates.

Consolidated gross capitalized Interest and exchange differances totaled 40 million (including 34 million
corresponding te capitalization of exchange differences) and 23 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

{Loss) Income Before Income Tax and Minority Interest and Net Loas for the years

{Loss) Income hefore income tax, minority interest and net loss from spun-off businesses was 2,840 million {loss)
in 2002 compared to 108 million (income) in 2001. After the income tax charge and minerity interest of 858 miltion
(income) in 2002 and 139 million (loss) in 2001, loss from continuing operatiens amount to 1,884 million in 2002
and 30 million in 2001. The (oss of Telefénica's spun-off businesses amount to 24 milllen in 2001, Net loss
amount to 1,984 miltion I 2002 and 51 million in 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents amountad to 164 million and 73 million as of March 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Cash and cash equivalents in 2002 increased in 131 million, or 397% from 33 million at the
beginning of such period. Of the cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2002, 67% are primarily held In U.S.
dollars and 33% are held in Argentine pesos. As a percentage of total assets, cash and cash equivatents
represanted 2.4% at March 31, 2002,

Total cagh flaws from operating activities for 2002 and 2001 amounted to 490 million and 129 million, respectively.

The ability of the Company to maintain or increase the level of cash generated from operations in the future will
depend on Telefonica’s renegotiation of telephone service future rates. The Company cannot foresee the level of
its future service revenues or to what extant, if any, rates would keep pace with inflation and devaluation of the
Argentine peso.

Casgh Used for Investing Activities. Cash used for investing activities in 2002 decreased in 19 mitlion, or 12% from
1566 million in 2001, Telefénica's management cannot forasee with any certainty whather this trend will continue
due to current uncertainties.

Cash Used for Financing Activitieg. Cash used for financing activities in 2002 decreased in 80 million, or 29%
from 312 million In 2001,

The main uses of cash for 2002 and 2001 were those related to the purchase of fixed assets and payment of loans
and dividends. Funds used for the purchase of fixed assets for the six-month periods ended March 31, 2002 and
2001 totaled 137 million and 156 million, respectively, These amounts are nat of 5 million and 22 million,
raspectively, financed by trade and bank financial payables. Dividend payments to minority shareholders for the
six-month periods ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 totaled 53 miliion and 74 mlllion, respeactively.

Additionally, the net cash provided by Telefénhica spun-off businesses amount to 74 million ih 2001. Sea Note 4. to
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

e —— e
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As of March 31, 2002, the Company and Telefdnica owed a total amount of approximately 2,729 million
(approximately US$858 million) to related parties, respectively, which matures until October 2002. These
agresments establish the usual commitments for these kind of transactions, as well as clauses that establish that
the eraditor may accelerate the terms of the Company's and Telefénica’s payables ("events of anticipated
raturity”) if there are changes in the Company's and Telefénica's equity, economic and flnancial situation that due
to their adverse nature may affect the Company's and Telefénica's capacity to comply with the abligations
assumed In the agreements or if there are restrictions that may limit the capacity of the Company and Telefonica
to repay their debts. The creditor has advised the Company and Telefénica that for the twelve-month period as
from Fabruary 25, 2002, (beyond the due date of such debt): (i) the effects of the Public Emergency System
implemented in Argentins by Decree No, 1,670/01, Law No. 25,581, as supplemenied and amended, In force shail
not be considered by the creditor as an event of anticipated maturity; (i) the creditor shall not consider that, as of
such date, loans have become immediately dua and payable In accordance with the agreaments.

Certain noncurrent assets relating to Telefénica’ s telecommunications business have been valued calculating
their recoverable value on the basis of Telefonica’ s management best estimate of future cash flows of its
telecommunications business, considering current information and future telephone service ratas estimates.
However, owing to the regulatory unceriainty regarding rates evolution which, as described In Note 12.1. to the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, derive from the pending negotiation with the Government, the
recoverability of the baoked value of such assets as of March 31, 2002, in the amount of 5,322 million will depend
on the final outcome of such negotiation.

Foreign-Danominated Debt, Receivables and Investments

As of March 31, 2002, total consolidated bank and financial payables amount to 6,485 million, of which, 6,314
millior are stated in foreign currency. Tatal bank and financial payables in foreign cumrency amount to
approximately US3$2,125 million, EURO 24 million and yens 8,840 million. Additionally, as of March 31, 2002,
trade, tax and ather payables in foreign currency amount to 269 million, of which, approximately, 208 million are
stated in US dollars. Furthermare, total recaivables, investments and caeh in foreign currency amount to 303
million of which 96% are stated in US dollars.

Exposure to Forelgn Exchange Rates

Effective September 28, 1999, Telefénica has antered into a forelgn currency swap agreement with Citibank N.A.
to hedge the risk of fluctuations of the yen-dollar exchange rate, In connection with the loan amounting to 5.8
billion Japaness yen granted by The Export Import Bark of Japan (currently the Japan Bank for International
Coopaeration) and maturing in February 2011, which accrues interest at a rate of 2.3% per annum. Such swap
agre=ment provides a fixed exchange rate of 104.25 yen per US dollar. The interest rate paid to Citibank N.A.
during the tarm of tha loan for the dollars received is 7.98% par annum. As of March 31, 2002, the related liability
considering the effect of the above-mentioned swap and the additional interest accrued amounts to US$84 million.
The contract establishes, among other provisions for this type of transaction, certain events of default under which
the creditor may accelerate payments terms. Events of default include failure to pay financiat debts for amounts in
axcess of 2% of the Company's shareholders’ equity.

Additionally, during December 1999, Telefnica has enterad into a foreign currency swap agrssment with Citibank
N.A. to hedge the rigk of fluctuations of the euro-dollar exchange rate, in connection with the net position of assets
and liabilities In Euros, including the balance of the loan granted by The Istituto Centrale Per il Credito a Medio
Termine ("Mediocredito Centrale”) which matures in November 2014, and accrues interest at a rate of 1.75% per
annum, Such swap agreemant has an B-year tam until November 2007 and providee a fixod cxchange rate of
0.998 euro per US dollar. The interest rate to be paid to Citibank N.A. during the term of the oan for the dollars to
be received is 2.61% per annum.

Monetary and Currency Exchange Controls

Since early Decamber 2001, Argentine authorities implemented a number of monetary and currency exchange
control measures that mainty included restrictions on the withdrawal of funds deposited with banks and tight
restrictions for making transfers abroad, with the excaption of those relsted to foreign trade and other authorized
{ransactions.

Subsequently, the B.C.R.A. provided that funds transferred abroad, amuny vther transfers, by the non-financiat
private sector on account of financial loans principal service, profits and distributions of dividends, carried out
within 80 days as from February 8, 2002, shall require B.C.R.A. previous consent. This shall not be necessary
when the cbligation arises from payables to muitilateral organizations, banks that financed investment projects
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jointly with such organizations, and governmental credit agencies or those guaranteed by such entitles.
Subsequent regulations of the B.C.R.A. establishad that from March 25, 2002 to August 12, 2002, such institution
must authorize any payment of principal or interest on financial debts abroad, except for the above mantionad
organizations.

While the above restriction is in farce, or should it be maintained beyond August 12, 2002, the Company and
Telefbnica are unable lo ensure that the B.C R.A, will autherize principal payments to foreign creditors over the
repayment tarm and under conditions established originatly, Current debt maturities affected by this situation
amount to 3.0 billion. In addition, 3,155 million classified as noncurrent in the balance sheet, result from
agreements providing that the amounts owed would become immediately due and payable (after certain steps
have baen followed) if other abligatiens are not met as could be the case of the current payables above, If default
i3 doclered on the basis of thie abovementioned reason, amounts that were disclosed as noncurmrent in the balance
sheet as of March 31, 2002 on the hasis of the conditions originally agreed with creditors, imay become
immaediately due and payable.

Telefonica Holding de Argentina S.A. ("THA") a shareholder of the Company, is evaluating Cointel's financing
neads considering the Argentine economic situation and the current difficulties to have access to credit, and has
co agreed with Cointel, to use ils best efforts 1o provide such finanging directly or indirectly and, subject to THA's
own fund availability, which depends on the evolution of the issues affecting THA's financial situation,

On the other hand, TESA has advised the Company and Telefonica that, as of the date of issuance of thege
financial statements, it was still evaluating the Argentine macroeconomic context and analyzing financing
altarnativas for such companies, including the posaibility of reflinancing or not over long-term its cument loans to
such companias and, if necessary, providing additional financing.

Consequently, the Company's and Telefénica’s ability to settle their payables to local and foreign creditors
depends upon the possibility of obtaining finaricing or, If not possible, of refinancing financial payables, as well as,
if necessary. the granting of additional financing by Its direet or Indirect controlling companies.

Should no financing aiternatives be available for the Company and Telefnica or should the Company and
Tealefdnica not succeed in obtaining refinancing, such companies would not have sufficient funds available to meat
their current liabifities (including those disclosed as current on the balance sheet as of March 31, 2002 and those
liabilities that would tum into current payables if creditors claimed a default) payable to local and foreign creditors.

Althougn the Company and Telefénlca will make their best effort to obtain such financing, as of the date of
issuance of these financial statements, it is not possible to engura what the result of such negotiations will be or if
the restrictions for making transfers abroad will enable the Company and Telefénica to settle thelr current liabilities
in the normal course of business and maintain their normat operations.

Contractual Obligations and Comrnerclal Commitments

The following table represants the contractual obligations and commercial commitments of Coirtel and Telefonlca

as of March 31, 2002;
Payments dus by Period in millions of Pesos

Less
than 13 43 After 8
Total 1 yoar yoars yonre yoars
Contractual obligations
Bank and financial payables (1) 6,528 3,340 1,879 121 1,186
Other obligations (2) 791 830 61 K] 64
Total contractual cash obligations 7,317 3,870 1,840 157 1,250
Commarcial Commitments
Linas of credit - - - - -
Stangpy leners of craot - - - - -
Guarantses - - - - -
Standby repurchase obligations - - - - -
Other commarcial commitments (3) 381 223 78 59 -
Total commarcial commitments 381 223 79 59 -

{1 Includes V5527 million and US$2 million related to praferred stock and praferred dividends, respectivaly.
(2) Includes certain trads payables, payroll and gocial security taxes, taxes and other payables.

(3} Includes 204 milllon principally related to cartain framework agreemants, which Telefdnica wilt make uze of In accordanca to
Telefonica's needs, The amounts not required by Telsfénica will not constitute a formal obligation with other parties undsr such

agreaments,

S
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Trend information

Cointel’s sole substantial activity Is owning a controlling interest in Telefénica’s common stock. Therefore, the
information about trends that follows corresponds to Telefdnica’s business.

with the advent of competition since November 1998 and as fully liberalized competition commenced on
Navember 8, 2000, operators undar additianal new liceneas began to provide one or more of lucal, domestic jong-
distance and intarnational service. Telefdnica expects that the level of competition in ts markets will increase in
the future. As of December 2001, more than 26 new telephony licenses for local and/or long-distance services
have been granted under Resolution 18,200/99. These licensees were not entitied to launch their services untii
November 2000 when the full liberalization was introduced. As of February 28, 2002, 8 licensees are providing
Jocal and/or fixed long-distance telaphone service. These companies are Techtel S.A., Impsat, Keytech (which is
operated by AT&T Latin America), CTl, Movicom Bell South, Comsat, Telefonica (in the Northem Region) and
Telecom (in the Southemn Reglon).

Telefonica is subject to competitive pressuras due to the development of increased domestic and international
tfransmission capacity. Additionally, as competition bacomes more prevalent, prices paid for services may keep
falling below tanff rates, pernaps significantly.

As a result of the pre-subscription process through which customers are able to select a provider of long-distance,
certain local services customers of Telefénica opted for one of the other long-distance operators (Movicom/TCP,
Keytach, Techtel, Comsat, impsat, CT/integrales and Telecom), and certain Telecom local services customers
opted for Telefénica or for Movicom/TCP or the others as their new provider of service. As of February 3, 2002,
the total number of customers galned (approximataty 270,000 lines) do nat compensate for the customers of
Telefénica in those customer segments that have opted for other providers (approximately 754,000 lines). nthe
near future, customers will select the long-distance call provider by dialing a three-digit code. Telefénica believes
that any additional loss of long-distance revenuss when this new system is implemented will depend on the
specific service and price offerings, which may vary among operators. Because there I8 no precedent for
competition in the Argentine telecommunications market among providers of basic telephonc services, and since
the recent devatuatlon for the Argentine peso is a dramatic change to what have been the economic conditions
under which all domastic companies have run their businesses during the last years, Telefénica is unable to
predict the precise extent of future losses of market share, the speed with which it might occur or the effect on
Telefénica's overall operations or revanues. :

The principal strategic objectiva of Telafiniza is to compete succeetfully and to maintaln a leadership pusition in
the Argentine telecommunications industry, Telefénica has been praparing for the new competitive environment;
however, there can be no assurance that the consequences of the introduction of competition will not materially
and adversely affect the business, financial condition or results of the operations of Telefonica. While there can be
no such assurance, in the opinion of Telefénica’s management, the implementation of Telefonica’s business
strategles will continue to have a haneficial effect on the future competitiveness of its telecommunications
business, mitigating the negative effects of increasing competition in the Argentine market.

The Company and Telefénica have prepared their financing projections and plans expecting to cover future fund
needs to continue Telefdnica’s investment plan and face short and long-term debt mainly with funds generated by
the operations plus bank Inans and accese to capital markete. Altormatively, they would request for long-term
refinancing of their payables.

Howaver, owing to the macrogconomic situation described in Nate 22. to the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, third parties’ credit lines are not available in amounts sufficlent to enable the Company and Telefonica
to, together with internally generated funds, meet current debt obligations. Furthermore, it Is not possible to
detarmine whether this situation will evolve favorably in the short term,

Since early Decembar 2001, Argentine authorities implemented a number of monetary and ¢cumency exchange
control massures that mainly inciuded restrictions on the withdrawal of funds deposited with banks and tight
restrictions for making transfers abroad, with the exception of those related to foreign trade and other authorized

transactions,

Consaquently, the Company's and Telefanica’s abillty to settie thetr payables to local and foreign creditors
dapends upon the possibility of obtaining financing or, if not possible, of refinancing financial payables, as well as,
if necessary, the granting of additianal financing by their direct of indirect controlling companies.

T ey e -
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Should not financing alternatives be available for the Company and Telefénica or should the Company and
Telefonica not succeed in obtaining refinancing, such companies would riot have sufficient funds available to meet
their current liabilities (including those disclosed as current on the balance sheet as of March 31, 2002 and such
liabilities that would tum into current payables if creditors claimed a default) payable to local and foreign creditors.

Although the Company and Telefonica will make their best effort to obtain such financing, as of the date of
issuance of these financiat statements, it is not possible to ensure what the resutt of such negotiations will be or if
the restrictions for making transfers abroad will enabte the Company and Telefdnica to settle their current liabllities
In the normal ¢ourse of buginess and maintain their normal oparations.

AGREEMENT SIGNED BY THE COMPANY'S SHAREHOLDERS

On April 11, 2000 certain affiliates of Hicks, Muse, Tate & Furst, Incorporated ("Hicks Musa®), including Republica
Holdings, Ltd. and a Citibank N.A, affiliate (*CEl affillates”) and TESA have entered Into a Stock Exchange
Agreement (the "Contract”), in relation with certain future transactions whereby, after ceriain conditions were met,
as of December 15, 2000, CEi (now THA) original shareholders transfemed to TESA, shares representing 80.9%
of the capital stock and 84.7% of the votes of THA, in exchange for TESA commen ghares issued, On Juns 29,
2001, TESA notified THA that the former had transferrad all its shares in the latter to its subsidiary TISA.
Additionally, as of March 31, 2002, as a result of THA' s capital stock reduction, TESA indirect equity Interest in
THA, Increased from 80.9% to 99.98%.

CORPORATE REQRGANIZATION
Tender offer for Telefdnica shares

On January 12, 2000, TESA launched a tander offer for the stock of Telefénica whereby TESA offered to
axchange for Its own stock any and sll Telefonica Class B shares not already directly or indirectly held by TESA,
Telefénica shares subject to the TESA tender offer represented 48.2% of Telefénica capital stock at that moment.
As a rasult of the above-mentioned exchange of shares, and the transaction described in Note 10.2.2. to the
consolidated financial statements (“Agreement signed by the Company’s Shareholdere) the 98% of Telefénica
voting fights are indirectly controlied by TESA.

Telefénica reorganization

As a consequence of TESA's plan to effect a global reorganization of its group operations by line of business, on
January 30, 2001 and Mareh 30, 2001, the Company’s and Telefénica's Board of Directors and Telefonica's
Special Shareholders’ Meeting, respectively, resolved to reorganize some of its businesses.

After the above-mantinned reorganization, Telafénica, and censequently the Company, no lunger holds an interest
in TelefSnica Comunicaciones Pargsonales S A. ("TCP"), Advance Telecomunicaciones S.A. ("Advance”) and
TYSSA Telecomunicaciones y Sistemas S.A. (‘TYSSA"), whose businesses had previously been reorganized.
According to the Board of Directors and the Spacial Shareholders” Meetings of Telefénica and the above-
mentioned subsidiaries, Talefonica's equity intereats in the above-mentioned former subsidiaries were spun-off
(and therefore Talefdnica's capital stock was reduced) and those equlty interests were merged Into centain
companies indirectly controlled by TESA (those companies operating the related specific business lines — Mobile
and Data).

Furthermore, as approved by the Company and Telefénica's Board of Directors and Telefénica's Special
Shareholders Meeting, the minarity shareholders, that are not related to TESA exchanged their Telefdnica's
shares for sharas of the companies into which the spun-off busincsses were merged, in proportion to their interest
in Telefénica. As a result of the capital reduction caused by the spin-off, the shares exchanged by the minority
sharaholders were cancsiled, and minority shareholders will hold an equal equity interest percentage (n Telefonica
and in the companies into which the spun-off businesses were merged. Telefénica’s caplital reduction amounts to
approximataly 395 million, from 2,141 million down to 1,746 million by setting 384,789,234 class B shares, faca
valua $1 per shara. The effect of the reorganization on Telcfénica’s Shareholders' equity as of Ogtouber 31, 2000,
which amounted to 625 million, was allocated to proportionately reduce the capital stock. The remaining amount
was allocated t¢ reduce the balance of tha °Irrevocable capital contributions for future subscriptions® and
‘Comprehensive adjustment to irravocable capltal contributions for future subscriptions” accounts until the
balances are exhausted, and “Comprehensive capital stock adjustment” account. The effect on spun-off assets
and lizhiliting resulting from the operations of these businessea from November 1, 2000 to the effective
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reorganization date, which amounte to a net assets decreage of 24 million, has been allocated to Telefénica's
amount of “Unappropriated retained earnings” as of the effective reorganization date. On July 26, 2001 the CNV
issued Resolutions No. 13,907, 13,808 and 13,909 whereby it approved the public offering filing of Advance and
Telefénica Méviles Argentina S.A. (“TMAT) and consented to the corporate reorganization described. Registration
with the Public Registry of Commarca of the above mentioned rearganization, became effectivie November 15,
2001 and the ghare exchange mentioned above was completed on December 12, 2001, Telefénica acquired, at
their listing value, the fractions of Telefénica shares held by mincrity shareholders. Total treasury shares amount
to 2,355 and were acquired in the amount of $1.021 per share. According to LSC, these shares must be sold
within 1 year of acquisition.

As a consequence of the above-mentioned transactions, the Company did not receiva sharer of the companies
into which the spun-off businesses are merged. Consequently, as from the effective reorganization date (February
1, 2001) the Company's equity interest in Telefdnica Class A and B shares was increased from 51.0% to 82.56%
and from 1.8% to 2.3%, respectively.

Telafénica reorganization transactions did not change the Company’s financial position as of October 31, 2000, as
the shareholding interest increase in Telefénica described above was compensated by Telefonica's shareholders'
squity reduction reculting from the rcorganization transactions. The effect ul Tulefonica's spun-off assets and
liabilities amounting to 2 million, which is the result of: a) the increase of the Company's ownership interest in
Telefénica as from the effective reorganization date, b) the effect of the spun-off assets and liabilities resulting
from the operations of these businesses from November 1, 2000 to the effective reorganization date, and ¢) the

differential of the Company’s ownership interest in Telefénica (from 51.0% to 62.5%) on the dividends approved by

Telefénics on March 12, 2001, has been allocated to Cointel’a balance of *Unappropiated relained vamings” in
Cointel's statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year ended September 30, 2001.

Described below are the commitments approved by Tetefénica, TCP, Telinver, TMA and Advance Board of
Directors and Special Shareholders' Meetings on January 30, 2001 and March 30, 2001, respectively, in
connection with the reorganization trangactions:

a) Agreement betwaen Telefonica, Telinver, TCP and Advance whereby:

- Telinvar spun-off the assets and llabilities related to the sale of equipment businesses and point of sales
network and those assets and liabilities were merged into Telefonica.

- TCP spun-off certain assets and fiabilities related to the data transmission business, Including the
authorization to use Band “B* of the Table 1.2. of Froquencies included in Cxhibit 1 of Resolution No.
889/98 of the SC in the Buenos Alres Metropolitan Area, Rosario, Santa Fe, Cérdoba, Rlo Cuarto,
Catamarca, Resistencia, Parana, Concordia, Tucuman, Corrientes, La Rioja, Jujuy, Salta, Posadas,
Formosa, Santisgo del Estero, Neuquén, Mendoza and Bahla Blanca. The authorization had been
granted to Aki S.A. ("Aki") under Resolution No. 18,766/89. Those assets and liabiflties were marged into
Talafénica

- Advance spun-off certain agsets and liabilities related to the Internet Access businass (including ail its
customers ather than corporate customers), point-to-point lines in the southem region, 80% of the
Starnet network, 80% of the Satellite Network (equivalent to 40% cf all such network) and 100% of the 1P
network (Internet Protoco! Network). Those assets and liabilities were merged into Telefénica.

According to the commitment, the above-mentioned spin-off-merge s were effective as from January 1, 2001
{"Date of the First Reorganization”).

b} Agreement between Telefénica, Advance and TMA whereby Telefonica spun-off: (i) the assets and liabliities
related to the data business, including Telafénica's international data business (comprised of 100% of the
identifiable azsets necessary for the provision of intemational data services, 14.40%, 29.56%, 23.80%,

18.30%, 80%, 16.87%, 83.84% and 15.79% of the Unisur A Segment, Unisur B Segment, Unisur C Segment,
Americas |, Amenicas I, Panamericano, Allantis Il and Cotumbus cables, respectively, 10.84% of the rights of
use of the Transbrasil cable and certain receivables and liabilities related to such business), the portion of
Telefénica's geodwill related to the Advance data business and the ownership interests in Advance, and (ii)
Telefénica’s consulting business (related to Telefénica's interest in TYSSA) that were merged into Advance. In
this sanse, Advance reduced its capital stock and shareholders’ equity as a congeguence of having received its
own shares from Telefénica. Additionally, Telefénica spun-off thw rnobile communications business related to
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Telefonica's interest in TCP. That business was merged into TMA. The corporate reorganization described in
this paragraph was effective as from February 1, 2001 ("Date of the Second Reorganization”).

The shares resulting from Advance and TMA capital increases related to the incorporation of Telefénice’s
assets and labllittes spun-off mentioned in the preceding paragraph have been exchanged for Telefdnica's
shares hetd by Telefénica Datacorp. S.A. and Telefénica Méviles S.A. (companics indirgctly controlled by
TESA), respectively and by Telefonica’s minority shareholders,

As from February 1, 2001 ("Date of the Third Reorganization™), Telinver spun-off and merged with Telefénica
the assets of its e-commerce buslness, including its 50% interast in E-Commerce Latina ("ECL"). The
preliminary spin-offfmerger agreement was approved by Telefénica's Board of Directors and Special
Shareholders' Meeting on February 15, 2001 and March 30, 2001, respectively.

The companies agreed to use spin-off-margear-purpose balance sherts as of Ortobar A1, 2000 in the cass of
the reorganizations described in a} and b) and December 31, 2000 in the case of the reorganization describad
in c) above, for the purpose of obtaining the reorganization approvals by the Board of Directors and
Shareholders' Meetings of the companies. Considering the effective Date of the First Reorganization, the
Second Reorganization and the Third Reorganization (the *Reorganization Dates") established in the related
spin-off-merger agreements, the shareholders’ equity computed for purposes of these reorganizations included
tha changes arising out of the operations of the spun-off businessas from Navemhber 1, 2000 (in the crse of the
reorganizations described in a) and b)), and from January 1, 2001 (in the case of the recrganization described
In ¢)) to the respective Reorganization Dates.

Due to the tax affacts of the reorganization and regarding its exemption from income and value-added taxes,
saction 77 of the income tax law provides that Telefonica and its indirect controlling company shall, among
other things, keep for a period of two yaars as from the reorganization date:

a) the activities developed by the recrganized companies (or similar activities), and

b} its shares listed on self-regulated stock-exchange markets (or, otherwise, Telefonlca shareholders shall
maintaln an interest in the capital stock of the successor companies of at least 80% of the capital stock
of the restructured companies as of the reorganization dates).

Telefénica and its indirect cantrolling company intend to fulfill the requirements mentioned in a) and b) above.

The following tables show the approximate effect of the spun-off businesses on the consolidated statements
of income and cash flows for the six-month period ended March 31, 2001,

+ Consolidated loss of the spun-off businesseas:

The results of operations related to the spun-off businesses for the six-month period ended March 31,
2001 are as follows:

2001 {a
Net revenues 2892
Cost of services provided (186)
Administrative expenses (36)
Selling expenses @87
Operating joss 17
Financial loss on assets (2)
Financial loss on liabilities (22)
Net loss of spun-off businesses (41)
Minority interest of spun-off businesses 20
Company's interest in logs of spun-off businesses (21)

(a) Includes operations for the four-month period up to the effective reorganization date.
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. Consolidated cash flows of the spun-off businesses:

The effect of the spun-off operations in the cash flows for the six-month period ended March 31, 2001 Is

as follows:

2001 {a)
Cash used in operating activities 6)
Cash uged in investment activities (33)
Cash provided by financing activities 113
Total net cash provided by spun-off businesses 74

(a) Includes operations for the four-month period up to the effective recrganization date.
Statistical Data

The following table provides certain basic infarmation relating to the development of Telefénica’s dornestic
telephone system.

2002 2001
Billable lines of measured service 3,807,900 3,598,180
Lines Installed 4,884,052 4,793,750
Lines In sarvice 4,548 068 4,384 197
Lines in service per 100 inhabitants 244 24.2
Lines in service per employee 482.7 448.5
Percantags of lines connected to digital exchanges 100% 100%

Public telephenes installed 114,148 120,198
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COMPANIA INTERNACIONAL
DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A.:

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Compaiiia Internacional de
Telecomunicaciones S.A. (an Argentine Corporation) and its consolidated subsidiaries as of December 31,
2001 and 2000 and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows and changes in shareholders'
equity for the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, all expressed in Argentine pesos

(Note 2.3.). These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Argentina. A review of
interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures to financial data and making
inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. A review is substantially less in scope
than an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the objective of which is
the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not

express such an opinion.

As described in Note 22.2. to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, in the last few months, a
deep change has been implemented in the economic model of Argentina as well as in the Convertibility Law
that was in place since March 1991 (whereby the Argentine peso was pegged at parity with the US dollar).
The main consequences of the set of measures adopted by the Argentine Federal Government, which are
detailed in the above mentioned note, are (a) the devaluation of the Argentine peso with respect to the US
dollar and de-dollarization of certain assets and liabilities in foreign currency held in the country, the effects of
which will be recognized in the next period in accordance with Argentine generally accepted accounting
principles; (b) the implementation of restrictions on the withdrawal of funds deposited with financial institutions;
(c) the restriction on transfers abroad on account of financial loan principal service and dividend distributions
without prior autharization from the Banco Central de la Republica Argentina; (d) the increase in domestic
prices and (e) in the case of Telefénica de Argentina S.A. (“Telefénica”), the need to renegotiate with the

Argentine Federal Government future rates that Telefonica will charge to its customers for telecommunications




ANDERSEN

services (Note 12.1.). The future development of the economic crisis may require further measures from the
Argentine Federal Government. The accompanying consolidated financial statements should be read taking
into account the issues mentioned above. The recoverability of the amount booked as of December 31, 2001
in fixed assets corresponding to the telecommunications business of Telefénica totaling 2,868 million,
considering the Company’s ownership interest in such company, depends on the effect that the outcome of
the rate renegotiation may have on Telefonica’s operations. Additionally, the estimated effect of the
devaluation on the Company’s shareholders’ equity, after computing the exchange difference that should be
capitalized on the basis of effective accounting standards in Argentina, could cause the Company to fall within
one of the mandatory capital reduction events or within a dissolution event (if the Company’s shareholders’
equity becomes negative) provided by sections 206 and 94 of the Business Associations Law effective in

Argentina.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the consolidated
financial statements referred to above in order for them to be in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to consolidated financial statements in Argentina (“Argentine GAAP") and the relevant

regulations of the Business Associations Law and the National Securities Commission (“CNV").

The financial statements of the Company and Telefonica as of December 31, 2001 have been prepared
assuming that these companies will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 8.1. to the
accompanying financial ;tatements, the Company’s consolidated current assets in foreign )currency are lower
than the respective current liabilities in foreign currency and it is uncertain whether the Company and
Telefonica will obtain refinancing or additional credit lines to be able to pay their current debts or whether the
Banco Central de la Republica Argentina will authorize transfers abroad to pay to foreign creditors. Because
of the situations described above and the potential adverse effect of the outcome of the pending rate
negotiation of Telefénica mentioned in paragraph 3., the Company and Telefénica may be unable to continue
as a going concern, The financial statements as of December 31, 2001 do not include any adjustments
relating to the recoverability and classification of asset carrying amounts or the amount and classification of

liabilities that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.
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6. Accounting practices used by the Company in preparing the accompanying financial statements conform with
Argentine GAAP, but do not conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“U.S. GAAP"). A description of the significant differences between Argentine GAAP and U.S. GAAP
and the approximate effect of those differences on netincome and shareholders’ equity are set forth in Note
18 of the notes to the financial statements. The Company has not, however, presented the additional financial

statement disclosures required by U.S. GAAP.

Buenos Aires, PISTRELLI, DIAZ Y ASOCIADOS
February 26, 2002 C.P.CE.CF.Vol.1-Fol. 8

EDUARD® C. CODURI
Partner
Certified Public Accountant
Buenos Aires University
C.P.C.E.C.F. Vol. 163 - Fol. 202




COMPANIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A.

Registered Address: Tucuman 1 - 18" floor, Buenos Aires

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

(stated in Argentine pesos — see Note 2.3.)

Principal Business: Direct or indirect participation in businesses related to the areas of telecommunications, other
forms of communications and energy.
Registration with the Public Registry of Commerce:

- Of the articles of incorporation: October 4, 1990.
- Of the last change to the bylaws: October 29, 2001. See Note 19.

Registration number with the “Inspeccién General de Justicia” (“IGJ" the governmental regulatory agency of
corporations): 1,528,250.

Duration of the corporation: through October 1, 2089.
Fiscal year-end: September 30.

Capital structure: See Note 6.

‘o.g\\/

MIGUEL ANGEL GUTIERREZ
Vice-President
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COMPANIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000 (1)

(stated in million of Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

2001 2000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 38 22
Investments (Notes 21.a) and b) 32 52
Trade receivables (Note 3.a) 645 791
inventories (Note 3.b) 16 36
Cther receivables (Note 3.c) 99 121
Total current assets 830 1,022
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables (Note 3.a) 11 -
Other receivables (Note 3.c) 58 27
Investments (Note 21.a) 8 134
Fixed assets (Note 21.c) 4,424 4,672
Intangible assets and deferred charges (Note 21.d) 218 233
Net assets of spun-off businesses (Note 4.) - 607
Total noncurrent assets 4,719 5,>673
Total assets 5,549 6,695
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables (Note 3.d) 310 360
Bank and other financial payables (Note 3.6) 1,221 1,356
Payroll and social security taxes payable (Note 3.f) 66 63
Taxes payable (Note 3.g) 98 158
Other payables (Note 3.h) 53 51
Reserves (Note 21.8) 3 2
Total current liabilities 1,751 1,990
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables (Note 3.d) : 32 1
Bank and other financial payables (Note 3.e) 1,234 1,433
Payroll and social security taxes payable (Note 3.f) 39 39
Other payables (Note 3.h) 52 .55
Reserves {Note 21.8) 89 54
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,446 1,682
Total liabilities 3,197 3,572
MINORITY INTEREST IN CONTROLLED COMPANIES 938 1,672
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (per related statement) 1,414 1,451
Total liabilities, minority interest in controlled companies and shareholders’ equity 5,649 6,695

(1) See Notes 2.7. and 4.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of these statements.

78 ) 1/
MIGUEL ANGEL GUTIERREZ
Vice-President
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COMPANIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000 (1)

(stated in million of Argentine pesos, except for per share amounts which are stated in

Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

2001 2000
NET REVENUES 647 714
COST OF SERVICES PROVIDED (Note 3.i) (350) (378)
Gross profit 297 ...... 3 38
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Note 21.h) _ (72) (80)
SELLING EXPENSES (Note 21.h) (175) (82)
Operating income 50 1 76 )
LOSS ON EQUITY INVESTMENTS (4) (1)
OTHER EXPENSES, NET (Note 21.h) (24) (30)
FINANCIAL INCOME (LOSS) ON ASSETS, NET (Note 21.h) 7 (15)
FINANCIAL LOSS ON LIABILITIES, NET (Note 21.h) {48) (52)
(Loss) Income for the period from continuing operations befors income tax
and minority interest in controlled companies (19) 78
INCOME TAX (Note 2.6.h) (30) (57)
MINORITY INTEREST IN CONTROLLED COMPANIES 12 (31)
Net loss for the period from continuing operations (37) (10)
NET LOSS OF TELEFONICA'S SPUN-OFF BUSINESSES (Note 4.) - (18)
Net loss for the period (37) (28)
Earnings attributable to prefefred shareholders - @ (1
Loss attributable to common shareholders (38) 3 (29)
Loss per share (533;): ((=)=O-O=5_)

(1) See Notes 2.7. and 4.
(2) Less than 0.5 million.
(3) Total may not sum due to rounding in millions.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of these statements.

4»3\/

MIGUEL/ANGEL GUTIERREZ
ice-President
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COMPANIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

(stated in million of Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

2001
Shareholders’ investment
Common Preferred
Capital Capital
stock stock Adjustment to
Face Adjustmentto  Premium on Face Adjustment redemption
Description value capital Share issue value to capital value Total
Balance at beginning of year 531 413 15 14 12 1 986
Net loss for the period -
Balance at end of period 531 413 15 14 12 1 986
2001 2000
Retained earnings
Reserve for
Legal future Unappropriated
Description reserve dividends earnings Total Total
Balance at beginning of year 103 381 (19) 1,451 1,479
Net loss for the period - - (37) (37) (28)
103 381 (56) 1,414 1,451

Balance at end of period

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of these statements.

Ao

MIGUEL/ANGEL GUTIERREZ
Vice-President



COMPANIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (1)
FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

(stated in million of Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2001 2000 (3) (6)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (2) 70 91
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 33 404
Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents —?3; (313)

CAUSES OF CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss for the period (37) (28)

Net loss of Telefénica’s spun-off businesses 18
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operations:
Financial expenses (4) . 9 34
Fixed assets depreciation 166 151
Material consumption 6 7
Net book value of fixed assets retired - 1
Amortization of intangible assets and deferred charges 4 8
Cost of services provided ’ o] 20
Increase in allowances and reserves 129 48
Loss on equity investments 4 1
Minority interest in controlled companies - (12) ’ 31
Payment of dividends to minority shareholders (53) .
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Other receivabies (8) (15) 7)
inventories (2) 27)
Payroll and social security taxes payable 2 (39)
Taxes payable 6 31
Other payables 10 15
Trade receivables (52) (37)
Trade payables 16 61)
Total cash provided by operations 190 166
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets (5) (95) (62)
Total cash paid on investing activities (95) (62)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in bank and other financial payables 83 325
Decrease in bank and other financial payables (141) (767)
Total cash paid on financing activities (58) (442)
Cash flows provided by Telefdnica’s spun-off businesses (7) - 25
Total increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 37 (313)

(1)  Cash and cash equivalents (investments with an original maturity not exceeding three months). See Note 2.5.

(2)  Supplemental information on cash flows, see Note 17.

(3)  Cash and cash equivalents at end of period includes 17 miltion allocated in the line “Net assets of spun-off businesses” in the consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2000.

(4) includes those not involving movement of tunds.

(8)  Netot 19 million financed by trade and bank and financial payables for the three-mornith period ended December 31, 2000.

(6) See Notes 2.7. and 4.

7) The breakdown effect on consolidated cash flows for the three-month period ended December 31, 2000 of spun-off businesses is included in Note
4,

(8) In 2001, net of 93 million related to the settiement of intercompany receivables, through the assignment of financial loans and of 30 million related to
reclassification of Patriotic Bond from noncurrent investments to other receivables.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of these statements.

/‘7”\ ~

MIGUEY ANGEL GUTIERREZ
Vice-President



COMPANIA INTERNACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

(stated in Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE

Compaiiia Internacional de Telecomunicaciones S.A. (“Cointel” or “the Company”) controis Telefénica de
Argentina S.A. (“Telef6énica”) which has a license for an unlimited period of time to provide Basic Telephone
Services to the Southern Region of Argentina. The license as granted was exclusive through November 8,
1997, with the possibility of a three-year extension. On March, 1998 the National Executive Power has
issued Decree No. 264/98 which generally extended the period of exclusivity with respect to the provision of
Basic Telephone Services until late 1999 and over time opening the telecommunications sector in Argentina
to increased competition. In this context, the Secretary of Communications (“SC”) issued Resolution No.
1,686/99, which provided that the transition period to competition in telecommunications ended on October
10, 1999. In this respect, on March 31, 1999, Telefénica signed a contract with the SC whereby Telefénica
was granted a license for an unlimited period of time to provide local and domestic and international long-
distance telephone services and telex services in the Northern Region. Telefénica’s obligations under this
license, mainly relate to service quality and coverage of the areas to be serviced. Additionally, on June 9,
2000 the National Executive Power issued Decree No. 465/00, which provides for the total deregulation of the
telecommunication market since November 8, 2000. On September 3, 2000, the National Executive Power
issued Decree No. 764/2000 which, in the context of such deregulation approved the Rules for Licenses for
Telecommunication Services, the Rules for Interconnection, the Rules for Universal Service and the Rules for
the Management and Control of Radioelectric Spectrum.

Additionally, on February 12, 2002, Telefénica's Board of Directors approved the amendment to the corporate
purpose. The corporate purpose was broadened for Telefénica to be able to engage in other type of
businesses not necessarily related to rendering telecommunications services, including purchasing
equipment, infrastructure, and telecommunications-related goods, as well as rendering any type of services,
such as consulting and accounting, human resources and tax administration services. The above amendment
must be approved by Telefénica’s Special Shareholders’ Meeting, and authorized by the appropriate
authority.

Telefénica, S.A. (“TESA”), a Spanish company, indirectly controiling the Company, has carried out a pian to

make a global reorganization of its group operations by line of business. As a result of the above-mentioned
reorganization, Telefénica and, consequently, the Company, no longer hold an interest in certain companies
indirectly controlled by them. See Note 4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1. Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in Argentina (“Argentine GAAP") applicable to consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of the Comisién Nacional de Valores (‘“CNV") and are
presented in Argentine pesos (see Note 2.3.). The consolidated financial statements also include certain
reclassifications and additional disclosures in order to conform more closely to the form and content
required by the Securities and Exchange Commission of the United States of America (“SEC”).

in accordance with Argentine GAAP and current Argentine legisiation, the presentation of the parent
company'’s individual financial statements is required. Consolidated financial statements are to be
included as supplementary information to the individual financial statements. For the purpose of these
financial statements, individual financial statements have been omitted since they are not required for
SEC reporting purposes.




2.2

23

24.

Following the procedure established by Technical Resolution (*RT") No. 4 of the Federacion Argentina de
Consejos Profesionales de Ciencias Econémicas (“FACPCE™ and the applicable standards of the CNV,
the Company has consolidated, line by line, its financial statements as of December 31, 2001 and the
statements of income and of cash flows for the three-month period ended on such date: with the
consolidated financial statements of Telefonica and its subsidiary Telinver S.A. (“Telinver”) as of
December 31, 2001; company in which Telefonica holds sufficient votes to determine the corporate will.

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2000 were prepared using the financial
statements as of that date of Telefnica and its subsidiaries, Telinver, Telefénica Comunicaciones
Personales S.A. (“TCP"), Advance Telecomunicaciones S.A. (“Advance”) and TYSSA
Telecomunicaciones y Sistemas S.A. (‘TYSSA"), companies in which Telefnica held sufficient votes to
determine the corporate will whether directly or indirectly. The consolidated financial statements for the
three-month period ended December 31, 2000 were retroactively restated to reflect the effects of the
reorganization transactions. See Note 4.

All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

As of December 31, 2001, the data reflecting corporate control is as follows:

Capital % of capital
stock stock and
Company - Business (1) % of votes  Sharehoidin
Telefénica Telecommunications services, among others (5§)  1,746,052,429 (4) 64.83 (2) Direct
Telinver Commercial, investment and
telecommunications services, among others 49,623,217 . 99.99 (3) Indirect

(1) Total face value, in pesos.

(2) See Note 4.

(3) Telefénica's interest in Telinver.

(4) Includes 2,355 treasury shares. See Note 4.2.
(5) See Note 1.

. Generally accepted accounting principles

In preparing these financial statements, the Company used the valuation methods required by applicable
resolutions of the CNV which, in the Company’s case, do not differ from those required by the FACPCE,
and approved by the Consejo Profesional de Ciencias Econdémicas de la Ciudad Auténoma de Buenos
Aires ("CPCECABA"). See Note 2.10.

. Presentation of financial statements in constant Argentine pesos

The financial statements fully reflect the effects of changes in the purchasing power of money through
August 31, 1995, by restating amounts {0 constant pesos by the method laid down in RT No. 6 of the
FACPCE. In compliance with regulations established by the CNV, effective September 1, 1995, the
Company discontinued the application of the restatement method and retained restatements recorded
until that date.

This method is allowed by Argentine GAAP provided that the change experienced by the price index
applicable for restatement does not exceed 8% per annum. The change in the above index during each
of the fiscal years ended as from September 1, 1995 was below that maximum limit. See Note 22.2.

Financial Instruments with off-balance sheet risk and concentration of credit risk

The Company has not had a fixed policy of entering into derivative financial instruments for managing its
exposure to market risk. As of the date of these financial statements, Telefonica has entered into the
following instruments to manage the exposure to the risk of fluctuation of the exchange rate of significant
indebtedness denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar.-

1. Effective September 29, 1999, Telefénica has entered into a foreign curmrency swap agreement with
Citibank N.A. to hedge the risk of fluctuations of the yen-dollar exchange rate, in connection with a
loan amounting to 8.8 billion Japanese yen granted by The Export import Bank of Japan (currently
the Japan Bank for International Cooperation) and maturing in February 2011, which accrues interest
at a rate of 2.3% per annum. Such swap agreement provides a fixed exchange rate of 104.25 yen
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per US dollar. The interest rate to be paid to Citibank N.A. during the term of the loan for the dollars
received is 7.98% per annum. As of December 31, 2001, the related liability taking into account the
effect of the above-mentioned swap and the additional interest accrued, amounts to 86 million.

2. During December 1999, Telefénica entered into a foreign currency swap agreement with Citibank
N.A. to hedge the risk of fluctuations of the euro-dollar exchange rate, in connection with the net
position of assets and liabilities in euro, including the balance of the loan granted by The Istituto
Centrale Per il Credito a Medio Termine (*Mediocredito Centrale”) which matures in November 2014
and accrues interest at a rate of 1.75% per annum. Such swap agreement has an 8-year term until
November 2007 and provides a fixed exchange rate of 0.998 euro per US dollar. The interest rate
paid to Citibank N.A. during the validity of the loan for the dollars to be received is 2.61% per annum.

The only significant concentration of credit and operations as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 was with
the Argentine Government (Federal, Provinciat and Municipal Government and Governmental agencies).
Trade receivables from the Argentine Government as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 amounted to 95
million and 113 million, respectively. The percentages of net revenues derived from services rendered to
the Argentine Government for the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 were 3.3%
and 4.2%, respectively.

Out of the above-mentioned balances as of December 31, 2001 not yet collected as of the date of
issuance of these financial statements, approximately 84 million were past due as of December 31, 2001.
On the basis of Telefdnica’s current collection efforts and the information available as of the date of
issuance of these financial statements about Argentina’s future economic perspectives (see Note 22.2.),
Telefénica's Management has reestimated the possible collection terms and conditions of the
receivables from government entities mentioned above. The estimated financial effects of the possible
deferral of collections from such government agencies has been considered to determine the aliowance
for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2001 (see Notes 21.h) and 21.e). The portion of net value
related to these receivables that Telefénica estimates will be collected over 12 months has been
classified as noncurrent as of December 31, 2001 (see Note 3.j).

As of the date of issuance of these financia!l statements, the Company does not have any other financial
instrument that would create off-balance sheet risk associated with such instruments.

Statement of cash flows

In the statement of cash fiows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Valuation methods

In connection with certain accounting issues related to the Public Emergency and Currency Exchange
System Reform Law, in January 2002 the CPCECABA issued Resolution MD No. 1/02 that established,
among other things, that assets and liabilities in foreign currency as of December 31, 2001, must be
valued at the exchange rate effective as of the last day on which transactions in foreign currency were
made in Argentina. In the case of the US dollar, the applicable exchange rate is US$1 = $1, which was
the exchange rate effective under Law No. 23,928 (Convertibility Law) as of period-end. Additionally, in
line with the above described, on January 23, 2002, the CNV approved General Resolution No. 392.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
Argentina requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. The
ultimate results could differ from those estimates.

The principal valuation methods used in the preparation of the financial statements are as follows:

a) Cash, trade receivables, current investments, other receivables, payroll and social security taxes and
other payables (except bank and financial payables):

—~ Inlocal currency (Argentine Pesos): at nominal vaiue, including financial income/expense
accrued through the end of each period, if applicable.



b)

~ Inforeign currency: they are stated at the selling or buying exchange rate in effect at the end of

each period or at the exchange rate effective before that date if the exchange rate was not
available (see the provisions of Resolution MD No. 1/02 of the CPCECABA above), including
accrued financial income/expenses, if applicable. The related detail is disclosed in Note 21.g).
See Note 22.2.

Government securities (“Bocon”) and Mutual funds have been valued at the market value as of the
end of each period, net of estimated selling expenses. See Note 21.a)

Trade receivables include services and settlements with foreign correspondents billed, and service
and settlements accrued but unbilled as of the end of each period, the latter being determined based
upon information about actual consumption, subsequent billings and estimates using historica! data.

Trade receivables are disclosed net of the allowance for doubtful accounts, which has been
assessed based on historical data and the estimated trend of collections. Telef6nica includes as a
receivable the portion accrued as of the period end of the surcharge for late payment included in the
invoices for payments until the “second due-date” of the invoice. For amounts that are past-due
beyond the second due date provided in the original invoice, the interest for late payment is recorded
in the cases in which Telefonica estimates that it is likely that it will recover it.

Prepaid services: includes payments made to IBM Argentina S.A. (“IBM”) in excess of the portion of
the contract’s total cost accrued through the period-end for having received the basic service (see
note 11.1.). Such amount is disclosed net of the unaccrued balance of the income from the sale of
the assets transferred to IBM, which will accrue on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

“Patriotic Bond” and Tax credit certificates (*TCC"): they were valued at face value in foreign
currency, stated at the buying exchange rate in effect at the end of the period or the exchange rate
effective before that day if the exchange rate was not available (see the provisions of Resolution MD
No. 1/02 of the CPCECABA above), plus the financial income accrued until that date. Telefonica
intends to hold the Patriotic bond and certificates until the related maturity dates and use them to
compensate taxes to be payable (see Note 15.).

Payroil and social security taxes payable include pre-retirement agreements with employees of
Telefénica. The pertinent amount is calculated on the basis of the present value of such agreements
(see Note 3.1).

Universal Service contribution: Telefénica calculates the charge for the universal service
contribution, consisting in 1% of revenues from telecommunications services, net of automatic
deductions (deductions not requiring regulatory approval) admitted by the related Regulation and, if
resulting in balance payable to the universal service fund, such net amount is booked as liabitity. On
the other hand, all deductions or subsidies which must be first approved by the regulatory entity, as
well as any balance receivable to Telefénica that may arise from the above calculation, are booked
by Telefénica as receivable in the period in which its reimbursement is approved by such entity (see
Note 14.a).

Other payables (other) mainly includes: a) the amounts payable for the settlement of certain legal
actions involving the contributions that Telefonica is required to make to the employee’s
“Compensatory Fund”, which was recorded at the present value of the future payments agreed upon.
Also, other payables include the amounts payable under the agreement of extraordinary contribution
to the Compensatory Fund executed by Telefénica that was recorded at the present value of the
payments agreed upon and b) Benefits under the Collective Labor Agreements for Telefonica's
employees who retire on reaching normal retirement age, or earlier due to disability or death. The
liability for these benefits is stated at the present value and has been determined based on the
number of employees in service as of the end of each period and the probability of their qualifying for
this benefit.

Inventories:

Raw materials have been valued at replacement cost, which does not exceed their estimated
realizable value.

Directories in edition process have been valued at cost. The value does not significantly differ from
reproduction cost and does not exceed their estimated realizable value.
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Equipment and supplies (?ncluding telephone accessories and cellular prepaid cards) have been
valued at the purchase price, which does not significantly differ from replacement cost and does not
exceed their estimated realizable vaiue.

Inventories are disclosed net of the allowance for impairment in value and slow turnover, determined
based on inventory recoverability analysis at each period-end.

In 2000, telephone sets and cellular telephone accessories have been valued at replacement cost,
which did not exceed their estimated realizable value.

Noncurrent investments:

Listed shares of Telefonica as of December 31, 2000: relates to Telefénica shares sold by the
Company under repurchase agreements. They are stated at their market value net of estimated
selling expenses since the Board of Directors decided the free disposition of these shares (See Note
8.2.1)

Interest in E-Commerce Latina S.A. (“ECL") as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, was valued by the
equity method based on the financial statements as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively,
prepared in accordance with accounting principles consistent with those used by the Company.

As of December 31, 2001, Telefénica holds an equity interest of about 1% in Tele Brasil Sul Celular
Participagdes S.A. (“TBSCP”). The equity interests in TBSCP as of December 31, 2001 and 2000
were valued at acquisition cost, up to the value calculated by the equity method.

Other investments represent Telefonica’s share in Intemational Telecommunications Sateilite
Organization ("Intelsat”) and share in New Skies Satellites N.V. as of December 31, 2001 and 2000.
They have been valued at the U.S. dollar amount of paid-in capital, stated at the buying exchange
rate in effect at the end of each period or at the exchange rate effective before that date if the
exchange rate was not available (see the provisions of Resolution MD No. 1/02 of the CPCECABA).
These entities allocate benefits and operating expenses and other costs and expenses to their
members. Telefonica accounts for these allocations as they are reported by these entities. The
contract signed by Telefénica and Intelsat provides that Telefonica may not sell its entire interest in
Intelsat without prior approval of the Regulatory Authority.

interests in Radio Servicios S.A. (“RS"), AKI S.A. (“Aki”) and Radio Mévil Digital Argentina S.A.
(*RMDA") as of December 31, 2000, were valued by the equity method based on the financial
statements of such companies as of December 31, 2000, prepared in accordance with accounting
principles consistent with those used by the Company.

Fixed assets:

Fixed assets received from Empresa Nacional de Telecomunicaciones (“Entel”) have been valued at
their transfer price to Telefdnica restated as indicated in Note 2.3., and subsequent additions have
been valued at cost, depreciated by the straight-line method over their remaining useful lives. The
cost of work in process, whose construction stretches over a period of time, includes the financial
cost generated by third parties, related to the investment during the construction period through the
time the asset is ready for use. Capitalized interest included in construction in process, for the three-
month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 totaled 2 million and 14 million, respectively.

For those assets whose operating condition warrants replacement earlier than the end of the useful
life allocated to the fixed asset category concemned, Telefénica calculates depreciation charge based
on the estimated remaining useful life assigned, in accordance with the investment plan.

Fixed assets relating to Telefénica’ s telecommunications business were valued calculating their
recoverable value on the basis of Telefonica’s management best estimate of future cash flows of its
telecommunications business, considering current information and future telephone service rates
estimates. However, owing to the regulatory uncertainty regarding rates evolution which, as
described in note 12.1., derive from the pending renegotiation with the Government, the
recoverability of the booked value of fixed assets as of December 31, 2001, in the amount of 4,424
million, will depend on the outcome of such renegotiation.
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intangible assets and deferred charges:

Organization and preoperating expenses include the Company's start-up expenses which have been
valued at historical cost restated in constant pesos (see Note 2.3.), and are being amortized over a
ten-year term as from the year ended December 31, 1991. As of December 31, 2000, they were
totally amortized.

Goodwill on investment in companies: represents the excess of the investment cost over the
investment valued by the equity method related to: (a) Telefénica's equity interest, for the portion not
yet fully amortized, which is amortized over 240 months by the straight-line method, (b) as of
December 31, 2001 "goodwill" reflects the acquisition costs of the continuing portion of the internet
business that used to be operated by Advance, Satlink S.A. and Compuserve S A. Argentina
(*Compuserve”), and as of December 31, 2000 goodwill reflects the portion of the acquisition costs of
the business that used to be operated by Advance, Satlink S.A., Compuserve and Aki, exceeding
such business valuation calculated by the equity method based on financial statements as of the
effective acquisition dates or as of dates at which such value was not materially different from the
one that would have been determined as of the acquisition dates. These goodwills are amortized
over a 10-year term by the straight-line method as from the respective acquisition dates and (c) the
capital contributions made with issuance premium to ECL (merged into Telefénica in connection with
the corporate reorganization mentioned in Note 4.) which respective goodwill is being amortized by
the straight-line method over a ten year term.

As described in Note 4., as from February 1, 2001, Telefénica spun-off the portion of Advance
goodwill related to the data business of Advance.

The recoverable value of the Company’s investment in Telefonica and the related goodwill as of
December 31, 2001, were evaluated on the basis of the Company's management best estimate of
future cash flows of Telefénica, considering current information and future telephone service rates
estimates. However, owing to the regulatory uncertainty regarding rates evolution which, as
described in Note 12.1., derive from the pending negotiation with the Argentine Government, as
well as on the results of negotiations of Telefénica to obtain financing or to settle its current
liabilities in the normal course of its business and maintain its normal operations, as described in
Note 8.1., the recoverability of such investment and the related goodwill as of December 31, 2001,
in the amount of 1,901 million, will depend on the outcome of the above-mentioned issues.

Trademarks were stated at their acquisition cost restated in constant pesos as indicated in Note 2.3.
and the license to use the logo was stated at cost, restated in constant pesos in accordance with the
above-mentioned note, net of accumulated amortization, which was calculated based on the
remaining duration of Telinver contract, until June 2007.

The licenses to use links have been valued at the restated acquisition cost and are amortized by the
straight-line method over a fifteen-year term.

The assignment to Telinver of Melier Comunicaciones S.A.'s rights pursuant to the contract for
publishing Telefonica's telephone directories and the “not to compete” commitment undertaken by
Meller Comunicaciones S.A., are being amortized as from October 1, 1897 through September 30,
and October 1, 2007, respectively, according to the terms of the above-mentioned contracts.

As of December 31, 2000, spun-off intangible assets include licenses and capitalized expenses,
which were amortized by the straight-line method.

Bank and other financial payables:

- Inlocal currency: at nominal value plus interest accrued, payable on the respective maturity
dates calculated at the contractual interest rate in effect as of December 31, 2001 and 2000.

- Inforeign currency: at nominal value plus interest accrued, payable on the respective maturity
dates, converted at the exchange rate in effect at the end of each period or at the exchange rate
effective before that date if the exchange rate was not available (see provisions of Resolution MD
No. 1/02 of the CPCECABA mentioned in Note 2.6.) calculated at the contractual interest rate in
effect as of December 31, 2001 and 2000. See Note 22.2.
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g) Assets and liabilities related to the spun-off businesses:

As of December 31, 2000, the assets and liabilities of the spun-off businesses (see Note 4.) have
been valued in accordance with the valuation methods described in this note corresponding to each
asset and liability category.

Income tax:

The Company calculates the Income Tax charge by applying the effective tax rate of 35% to the
taxable income for the period. The Company does not consider the effect of temporary differences
between Net Income and Taxable Income for the calculation of the income tax provision.
Additionally, the Company calculates the Minimum Presumed Income Tax by applying the effective
tax rate of 1% on certain production assets as of the end of the year. This tax is supplementary to
Income Tax. The Company's tax liabilities shall be the higher of these two taxes. However, if the tax
on minimum presumed income exceeds income tax during one fiscal year, such excess may be
computed as prepayment of any income tax excess over the tax on minimum presumed income that
may arise in the next ten fiscal years.

As Cointel estimates that the income tax and the tax on minimum presumed income will not generate
any charge at the end of the fiscal year, no income tax or tax on minimum presumed income was
accrued for Cointel in the statement of income for the three-month periods ended December 31,

2001 and 2000.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, Cointe! has determined a total charge for minimum
presumed income tax of 0.4 million, which was included in “Other receivables”. Additionally, as of
September 30, 2001, the Company has an accumulated income tax loss carryforward of about 193
million according to the respective tax returns filed as of that date, which might be used to offset the
future taxable income as follows:

Last year in which available Tax loss carryforward
2002 17
2004 48
2005 60
2006 68
193

Every year in which offsetting is verified, the tax benefit will be realized if income tax (net of the
offset) is equal to or exceeds the tax on minimum presumed income, but will be reduced by any
excess of the latter over income tax.

Telefénica calculated the Income Tax charge for the three-month fiscal year ended December 31,
2001 by applying the effective tax rate of 35% to taxable income. The charge for the three-month
period ended December 31, 2000 has been calculated by applying the estimated effective tax rate as
of the end of the fiscal year to the income for the period. Telefénica does not consider the effect of
temporary differences between net income and taxable income for the calcutation of the income tax
accrual.

In the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, Telefonica’s Income
Tax amounted to 30 million and 57 million, respectively. These amounts were higher than the tax on
minimum presumed income and were charged to expense of each period and included in the
“Income Tax” account.

Reserves:
Charges have been recorded for contingencies where it is probable for the Company to incur a

liability. When estimating the amount, consideration has been given to the probability of occurrence,
after consideration of legal counsel’s opinion regarding the matter.
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Financial Instruments:

Telefonica employs currency swaps to reduce the exposure to fluctuations in the exchange rates of
the yen and the euro to the US dollar in relation to the obligations assumed in yens and euro detailed
in Note 2.4. Thus, Telefonica ensured a fixed exchange rate for such obligations. Telefénica values
the covered obligations at each period’s closing exchange rate and also recognizes separately the
amounts receivable or payable under such swap agreements upon each closing date. Consequently,
any gain/loss deriving from swap agreements is charged to income together with the charges for
exchange rate fluctuations related to such covered obligations. The premium in the swap
agreements is deferred and amortized by the straight-line method over the life of such agreements.

In addition, as from this year, Telefénica discloses the balance of such financial instruments
classified into current and noncurrent based on the maturity of the associated loans. Such
disclosure has been made retroactively to December 31, 2000, reclassifying 11 million from current
to noncurrent in “Other payabies - Financia! Instruments”.

Shareholders' equity accounts:

Common capital stock: it has been disclosed at nominal value and the adjustment required to
restate it in constant pesos as stated in Note 2.3. is carried in the "Adjustment to common
capital" account. This account also absorbs any adjustment to the redemption value (shortfall or
excess) of the preferred stock as explained in the following paragraph.

Preferred capital stock: it has been disclosed at its redemption value calculated in accordance
with the issuance conditicns as explained in Note 5., through the following items:

¢ Face value of preferred shares.

¢ Adjustment to capital stock: restatement of the preferred shares in constant pesos as stated
in Note 2.3.

* Adjustment to the redemption value: it represents the difference between the restated value
of the preferred shares as stated in Note 2.3. and their redemption value.

Premium on share issue: this account discloses the additional contribution over and above the
face value made by the Class B common shareholders, restated in constant pesos as stated in
Note 2.3.

Legal reserve and unappropriated eamings: restated in constant pesos as stated in Note 2.3.

Reserve for future dividends: the Shareholders’ Meeting of December 18, 2000, voted a 129
million increase in the balance of the reserve for future dividends out of retained eamings as of
the prior year-end. The Board of Directors is entitled to reverse such allocation and pay
dividends to shareholders at such time as it may deem fit based on the Company’s situation and
financial ability.

Statement of income accounts:

Revenues and expenses are credited or charged to income on an accrual basis. Charges for the
installation of telephone lines are recognized as revenues when the service connection is made.

. Charges for consumption of nonmonetary assets valued at historical cost are computed based on

adjusted amounts of such assets as stated in Note 2.3. The accounts which accumulate monetary
transactions are not restated. See Note 2.3.

The line “Net loss of Telefonica's spun-off businesses” includes the income/loss of the businesses
that were spun-off, whether from Telef6nica, or from companies which Telefénica used to controt or
joint control until the spin-off. See Note 4. The consolidated financial statements for the three-month
period ended December 31, 2000 were retroactively restated to reflect the effects of the
reorganization transactions.
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2.7. Presentation of spun-off businesses

The Company has disclosed the balance sheet as of December 31, 2000, and the income statement for
the three-month period ended December 31, 2000, segregating the assets, liabilities and resuits of
operations of the spun-off businesses (see Note 4.), which appear net in the “Net assets of spun-off
businesses” and “Net loss of Telefonica's spun-off businesses” in the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2000 and in the consolidated statement of income for the three-month period ended
December 31, 2000. The amounts disclosed in Note 3. “Breakdown of the main accounts” and in Notes
21. a) to h) include balances corresponding to the businesses that remain in Telefonica. Consequently,
the balances at the beginning of the year for the three-month period ended December 31, 2000 were
restated accordingly.

2.8. Fiscal year-end change

On September 18, 2001, the Special Shareholders’ Meeting, approved the amendment of the fiscal year
section of the Articles of Incorporation. This amendment consists in changing Telefénica’s fiscal year-end
from September 30 to December 31 of each year. The Comisién Nacional de Comunicaciones (“CNC")
issued resolution N° 1,322 whereby it authorized Telefonica to change its fiscal year-end date.

2.9. Amounts expressed in million of Argentine pesos

The amounts in million of Argentine pesos contained in these financial statements have been rounded up
or down in order to facilitate the footing of notes and tables in which they are included. The effect of such
rounding is not material.

2.10. Modification of Argentine GAAP

Effective December 8, 2000, the Governance Board of the FACPCE approved Technical Resolutions
(“RT") Nos. 16, 17, 18 and 19, which provide for changes in professional accounting principles related to
valuation and disclosure. On the other hand, on December 21, 2001, CPCECABA approved, with certain
modifications, such RTs through its resolutions Nos. 238, 243, 261 and 262 and required mandatory
application thereof for fiscal years beginning July 1, 2002, and thereafter. As of the date of issuance of
these financial statements, the CNV is analyzing the scope and timing for adopting such standards.

BREAKDOWN OF THE MAIN ACCOUNTS (amounts expressed in million of Argentine
pesos)

As of the end of each period, the main accounts were made up as follows (foreign currency balances are
presented in Note 21.g):

a) Trade receivables:

2001 2000
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent

Past due (1) 538 53 (3) 461 -
Current (2) 390 - 497 -

Subtotal 928 53 958 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts

(Note 21.e) (283) (42) (167) -

Total 645 11 791 (4) -

° ——— ———

(1) As a result of the refinancing of past-due receivables, about 30 million of refinanced receivables are disclosed as
current receivables as of December 31, 2001. :

(2) Includes approximately 86 million that under the provisions of the original rate agreements would have been adjustable
for variations in the U.S. dollar exchange rate. However, Law N°25,561, effective January 6, 2002 resolves to cancel
any adjustment clause for variations in U.S. dollar or any other foreign currency exchange rate in public services
commitments (see Note 12.1).

(3) See Note 2.4.

(4) Net of 223 million in past due corresponding to spun-off assets. See Note 4.




b)

c)

d)

Inventories:

Raw materials and supplies
Directories in edition process
Telephony equipment

Subtotal

Allowance for impairment in
value and slow turnover (1)

Total

(1) See Note 21.e)

Other receivables:

Guarantee deposits

Prepayments to vendors

Prepaid rentals (1)

Prepaid services

Related companies — TCP,
Advance and Atento
Argentina S.A. (“Atento”)

Tax credit certificates (2)

Income tax

Value Added Tax

Tax on minimum presumed
income

Patriotic Bond (3)

Legal deposits

Other

Total

15

(1) In US Dollars, expiring in October 2003.

(2) See Note 15.2.
(3) See Note 15.1.

(4) Net of 84 million of the spun-off assets. See Note 4.

Trade péyables:

Vendors, contractors and
correspondents

Management fee

Billing on account and behalf of
cellular and audiotex
companies

Services collected in advance -
Emergia

Other

Total

Current
2001 2000

1 1

7 9
15 30
23 40
7 (4)

16 36
2001 2000
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
7 . 8 .
11 - 16 -

6 4 5 10
12 2 21 2
22 - 34 -

- 15 - -

2 - 2 1

1 - 6 6
- 3 - 5
- 30 - -

4 - 5 -
34 4 24 3
99 58 121 27 (4)

2001 2000
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
235 - 277 1
20 - 32 -
33 - 36 -
3 32 - -

19 - 15 -

310 32 360 (1) 1@

(1) Net of 286 million of the spun-off liabilities. See Note 4.
(2) Net of 100 million in line “Vendors, contractors and correspondents” corresponding to spun-off liabilities. See Note 4.
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e) Bank and other financial payables:

2001 2000
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
_ Credit balances with banks 32 - 32 -
Bank loans and long-term
financing 57 150 733 225
Import financing 26 15 143 39
Related company - TISA (2) 979 - - -
Negotiable obligations (1) 127 1,069 448 1,169
Total 1,221 1,234 1,356 (3) 1,433 (4)

See issuance conditions in Notes 8.2.2. and 8.3.1.

(M

2) Includes 883 million corresponding to Telefénica (see Note 10.2.4.), 53 million corresponding to the Company (see

Note 10.2.) and 37 million corresponding to Telinver.
Net of 572 million of the spun-off liabilities. See Note 4.
Net of 47 million of the spun-off liabilities. See Note 4.

()
(4)

f) Payroll and social security taxes payable:
2001 2000
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
Vacation and bonus accrual 38 - 35 -
Social security taxes payable 13 - 13 -
Pre-retirement agreements (1) 13 39 13 39
Other 2 - 2 -
Total 66 39 63 (2) 39
(1)  Pre-retirement agreements mature through 2009, and do not have adjustment clause. The amount includes 8 million
related to benefits granted to employees included in such agreements, which are to be allocated by them to social
security tax payments corresponding to the year between the date of the agreements and December 31, 2001 and are
to be paid by Telefénica until the worker qualifies to obtain legal pension benefits.
(2) Net of 10 million of the spun-off liabilities. See Note 4.
g) Taxes payable:
Current
2001 2000
income tax accrual (net of prepayments) 34 79
Turnover tax accrual (net of prepayment) 12 20
Heaith and safety assessment 16 14
Value added tax 26 22
Other 10 23
Total 98 158 (1)
(1) Net of 9 million of the spun-off liabilities. See Note 4.
h) Other payables:
2001 2000
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
Financial instrument 2 15 1 1"
international Telecommunications Union 21 - 16 -
Debt with TYSSA, TCP and Atento 10 - 8 -
Other 20 37 26 44
Total 53 52 51 55
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i) Cost of services provided:

2001 2000
Telecommunications services (Note 21.h) 334 347
Cost of services provided (Note 21.f) 16 29
Total 350 376
j) Aging of assets and liabilities:
Assets Liabilities
Investments Receivables Loans (b) Other payables {¢)
Past-due (a):
Up to three months - 246 - <]
From three to six months - 93 - 1
From six to nine months - 60 - 2
From nine to twelve months - 41 - -
From one to two years - 68 - 1
From two to three years - 47 - 2
Over three years - 36 - -
At sight: - 47 48 50
Current:
Up to three months 32 383 892 424
From three to six months - 35 159 24
From six to nine months - 18 110 10
From nine to twelve months - 6 12 7
From one to two years - 34 36 22
From two to three years - 24 733 20
From three to four years - - 31 16
From four to five years - - 17 13
Over five years - - 417 51
Subtotal 32 1,138 2,455 649
Allowance for doubtful accounts - (325) - -
Benefits under the Collective Labor
Agreements - ' - - 1
Total 32 813 2,455 650
Percentage accruing interest at fixed
rate 100 - 52 -(e)
Percentage accruing interest at
variable rate - 56 (d) 46 -
Average interest rate 3% 25% (d) 8% 8%

(a) Receivables balances include 53 million classified as non-current taking into account Telefénica’s management
estimates regarding probable collection terms (see Note 2.4.)

(b) Includes bank and other financial payables.

(c) Includes total liabilities except loans and reserves.

(d) Such percentage is related to the portion of receivables over which surcharges are applicable for being in arrears. The
indicated rate corresponds to bills collected with such surcharges.

(e) Percentage less than 1%.

4. CORPORATE REORGANIZATION
4.1. Tender offer for Telefénica shares

On January 12, 2000, TESA launched a tender offer for the stock of Telefénica whereby TESA offered to
exchange for its own stock any and all Telefénica Class B shares not already directly or indirectly held by
TESA. The Telefénica shares subject to the TESA tender offer represented 48.2% of Telefénica capital
stock at that moment. As a result of the above-mentioned exchange of shares, and the transactions
described in Note 10.2.1. -“Agreement signed by the Company’s Sharehoiders™-, 98% of Telefénica
voting rights are indirectly controlied by TESA.
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4.2, Telefénica reorganization

As a consequence of TESA’s plan to effect a global reorganization of its group operations by line of
business, on January 30, 2001 and March 30, 2001, the Company’s and Telefénica's Board of Directors
and Telefénica's Special Shareholders’ Meeting, respectively, resolved to reorganize some of its
businesses.

After the above-mentioned recrganization, Telefonica, and consequently the Company, no longer hold an
interest in TCP, Advance and TYSSA, whose businesses had previously been reorganized. According to
the Board of Directors and the Special Shareholders” Meetings of Telefénica and the above-mentioned
subsidiaries, Telefénica’s equity interests in the above-mentioned former subsidiaries were spun-off (and
therefore Telefonica’s capital stock was reduced) and those equity interests were merged into certain
companies indirectly controlled by TESA (those companies operating the related specific business lines
- Mobile and Data).

Furthermore, as approved by the Company and Telefonica's Board of Directors and Telefénica's Special
Shareholders’ Meeting, the minority shareholders that are not related to TESA exchanged their
Telefénica shares for shares of the companies into which the spun-off businesses were merged, in
proportion to their interest in Telefonica. As a result of the capital reduction caused by the spin off, the
shares exchanged by the minority shareholders were cancelled, and minority shareholders hold an equal
equity interest percentage in Telefénica and in the companies into which the spun-off businesses were
merged. Telefénica’s capital reduction amounted to approximately 395 million, from 2,141 million down
to 1,746 million by setting 394,789,234 class B shares, face value $1 per share. The effect of the
reorganization on Telefénica’s Shareholders’ equity as of October 31, 2000, which amounted to 625
million, was allocated to proportionately reduce the capital stock. The remaining amount was allocated to
reduce the balance of the “Irrevocable capital contributions for future subscriptions" and "Comprehensive
adjustment to irrevocable capital contributions for future subscriptions” accounts until the balances were
exhausted, and “Comprehensive capital stock adjustment” account. The effect on spun-off assets and
liabilities resulting from the operations of these businesses from November 1, 2000 to the effective
reorganization date, which amounts to a net assets decrease of 24 million, has been allocated to
Telefénica's amount of “Unappropriated retained eamings” as of the effective reorganization date. On
July 26, 2001 the CNV issued Resolutions 13,907, 13,908 and 13,909 whereby it approved the public
offering filing of Advance and Telefénica Moéviles Argentina S.A. (“TMA”, an Argentine company indirectly
controlled by TESA) and consented to the corporate reorganization described in this note. In addition, the
Bolsa de Comercio de Buenos Aires (“BCBA”) authorized, subject to certain conditions, Advance and
TMA to become listed. The authorization became final after the conditions imposed were lifted.
Registration with the Public Registry of Commerce of the above-mentioned reorganization, became
effective November 16, 2001 and the share exchange mentioned above was completed on December
12, 2001. Telefénica acquired, at their listing value, the fractions of Telefonica shares held by minority
shareholders. Total treasury shares amount to 2,355 and were acquired in the amount of $1.021 per
share. These shares must be sold within 1 year of acquisition.

As a consequence of the above-mentioned transactions, the Company did not receive shares of the
companies into which the spun-off businesses were merged. Consequently, as from the effective
reorganization date (February 1, 2001) the Company’s equity interest in Telefénica Class A and B shares
was increased from 51.0% to 62.5% and from 1.9% to 2.3%, respectively.

Telefénica reorganization transactions did not change the Company's financial position as of October 31,
2000, as the sharehoiding interest increase in Telefénica described above was compensated by
Telefénica's shareholders' equity reduction resulting from the reorganization transactions. The effect of
Telefénica’s spun-off assets and liabilities amounting to 2 million, which is the result of: a) the increase of
the Company’s ownership interest in Telefonica as from the effective reorganization date, b) the effect of
the spun-off assets and liabilities resulting from the operations of these businesses from November 1,
2000 to the effective rearganization date, and c) the differential of the Company's ownership interest in
Telefénica (from 51.0% to 62.5%) on the dividends approved by Telefénica on March 12, 2001, has been
allocated to Cointel's balance of “Unappropiated retained eamings” in Cointel's statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity for the year ended September 30, 2001.

Described below are the commitments approved by Telefonica, TCP, Telinver, TMA and Advance Board
of Directors and Special Shareholders’ Meetings on January 30, 2001 and March 30, 2001, respectively,
in connection with the reorganization transactions:
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a) Agreement between Telefonica, Telinver, TCP and Advance whereby:

- Telinver spun-off the assets and liabilities related to the sale of equipment and point of sales
network businesses and those assets and liabilities were merged into Telefonica.

- TCP spun-off certain assets and liabilities related to the data transmission business, including
the authorization to use Band “B" of the Table 1.2. of Frequencies included in Exhibit 1 of
Resolution No. 869/98 of the SC in the Buenos Aires Metropolitan Area, Rosario, Santa Fe,
Cordoba, Rio Cuarto, Catamarca, Resistencia, Parana, Concordia, Tucuman, Corrientes, La
Rioja, Jujuy, Salta, Posadas, Formosa, Santiago del Estero, Neuguén, Mendoza and Bahia
Blanca. The authorization had been granted to Aki under Resolution No. 18,766/99. Those
assets and liabilities were merged into Telefénica.

- Advance spun-off certain assets and liabilities related to the Internet Access business (including
all its customers other than corporate customers), point-to-point lines in the southern region,
80% of the Starnet network, 80% of the Sateliite Network (equivalent to 40% of all such
network) and 100% of the IP network (Internet Protocol Network). Those assets and liabilities
were merged into Telefénica.

According to the commitment, the above-mentioned spin-off-mergers were effective as from
January 1, 2001 (“Date of the First Reorganization”).

b} Agreement between Telefénica, Advance and TMA whereby Telefénica spun-off: (i) the assets and
liabilities retated to the data business, including Telefénica's international data business (comprised
of 100% of the identifiable assets necessary for the provision of intemational data services, 14.40%,
29.56%, 23.60%, 19.30%, 80%, 16.67%, 63.64% and 15.79% of the Unisur A Segment, Unisur B
Segment, Unisur C Segment, Americas |, Americas ||, Panamericano, Atlantis 1l and Columbus
cables, respectively, 10.94% of the rights of use of the Transbrasil cable and certain receivables and
liabilities related to such business), the portion of Telefénica's goodwill related to the Advance data
business and the ownership interests in Advance, and (ii) Telefénica’s consuiting business (related
to Telefénica's interest in TYSSA) that were merged into Advance. In this sense, Advance reduced
its capital stock and shareholders’ equity as a consequence of having received its own shares from
Telefénica. Additionally, Telefonica spun-off the mobile communications business related to
Telefonica's interest in TCP. That business was merged into TMA. The corporate reorganization
described in this paragraph is effective as from February 1, 2001 (“Date of the Second
Reorganization”).

The shares resulting from Advance and TMA capital increases related to the incorporation of
Telefénica's assets and liabilities spun-off mentioned in the preceding paragraph, have been
exchanged for Telefénica's shares held by Telefonica Datacorp. S.A. and Telefénica Méviles S.A.
{companies indirectly controlled by TESA), respectively and by Telefénica’'s minority shareholders.

¢) As from February 1, 2001 ("Date of the Third Reorganization"), Telinver spun-off and merged with
Telefdnica the assets of its e-commerce business, including its 50% interest in ECL. The preliminary
spin-off/merger agreement was approved by Telefénica's Board of Directors and Special
Shareholders’ Meeting on February 15, 2001 and March 30, 2001, respectively.

The companies agreed to use spin-off-merger-purpose balance sheets as of October 31, 2000 in the
case of the reorganizations described in a) and b) and December 31, 2000 in the case of the
reorganization described in c) above, for the purpose of obtaining the reorganization approvals by the
Board of Directors and Sharehoiders’ Meetings of the companies. Considering the effective Date of the
First Reorganization, the Second Reorganization and the Third Reorganization (the “Reorganization
Dates") established in the related spin-off-merger agreements, the shareholders’ equity computed for
purposes of these reorganizations included the changes arising out of the operations of the spun-off
businesses from November 1, 2000 (in the case of the reorganizations described in a) and b)), and from
January 1, 2001 (in the case of the reorganization described in c)) to the respective Reorganization
Dates.

Due to the tax effects of the reorganization and regarding its exemption from income and value-added
taxes, section 77 of the income tax law provides that Telefénica and its indirect controlling company
shall, among other things, keep for a period of two years as from the reorganization date:
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a) the activities developed by the reorganized companies (or similar activities), and

b) its shares listed on self-regulated stock-exchange markets (or, otherwise, Telefénica shareholders
shall maintain an interest in the capital stock of the successor companies of at least 80% of the
capital stock of the restructured companies as of the reorganization dates).

Telefonica and its indirect controlling company intend to fulfill the requirements mentioned in a) and b)
above. ‘

The following tables show the approximate effect of the spun-off businesses on the consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income and cash flows for
the three-month period ended December 31, 2000.

« Consolidated assets and liabilities related to businesses that were spun-off

December 31,
‘ 2000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 15
Investments 2
Trade receivables and other receivables 201
inventories 61
Total current assets 279
NONCURRENT ASSETS '
Other receivables 84
Investments 3
Fixed assets 904
Intangible assets 364
Total noncurrent assets 1,355
Total assets : 1,634
CURRENT LIABILITIES
PAYABLES
Trade 286
Bank and financial 572
Payroll and social security taxes 10
Taxes 9
Reserves and other 3.
Total current liabilities 880
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
PAYABLES
Trade : 100
Bank and financial 47
Total noncurrent liabilities ) 147
Total liabilities 1,027
"Total net assets of spun-off businesses 607
Minority interest in net assets of spun-off businesses (297)

Company's interest in net assets of spun-off businesses (51%) 310
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- Consolidated loss of Telefénica's spun-off businesses:

The results of operations related to Telefénica’s spun-off businesses for three-month period
ended December 31, 2000, are as follows:

2000
Net revenues 155
Cost of services provided (83)
Administrative expenses (25)
Selling expenses (63)
Operating loss ?1—6)
Financial loss on assets 3)
Financial loss on liabilities (16)
Net loss of spun-off businesses —(E)
Minority interest of spun-off businesses 17
Company’s interest in loss of spun-off businesses (TB_)

. Consolidated cash flows of the spun-off businesses.

The effect of the spun-off operations in the cash flows for the three-month period ended
December 31, 2000, is as follows:

2000
Cash used in operating activities (18)
Cash provided by investment activities 70
Cash used in financing activities 27)
Total net cash provided by spun-off businesses 25

PREFERRED SHARES

As detailed in the Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and in Note 6., the Company’s capital stock
is comprised of common and preferred shares. The main issuance clauses of the preferred shares related to
dividend payments, preferences among the various classes of preferred shares and the latter and common
shares and the redemption of preferred shares, as may be seen from the issuance minutes, are as follows:

a) Three different classes of preferred shares were issued, A, B and C. Each class accrues an annual
preferred dividend at the rates established in the issuance clauses. Class C shares were amortized in
two equal instaliments on April 30, 1996 and 1995.

b) The redemption value of preferred capital is established in US dollars.

¢) The first accrual period of preferred dividends started on November 8, 1990 and ended on December 31,
1991, and thereafter, to June 29, 1998 coincides with the Company’s fiscal year-end. The Special
Shareholders’ Meeting held on June 29, 1998, resolved to modify the Company’s year-end date. Such
Meeting also established that the periods for accruing preferred dividends will be computed as from
January 1 through December 31 each year, irrespective of the Company’s year-end date.

d) Preferred dividends are cumulative. The issuance clauses of preferred stock state that such shares
enjoy preference over common stock. Likewise, Class A preferred stock enjoys preference over Class B
preferred stock. Dividend preferences include a priority order for voting and approval as well as for
payment.

e) Preferred dividend payment dates are as follows:




)

k)

m)
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1, Prgferred dividends on Class A shares: the first date was April 30, 1994 and thereafter dividends are
paid on the 30th day of April in each year to and including 2003. See Note 22.2.

2. Preferred dividends on Class B shares: the first date was April 30, 1992 and thereafter dividends are
paid on the 30th day of April in each year to and including 2007. See Note 22.2.

On each payment date any dividend accrued during the immediately preceding accrual period shall be
paid.

Preferred capital amortization dates are as follows:

1. Class A shares of Preferred Stock: the first date was April 30, 1997 and thereafter, amortizations are
made on the 30th day of Aprit in each year until and including 2003, in installments equal to a
seventh of the preferred capital of this type of stock. The Regular and Special Sharehoiders'
Meeting held on March 31, 1997 voted an early redemption of Class A preferred shares for a total
US$38,460,047 (face value of 20,306,805). See Note 22.2.

2. Class B shares of Preferred Stock: beginning on April 30, 1998 and thereafter, amortizations shall be
made on the 30th day of April in each year until and including 2007, in installments equal to a tenth
of the preferred capital of this type of stock. The Regular and Special Shareholders’' Meeting held on
March 31, 1997 voted an early redemption of Class B preferred shares for a total US$37,848,336
(face value of 19,983,921). See Note 22.2.

Preferred dividend payment and preferred capital amortization shall be made in pesos.

For the preferred capital amortized and to the extent that there shall be any preferred dividends unpaid,
beneficial bonds shall be issued pursuant to Article 228 of Law No. 19,550, as amended. Bondholders
shall have the same preference as the holders of Preferred Stock. Amortization payments shail be made
from liquid realized profits or free reserves.

If, for any reason, preferred capital amortization cannot be made on the appropriate date, such payments
shall be made on the next succeeding amortization date.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, for whatever reason, the holders of Preferred Stock shall
collect first any preferred unamortized capital and then any preferred dividends accrued.

The Company, among other provisions detailed in the issuance conditions, has agreed:

1. Not to reduce its holding of shares of common stock of the controlled company to less than a
majority thereof, without the prior consent of the holders of Preferred Stock in a Special Meeting of
Preferred Shareholders.

2. To control decisions inside the Board of Directors and General Shareholders’ Meetings of th
controlled company. . :

3. To make no investment other than in shares of the controlled company and assets incidental to the
holdings of such shares by the Company and to incur no debt through debentures or Negotiable
obligations or debt securities of any kind or otherwise that shall cause all the debts of the Company
to exceed at any time the amount of US$50 million over and above the liabilities of the Company as
of the date of approval of the Issuance Conditions without the prior approval of the holders of
Preferred Stock as above.

As of the date of these financial statements, the Company has met all obligations arising from the
issuance conditions of preferred stock.

The holders of Preferred Stock shall have no right to receive stock dividends of any class whether from
capitalization of reserves, capital adjustments or otherwise.

The holders of Preferred Stock shall have no voting rights except (i) as provided in Articles 217 and 244
of Law No. 19,550 as amended, (i) if voluntary dissolution of the Company has been elected by the
Company or if its dissolution is decided by the appropriate corporate body or authority and, (iii) if there is
any preferred capital unredeemed and in default. in these cases the hoiders of Preferred Stock shall
have one vote per share. ‘
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The right to vote shall cease after the Company has complied with all its obligations, has ceased all acts
that may prejudice preferred shareholders, after the delay is corrected or after the noncompliance is
remedied or its effects are compensated.

The detail of capital determined in accordance with the issuance clauses prevailing and the preferred
dividends accumulated, unpaid but not yet due as of December 31, 2001 as established in the issuance
clauses, is as follows:

Capital stock (1)

Eleventh
Class of Face value in Amount preferred
Preferred million of in million dividend period
Stock Argentine pesos of US$ (in million of US$) (2)
‘A" 2 3 -
“B” 13 24 2
14 (3) 27

n N

(1) See Note 6.
(2) Itis related to the preferred dividends accrued during the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2001, as stated in the

issuance conditions. See Note 22.2.
(3) The table may not sum due to rounding in millions.

As of December 31, 2001 preferred stock adjusted for inflation as stated in Note 2.3. amounts to 26 million,
while preferred capital stock determined in accordance with the issuance clauses amounts to 27 million. The
Company believes that the increase of 1 million in the value of preferred stock represents a redistribution of
the total value of the Company’s capital stock between its common and preferred shareholders.

CAPITAL STOCK

Below is the Company’s capital status as of December 31, 2001:

Subscribed, paid in, issued
and registered with the
Public Registry of

" Commerce
Common shares, series “A” (Face value $0.10, one vote per share) 441,492,779.70
Common shares, series “B" (Face value $0.10, one vote per share) 89,147,519.90
Subtotal 530,640,299.60
Class “A" Preferred Shares (Redemption value US$3,280,000) 1,731,840.00
Class “B" Preferred Shares (Redemption vaiue US$24,180,000) 12,767,040.00
Subtotal 14,498,880.00
Total 545,139,179.60

The Special Shareholders’ Meetings held on April 30, 2001, April 28, 2000 and April 30, 1998 voted partial
redemptions of Class A and B preferred shares for a total, in each redemption, US$1,640,000 (face value
865,920) and US$4,030,000 (face value 2,127,840), respectively, as set forth in the issuance conditions of
such shares. These reductions were registered in the Public Registry of Commerce on June 12, 2001, July
21, 2000 and September 10, 1999, respectively. .
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7. LIST OF CONDITIONS AND THE TRANSFER CONTRACT - EXCLUSIVITY OF
THE LICENSE - OTHER RESTRICTIONS

a)

b)

The regulations governing ENTel’s privatization state that, upon the occurrence of certain defaults under
the List of Conditions for ENTel's privatization and after imposing other penaities such as warning and
fines, the license which the controlled company holds for providing the telecommunications service may
be revoked upon the fulfiliment of the proceedings set forth in the List of Conditions “List®. Upon such
revocation, the Company must transfer Telefénica's shares to the National Telecommunications
Commission (“CNT"), now the CNC, so that it may proceed to sell the shares by public offering.
However, this revocation will not be effected if the Company incurs in any of these situations under prior
authorization by the Regulatory Authority.

The principal obligations of the Company and Telefénica under the List of Conditions and the Transfer
Contract still in force are as follows:

1. Telefénica is to meet certain objectives related to the services provided. The most important of
these objectives are efficiency and services quality. In addition, suppliers of data and value added
services are to be given equal access to telephone lines. The assets contributed to Telefénica used
in providing telecommunications services may not be sold, assigned, transferred or encumbered in
any way. Additionally, Telefénica has to maintain all or a substantial part of the provision of the
telephone service and Telefénica’s main business and principal place of business in Argentina may
not be changed.

2. CEl Citicorp Holdings Sociedad Anénima (now Telefénica Holding de Argentina S.A. (“THA") and
Telefénica International Holding B.V. (*TIHBV"), as members of the Consortium which was awarded
the shares of the controlled company, may under no circumstances reduce their investment in the
Company to percentages below twenty and ten percent (20% and 10%), respectively, of the
common shares with voting rights, without the prior authorization from the Regulatory Authority.

3. The Company may not reduce its investment, as a whole, below fifty-one percent (51%) of
Telefonica’s total capital with voting rights, without prior authorization by the Regulatory Authority.

In the opinion of the Company’s management, the Company has met all of the above-mentioned
obligations. In addition, Decree No. 264/98 sets forth both optional and mandatory operating conditions
with respect to the provision of basic telephone services.

Although the effectiveness of Decree No. 264/98 (mentioned in Note 1.) was subject to the conclusion of
certain legal proceedings, the Argentine Government has implemented Decree No. 264/98, and
Telefénica believes that it is unlikely that the outcome of those proceedings would significantly siow the
trend toward increasing competition.

Decree No. 264/98 issued by the National Executive Power, established subject to the resuits of the
above-mentioned legal proceedings, a period of transition to competition in the telecommunications
industry, during which all of Telefénica's rights and obligations related to the exclusivity of the license not
otherwise modified, should remain in effect. Decree No. 264/98 established a timetable for the
liberalization, subject to issuance of related regulations, first iiberalizing the area of public telephones
followed by liberalization of the rural telephone market, the liberalization of the market for basic telephone
services with the addition of up to two new licenses (two new operators) to provide such services at the
end of the period of exclusivity and concluding with the total liberalization of local, domestic and
international long-distance services on November 8, 2000.

In this context, the SC issued Resolution No. 1,686/99, which provided that the transition period to
competition in telecommunications ended on October 10, 1999.

On March 31, 1999, Telefénica signed a license agreement with the SC for an unlimited period of time, to
provide local and domestic and international long-distance telephone services and telex services in the
Northern region of the country. Telefénica’s obligations under the license mainly related to service quality
and coverage of the areas to be serviced.
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Also, on June 9, 2000, the National Executive Power issued Decree No. 465/00, which provides for the
total deregulation of the telecommunications market as from November 9, 2000. On September 3, 2000,
the National Executive Power issued Decree No. 764/2000 which, in the context of such deregulation
approved the Rules for Licenses for Telecommunication Services, the Rules for interconnection, the
Rules for Universal Service and the Rules for the Management and Control of Radioelectric Spectrum.
These rules constitute the current regulatory framework applicable to Telefénica. The above-mentioned
rules provide, among other issues, the requirements to obtain the licenses to render telecommunications
service, the conditions to establish rates and the providers’ obligations, the technical and economic
aspects for interconnection to the networks of different providers, the programs, administration and
economic issues of the Universal Service, as well as the principles that will govern the management and
control of the radicelectric spectrum. On September 19, 2000, Telefénica filed a reconsideration petition
against certain issues of Decree No. 764/2000. The Court has not as yet ruled on this issue.

The principal strategic objective of Telefénica is to compete successfully and to maintain a leadership
position in the Argentine telecommunications industry. Telefénica has been preparing to do so; however,
there can be no assurance that the consequences of the introduction of competition will not materially
and adversely affect the business, the financial position or the results of operations of Telefénica. While
there can be no such assurance, in the opinion of Telefénica’s management, the implementation of
Telefénica's business strategies will continue to have a beneficial effect on the future competitiveness of
its telecommunications business, mitigating the negative effects of the increasing competition in the
Argentine market.

Furthermore, Telefénica has signed a Management Agreement with the operator TESA. Under this
Agreement, the full management of Telefénica is entrusted to the Operator. Such agreement was
extended through 2003 and may be extended again through 2008, at the operator's option.

Legal reserve: in accordance with Argentine legal requirements currently in force, 5% of the year's

income must be appropriated to legal reserve until reaching 20% of adjusted capital stock.

Dividends: as far as the restrictions related to the dividends of preferred and common shareholders are
concemed, see Note 5. Additionally, pursuant to Law No. 25,063, effective December 31, 1998,
dividends, either in cash or in kind, in excess of the accumulated taxable income at the end of the fiscal
year immediately preceding the date of payment or distribution, shall be subject to a 35% income tax
withholding as one-time and final payment. For purposes of such tax, accumulated taxable income is the
batance of accumulated retained eamings as of December 31, 1997 less dividends paid plus taxable
income determined as established by such law (which includes, among others, dividends collected) as
from January 1, 1998.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company has negative retained earnings of 56 million and a reserve for
future dividends of 381 million. Consequently, the dividend distribution is restricted in an amount of 56
million. See Note 22.2.

8. FINANCIAL DEBT

8.1.

Financing

As regards its financing policy, the Company has funded its working capital requirements, interest
payments and amortization of debt out of dividends from Telefénica. Also, if the Company had to
obtain funds from other sources for these or any other purposes, it could obtain external financing from
banks or institutional lenders, from capital markets, additional issuances of equity securities, and loans
from related companies granted under market conditions. Telefénica has followed a financing policy
that has combined the use of internally generated funds with the use of third-parties and majority
shareholder financing. As of December 31, 2001, consolidated current assets in foreign currency are
jower than consolidated current liabilities in foreign currency in the amount of US$1,206 million ($1,206
million as of December 31, 2001), amount that, because of the devaluation mentioned in Note 22.2.,
increases subsequently in $1,358 million, considering the last exchange market closing prior to the
issuance of these financial statements.
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The Company and Telefonica have prepared their financing projections and plans expecting to cover
future fund needs to continue Telefénica’s investment plan and face short and fong-term debt mainly
with funds generated by the operations plus bank loans and access to capital markets. Alternatively,
they would request for long-term refinancing of their payables.

However, owing to the macroeconomic situation described in Note 22.2., as of the date of issuance of
these financial statements, third parties’ credit lines are not available in amounts sufficient to enable
the Company and Telefénica to, together with internally generated funds, meet current debt
obligations. Furthermore, it is not possible to determine whether this situation will evolve favorably in
the short term.

Since early December 2001, Argentine authorities implemented a number of monetary and currency
exchange control measures that mainly included restrictions on the withdrawal of funds deposited with
banks and tight restrictions for making transfers abroad, with the exception of those related to foreign
trade and other authorized transactions.

Subsequently, the Central Bank of Argentina (“B.C.R.A.") provided that funds transferred abroad,
among other transfers, by the non-financial private sector on account of financial loans principal
service, profits and distributions of dividends, carried out within 90 days as from February 8, 2002,
shall require B.C.R.A. previous consent. This shall not be necessary when the obligation arises from
payables to multilateral organizations, banks that financed investment projects jointly with such
organizations, and governmental credit agencies or those guaranteed by such entities.

While the above restriction is in force, or should it be maintained for 90 days, the Company and
Telefonica are unable to ensure that the B.C.R.A. will authorize principal payments to foreign creditors
over the repayment term and under conditions established originally. Current debt maturities affected
by this situation amount to the equivalent US$1,090 million. In addition, the equivalent amount of
US$1,059 million and 175 million classified as noncurrent in the balance sheet, result from agreements
providing that the amounts owed would become immediately due and payable (after certain steps have
been followed) if other obligations are not met as could be the case of the current payables above.

If default is declared on the basis of the above-mentioned reason, amounts that were disclosed as
noncurrent in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2001 on the basis of the conditions originally
agreed with creditors, may become immediately due and payable.

On the other hand, TESA has advised the Company and Telefénica that, as of the date of issuance of
these financial statements, it was still evaluating the Argentine macroeconomic context and analyzing
financing aiternatives for such companies, including the possibility of refinancing or not over long-term
its current loans to such companies and, if necessary, providing additional financing.

Consequently, the Company’s and Telefénica's ability to settle their payables to locat and foreign
creditors depends upon the possibility of obtaining financing or, if not possible, of refinancing financial
payables, as well as, if necessary, the granting of additional financing by its direct or indirect
controlling companies.

Should no financing alternatives be available for the Company and Telefénica or should the Company
and Telefénica not succeed in obtaining refinancing, such companies would not have sufficient funds
available to meet their current liabilities (including those disclosed as current on the balance sheet as
of December 31, 2001 and those liabilities that would turn into current payables if creditors claimed a
default) payable to local and foreign creditors.

Although the Company and Telefonica will make their best effort to obtain such financing, as of the
date of issuance of these financial statements, it is impossible to ensure what the result of such
negotiations will be or if the restrictions for making transfers abroad will enable the Company and
Telefénica to settle their current liabilities in the normal course of business and maintain their normal
operations.
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8.2. The Company
8.2.1. Repurchase agreements involving Telefénica Class B shares

During the first quarter of 1998, the Company executed agreements with Merrill Lynch
International ("ML") and Nomura Bank International Pic. (“Nomura") whereby the former
delivered 40.2 million Telefonica Class B shares, with the obligation to repurchase such
shares on May 28, 2003 for US$123 million under the respective repurchase agreement.
These agreements accrued interest at a fixed rate of 8.125% and 7.825% on principal
amounts of US$82 million and US$41 million, respectively; such interest was to be paid
semiannually, on February 27 and August 27 of each year for the debt of US$82 million and
on March 11 and September 11 of each year for the debt of US$41 million, through May 28,
2003, when the transaction fell due.

Due to the above-mentioned transactions the Company booked since 1998 a loan secured by
Telefénica shares which was allocated in the balance of the “Noncurrent — Banks and other
financial payables” and classified 40.2 million Telefonica Class B shares freely disposable as
noncurrent, valuing them at their market value net of estimated selling expenses at the end of
each period.

On June 30, 2000, Nomura and ML subscribed an agreement pursuant to which Nomura has
transferred all its rights under the contract described in the first paragraph to ML.

On June 5, 2001, the Company and ML executed a termination agreement whereby Cointel
paid ML a total of US$132.6 million (out of which US$125.6 million was for principal and
interest and US$ 7 million was the early settlement charge). ML delivered to Cointel 40.2
million Telefénica shares and both parties agreed to terminate the repurchase agreements
executed in 1998. In view of the above and of the plans of the Company’s controlling
shareholder, TESA, the Company’s management has ceased to consider such shares as
freely available and decided that they will be used to maintain a controlling shareholding in
Telefénica. Accordingly, as from September 30, 2001, such shares are carried in noncurrent
assets together with Telefénica Class A shares and are valued by the equity method. As of
December 31, 2000, and as described in the second paragraph of this note, the Company
valued such shares at their listed price less estimated selling expenses; recognizing a loss
amounting to 20 million for the three-month period ended December 31, 2000, corresponding
to the difference in the listed prices of investments.

In addition, on March 6, 1998 the Company had granted ML a call option on 40.2 million
Telefénica Class B shares to be exercised on May 28, 2003, for an approximate value of 6.2
per share adjusted for the dividend distributions made by Telefénica through that date. On
June 30, 2000, the Company and ML amended certain conditions of this agreement, whereby
ML has the right to require from Cointel, on May 28, 2003, the delivery of capital stock of
TESA instead of Telefénica shares, modifying the strike price of the call option for such
TESA's shares, in proportion to the price offered for Telefonica shares in the TESA Tender
Offer described in Note 4.1. If, on May 28, 2003, the market price of TESA ADRs is higher
than 104.85 (the exercise price), ML may acquire from the Company 2.23 million TESA ADRs
at the exercise price. The call option market value as of December 31, 2001 amounts to
approximately 0.2 million. The difference between the market value as of December 31, 2001
and as of September 30, 2001 amounts to approximately 0.1 million and is aliocated to the
“Financial loss on liabilities, net” account in the Company's consolidated statement of income.

8.2.2. Negotiable obligations

The Regular and Special Shareholders” Meeting held on March 31, 1997, approved the
creation of a Global Program for the issuance of Negotiable obligations (the “Program’).

Such Negotiable obligations are nonconvertible into shares, for a maximum outstanding
amount during the term of the Program of US$800 million or its equivalent amount in other
currencies, unsecured, to be issued in different classes and/or successive series, which could
be accumulative or not; such bonds are to allow for early redemption in cash or in kind, in the
latter case with securities of other companies. In addition, the above-mentioned
Shareholders” Meeting delegated broad powers to the Board of Directors to determine the
timing, features and other terms and conditions of the issuance. -
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Under the Program, the Company’s Board of Directors decided the issuance of two series of
Negotiable obligations: “A” Series for US$225 million and “B” Series for 175 million; the
maturity date is August 1, 2004, for both series. On July 3, 1997 the CNV approved the
issuance. On July 24, 1897, the Company placed all of the issuance on the market. The net
proceeds of this transaction which totaled approximately US$395 million were used to
refinance bank debts maturing from January through September 1998.

The main terms and conditions of this issuance of Negotiable obligations are:

a) Face value: US$1 and $1 for the “A” and “B” Series, respectively, bearer and registered,
ordinary, nonconvertible into shares.

b) The total amortization of the Negotiable obligations is to take place in one single
installment payable at seven years for both series. Such amortization, as well as accrued
interest, is to be paid in US dollars in the case of the “A" Series, and in US dollars or
pesos in the case of the “B” Series (at the discretion of the obligee). The Company may
redeem such obligations for fiscal reasons, at 100% of their face value plus interest
accrued through the redemption date.

¢) The securities accrue an annual interest of 8.85% and 10.375% on “A” Series and “B”
Series, respectively, payable haif-yearly in arrears with due dates on February 1 and on
August 1 of each year and beginning on February 1, 1998.

d) This issuance does not constitute either a secured or a subordinated debt of the
Company, ranking pari-passu -with no preferences- in respect of the Company’s current
and future unsecured and unsubordinated debts.

The prospectus for this issuance gives a detailed description of its terms and conditions. The
main stipulations concemn: a) a commitment of the Company not to encumber or grant real
property rights, with certain exceptions, on its assets or present and future revenues unless
the Company complies with certain requirements, b) conditions for the early redemption of the
issuance, and c) causes of default that would allow obligees to consider such bonds as
immediately due and payable, such causes being, among others, nonpayment of the
Negotiable obligations, the sale of all or a significant proportion of the Company’s assets, the
loss of control over Telefénica’s corporate decisions and noncompliance with certain financial
ratios.

The meetings of the Holders of the Company’s Negotiable obligations were held on
December 28, 2000. Those meetings approved certain amendments to the terms and
conditions of issuance of those negotiable obligations which allowed TESA's reorganization
described in Note 4. The Company paid bondholders that approved the reorganization an
“authorization fee” equal to 0.75% of the amount of the principal for those bondhoiders who
voted in favor, in the aggregate amount of 2.2 million plus 1.3 million corresponding to fees
and other related expenses. Additionally, the Company obtained the approval for the
amendments to other debt agreements that permitted TESA's reorganization.

8.2.3. Other financial debt

On April 30, 1997 a debt instrument was issued in favor of a preferred shareholder who
accepted an early redemption of Class B preferred shares, for a face value of US$23 million
with an interest rate equal to the dividend of the preferred shares being redeemed and
amortization of the principal amount in ten equal and consecutive annual instaliments as from
April 30, 1998. The fourth installment of principal amount and interest under the above-
mentioned debt security, amounting to 4 million, was paid on April 30, 2001. Principal
amount plus interest accrued through December 31, 2001 amounts to US$14 million.

The issuance conditions of the above-mentioned instrument provide that, should the
Company become liabie for certain taxes on the interest or the amortization of the principal
amount, the Company will bear these additional taxes. Should the Company become liable
for any charges beyond those provided by the current legislation at the time of issuance, the
Company has the right to redeem all such instrument, and not on a piecemeal basis, by
paying the principal amount plus the accrued and unpaid interest.
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The above-mentioned debt instrument may be considered immediately due and payabie to
the preferred shareholder, at his discretion, if the Company: i) fails to duly pay any instaliment
of principal amount or interest, ii) fails to furnish the debt instrument holder with any
information material to his interests during the instrument's effective term, iii) fails to comply
with any other obligations and to address the situation within five days of having been served
notice of noncompliance, and iv) ceases to service its debt in situations such as bankruptcy
proceedings dissolution and/or reorganization.

8.3. Telefénica

8.3.1.Negotiable obligations

As of December 31, 2001, there are three Negotiable obligations issues outstanding:

Month and year Face value Term Maturity Rate per Use of
of issuance (in millions) in years month/year annum % proceeds
11/94 US$ 300 10 11/2004 11.875 (b)
05/98 US$ 400 (a) 10 05/2008 9.125 (b)
07/99 US$ 100 3 07/2002 9.875 {b)

(@) In August 1998, Telefénica bought and cancelled in advance US$31.5 miltion of the first class under the global
program. Accordingly, the amount of principal owed as of December 31, 2001, for such issuance is US$368.5

miltion.
(b) Financing of capital expenditures in Argentina.

The prospectuses related to the issuance of these Negotiable obligations describe the issuance
conditions in detail. The main stipulations concemn: a) commitment of Telefénica not to mortgage
or charge, except certain permitted charges, its present or future assets or revenues, unless
Telefdnica’s commitments under the Negotiable obligations meet certain requirements; b)
conditions for the early redemption of the issuance and ¢) events of default in which event the
bondholders could declare the lapse of all due dates, such causes being, among others, failure to
pay on the securities, default on other debts in amounts equal to or exceeding US$20 million,
attachments which in the aggregate exceed US$10 million, among others.

Telefénica has a global program in effect to issue Negotiable obligations for a total of up to
US$1,500 million, pesos or any currency or currencies, securities at par, and repayable in 31
days to 30 years. The covenants and commitments are the usual ones for this kind of
transaction. The issuances of Negotiable obligations of May 1998 and July 1999 have been
issued under that program. Telef6nica obtained an authorization to make public offering of
Negotiable obligations under such globai program from the CNV and from the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange.

The meetings of the hoiders of Telefénica Negotiable Obligations were held on December 27, 28
and 29, 2000. Those meetings approved certain amendments to the terms and conditions of
issuance of negotiable obligations to allow TESA reorganization described in Note 4. Telefénica
paid to bondholders that approved the reorganization (other than holders of Floating Rate Bonds
maturing in 2001) an “authorization fee” equal to 0.75% of the amount of the principal for those
bondholders who voted in favor, in the aggregate amount of 4 million.

8.3.2.Long-term financing

Telefénica has borrowed funds from major financial institutions in an amount of 139 million.
These funds have been borrowed under terms and conditions customary in this kind of
transactions, which generally refer to the commitment not to encumber or grant security interest
on its assets or on present or future revenues, other than certain permitted encumbrances or
unless certain predetermined conditioned are met.

Additionally, Telefénica uses other long-term bank credit lines to finance imports from different
commercial banks.
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8.3.3. Other financing — Related Parties

As of December 31, 2001, Telefénica owed a total amount of approximately US$883 million to
related parties, which matures until August 2002 (see Note 10.2.4.). These agreements
established the usual commitments for these kind of transactions, as well as clauses that
establish that the creditor may accelerate the terms of Telefdnica's payables (“events of
anticipated maturity”) if there are changes in Telefénica's equity, economic and financial situation
that due to their adverse nature may affect Telefénica’s capacity to comply with the obligations
assumed in the agreements or if there are restrictions that may limit the capacity of Telefénica to
repay its debts.

The creditor has advised Telefonica that for the twelve-month period as from February 25, 2002,
(beyond the due date of such debt): (i) the effects of the Public Emergency System implemented
in Argentina by Decree No. 1,570/01, Law No. 25,561, as supplemented and amended, in force
shall not be considered by the creditor as an event of anticipated maturity; and (i) the creditor
shall not consider that, as of such date, loans have become immediately due and payable in
accordance with the agreements.

As of the date of these financial statements, the Company and Telefénica have met all obligations arising
from the issuance of the above-mentioned debt instruments.

REGISTRABLE ASSETS OF TELEFONICA

On October 27, 1994, ENTel in liquidation issued Resolution No. 96/94 whereby it undertakes to perform all
acts necessary to accomplish the transfer of title of registrable assets for such time as may be necessary,
notifying Telefénica 60 days before the date that may be defined as the expiration of ENTel's commitment.
This resolution recognized that the licensee companies will be entitled to claim the indemnity stipulated in the
Transfer Contract for the real property whose title had not been conveyed to them by the time of the
expiration of the above mentioned period. As of December 31, 2001 these assets have a net book value of
about 302 million, of which approximately 271 million have been registered in Telefénica’'s name. In
Telefénica's opinion, the registration of title of a major portion of the most significant assets contributed by
ENTel will be successfully completed. Accordingly, the final outcome of this matter will not have a significant
impact on Telefénica’s results of operations and/or its financial position.

ACCOUNTS AND TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES AND RELATED
COMPANIES

10.1.  Affiliates (amounts expressed in million of Argentine pesos)
10.1.1. Telinver (See Note 4.)

On December 29, 2000 and June 28, 2001, Telefénica made irrevocable capital contributions
to Telinver in an amount of 17 million and 36 million, respectively, the first one through the
settlement of certain receivables outstanding with Telinver.

On June 26, 2001, the Special Shareholders’ Meeting of Telinver decided to use the Reserve
for future dividends distributing cash dividends of 32 million to Telefénica on June 29, 2001.

Telefénica is evaluating Telinver's financing needs considering the Argentine economic
situation and the current difficulties to have access to credit, including the possibility to grant
direct financing to cover short-term cash requirements and, if applicable, grant additional
financing. If the current difficuities to obtain refinancing or additional loans for Telinver
continue, Telefénica plans, and has so agreed with Telinver, to use its best efforts to provide
such financing directly, subject to Telefonica’s own fund availability, which depends on the
evolution of the issues affecting Telefonica’s financial situation and cash flows described in
Notes 8.1. and 12.
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10.1.2. ECL

As of December 31, 2001, Telefénica holds together with Alto Palermo S A. ("APSA") a 50%
interest in ECL for the development of an e-commerce shopping center. Thus, Telefénica, as
successor of the rights and obligations assumed by Telinver with respect to this business,
was bound to make, together with APSA, irrevocable contributions for the amount of US$10
million, which were effective in equal parts on April 30, 2001,

Additionally, the parties undertook to make a capital contribution for the development of new
business lines for a maximum of US$12 million, 75% of which is to be contributed by
Telefénica.

10.2. Parent companies and related companies
Parent Companies

Until December 15, 2000, THA provided all administrative services required by the Company,
billing approximately US$174,000 annually. Starting from this date, these services are
provided by Telefénica under similar conditions. During the three-month period ended
December 31, 2001, Telefonica has billed to the Company approximately 6,000 for
administrative services.

During the year ended September 30, 2001, TESA (as lender) and the Company (as
borrower) had executed four loan agreements. These loans accrued interest at three-month
LIBOR plus a differential, payable quarterly; the principal had a fixed repayment term as from
disbursement date, renewable automatically uniess TESA notifies in writing its intention not
to extend the contract at least three business days before expiration date. in addition, under
the terms of these loans, TISA guaranteed TESA that all obligations and liabilities under the
loans would be met, undertaking joint and several liability with the Company. in consideration
for the guarantee provided by TISA and while such guarantee remained in effect, Cointel
would pay TISA a fee per annum on the amount guaranteed, which was accrued for as of
December 31, 2001. On November 8 and 15, 2001, the Company made early partial
repayment, for a face value of US$92 million, of the principal of the loan that had been
granted by TESA for a total amount of 127.5 million, plus 0.9 million in interest and fees for
the guarantee.

On December 12, 2001, and as a result of an intemnal restructuring process of Telefdnica
Group's business in Argentina, the Company executed an assignment agreement with TESA
and TISA whereby TESA assigned TISA all the rights and obligations applicable under the
above-mentioned loan agreements; as of such date, the principal amounted to US$58.8
million as described below. In addition, it was agreed that the guarantee commission to be
paid by the Company to TISA under the original agreements would be added to the
differential interest originally established.

The detail of the loans, after the restructuring process described in the preceding paragraph, is as

follows: _
Principal
Agreement (in million of Differential Period
date USs$) interest (%) maturity

06-01 127.6 (a) 2.3(c) Annual
07-01 10.0 3.7 (d) (e) Semiannual
07-01 9.0 3.7(d)(e) Semiannual
09-01 4.2 (b) 3.7(d) Semiannual

(a) On November 8 and 15, 2001, the Company made early partial repayments, for a face value of
US$92 million. Consequently, as of December 31, 2001, the principal amounted to US$35.6
miltion.

(b) TESA delivered to the Company US$1 million, US$1.7 million and US$1.5 million on September
17, 26, and 28, 2001, respectively.

(c) The interest rate computable is LIBO plus 2.25%

(d) The interest rate computable is LIBO plus 3.7%. ’

(e) On January 29, 2002, the Company and TISA executed an amended to the loan agreements
whereby the differential was increased to 7% and interest may be capitalized.




32

As of December 31, 2001, the book value of the above-mentioned loans amounts to US$58.9
million of which US$58.8 million corresponds to the principal amount and approximately
US$0.1 mitlion to interests.

In obtaining the above-mentioned loans, the Company has undertaken certain commitments,
mainly involving restrictions on the sale of assets and on the encumbrance of certain assets,
on the Company or any of its affiliates becoming a party to mergers or acquisitions, with
certain exceptions. in addition, the loans shall forthwith become due and payable upon the
Company defaulting on any of the obligations undertaken under the loan agreement,
changes in the Company's controlling shareholders, the Company or its affiliates defaulting
on their obligations, changes in the Company's main business activity and should the
Company or any its affiliates lose the government licenses obtained and should the
Company'’s financial and economic position be altered in such a way that, based on the
adverse nature thereof, they could affect the Company’s ability to meet the terms and
conditions assumed on such agreement should there be any restrictions affecting its ability to
settle the payables to TISA. Through a letter dated February 25, 2002, TISA has advised the
Company that for the twelve-month period as from February 25, 2002, (beyond the due date
of such debts): (i) the effects of the Public Emergency System implemented in Argentina by
Decree No. 1,570/01, Law No. 25,561, as supplemented and amended, in force shall not be
considered as an event of default as defined under the loan agreement; (ii) TISA shall not
consider that, as of such date, loans have become immediately due and payable due to the
restrictions affecting the Company’s ability to settle the payables to TISA in connection with
the loan agreements and {iii) shall not consider that debts have become due and payabie for
the Company’s failure to meet certain financial ratios.

During the three-month period ended December 31, 2001, the Company accrued interest and
-fees with companies relating to Law N° 19,550 Art. 33 for an amount of US$1.4 miliion.

During the three-month period ended December 31, 2001, the Company collected cash
dividends for an amount of 97.2 million from its investment in Telefénica.

Balances with Cointel’s related Companies

Below is a list of mayor balances with Cointel’s related companies as of December 31, 2001
and 2000.

Description ' 2001 2000
Current:
- Investments
«  Foreign Currency deposits:

Citibank N.A., New York (1) - 10

—  Financial debt
e Loans - Principal:
Citibank N.A., New York (1) - 7
Citibank N.A., Buenos Aires (1) - 9

¢  Accrued loan interest:
Citibank N.A., New York (1) -

1
Total - 17
Noncurrent === ===
- Financial debt _
e Loans - Principal:
Citibank N.A., New York (1) . - 14

Total - 14

(1) As of December 31, 2001, Citibank N.A. is not Cointel's related company. See Note 10.2.1.
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During the three-month period ended December 31, 2000, the Company accrued interest
with related parties for an amount of 0.4 million.

Agreement signed by the Company's Shareholders

On Aprit 11, 2000 certain affiliates of Hicks, Muse, Tate & Furst, Incorporated (“Hicks Muse”),
including Republica Holdings, Ltd. and a Citibank N.A. affiliate (‘CE| affiliates”) and TESA
have entered into a Stock Exchange Agreement (the “Contract™), in relation with certain
future transactions whereby, after certain conditions were met, as of December 15, 2000,
CEl (now THA) criginal shareholders transferred to TESA, shares representing 80.9% of the
capital stock and 84.7% of the votes of THA, in exchange for TESA common shares issued.
On June 29, 2001, TESA notified THA that the former had transferred ali its shares in the
latter to its subsidiary TISA. Additionally, as of December 31, 2001, as a result of THA' s
capital stock reduction, TESA indirect equity interest in THA, increased from 80.9% to
99.99%.

TCP (See Note 4.)

in July 1999, Telefonica provided to the Argentine Government for the benefit of TCP
performance guarantees under the PCS licenses obligations in the amounts of US$22.5
million and (jointly with Telecom Argentina Stet France Telecom S.A. (*Telecom”)) US$45
million. As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, the CNC has not completed
the technical audit related to the performance guarantees mentioned above.

Advance (See Note 4.)

On August 20, 1999, the CNC charged Telefénica and Advance with noncompliance with
Decree No. 62/90 and Decree No. 266/98 for alleged infringement of the provisions on
subsidies granted by the Basic Telephane Service Licensees to their subsidiaries and
affiliates. On September 30, 1999, Telefénica provided the relevant defenses, and as of the
date of these financial statements, the issue is pending resolution by the CNC. In the opinion
of Telefénica's management and its legal advisors, there are reasonable legal grounds to
consider that the possibility of an adverse outcome is unlikely and remote.

Telefénica’s outstanding balances and transactions with related companies (amounts
expressed in million of Argentine pesos)

The common shareholders of the Company executed an agreement to regulate certain
corporate decisions of Telefénica such as the dividend policy and preferential rights held by
some of them (members of the consortium, as defined in the Transfer Agreement, and its
affiliates) to provide assets and services under terms equal or more favorable than those
offered by third parties. Telefénica made certain transactions with the Company’s :
sharehalders and companies related thereto, including the services rendered by the operator,
TESA, and those rendered by other third parties related to the Company’s shareholders.

The expense recognized in the consolidated financial statements under the management
agreement with the operator, the transactions with other shareholders related to the
furnishing of goods and services, and certain charges related to bank commissions, interest
and administrative services during the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and
2000 are as follows:

2001 2000
Management fee 20 32
Supply of goods and services 15 40

Transactions with Banco Repliblica relating to rental expenses and other ancillary services
amounted to 1 million during the three-month period ended December 31, 2000 and 1 million
for the period from October 1 through December 30, 2001 (date on which the Republica
Group divested of its interest in Telefénica Group). As of the date of these financial
statements Banco Republica is not longer a company related to Telefénica.

Telefénica’s balances with the operator and other of the Company’s shareholders and other
related companies as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 are (in million of Argentine pesos)




2001 2000 (1)
Bank deposits - 8
Prepaid rent - 15
Related companies receivables 30 63
Prepaid expenses 2. 6
Related companies payables (10) 6)
Trade payables ‘ 61) 37)
Top Program coverage cost-TESA (see Note 16.) (2) -
Bank and other financial payables - TISA (2) (883) -
Credit balances with banks - (30)

(1) Includes balances and transactions with TCP, Advance and TYSSA, which were subsidiaries through the
spin-off date (see Note 4.). Additionally, it includes receivables from and payables to companies related
to Citigroup and the Repubiica Group that sold their interest in Telefénica as of December 30, 2001.

(2) See Note 8.3.3.

On May 28, 2001, the National Executive Power issued Decree N° 677/01 which provides
that TESA (“the controlling shareholder”) may declare its will to acquire all of Telefénica’s
capital stock owned by third parties. Likewise, any minority shareholder of Telefénica may
demand that the controlling shareholder makes a purchase offer to all of Telefonica's minority
shareholders, in which case the controlling shareholder could make an acquisition statement
of Telefénica’s capital stock owned by third parties or make a tender offer of such
Telefénica’s shares. Such acquisition offers or statements may be carried out by providing
an exchange option for controlling shareholders’ listed shares. Should any of the above
transactions be conducted, once the acquisition has been completed and the established
procedure has been met, Telefénica would be automatically delisted from the share public
trading and listing system. However, Telefénica’s negotiable obligations would still remain in
such system.

11. COMMITMENTS

11.1.

IBM - Telefénica Contract

On March 27, 2000, Telefénica's Board of Directors approved, considering the benefits foreseen by
Telefénica based on the proposals received, the outsourcing through IBM of the operation and
maintenance of the infrastructure of certain Telefénica's information systems. Telefénica, TCP,
Telinver and Advance (referred to jointly herein as “the Companies”) have executed certain contracts
(the “Contracts”) with IBM whereby the operation and maintenance of the information technology
infrastructure is outsourced to IBM for a six and a half-year term. Also, under this agreement, the
Companies transferred gradually to 1BM the assets used to render the services outsourced under the
Contracts. In consideration for the assets transferred, IBM committed to pay US$37.5 million and
has the obligation to renew the assets transferred periodically. Telefénica transferred such assets
during August 2000. At contract expiration, IBM shall transfer to the Companies for a price of
US$22.5 million the assets at such date dedicated to providing the services. IBM has hired the
personnel of some of the Companies that had been assigned to rendering the services. Over the
duration of the Contracts the companies shall pay IBM decreasing monthly installments in
consideration for the base line services to be received under the Contracts and other charges for the
use of additional resources. The amount to be accrued on account of the base service reception through
the end of the agreement term (August 2007) totals US$165 million.

Y

Other

Telefénica signed contracts covering works to be executed in the outside and inside plant, of which
approximately 597 million are pending.
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12. TARIFF SYSTEM

121.

Tariff agreement

Decree N° 764/00 on telecommunications deregulation establishes that providers may freely set
rates and/or prices for the services rendered and for customer categories, which shall be applied on
a nondiscriminatory basis. However, if there were no effective competition, the “historical” providers
of such areas shall respect the maximum rates established in the General Rate Structure. Below the
values established in such rate structure, such providers may freely set their rates by areas, routes,
long-distance legs and/or customer groups.

To determine the existence of effective competition, the historical providers shall demonstrate that
another or other providers of the same service obtained 20% of the total revenues for such service in
the local area of the Basic Telephony Service involved. Effective competition shall be considered to
exist in the provision of national or intemational long-distance services for the calls originated in a
local area of the Basic Telephony Service, when the customers in such area are able to choose,
through the dialing selection method, among more than two service providers, if each of them, offers
more than one long-distance destination.

Except for areas and services where effective competition is demonstrated to exist, the rate
agreements established a maximum rate per pulse denominated in US dollars. These agreements
also provided for the right of Telefénica to adjust this rate for changes in the Consumer Price index
of the United States of America on April 1 and October 1 of each year.

However, Law of Public Emergency and Currency Exchange System Reform No. 25,561, dated
January 6, 2002, provides that, in the agreements executed by the Federal Administration under
public law regulations, including public works and services, indexation clauses based on foreign
countries price index or any other indexation mechanism are annulled. In this regard, it sets forth that
the prices and rates resulting from such provisions shall be established in pesos at a one peso (31) =
one U.S. dollar (US$ 1) exchange rate. Furthermore, Section No. 9 of the above-mentioned Law
authorizes the National Executive Power to renegotiate the above contracts taking into account the
following criteria in relation to public utility services: (a) the impact of the rates on the
competitiveness of the economy and on distribution of income; (b) service quality and investment
plans, when such aspects are contemplated in the contracts; (c) the interest of users and access to
the services; (d) the security of the comprised systems; (e) the profitability of the companies.

Under the rate regulation mechanism in effect known as price cap, Decree No. 264/98 provided a 4%
reduction (in constant dollar terms) in rates, in terms similar to the method provided by point 12.5.1.
of the List of Conditions, to be applied during each year of the transition period to basic telephone
service rates; and 90% of such reduction to be applied to domestic long distance services. Telintar
and now Telefénica as it successor was required to apply the same 4% reduction to international
rates.

On November 3, 1999, the SC issued Resolution No. 2,925/99, whereby, based on the assumption
of the nonexistence of effective competition as of such date, provided a 5.5% reduction in telephone
basic service rates for the period November 8, 1999, through November 2000. Such reduction was
applied to detailed billing, domestic and intemnationat long-distance services. Likewise, the starting
time of the domestic and international long-distance reduced rate was brought forward.

In April 2000 and March 2001, Telefonica, Telecom and the SC executed rate agreements which,
subject to the approval by the Economy Ministry and of Infrastructure and Housing, provided the
terms under which the price caps would be applied:

iy  Price Cap as of Novemnber 8, 2000: the SC established that the rate reduction for the period
November 2000/2001 would amount to 6.75%. The reduction would be applied through: a)
discount plans that were effective as from March 2000 (commercial and government basic
rates, local measured service, and the application of certain preferential rates for internet
access), the non-application of charges set forth in Resolution N° 2,926/99 until November 8,
2001 and the non-application over the year of the two semiannual adjustments to the pulse
value for the US Consumer Price index; b) given that such plans were brought into effect before
schedule, the accumulated effects of the above-mentioned rate reductions would be applied to
the computation of price caps for the periods beginning November 2000, 2001 and 2002
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adjusted at an interest rate of 12% per year; and c) furthermore, it was established that the
difference between the effect of the discounts already granted and that of a 6% reduction would
be applied on November 8, 2000 across different items of the tariff structure, and the additional
0.75% reduction would be applied as defined by the Licensees.

iiy  Price Cap as of November 8, 2001: the SC established that the efficiency factor for the price
cap applicable for the period November 2001/November 2002 would amount to 5.6%. This rate
reduction is to be implemented through: a} the non-application of the two adjustments to the
puise value for the US Consumer Price Index for the year, adjusting the effect at the 12%
annual rate in order to measure it against the total expected 5.6% reduction, b) any balance
resulting from the non-application of the adjustment to the value of the telephone pulse in the
period 2000/2001, as well as any balance remaining in respect of a variety of items included in
the 2000/2001 price cap; ¢) any unapplied price cap portion remaining after the rate reductions
mentioned in a) and b) above with respect to the 5.6% rate reduction, should be applied in the
following manner: 70% as provided by Telefénica, 15% to the local service, and 15% to other
services as required by the SC, other than monthly basic charges and the iocal measured
service.

iii) Price Cap as from November 8, 2002 through November 7, 2003: The SC established that the
efficiency factor could not exceed 5%, but it did not set its value.

Although the reductions mentioned in point i), and the early reductions referred to in point ii), are
being applied by Telefénica, the related agreements have not been yet approved by the Economy
Ministry and of Infrastructure and Housing. As of the issuance date of these financial statements, the
effect of the discount plans implemented has not been established as compared to rate reduction
percentages provided by such agreements, and the regulatory agency has not approved how to
apply the rate reduction mentioned in point i).

On the other hand, in relation to the complaint filed by Consumidores Libres Cooperativa Limitada de
Provision de Servicios Comunitarios (“Consumidores Libres”), mentioned in Note 13.d), on October
4, 2001, Court Room |V of the Federal Appeliate Court on Administrative Contentious Matters of the
City of Buenos Aires awarded a precautionary measure requested by the plaintiff ordering the
National Government, Telefénica and Telecom “to refrain from applying the corrections set forth in
Section 2 of the Agreements approved by Decree N° 2,585/91 until final judgment is rendered in the
case”, which means that the rates may not be adjusted by the US consumer price index.

In the opinion of Telefénica’s Management and its legal counsel, the outcome of these issues could
exclusively affect the maximum rates for future services that Telefénica is authorized to charge its
customers regarding services, areas, or customers in which the government did not declare the
existence of effective competition. As of December 31, 2001, these maximum rates are determined
by applying to rates effective as of November 7, 2000, the discounts applied in order to implement
the price caps related to November 8, 2000, and November 8, 2001, under the above-mentioned
agreements.

The rate reduction percentage and the services to which such reductions will eventually apply
depend on the final approval of the above-mentioned rate agreements, and on the outcome of the
legal proceedings commenced by Consumidores Libres regarding the effective rate system.

Based on current rate regulation mechanisms and considering Telefénica’s defense against the
above-mentioned legal proceedings, in the opinion of Telefonica's Management and its legal
counsel, the outcome of these issues will not have a negative impact upon Telefénica's financial
position or a significant adverse effect on its results of operations.

In connection with the agreements executed by the Federal Administration under public law
regulations, including public works and services, Law No. 25,561 provided for: (1) the annuiment of
dollar or other foreign currency adjustments and indexing provisions; (2) the establishment of an
exchange rate for dollar-denominated prices and rates ($1 = US$ 1); and (3) the autherization for the
National Executive Power to renegotiate the conditions of the above contracts taking into account the
following criteria: (a) the impact of the rates on the competitiveness of the economy and on
distribution of income; (b) service quality and investment plans, when such aspects are contemplated
in the contracts; (¢) the interest of users and access to the services; (d) the security of the comprised
systems; (e) the profitability of the companies.
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Decree N° 283/02, dated February 12, 2002, entrusted the Economy Ministry with the renegotiation
of such agreements, including agreements that govern the provision of basic telephony services. The
contractual renegotiation proposals must be submitted to the National Executive Power within 120
days after the effective date of this Decree.

In addition, Decree No. 764/2000 has reduced the interconnection price for the origin and destination
of the calls in the local areas to 1.1 cents/minute for districts with more than 5,000 inhabitants or a
telephone-set density above 15 telephones every 100 inhabitants and to 1.3 cents/minutes for the
rest of the districts and in the areas included in the original license of independent operators and to
0.30 cents/minutes for the transit within local areas. A 3% semi-annual price cap will apply during
the two first years after these rules and regulations become effective.

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, Telefénica's Management is unable to
foresee the final result of the negotiation under Law No. 25,561 or the rate scheme to be effective in
the future; it is possible that such rate scheme will not maintain its value in U.S. dollars or constant
pesos over time in accordance with any potential future increase in general price levels (“G.P.L.").
Although, according to Telefénica's legal counsel opinion, under general administrative law
principles applicable to the Transfer contract and List of conditions, future rates should be fixed at a
level which is sufficiently fair to cover service costs, if future rates evolve at a pace well below GPL, it
would have a material adverse effect on Telefénica's future financial position and results of
operations.

12,2,  Tariff restructuring

The tariff restructuring granted by Decree No. 92/97, effective on February 1, 1997, established an
increase in the price of the monthly basic charge and in domestic service rates, and a decrease in
the rates for domestic long distance and interational services and for Telefénica’s local and
domestic long distance public phone service for longer distances. The net impact of the rate
restructuring was to be neutral on revenues during two years after its effectiveness. On December 1,
1999 the SC has issued Resolution No. 4,269/99, which established the SC’s final determination of
the impact of the tariff restructuring as an excess in revenues of 18 million (which had previously
been provisionally determined by the SC in 14 million). Resolution No. 4,269/99 also states that the
SC will determine the form and time of implementation of the future rate reduction to compensate
such excess revenues. Telefonica has filed an appeal for revision of this resolution, on the grounds
that the calculation methad used by the SC to determine the impact of the tariff restructuring
established by Decree No. 92/97 has defects and should be challenged. As of the issuance date of
these financial statements such appeal has not been resolved.

In the opinion of Telefénica's Management and its legal counsel, the outcome of these issues could
exclusively affect the maximum rates for future services that Telefénica is authorized to charge its
customers regarding services, areas, or customers in which the government did not declare the
existence of effective competition. Therefore, in the opinion of Telefénica’s Management and its legal
counsel the outcome of these issues will not have a negative impact upon Telefénica’s financial
position or a significant adverse effect on its resuits of operations.

13. LAWSUITS AND CLAIMS
a) Labor lawsuits attributable to ENTel

The Transfer Contract provides that ENTel and not Telef6nica is liable for all amounts owing in
connection with claims based upon ENTel's contractual and statutory obligations to former ENTel
employees, whether or not such claims are made prior to the Transfer Date if the events giving rise to
such claims occurred prior to the Transfer Date. However, using a theory of successor enterprise liability
that they assert is based upon generally applicable Argentine labor law, certain former employees of
ENTel have brought claims against Telef6nica, arguing that neither the Transfer Contract nor any act of
the National Executive Power can be raised as a defense to Telefénica’s joint and several liability under
allegedly applicable labor laws.

in an attempt to clarify the issue of successor liability for labor claims, Decree No. 1,803/92 was issued
by the National Executive Power. It states that various articles of the Work Contract Law of Argentina
(the “Articles™), which are the basis for the foregoing claims of joint and several liability, would not be
applicable to privatizations completed or to be completed under the State Reform Law. Although the
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issuance of Decree No. 1,803/92 should have been seen as favorable to Telef6nica, it did not bring about
a final solution to the above claims. In effect, in deciding a case brought before it, the Supreme Court of
Justice upheld the provisions of the law and declared the Decree inapplicable.

In 217 cases where Telefénica was named as a co-defendant with ENTel under this theory of successor
enterprise liability, it was held that Telefonica is not jointly nor severally liable on the labor claims. Some
of these judgments have been appealed and no final decision has yet been handed down.

As of December 31, 2001, the claims filed against Telefonica and accrued interest and expenses with
respect thereto totaled approximately US$95 million. Telefénica has not booked an accrual for possible
adverse judgments in such legal actions since (a) in the Transfer Contract, ENTel has agreed to
indemnify Telefénica in respect of such claims and (b) the Argentine Government has agreed to be jointly
and severally liable with ENTel in respect of such indemnity obligations and has therefore authorized
Telefénica to debit an account of the Government at Banco Nacién Argentina for any amount payable by
Telefénica. Under the Debt Consolidation Law, ENTel and the Argentine Govemment may discharge
their above-described indemnity obligations by the issuance to Telefénica of 16-year bonds. As of
December 31, 2001 Telefénica has paid approximately 3.4 million in cash for the above-mentioned
claims. Telefénica recently initiated a claim for indemnification and reimbursement in connection with
this matter, and neither ENTel nor the Argentine Government have yet responded to such request, nor
has any court passed judgment on the related legal issues.

Regardless of the number of rulings that have already been held in Telefonica's favor, court decisions
have followed the precedent laid down by the Supreme Court of Justice in the area of joint liability in
labor matters mentioned in the second paragraph, criterion that Telefénica and its legal counsel consider
that will apply to pending cases. Notwithstanding this and the instruments that may be used by the
Argentine Government to reimburse the amounts that would be paid, given the obligation incurred by the
Argentine Government in the List of Conditions and in the Transfer Contract, on the one hand, and on the
basis of the opinion of Telefénica’s legal counse! regarding the possible amount for which existing claims may
be resolved, on the other, in the opinion of Telefénica and its legal counsel the final outcome of the issue
should not have a material impact on Telefénica’s results of operations or financial position.

Reimbursement of Value Added Taxes (*"VAT") paid by Telintar

On April 24, 1995, Telecomunicaciones Internacionales de Argentina (“Telintar”) filed an application with
the AFIP-DGI for the reimbursement of approximately 21.3 million arising from the modifications of
certain prior positions originally taken by Telintar with respect to the computation of VAT credits
applicable to certain transactions for the period January 1, 1993 through February 28, 1995. In addition
and as a consequence of the situation mentioned above, Telintar applied for the reimbursement of
approximately 5.9 million in income and asset taxes.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 1997, the AFIP-DGI accepted Telintar’s position on the first
claim and reimbursed 20.7 million of principal and 3.6 million of interest to the company. Since the AFiP-
DGl has still not given its opinion on the second claim, Telefonica as a successor in TLDA's business
has not recorded any amounts relating to the latter claim mentioned in the previous paragraph. In this
regard, should a decision be passed sustaining Telintar's case, the successor companies will then agree
on the criterion to be followed for distributing the resuiting proceeds between them.

Social security tax claim

The AFIP-DGI had advised Telefénica that it had assessed a 5 million debt as well as the respective fine
amounting to 10 million owing to Telefonica’s alleged liability regarding social security contributions to
the Single Social Security System (for the period from January 1998 to August 2000) on the amounts
paid to personnel hired under the internship system provided by Law No. 21,165 as amended and
Decrees No. 340/92 and 1,547/97, as amended since Federal Tax Authorities had believed that
Telefénica had failed to meet the terms described in the intemnship system. However, the AFIP-DGI was
finally accepted Teiefénica’s defenses to the assessment, on the understanding that Telefénica had
adequately applied the internship system established by the above mentioned law.

Other

Consumidores Libres initiated a legal action against Telefénica, Telecom, Telintar and the Federal
Government. The object of this action is to declare the nuility, unlawfulness and unconstitutionality of all
standards and rate agreements issued since the Transfer Contract, Consumidores Libres’s objective
being to have the rates of the basic telephone service reduced and the amount supposedly collected in
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excess refunded, limiting them in such a way that the Licensees’ rate of return should not exceed 16%
per annum on the assets as determined in point 12.3.2. of the List of Conditions approved by Decree No.
62/90. Also, other points of Telefénica's contracting policy have been called into question.

After analyzing the claim, Telefonica's legal counsel contested it, petitioning that it should be dismissed
on the grounds that it fails to state a claim with a basis in law. The court of original jurisdiction ruled in
Telefonica's favor, but this resolution was revoked by the Court of Appeals that resolved that the claim
must not be dismissed but must be substantiated at the court of original jurisdiction. None of these
courts have yet ruled on the substance of the claim. Through its legal counsel, Telefonica filed an appeal
to the Supreme Court of Justice against the Appeal Court's resolution, which was denied. Telefénica
subsequently filed an appeal of such denial with the Supreme Court of Justice and a decision regarding
such matter is pending.

In this scenario, on October 4, 2001, Court Room 1V of the Federal Appellate Court on Administrative
Contentious Matters of the City of Buenos Aires awarded a precautionary measure requested by the
plaintiff ordering the Federal Government, Telefénica and Telecom "to refrain from applying the
corrections set forth in Section 2 of the Agreements approved by Decree No. 2,585/91 until final
judgment is rendered in the case”, which means that the rates may not be adjusted by the US consumer
price index.

Telefonica appeated such decision before the Argentine Supreme Court of Justice rejecting the
arguments stated therein. No decision on the appeal has been rendered as of the date of these financial
statements.

in the opinion of Telefénica's management and its legal counsel, it is unlikely and remote that the
resolution of this issue could have a negative effect on the results of its operations or financial position.

14. RULES GOVERNING THE PROVISION OF BASIC TELEPHONE SERVICES
a) Provision of basic telephone services

As from March 1992, and in compliance with its specific functions, the CNT, now the CNC, started to
regulate on certain aspects related to the basic and international telephone services, such as procedures
to make claims, contracting regime, billing and service quality, some of which have been the object of
appeals by Telefénica.

The main resolutions that have been appealed and are pending final judgment, are as follows:

1) Resolution No. 189/95 of the CNT which ordered Telefénica, Startel S.A. (“Startel”) and Telecom to
avoid rendering certain services based on the use of joint facilities, unless they were part of
agreements that had been approved by the CNT and reported to any potentially interested
competing provider of those services and Resolution No. 1,197/95 disallowing the agreements made
by Telefénica and by Telecom with Startel related to the lease links owned by the licensees for the
purpose of rendering services handled by Startel. The resolution also states that the Licensees shall
transfer to Startel, for vaiuable consideration, the equipment and other assets that they placed at the
disposal of Startel for the rendering of such services.

As a consequence of the granting of an appeal that had been petitioned by Telefénica in a lawsuit
initiated by IMPSAT S.A. in relation with this matter, Resolution No. 100 of the Ministry of the
Economy and Public Works and Utilities (Ministerio de Economia, Obras y Servicios Publicos)
("M.E. y O.S.P.") (which had been issued subsequently to the above-mentioned resolutions, and had
repealed them) remains effective as of the date of these financial statements.

However, in the event the issue were not favorably resolved (i.e that Resolutions No. 100 of the M.E.
y O.S.P. were annulled), the evolution of the regulation after the issuance of the resolution provides
that the annuiment thereof should have no further practical implications since the obligation of
interconnecting to the networks held by the service providers, as well as the possibility that they
reciprocally lease the use of such networks has been clearly established by the regulation which to
date is fully effective (Decree No. 764/00).
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2) Under Resolutions No. 2,345/94 and 86/96 of the CNT, Telefonica paid 8 million in principal and 17.5
million in interest for not applying the reduction of the tumnover tax rate from 1991 to Buenos Aires
City users. Telefonica considered that the procedure followed by the CNT to calculate the above-
mentioned principal and interest could be challenged and filed administrative remedies against
Resolution No. 86/96, which were rejected by the Regulatory Authority.

Subsequently, through Resolution No. 4,583, the SC dismissed the Ancillary Appeai against
Resolution No. 86/96 that Telefonica had filed. Telefonica filed the respective motion for
reconsideration against Resolution SC No. 4,583, whose resolution is pending as of the date of
issuance of these financial statements.

Telefénica’s management believes that it is unlikely that these regulations (including as they may be
modified in response to Telefénica's objections) will have any material adverse effect on Telefénica's
results of operations or financial position.

In the context of the transition to competition in telecommunications, the SC has issued the following
resolutions:

- Decree No. 764/2000, which approved the Rules for granting of Licenses for Telecommunications
Services and Universal Service, the Rules for Interconnection and the Rules for Management and
Control of Radioelectric Spectrum, that constitute the current regulatory framework applicable to
Telefonica. See Note 7. ‘

- Decree No. 764/2000 repealed Resolutions No. 18,971/99 and 16,200/99 and approved the
Universal Service rules and regulations to promote the access to telecommunications services by
customers either located in high-cost access or maintenance areas, or with physical limitations or
special social needs. Such rules and reguiations effective from January 1, 2001, establish that the
deficit for the provision of these services will be financed through the payment by ail
telecommunications providers (including Telefénica) of 1% of total revenues for telecommunications
services net of taxes, the “Universal Service Fund”. As of the date of these financial statements, the
SC has not defined the mechanism through which Telefénica should recover the cost incurred for
rendering these services.

- The SC issued Resolution No. 18,927/99, establishing, once the transition to competitionin
telecommunications ended, the deregulation in the provision of goods, services and works required
by the licensees of Basic Telephone services.

Other services

Through Resolution No. 109/00, the SC declared the radio spectrum administration and management in
state of administrative emergency for a term of 120 calendar days, thus suspending: the assignment of
frequencies related to certain radio bands, such as the ones assigned to “data transmission and value
added services” and “high-density systems”; the acceptance and/or processing of applications requesting
new frequency assignments; and any procedure retated to license transferring and/or modifying the
license terms and conditions. Through Resolution No. 271/00, the SC subsequently extended the term
of emergency until July 24, 2000. Decree No. 764/00 dated September 3, 2000, approved new
regulations concemning the radio spectrum administration and management whereas the revision of
frequency assignments under Resolution No. 109/00 continues.

15. PATRIOTIC BOND AND TAX CREDIT CERTIFICATES

15.1.

Patriotic Bond

In May 2001, Telefénica executed a Patriotic Bond subscription commitment (bond issued by the
Argentine Government) for a total amount of US$ 30 million, which was completely paid in that
month. This bond is denominated in US dollars, is made out to bearer, and is negotiable in local and
foreign stock markets. It will be amartized in 5 equal and successive quarterly instaliments payable
from May 11, 2003 through May 11, 2004. it accrues interest equivalent to the average obtained from
the 30 days immediately preceding each monthly interest period (including the first day of each
period) of the B.C.R.A. survey for fixed-term deposits in private banks with a term from 30 to 35 days
and higher than US$ 1 million, plus an annual 4.95%, payable on a monthly basis past the due date.
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!ssuance clauses allow using this security to pay federal taxes in the event that amortization and /or
interest are not paid by the related due dates. See Note 22.2.

Since in January 11, 2002 and February 11, 2002, the Argentine Government did not service the
interest coupon related to such bond, Telefénica estimates that payment of such interest will offset
against federal taxes at nominal value, as established by the issuance conditions. Therefore, the
balance has been classified as Other receivables, assimilating their disclosure to TCC (issued by the
Argentine Federal Goverment).

15.2. Tax Credit Certificates

During August 2001, Telefonica signed an agreement for TCC for a total amount of US$15 million,
which was fully paid. Such bearer certificates are in US doliars, accrue interest at a maximum annual
nominal rate of 9% on the original nominal value balances and may be compensated at their notional
value against VAT or income tax or any other substituting or replacing tax, both for payment of tax
returns and for prepayments. Such tax obligations may be honored by compensating 25% of the total
of such certificates upon each expiration date as from January 1, 2003, July 1, 2003, January 1,
2004 and July 1, 2004. After expiration of one year and three months after each of the dates
mentioned above and until December 31, 2006, any unused tax credit certificate will be freely
transferable, whether fully or partially. The Federal Government may redeem, fully or partially, any
unused amount of the certificate after June 30, 2005, at their notional value as of the prepayment
date. Otherwise, any unused balance of the tax credit certificates as of December 31, 20086, will be
prepaid by the Federal Government at their technical value as of that date. See Note 22.2.

EXECUTIVE INCENTIVE PROGRAM AND STOCK PURCHASE AND STOCK
OPTION PROGRAM

As from August 9, 2000, an incentive program (the "TOP" Program) was created for executives, that consists
in granting TESA (one of the shareholders of Telefonica) stock options to 17 Telefonica top executives who
are bound to hold them for the Program term. During May 2001, each executive signed the incentive
program agreement and bought a preestablished number of TESA shares at market price to assign them to
the Program. The executives were granted a number of TESA stock options at a given strike price, currently
equivalent to 14.5052 euro per share, equal to ten times the number of shares purchased and assigned to the
Program, plus a number of TESA stock options at another given strike price, currently equivalent to 21.7554
euro per share, equal to ten times the number of shares purchased and assigned to the Program. The
program term is three years with three dates to exercise the options. The shares under the Program total
26,613 involving a total amount of 532,260 options.

The total coverage cost of the program for Telefénica, which was signed with TESA, is 4.49667 euro per
option, i.e. 2.4 million euro, which has been booked, based on its linear accrual within the term of the
program, in “Salaries and social security taxes and other expenses” in Note 21.h).

Additionally, TESA approved a program whereby all Telefénica employees who chose to join acquired a
number of TESA shares, which number was based on their annual compensation, for the equivalent of 5 euro
per share. In addition, TESA granted the participants 26 stock options for every TESA share purchased,
which can be exercised if the share price exceeds 20.09 euro (originally 24.5 euro and then modified to 20.09
euro) at a strike price of § euro per option. The program will be effective for four years and participating
employees may exercise the options granted on three different occasions during such four-year term.

The benefits under this program are contingent on the participants continued employment with the Telefénica
group, i.e. they may not unilaterally and voluntarily terminate their employment with the group before the
exercise date without losing the benefits under the program. Since the above benefits are granted by TESA
directly, this program does not involve any expenses to Telefonica.

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

Pursuant to the requirements of the SEC, the Company has presented statements of cash flows in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("US GAAP"). The
following additional disclosures are presented with respect to the statements of cash flows in accordance with
these requirements.
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In the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of (amounts
expressed in million of Argentine pesos):

2001 2000 (1)
Cash 38 37
Investments which are cash equivalents 32 54
Cash and cash equivalents 70 .;1.

(1) Cash and cash equivalents at end of period include 17 million allocated in the line “Net assets of spun-off businesses” in the
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2000.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY AND US GAAP

a)

b)

Accounting principles followed by the Company

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Argentine GAAP
applicable to consolidated financial statements, which may differ from generaily accepted accounting
principles of the countries of the users of the financial statements.

Differences between Argentine GAAP and US GAAP and their effect on net income and on shareholders'
equity are set forth in b) and c) below.

Description of differences between Argentine and US GAAP

Differences between Argentine and US GAAP mainly relate to the following items:

1.

Restatement of financial statements for general price-level changes

Argentine GAAP requires the restatement of assets and liabilities into constant Argentine Pesos if
the inflation rate for the year exceeds 8%. All nonmonetary assets and liabilities and statement of
income amounts have been restated to reflect changes in the Argentine wholesale price index, from
the date the assets were acquired or from the date the liabilities were incurred, to August 31, 1995
(see Note 2.3.).

In most circumstances US GAAP does not allow for the restatement of financial statements for
general price level changes. Under US GAAP account balahces and transactions are stated in the
units of currency of the period when the transactions originated. This accounting model is commonly
known as the historical cost basis of accounting. Because the economy of Argentina has
experienced periods of significant inflation, the use of financial statements restated for general price
level changes is consistent with the requirements of US GAAP as described in Statement of
Accounting Principles Board Number 3, Financial Statements Restated for General Price Level
Changes. The US GAAP reconciliation does not, therefore, exclude the effect of the general price
level restatement.

Capitalized interest

Under Argentine GAAP, when computing the amount of interest eligible for capitalization, the
Company has assumed that, except for loans specifically identifiable with the construction of fixed
assets, both liabilities and shareholders' equity financed the construction of the assets.
Consequently, interest expenses have been capitalized on the portion of the construction in process
that was assumed to be financed by interest bearing liabilities.

When applying the provisions of US GAAP with respect to the capitalization of interests it is
assumed that the fixed assets constructed are financed in the first place by the Company's interest
bearing liabilities.
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Inventories

Under Argentine GAAP inventories shall be stated at the lower of either replacement/reproduction
cost or market. Under U.S. GAAP inventory shall be stated at the lower of cost or market.

Income tax

Under Argentine GAAP income tax expense is generally recognized based upon the estimated
current income tax liability to the Federal Treasury. Interperiod tax allocation that would recognize
deferred tax liabilities and assets for future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in
a company's financial statements or tax returns is not a common practice among Argentine
Corporations. Under US GAAP corporations should provide for deferred taxes under the liability
method.

Intangible assets and deferred charges

Under Argentine GAAP organization, advertising and/or preoperating expenses may be deferred and
charged to income against future revenues. Under US GAAP these costs must be expensed as
incurred.

In 2000, under U.S. GAAP, the balance of acquired intangible assets is adjusted to reflect the
increase in their cost that resuits from the recognition, following the liability method described in point
4. (“Income Tax") above, of the deferred tax liability arising from the difference between their tax and
book basis.

Costs associated with the issuance of debt

Under Argentine GAAP, the costs associated with the issuance of Negotiable obligations may be
charged to income at time of the issuance or deferred and amortized over the life of the debt. Under
US GAAP, the costs associated with the issuance of debt securities are to be deferred and
amortized over the period the related debt is outstanding. The deferred costs are to be amortized by
the effective interest method or by the straight-line method if not materially different from the effective
interest method.

Goodwili on investment in controlled companies

Under Argentine GAAP the goodwill on investment in controlled companies was calculated
considering the investments’ valuation by the equity method based on their shareholders’ equity
under Argentine GAAP as of each purchase date. Under US GAAP goodwill was recaiculated
considering shareholders' equity under US GAAP.

Investment in Telefnica

Under Argentine GAAP, as of December 31, 2001, the investment in Telefénica was valued by the
equity method (for the Telefonica Class A and B shares classified as long-term investment in such
company). As of December 31, 2000, the investment in Telefonica was valued by the equity method
(for the Telefénica Class A shares classified as long-term investment in such company), and at their
market value net of estimated selling expenses (for Telefonica Class B shares, which were held for
trading purposes). See Note 8.2.1.

Under US GAAP, the total investment in Telefénica as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 was valued
by the equity method. For the purpose of preparing the financial statements, the Company
consolidated its financiai statements with Telefénica’s. Therefore, as of December 31, 2000, the
investment in Telefénica’s shares recorded at the market value net of estimated selling expenses
was eliminated in the consolidation process. The US GAAP reconciliation recognizes the effect of
adjusting the valuation to the amount required under US GAAP.

Preferred stock

Under US GAAP, mandatorily redeemable preferred stock should be classified outside the
shareholders’ equity. Under Argentine GAAP, preferred shares are classified as capital stock.
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12.

13.

14.

Regulation

Telefonica provides telephone services in Argentina and therefore is subject to the regulatory control
of the CNC. Rates for services are tariff regulated. Although changes in rates for services are
authorized and computed based on a rate agreement (see Note 12.1.), there is no fixed rate of
return. Accordingly, the requirements of US GAAP related to a business whose rates are regulated
on the basis of its actual costs are not applicable to these consolidated financial statements.

Comprehensive Income

The Company has not reported separately comprehensive income because there are no material
differences between its net income and comprehensive income as defined by SFAS 130. The
cumulative effect as of the beginning of the year ended September 30, 2001, year of the initial
application of SFAS 133, did not have any material effect as of that date (see Note 13 below).

Revenue Recognition

The SEC has released Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB") 101 “Revenue recognition in Financial
Statements”. Compliance with this new standard imply, for purposes of the reconciliation of Net
income and Shareholders’ equity to US GAAP, that: i) installation revenues are not included in
income of the period when the installation takes place but deferred and amortized during a period
representing the possible duration of the refationship with the customer, and ii) related costs are not
charged to income but capitalized and depreciated in a similar period.

Adoption of SAB 101 from October 1, 2000 caused that the cumulative effect of unamortized
deferred revenues, net of capitalized costs after accumulated depreciation and deferred income tax
effects, be deducted from Net income for the year ended September 30, 2001, which has been the year
of adoption.

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and hedging Activities

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”. The statement establishes accounting and reporting
standards requiring that every derivative instrument be recorded in the balance sheet as either an
asset or liability measured at its fair vaiue. SFAS 133 requires that changes in the derivative's fair
vaiue be recognized currently in eamings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. Special
accounting for qualifying hedges allows a derivative’s gains and losses to offset related results on
the hedged item in the income statement, and requires that a company must formally document,
designate, and assess the effectiveness of transactions that receive hedge accounting. The
Company adopted SFAS 133 as of October 1, 2000. The cumulative effect of the related change in
accounting principle as of October 1, 2000, was not material.

Accounting for stock option plan

As mentioned in Note 16, TESA implemented a compensation plan based on TESA'’s stock for the
benefit of all Telefonica's employees.

Under the plan, the employees have purchased TESA's stock at 5 euro each and, for every share
acquired, have been granted 26 options on TESA's stock. This plan does not involve any economic
cost to Telefénica and therefore Telefénica has not made any charge to income under Argentine
GAAP for this plan. However, for US GAAP purposes:

a) the difference between the market value and the shares purchase price at 5 euro each involves
a charge to Telefénica’s income for the current year, and

b) the cost represented by the options granted by the principal shareholder will be accrued in the
period of service covered by the plan (4 years as from February 2001). In accordance with US
accounting standards applied by TESA, such cost is accounted for at its intrinsic value, as
defined in APB 25, and applied to the number of options currently expected by the principal
shareholder to be the most likely to reach plan completion. Any adjustment to income resulting
under US GAAP would have no impact on total shareholders’ equity because the charges
involved wouid be treated as additional paid in capital.
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The application of provisions of APB 25 mentioned in b) above did not result in any US GAAP
adjustment to net income for the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.

15. New accounting pronouncements

On July 20, 2001, SFAS No. 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" was made available to the
public. The new standard must be adopted by the Company on October 1, 2002. With the adoption
of SFAS No. 142, goodwill associated with equity-method investments is no longer subject to
amortization. Therefore, after adopting SFAS No. 142 on October 1, 2002, the Company will stop
recording goodwill amortization, which for the three-month period ended December 31, 2001
amounted to approximately 2 million. In addition, SFAS No.142 changes the manner of determining
whether an impairment of goodwill has occurred. The effect of this change, which is effective
October 1, 2002, has not yet been determined, although the Company estimates that there will be no
material impairment write-off. See Note 2.6.e)

16. Devaluation effect

Under Argentine GAAP the effects of the devaluation of Argentine peso described in Note 22.2. on
the valuation in Argentine pesos of the assets and liabilities should be recognized in the period
ending as of March 31, 2002 (see Notes 2.6. and 22.2.).

Under US GAAP, the exchange rate effective as of the date of reopening of the exchange market
(January 11, 2002 (see Note 22.2.)) should be used for the valuation in Argentine pesos of foreign
currency assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2001. The effect on such assets and liabilities of
further devaluation between that date and the date of issuance of these consclidated financial
statements is presented in Note 22.2.

¢) The following is a summary of the approximate adjustments to net income and shareholders’ equity that
would have been required had US GAAP been applied instead of Argentine GAAP in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements (amounts expressed in million of Argentine pesos):

2001 2000
Net loss according to the consolidated financial statements,
Argentine GAAP (37) (28)
Approximate US GAAP adjustments
Increase (decrease) due to:
Investment in Telefénica - 20
Deducted capitalized interest (a) ) )
Deferred income tax (d) (46) 63
Cost associated with issuance of debt )] (1)
Deferred revenues ' 5 (102)
Devaluation effect (1,632) -
Other (b) 1 ()
Effect on minority interest (f) 483 24

Approximate net loss in accordance with US GAAP (1,228) (30)
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2001 2000
Shareholders' equity according to the consolidated financial
statements, Argentine GAAP 1,414 1,451
Increase (decrease) due to:
Intangible assets and deferred charges (c) W) 169
Goodwill on investment in Telefénica (7 7
Investment in Telefonica - (62)
Preferred stock 27) (33)
Capitalized interest (a) 7 10
Deferred income tax (c) (d) (e) - (142)
Cost associated with issuance of debt 5 7
Deferred revenues 61) (102)
Devaluation effect (1,632) -
Other (h) (9) 7
Effect on minarity interest (f) 514 50
Approximate shareholders' equity in accordance with US GAAP 203 1,334

(a) During the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, there were no additional gross interest
capitalized for US GAAP purposes.

(b) Includes basically the adjustments for derivative instruments and the effect of other minor adjustments.

(c) As of December 31, 2000, intangibles assets adjustment includes 180 million of increase in the cost of such assets
that results from the recognition, following the liability method described in 18.b} 4., of the deferred tax liability arising
from the difference between the tax and book basis of intangible assets.

(d) in 2000, inciudes the tax effect of the cumulative change in accounting principle, described under 18.b) 12.

(e) The baiance as of December 31, 2000 is net of a valuation allowance related to TCP and Advance amounting to 27
million and 19 million, respectively.

(f). Represents the net effect of the US GAAP adjustments on minority interest in the income and net equity of the
Company's consolidated subsidiaries. includes the US GAAP adjustment on minority interest related to devaluation
effect amounting to 492 million. See Note 22.2.

December 31,
2001 2000
Loss per share per consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Argentine GAAP (1) (0.007) (0.005)
Approximate net (loss) income in accordance with US
GAAP before cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principles (see description under 18.b) 12.) (1,228) 8
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles (less
applicable income tax effect) - (38)
Approximate net loss in accordance with US GAAP (1,228) (30)
Eamings attributable to preferred shareholders - @ (@)]
Loss attributable to common shareholders (1,228) (31)
Approximate loss per share under US GAAP(1):
(Loss) Income before cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principles (see description under 18.b)12.) (0.231) 0.001
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net
of tax effect - (0.007)
Net ioss per share per consolidated financial statements
under US GAAP ' (0.231) (0.006)

Number of shares subscribed, paid in and outstanding

Common : 5,306,402,996 5,306,402,996
(1) Amounts expressed in Argentine pesos.
(2) Less than 0.5 million.
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19. AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS

20.

21,

Taking into account the provisions of the new Public Offering Transparency Rules and Regulations, instated
by Decree No. 677/2001, which provides that the administration bodies may function, when allowed by
bylaws, with the members present or instead mutually in communication by media simultaneously
broadcasting sound, images or words, the Special Shareholders’ Meeting held on September 18, 2001,
decided to change Articles 15, 20 and 21 of the Corporate Bylaws to effect the addition of such system of
distance meetings for board meetings, and regular and special shareholders’ meetings, with the express
provision that quorum is to be computed considering members physically present as well as those
communicated by media broadcasting sound, images or words. in addition, such Sharehoiders” Meeting
amended Article 19 so that the first and second calls to regular and special shareholders’ meetings may be
simultaneous. On October 29, 2001, this amendment was registered with the Public Registry of Commerce.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

On the basis of Executive Power Decree No. 15670/01 and the Public Emergency and Exchange System
Reform Law (Law No. 25,561) described in Note 22.2., to the date of issuance of these financial statements
there are certain restrictions on the availability of deposits within the banking system, mainly related to cash
withdrawals. As of December 31, 2001, the Company’s funds subject to such restrictions are:

Cash and Banks 32
Current investments 25

In the opinion of the Company’s Management, this restriction will not have a significant effect on the
Company's operations.
OTHER FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION

The following tables present additional consolidated financial statement disclosures required under Argentine
GAAP:

a) Investments in shares, bonds issued in series and holdings in other companies
b) Otherinvestments

c) Fixed assets

d) Intangible assets and deferred charges

e) Allowances and reserves

f) Cost of services provided

g) Assets and liabilities in foreign currency

h) Expenses incurred
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a) INVESTMENTS IN SHARES, BONDS ISSUED IN SERIES AND HOLDINGS IN OTHER COMPANIES (stated in million
of Argentine pesos, except otherwise indicated - see Note 2.3.)

December
December 31, 2001 31, 2000 (7)
Inflation  Value by
Denomination and features adjusted equity Book Book
of securities Class Facevalue (1) Amount(2) cost(3) method(4) value value
Current (10)
Government securities
Bocon Pro 6 US$ 1.00 285,376 - - - -
Total current - - -
Noncurrent (5)

‘Listed shares of Telefonica (6) Common $ 1.00 40,200,000 - - - 126
Other investments - - - - - - 5 5
Subsidiaries and affiliates

ECL (9) Common $ 1.00 12,000 15 (8) 2 2 2
Other

TBSCP - - - - - - 1 1

Total noncurrent 8 134

TOTAL 8 134

(1) In Argentine Pesos.

(2) Total shares.

(3) Restated in constant Argentine Pesos as stated in Note 2.3.

(4) Net of intercompany gains (losses).

(5) See Note 2.6.¢).

(6) See Note 8.2.1.

(7) Net of 3 million of spun-off assets (See Note 4.).

(8) Includes irrevocable capital contributions for future subscriptions in an amount of 5 million.

(9) Financial statements for the six-month period ended December 31, 2001 approved by the ECL’s Board of Directors on
February 8, 2002 with auditor’s report by Abelovich, Polano & Asociados dated February 8, 2002, unqualified.

(10) See Note 2.6.a).
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b) OTHER INVESTMENTS (stated in million of Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

December 31, December 31,
2001 2000
Main account and features Book value Book value
Current investments
Foreign currency deposits (Note 21.g) 10 24
Local currency deposits 22 8
Mutual funds - 20

Total 32 52
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€) FIXED ASSETS (stated in million of Argentine pesos ~ see Note 2.3)

December 31, 2001
Original value

Amount Net Amount
at beginning retirement and at the end
Main account of year (3) Increase transfers of period
Land 54 - - 54
Buildings 788 - - 788
Switching equipment 1,839 - 11 1,850
Transmission equipment 1,547 11 1,658
Network installation 3,313 - 18 3,331
Telephones, switchboards and booths 284 8 6) 284
Furniture and office equipment 398 6 21 425
Automobiles 27 - (6) 21
Construction in process 327 77 (60) 344
Materials (1) 60 6 (12) 54
Prepayment to vendors 4 - - 4
Total 2001 (2) 8,641 95 (23) 8,713
Total 2000 (2) 8,335 81 (19) 8,397
December
December 31, 2001 31, 2000
Depreciation
Accumulated at % Depreciation Accurnulated
beginning of on net For the at the end Net book Net book
Main account year (4) book value ‘ period Retirement of period value Value (5)
Land - - - - - ) 54 54
Buildings 179 36 5 - 184 604 618
Switching equipment 1,160 23.9 41 - 1,201 649 679
Transmission equipment 812 18.1 33 - 845 713 626
Network installation . 1,413 10.2 49 - 1,462 1,869 1,859
Telephones, switchboards and booths 249 46.3 14 (10) 253 31 45
Furniture and office equipment 301 64.9 24 (1) 324 101 82
Automobiles 26 49.8 - 6) 20 1 1
Construction in process - - - - - 344 631
Materials - - - - - 54 70
Prepayment to vendors - - - - - 4 7
Total 2001 4,140 166 “7 4,289 4,424
Total 2000 3,685 151 1) 3,725 4,672

(1) "Net retirement and transfers" includes transfers for 6 million.

(2) Capitalized interest included in construction in process, for 2001 and 2000 totaled 2 million and 14 million, respectively.
(3) In 2000, net of 1,100 million of the spun-off assets. See Notes 2.7. and 4.

(4) In 2000, net of 208 million of the spun-off assets. See Notes 2.7. and 4.

(5) Net of 904 million of the spun-off assets. See Note 4.
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d) INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND DEFERRED CHARGES (stated in million of Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

December 31, 2001
Original value
At beginning Atend
Main account of year (1) Increase of period

Goodwill on investment in companies 279 - 278 -

License to use and trademarks 19 - 19

Assignment of rights 10 - 10

No competition clause 3 - 3

Other 18 - 18

Total 2001 329 - 329

Total 2000 (1) 397 4 401

December 31,
December 31, 2001 2000
Amortization
At beginning For the At end Net book Net book
Main account of year (2) period (3) of period - value Value (4)

Goodwill on investment in companies 88 3 91 188 201
"License to use and trademarks 4 - 4 15 14
Assignment of rights 4 - 4 6 7

No competition clause 2 - 2 1 1
Other 9 1 10 8 10
Total 2001 (2) 107 4 11 218

Total 2000 (1) 160 8 168 233

(1) In 2000, net of 516 million of the spun-off assets. See Notes 2.7. and 4.

(2) In 2000, net of 146 million of the spun-off assets. See Notes 2.7. and 4.

(3) Includes the Amortization of no competition clause, assignment of right and licenses and trademark amounting to $50,002, $252,571 and
$339,500; respectively.

(4) Net of 364 million of the spun-off assets. See Note 4.




52

e) ALLOWANCES AND RESERVES (stated in million of Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

December 31, 2001 2000
Balances at Balances At the
beginning atend end of the
Account of year Increase  Decrease of period period
Deducted from current assets:
For doubtful accounts 244 80 (41) 283 - 167 (5)
For impairment in value and slow
turmover 7 - - 7 4
251 80 (41) 290 171
Deducted from noncurrent assets:
For doubtful accounts - 42 - 42 -
Total 2001 251 122 (1) 41 332
Total 2000 133 (3) 43 (1) (5) 171
Included in current liabilities:
Contingencies 3 - - 3 2 (6)
3 - - 3 2
Inciuded in noncurrent liabilities:
Contingencies 82 7 - 89 54
Total 2001 85 7(2) - 92
Total 2000 51 (4) 5(2) 56

(1) In 2001, included in selling expenses. In 2000, 4 million included in operating expenses and 39 million in selling expenses.
(2) Included in other expenses.

(3) In 2000, net of 52 million of the spun-off assets. See Notes 2.7. and 4.

(4) In 2000, net of 9 million of the spun-off assets. See Notes 2.7. and 4.

(5) In 2000, net of 58 million of the spun-off assets. See Notes 2.7. and 4.

(6) In 2000, net of 10 million of the spun-off assets. See Notes 2.7. and 4.
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f) COST OF SERVICES PROVIDED (1) (stated in million of Argentine pesos — see Note 2.3.)

December 31, December 31,

2001 2000
Inventories at beginning of year 30 33 (2)
Purchases 2 27
Operating expenses (Note 21.h) 7 N
Subtotal -:.i; -é;
Inventories at end of the period (Note 3.b) (23) (40)
Total -TS- _ -ig

(1) Includes cost of telephone directories and telephone equipment.
(2) Net of 61 million of the spun-off assets. See Note 4.
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g) ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (See Note 22.2.)

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
Amount in Amount in
foreign Book amount foreign Book amount
currency (in million of currency (in million of
(in million) Currency  Exchange rate Argentine (in million) Currency Argentine
pesos) pesos)
ASSETS
Current assets i
Cash 11 uss 1.00 11 - . .
Investments 10 uss 1.00 10 24 uss 24
Trade receivables 60 uss 1.00 60 50 uss 50
2 SDR 1.25 2 4 SDR 5
Other receivables 40 uss 1.00 40 42 US$ 42
4 EURO 0.90 4 4 EURO 4
46 PTAS 0.01 - 46 PTAS .
Total current assets 127 126
Noncurrent assets
investments 5 uss$ 1.00 5 5 uss 5
Trade receivables 1 USs$ 1.00 1 - - R
Other receivables 50 uss 1.00 50 10 uss 10
Total noncurrent assets 56 15
Totat assets 183 141
LIABILITIES
Current llabilities
Trade payables 113 USs$ 1.00 113 55 Uss 55
342 PTAS 0.01 2 112 PTAS -
12 SDR 1.25 15 9 SDR 12
6 EURQ 0.90 6 1 EURO -
1 ATS 0.06 - - . -
1 GF 0.41 - 5 GF 2
- - - - 2 FF -
Bank and other financial payables 1,178 uss 1.00 1,178 1,180 uss 1,190
2 EURO 0.80 2 2 EURO 2
77 * 0.01 1 14,245 ¥ 124
306 (118 0.00 - 309 ITL -
Other payables 13 uss 1.00 13 9 Uss ]
2 EURO 0.90 2 - - .
- - - - 31 PTAS -
Taxes payable : 1 uss 1.00 1 : 1 uss 1
Total current liabilities 1,333 ' 1,385
Noncurrent liabilities
Trade payables 32 uss 1.00 32 1 uss 1
Bank and other financial payables 972 USs 1.00 972 1,238 uUss 1,238
19 EURO 0.90 17 21 EURO 19
2,029 ITL 0.00 1 2,323 ITL 1
8,816 ¥ 0.01 69 . . .
Other payables 15 USs$ 1.00 15 11 uss 11
Total noncurrent liabilities ’ 1,106 1,270
Total fiabilities 2,439 2,665
USs$: US dollars
¥ Yens
PTAS: Pesetas
ITL: Lira
EURO: European Cumrency Units (from January 1, 1998)
GF: Gold Frank
SDR: Special Drawing Rights
FF: French Frank

ATS: Austrian Shilling




55

h) EXPENSES INCURRED {stated in million of Argentine pesos - see Note 2.3.)

December
December 31, 2001 31, 2000
Operating Other Effects of funding on
Expenses Administrative Selling Expenses,
Account (1) expenses expenses net Assets Llabilities Total Total
Salaries, social security taxes
and other expenses 60 16 13 - - - 89 101
Fixed assets depreciation 150 14 2 - - - 166 151
Fees and payments for services 81 28 27 - - - 136 132
Insurance - 2 - - - - 2 2
Material consumption and other
expenses 15 - - - - . 15 16
Management fee . 17 3 - - - - 20 32
Transportation 3 - - - - - 3 3
Taxes, charges and
contributions 5 1 4 - - - 10 9
Rentals 9 2 1 - - - 12 17
Bank commissions - - 6 - - - 6 5
Exchange differences, difference
in the listed price of
investments and holding
losses (gains) , - - - - 5 (5) - 20
Interest and financial charges - - - - {12) 48 36 37
Tax on interest paid and on the
financial cost of corporate
indebtedness - - - - - 3 3 6
Allowance for doubtful accounts - - 122 - - - 122 39
Material 's obsolescence - - - - - - . - 4
Net book value of fixed assets
retired - - - - - - - 1
Amortization of intangible assets
and deferred charges 1 2 - - - 1 4 8
Employee terminations - - - 22 - - 22 25
Tax on bank debits and credits - 4 - - - - 4
Other - - - 2 - 1 3 7
Total 2001 341 72 175 24 @ 48 653
=R== === == ==== === === ====
Total 2000 356 80 82 30 15 52 615

(1) Includes 7 million and 9 million corresponding to cost of services provided for the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. :
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22. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT AS FROM DECEMBER 31, 2001 TO FEBRUARY 26, 2002

221.

22.2.

Financial debts

On January 30 and 31, 2002, Telefénica and the Company subscribed two loan agreements through
which, Telefénica delivered to the Company US$6.8 million and 9.6 million for the payment of interest
on negotiable obligations Series A and B, which were paid on January 31, 2002 (see Note 8.2.2.). The
mentioned loans accrue interest at a nominal rate of 15% and 23% per annum for the US dollar loan
and the peso loan, respectively. Both of them mature on March 1°, 2002.

Effects of the Argentina’s peso devaluation and other modifications to the economic regulation

Since early December 2001, Argentine authorities implemented a number of monetary and currency
exchange control measures that mainly included restrictions on the free disposition of funds deposited
with banks and tight restrictions for making transfers abroad, with the exception of transfers relaied to
foreign trade and other authorized transactions. Later, the Government declared the official default on
foreign debt payments. On January 6, 2002, the Argentine Congress approved Law No. 25,561 of
Public Emergency and Currency Exchange System Reform that introduced dramatic changes to the
economic model implemented until that date and that amended the Convertibility Law (the currency
board that pegged the Argentine peso at parity with the US dollar) approved in March 1991. The new
law empowers the National Executive Power to implement, among other things, additional monetary,
financial and exchange measures to overcome the economic crisis in the medium term, including the
power to establish the system that will determine the Argentine peso exchange rate.

Decree N° 71/2002 of the National Executive Power devalued the Argentine peso and established an
“official” exchange system, mainly for exports, certain imports, and bank debts, and the “freely fioating”
exchange market forthe rest of the transactions, which was regulated by the B.C.R.A.. Official
exchange rate was established at $1.4 to US$1 and the exchange rate of the “free” market, as of the
close of business of the first day after the exchange market (which had been suspended) recpened
(January 11, 2002), was about $1.60/$1.70 to US$ 1 (bid price).

The net consolidated position of assets and liabilities in foreign currency that generate effects as a
consequence of the devaluation is disclosed in Note 21.g to these consolidated financial statements.
Such position has not suffered significant changes as of the date of issuance of these financial
statements. The estimated effect of this subsequent devaluation, measured to the date of reopening of
the exchange market (January 11, 2002), considering the “official” and “free floating” exchange rates,
the decrees and regulations effective as of that date and the Company’s equity interest in its directly
and indirectly controlled companies, on the net consolidated position in foreign currency as of
December 31, 2001, gives rise to a negative exchange difference (loss) of about 1,140 million. Such
negative exchange difference includes 232 million related to the Company and 908 million related to
the Company’s ownership interest in Telefénica.

Other regulations were issued subsequently, amending some of the regulations described in the
preceding paragraphs. Their main effects as of approval of these consolidated financial statements
are; :

a) from February 8, 2002 unification of exchange markets into a “free” market. As of February 25,
2002, (exchange rate effective as of the date prior to the issuance of these consclidated financial
statements) the US dollar exchange rate in such market amounted to about $ 2.10 = US$ 1, bid
price;

b) de-dollarization of deposﬁs in US dollars with Argentine banks at the $ 1.40 = US$ 1 rate and of
"~ all dollar-denominated obligations granted as of January 6, 2002, in Argentinaata $ 1 = US$ 1
rate. Deposits and debts converted into pesos will be subsequently adjusted through a
benchmark stabilization coefficient to be published by the B.C.R.A. and which will be applied as
from the date of publication of Decree No. 214/2002 plus minimum and maximum interest rates
for deposits and obligations with the banking system, respectively, fixed by the B.C.R.A.;
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issuance of a bond by the Argentine Government to compensate financial institutions for the
difference generated by the application of the exchange rates mentioned above;

de-dollarization of all private agreements as of January 6, 2002 ata $ 1 = US$ 1 rate and
subsequent adjustment through the benchmark stabilization coefficient in the terms described in
(b), plus an equitable readjustment, in some cases;

de-dollarization of public service rates which were originally agreed upon in US dollars at a
$1=US$1 rate and subsequent renegotiation on a case-by-case basis: subject to the impact of
rate competitiveness on income distribution and the economy, service quality and investment
plans involved, users’ interest and companies profitability;

implementation of new oil & gas withholding systems:

prior authorization by the B.C.R.A. for making transfers from the private sector abroad in relation
to, among other, principal services, financial loans, dividends and profits for 90 days as from
February 8, 2002, except debts with international entities and official or officially recognized credit
agencies. However, such payments may be made with freely available funds existing abroad;

suspension of dismissais without a fair cause for a 180-day period, as of January 6, 2002, and
penalization whereby the amount of the termination payment provided for in labor regulanons
would be doubied, should employees be dismissed during such term;

suspension for two years of the law on deposits intangibility or until the time the Executive Power
considers the financial emergency to be concluded:;

suspension for a 180-day term as of February 3, 2002 of all suits, precautionary measures, and
foreclosure proceedings on loans, debts, deposits, and financial reprogramming affected by the
new economic reguiations; and

declaration of a state of emergency to last until December 10, 2003, covering production and
credit aspects, which implies among other issues:

(1) the suspension, from February 14, 2002, and until December 10, 2003, of foreclosure on
collateral for financial debt that in any way may result in the transfer of control of
companies in insolvency proceedings or their subsidiaries;

(2) the suspension, during 180 days as from February 14, 2002, of (i) all court-mandated and
out-of-court foreclosures, including of mortgages and security agreements of any origin,
whether for debtors in insolvency proceedings or any other private-sector debtors (i) the
process of bankruptcy petitions, without precluding the precautionary measures to protect
the integrity of the debtor's assets, and (iii) precautionary measures, whether priorly
standing or newly provided, involving those assets indispensable to the debtor's normal
course of business;

(3) the extension of the exclusivity period in ail insolvency proceedings govemed by Law No.
24,522 and initiated before February 14, 2002, for at least 180 days beyond the such
period’s original expiration date or from the end of the last extension granted. For new
insolvency proceedings, the exclusivity period is extended to 180 days that may be
extended a further 180 days (in both cases, this refers to court working days).

As of the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the Federal Government is still
analyzing supplementary policies that will define, among other things, the way in which secured loans

-in US dollars related to the local public debt swap will be switched into pesos and the way in which
external private debt payments will be made.

On the other hand, and as a consequence of the changes implemented in January 2002, there was an
increase in the Argentine consumer price index of 2.3% and in the Argentine wholesale price index of
6.6% according to the information provided by the INDEC (Argentine Institute of Statistics and
Census).
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As stated in Note 2.8., foreign currency assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2001, were valued
under Argentine GAAP at the $1 to US$1 exchange prevailing as of the date of suspension of the
foreign exchange market, pursuant to the provisions of Resolution MD No. 1/2 of the Professional
Council of CPCECABA and Resolution No. 392 of the CNV.

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements (February 26, 2002), the exchange rate at the
“free” market was $2.10 to US$1, bid rate, and $2.0 to US$1, asked rate. The estimated effect of the
above mentioned devaluation on the Company's consolidated net payables in foreign currency as of
December 31, 2001, calculated on the basis of exchange rates mentioned in the above paragraph and
the Company’s equity interest in its directly and indirectly controlled companies, amounts to $1,778
million, and will be recognized in the period ending as of March 31, 2002, according to generally
accepted accounting principles in Argentina.

As provided in the Public Emergency and Exchange System Reform Law, any loss resulting from
applying the new exchange rate to the net position of assets and liabilities in foreign currency as of
January 6, 2002, will be deductible from income tax at the rate of 20% per annum over the five fiscal
years ending after the Law's effective date. If the effect is a gain, it will be considered taxable in the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2002.

The effect of such devaluation on the Company's shareholders’ equity after considering the exchange

. difference that could be capitalized pursuant to effective accounting standards in Argentina, could
significantly reduce unappropiated retained eamings and the reserve for future dividends susceptible
of being distributed as dividends and could cause the Company to fall within one of the mandatory
capital reduction events, or within a dissolution event (if the Company's shareholders’ equity becomes
negative), provided by sections 206 and 94 of the Business Associations Law.

The issuance provisions of the Company's preferred A and B shares provide that, should there be no
realized income and in cash or freely available reserves, the Company would not partially amortize
preferred capital or pay the respective preferred dividends for the eleventh period, both falling due on
April 30, 2002. Should there be preferred un-amortized past due capital, the issuance provisions of
preferred A and B stock provide that preferred stockholders would be entitled to one vote per share. In
addition, profit sharing bonds would be issued for un-amortized preferred capital and as long as there
are unpaid preferred dividends. See Note 5.

The effects over the Company’s investment in Telefénica and related goodwill, over Telefénica's fixed
assets and over the Company’s and Telefénica’s financing projections, of the recent governmentat
announcements, are disclosed in Notes 2.6.d), e) and 8.

These financial statements include the effects derived from the new economic and exchange policies
known as of the date of issuance of these financial statements. All the estimates made by the
Company's management have been made considering such policies. The effects of additional
measures that could be implemented by the Government or the instrumentation of the measures
previously adopted, will be reported in the financial statements when they become known.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

(Information not covered by the Report of Independent Public Accountants)

The following discussion should be read together with the consolidated financial statements of Compaiiia
Internacional de Telecomunicaciones S.A. (“Cointel or the Company”) for the three-month periods ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000. Those financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Argentine
generally accepted accounting principles (‘Argentine GAAP"), which differ in certain respects from U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (“US GAAP"). A description of the significant differences between Argentine
GAAP and US GAAP are set forth in Note 18. to the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Significant accounting policies have been described in the consolidated financial statements. Most critical
accounting policies adopted in preparing the financial statements relate to: i) the application of the going-concern
assumption in the valuation and classification of assets and liabilities (see Notes 8.1. and 22.2. to the notes to the
consolidated financial statements); ii) the assumption that the Company and Telefonica de Argentina S.A.
(*Telefonica™ will not default in the payment of their debt, with regard to the classification of their non-current debt
(see Note 8.1. to the notes to the consolidated financial statements); iii) the valuation of investment in Telefénica
and the goodwill stated for such investment under US GAAP, which is based on management’s current estimates
of future cash flows; iv) the valuation of Telefénica’s fixed assets under US GAAP (under the provisions of SFAS
121 and SFAS 144), which is based on Telefoénica’s management's current estimates of future cash flows; v) the
creation of reserves for contingencies assessed as likely by Telefonica’s management, based on its estimates and
the opinion of legal counsel (see notes with respect to unreserved contingencies); and vi) the creation of
allowances, amounting to $325 million out in respect to $591 million past-due receivables, based on Telefénica’s
management’s estimates of possible future collection terms and conditions. Additionally, under Argentine GAAP
the exchange rate difference resulting from the devaluation of the Argentine peso with respect to the U.S. dollar
calculated on the basis of the rates in effect when the market reopened on January 11, 2002, will be recognized in
the period ended March 31, 2002, while under US GAAP such difference was recognized in the period ended
December 31, 2001 (see Note 22.2. to the notes to the consolidated financial statements).

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting years. The ultimate
results could differ from those estimates.

Future cash flows couid differ materially from estimates of Cointel’s and Telefonica’s management depending
upon, among other matters, the outcome of the pending rate renegotiation with the government described in Note
12.1 to the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Modification of Argentine GAAP

Effective December 8, 2000, the Governance Board of the Federacién Argentina de Consejos Profesionales de
Ciencias Economicas (“FACPCE") approved Technical Resolutions (“RT") Nos. 16, 17, 18, and 19 which provide
for changes in professional accounting principles relating to valuation and disclosure. On the other hand, on
December 21, 2001, Consejo Profesional de Ciencias Econémicas de la Ciudad Auténoma de Buenos Aires
(“*CPCECABA") approved, with certain modifications, such Resolutions through its Resolutions No. 238, 243, 261
and 262 and required mandatory application thereof for fiscal years beginning July 1, 2002, and thereafter. As of
the date of issuance of these financial statements, the Comision Nacional de Valores (“CNV”) was analyzing the
scope and timing for adopting such standards.

OVERVIEW

Some of the more significant influences that have historically affected, and that continue to affect the Company’s
business and its results of operations are:

« the manner in which the Argentine Government has managed the Argentine economy and directed exchange,
monetary and fiscal policies, including the manner in which it has attempted to restrain Argentine infiation;
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« the _regulated na_ture of the Argentine telecommunications market, including a framework of decrees of the
National Exegutlve Power and various resolutions that the Telecommunications Regulatory Authority has
adopted that impact the management and performance of Telefénica’s business; and

e the Iong-_term strategic vision of Telefénica, which has guided the various steps that it has taken over the
years to improve profitability and to expand and modernize its operations and prepare itseif for the competitive
environment.

Evolution of the Current Economic Situation in Argentina
The Convertibility Plan

For several decades, Argentina experienced periods of high inflation, slow or negative growth, declining
investment rates, significant devaluations of the Argentine currency and impositions of exchange controls. During
the 1980s, the limited availability of foreign exchange required the Argentine Government and all Argentine public
sector entities to restructure portions of their foreign currency-denominated indebtedness to commercial banks.
The rate of inflation reached 4,923.6% in 1989, as measured by the Argentine consumer price index, and Gross
Domestic Product ("GDP") contracted that year by 6.2%. Argentina’s historically high inflation rates resulted mainly
from the Argentine Government's inability to control fiscal policy and the money supply. In March 1991, after the
implementation of various plans designed to reduce inflationary pressures, which were only partially or temporarily
successful, the Argentine Government introduced a tax reform and expenditure reduction program aimed at
reducing inflation and restructuring the economy and adopted the Convertibility Law, which became effective April
1, 1991 and pegged by law the Argentine peso at a parity with the U.S. dollar (such fiscal measures and the
Convertibility Law being collectively referred to as the “Convertibility Plan™). Following the adoption of the
Convertibility Plan, the annual rate of inflation measured by the Consumer Price Index declined from 84.0% in
1991 to 3.9% in 1994 and Real GDP rose an average of 8% annually between 1991 and 1994.

The Convertibility Plan became the comerstone of Argentine economic policy for the ensuing decade. Its success
depended on Argentina’s ability to attract capital inflows in the form of foreign direct investment, the repatriation by
local investors of foreign, mostly U.S. dollar denominated savings, the availability of external means of financing,
and the preservation of U.S. dollar reserves generally. These elements, in tum, depended on the sound
management of external liabilities and the implementation of fiscal, regulatory, labor, judicial, legal, political and
other structural reforms aimed at creating credible and sustainable efficiencies in both the private and public
sectors. :

In addition, the Convertibility Plan depended on external factors beyond the control of Argentine policy makers,
such as the intemational prices of traditional Argentine export commodities, interest rates in the global capital
markets, the impact of crises in other emerging markets and trade conditions with neighboring countries and other
significant partners. Furthermore, the Convertibility Plan relied on confidence in the strength of the local financial
sector and the ability of banking regulators to preserve a liquid monetary base.

Since it was adopted, the Convertibility Plan endured a series of both internally and externally generated
challenges which progressively debilitated confidence in its long-term viability among the international financial
community as well as the local business community and leading political forces. These challenges included the
devaluation of the Mexican peso in December 1994 and resulting liquidity crisis in the Argentine banking sector,
contagion throughout the emerging market economies resulting from the Asian crisis in late 1997, Russia's default
on part of its sovereign debt and the devaluation of the ruble in 1998, the devaluation of the Brazilian real in 1999,
adversely affecting the demand for Argentine exports to Brazil, and Ecuador's default on its foreign indebtedness
in 2000. These incidents significantly increased the cost of capital to the Argentine private and public sectors,
widening spreads on Government securities. They led to growing capital outflows and diminished international
reserves. They also exacerbated the recession and the mounting unemployment and deflation that had taken root
in the Argentine economy beginning in late 1998. During 1998, the Merval index of the Buenos Aires Stock
Exchange declined by 38.2%. GDP, which had increased by 8.1% in 1997, grew by 3.8% in 1998,

Confronted with such developments, Argentina grew increasingly dependent on aid from multilateral credit
agencies, principally the International Monetary Fund (“IMF™), which periodically organized substantial rescue
packages, including a U.S.$2.8 billion three-year extended fund facility in 1998. Such aid involved the imposition of
targets and conditions for disbursements, such as modifications in the tax revenue sharing system between the
provinces and the Federal Government, curbs on government spending and reforms in the labor market,
budgetary procedures and the tax, health, pension and judicial systems. Macroeconomic factors and costly,
dilatory and debilitating political compromises, repeatedly combined to hinder compliance with such targets and
conditions.
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In 1999, the incumbent Percnist Party lost the general election to the Alianza, a coalition of left-leaning,formerly
Peronist factions, on the one hand, and the traditional, middie class, center left Radical Party, on the other, led by
Fernando de la Rua, in a campaign that concentrated on allegations of corruption in the outgoing administration of
Carlos Saul Menem and the need to address the “social cost” of the Convertibility Plan. During 2000, domestic
consumption was weak and private investment decreased sharply due to worsening global financiai conditions for
emerging markets generally and uncertainty over the ability of the De la Ria administration to address the
structural economic changes needed to improve Argentina's competitiveness and to reduce its fiscal deficit. By the
fourth quarter of that year, the lack of signs of economic recovery, aggravated by the perception of increasing
political risk, led the Argentine Government to negotiate with the IMF, the World Bank, the Inter-American
Development Bank and the governments of Spain, italy and France a financial support package totaling U.S.$39.7
billion to ease government financing in 2001 and subsequent years.

In the first quarter of 2001, allegations of bribery of senators by the executive branch in order to pass certain labor
reform legislation, led to the resignation of the Vice-President, the leader of the left-leaning component of the
Alianza. The prolonged recession and the weakening power base of President De la Rua compromised his ability
to pursue the orthodox measures required to sustain the Convertibility Plan and resuited in the resignation of the
Minister of Economy. When the announcement of stringent measures by his successor failed to gather political
support, President De la Rua appointed Domingo Cavallo, who had designed the Convertibility Pian in 1991 and
since then had founded a minority opposition party, as Minister of Economy with far-reaching extraordinary powers
granted by Congress. Minister Cavallo enjoyed widespread support in the intemational financial community but
further isolated President De la Rua from his traditional power base. Minister Cavallo sent to Congress an
amendment to the Convertibility Law which added the euro to the U.S. dollar in a basket to set the peso's value
once the euro would reach parity with the U.S. dollar. This measure was intended to improve the competitiveness
of Argentine exports over time. On June 21, 2001, Congress approved the Government's proposal.

The consensus among the international financiat community, however, was that this measure did not address the
core, immediate issue of Government spending and fiscal imbalance, and sovereign spreads widened further.

On June 4, 2001, the Argentine government was able to reduce its debt service requirements through 2005 by
U.S.$16 billion through a U.S.329.5 billion global exchange of its debt in the capital markets, retiring obligations
with significant near-term servicing requirements and extending the maturity profile of its overall indebtedness.
Despite the resulting fiscal benefits, popular discontent with the deepening recession led to criticism of the
Government'’s focus on external creditors among certain political elements, including President De la Rua’s own
party. Private sector confidence in the ability of President De la Rua to gamer sufficient political support to deliver
on his proposed reforms deteriorated rapidly in the following weeks. During July 2001, total bank deposits
decreased by U.S.$6 billion and the Merval index of the Buenos Aires Stack Exchange fell 20%.

On July 30, 2001, the Argentine Congress enacted the “zero-deficit” law, to secure reductions in government
expenditures and to achieve a balanced budget in the near term, and announced its intention of embarking on
deep structural reforms of the political system, including the size of Congress and aspects of the electoral process.
Furthermore, in early August 2001, the government and the IMF began negotiating an extension of the financial
support package agreed to in December 2000 to boost investor confidence. These negotiations proved successful
and, on September 10, 2001, the IMF disbursed a financial support package of U.S.$5 billion to Argentina (U.S.$4
billion to reinforce Central Bank international reserves and U.S.$1 billion to finance Treasury requirements). Also,
from September to November, 2001, the local financial system received U.S.$1.2 billion from existing lines of
credit to increase bank liquidity and to counter a continuing deterioration in investor confidence.

However, negative political and pre-election circumstances resulted in the increased uncertainty over the stability
of the peso and the continuity of the Argentine government’s zero-deficit policy, an increase in sovereign risk, a fall
in international reserves, a continuing fiscal imbalance, and a decrease in total deposits in the financial system.
Over the course of the final months of 2001, various Provincial Governments issued quasi-currency debt
instruments to cover their own fiscal deficiencies. These instruments have been since then widely accepted as
legal tender by parties whose businesses have been most affected by the growing shortage of liguidity resulting
from a contracting monetary base. Despite the agreement signed with the IMF in August 2001, Argentina
weakened as a credit and spreads of Argentine sovereign bonds widened.

On December 3, 2001, following a week of massive cash withdrawals of U.S. dollar deposits form the banking
system and fearing a widespread bank run, the Government froze bank deposits, restricting cash withdrawals to
$250 per account per week and providing for the disposal of all other funds only by means of checks, wire
transfers and credit and debit card payments.
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On December 5, 2001, alleging the failure by the Argentine Government to implement effective economic policies,
the IMF announcec] a suspension of disbursements under its credit programs to Argentina. As widespread social
unrest mounted, Minister Cavallo resigned on December 20, 2001, as did President De la Rua on the following
day.

Over 2001, the sovereign risk of Argentina, measured under emerging markets indexes as a spread over risk
free benchmarks, had increased by 4,406 basis points to 5,172 as of December 28; liquid reserves at the Central
Bank of Argentina (“B.C.R.A.") decreased by U.S.$10.6 billion, without including external tranches of financial aid
and contingent loans; and total deposits within the banking system decreased by U.S.$19 billion. -

Default, Devaluation and the Abandonment of the Convertibility Plan

On December 31, 2001, after the failure of an interim government to gather sufficient support, Congress appointed
Eduardo Duhalde, former governor of Buenos Aires Province and the Peronist Party candidate who had lost to
President De la Rua in 1999, as the new President of Argentina. While the legal support for the process leading to
his election has been challenged in the courts as has the proposed duration of his term, it is expected that
President Duhalde will remain in office until the expiration of President De la Rua's term, December 2003.

The interim government preceding President Duhalde announced the default on Argentina’s foreign debt on late
December 2001. President Duhalde confirmed this announcement and sent a bill to the Argentine Congress to
declare a national economic emergency and repeal the Convertibility Law. On January 6, 2002, the Argentine
Congress approved the Economic Emergency Law, introduced dramatic changes to the country’s economic model
and amended the Convertibility Law. The new law empowers the Federal Executive Power to implement, among
other things, additional monetary, financial and exchange measures to overcome the economic crisis in the
medium term, including the power to establish a system to determine the exchange rate applicable to the
Argentine peso.

On devaluing the peso, the Government initially established a dual exchange rate whereby export and certain
import transactions would be governed by a fixed, “official” exchange rate of $1.40 to U.S.$1.00, while all other
transactions would be governed by a floating rate to be set freely by the exchange market, with occasional
intervention by the Central Bank of Argentina. Following an extended bank holiday, the exchange market
reopened on January 11, 2002, with transactions settling at between $1.60 and Ps.1.70 to U.S.$1.00 (bid price) by
market close on that date. The estimated effect of such devaluation on the Company’s net consolidated position in
foreign currency as of December 31, 2001, taking account of the “official” and the floating exchange rates on the
date the exchange market reopened, the effect of applicable rates and regulations effective as of that date and the
Company's equity interest in its directly and indirectly controlled companies, gives rise to a negative exchange rate
difference of approximately $1,140 miilion. Such negative exchange difference includes $232 million related to the
Company and $908 miilion related to the Company’s ownership interest in Telefénica.

As of the end of January 2002, the relevant financial indicators continued showing the worsening of the Argentine
crisis and the market deterioration:

(i) The official exchange rate was maintained at $1.40 = US$1.00 although the “free” exchange rate was
$2.05 = US$1.00 as of January 31, 2002, which represented a nominal accumulated increase in the
US doliar in relation to the Argentine Peso of 105% as compared to the Currency Board ($1 = US$1).

(ii) The country risk premium continued as high as 4,352 basis points as of January 31, 2002.

(i) B.C.R.A.'s liquid reserves decreased by US$ 807 million to US$13 billion (equivalent to $19 billion)

- as of January 31, 2002.

(iv) Total deposits with the local banking system continued decreasing due to the gradual withdrawal of

deposits, although limited due to the above-mentioned restrictions, and the lack of new deposits.

Finally, on February 4, 2002, Presidential Decree No. 214/2002 advanced on the process to switch the Argentine
economy intc Argentine pesos, eliminating the US dollar for domestic transactions although market usually used
U.S. dollars to structure transactions and fix prices. The main points of such Presidential Decree are:

0] All ioans in foreign currency (whether granted by banks or not) borrowed within the domestic banking
system, regardiess of the amount of such loans, will be switched into Argentine pesos at the $ 1 =
USS$ 1 rate, while deposits in foreign currency will be returned at the US$ 1 = $1.40 rate.

(i) Additionally, the presidential decree abrogated the muitiple exchange system mentioned above
(official exchange rate and free exchange rate) and replaced it with a free floating system that does
not include the explicit intervention or a flotation goal by the B.C.R.A. (application of flotation band,
scheduled devaluation). However, the decree authorizes the B.C.R.A. to intervene in the exchange
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market if the B.C.R.A. deems it necessary to defend the value of the local currency. it was
announced that the B.C.R.A. would have a monetary issuance goal.

(iii) The presidential decree also suspends any lawsuits, precautionary measures or execution arising
from or against the receivables, debts, obligations, deposits or financial rescheduling affected by the
provisions mentioned above. This measure was adopted as a response to a recent judgment by the
Argentine Supreme Court that established the unconstitutionality of Decree No. 1570/01 which
established the cash withdrawal restrictions.

The decision to devalue the Argentine peso implies a number of risks that may occur depending on the
characteristics of the measures accompanying the devaluation. These risks will become more acute if the
devaluation is coupled with steady inflation:

0] Decrease in salaries and in the price of assets in US dollars: In the current recessive scenario and
due to unemployment level, it is evident that any increase in the general price level will entail a
decrease of the salary purchasing power since salary rises are not likely. There will also be a
decrease in the price of assets in US dollars.

(i) Price controls: Control of prices have not been proposed to date. In Argentina they have been rarely
successful.

(iii) Stagflation and shortage of goods: If inflation cannot be controlled, it is possible that inflation and
recession will coexist. This would be a negative scenario where economy does not grow and prices
increase.

As of February 26, 2002, the Federal Government is considering supplementary measures that will govern, among
other things, the manner in which U.S. dollar denominated loans issued in connection with the local portion of the
global sovereign debt restructuring commenced in November of 2001 will be converted into pesos and the manner
in which external private debt payments will be made.

As a consequence of the changes implemented on January 11, 2002, at January 31, 2002 the Argentine
consumer price index rose by 2.3%, and the Wholesale Price Index (“WPI") by 6.6%, according to information
provided by INDEC. Unemployment is estimated at 23% to 25% of the workforce. Tax revenues in January and
February, 2002 fell by 19.1% and 20.3%, respectively.

The effect of the economic and political situation described above has had, and may continue to have, a material
adverse effect on Telefénica's results of operations as consumer demand for its services diminishes, collection of
payables suffers and the U.S. dollar value of its revenues is eroded by further devaluation. In addition, Telefonica
may face significant difficulties in negotiating rate increases with the Government against mounting inflation in an
environment of growing popular unrest and political uncertainty. Furthermore, the Company’s and Telefénica’s
liquidity, their capital expenditure plans and financial condition have been severely hindered not only by the effect
of the devaluation of the peso on its U.S. dollar denominated liabilities but also by restrictions on the remittance of
debt payments by it outside Argentina and the unavailability of financing for Argentine corporates generally.

The following table sets forth rates of inflation, as measured by the WP! in Argentina and the rate of real Argentine
GDP growth for the periods shown. Numbers in parentheses are negative. . :

December 31,
2001 2000
WPI (annual % change) (1) (3.0) (1.8)
December 31,
2001 (3) 2000 (2)
GDP Growth (annual % change) (3.8) (0.8)

M Price index figures are for the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.
(2) Official data.
(3) Projection estimated by the Company.

Argentine GAAP require that financial statements recognize the effect of changes in the purchasing power of
money through August 31, 1995, by restating amounts to constant pesos by the method laid down in RT No. 6 of
the FACPCE. In compliance with regulations established by the CNV, effective September 1, 1995, the Company
discontinued application of the restatement method and retained restatements recorded until that date. The
method is aliowed by Argentine GAAP provided that the change experienced by the price index applicable for
restatement does not exceed 8% per annum. The change in the above index during each of the fiscal years
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ended as from September 30, 1995 was below that maximum limit. The Company does not consider inflation to
have materially affected its business, financial condition or results of operations during the three-month periods
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. As consequence of the devaluation of the Argentine Peso, internal
wholesale prices grew 6.6% during January 2002.

Telecommunication Rate Regulation

. Telefonica's business is regulated by the National Communications Commission {(*CNC") and the SC. Telefénica's
rates were denominated in U.S. dollars as of December 31, 2001. The Rate Agreement, among other things, also
tied Telefénica's ability to increase rates to changes in the U.S. Consumer Price Index.

However, Law of Public Emergency and Currency Exchange System Reform No. 25,561, dated January 6, 2002,
provides that, in the agreements executed by the Federal Administration under public law regulations, including
public works and services, indexation clauses based on foreign countries price indices or any other indexation
mechanism are annulled. In this regard, it sets forth that the prices and rates resulting from such provisions shali
be established in pesos at a one peso ($1) = one U.S. dollar (US$ 1) exchange rate. Furthermore, Section No. 9 of
the above-mentioned Law authorizes the National Executive Power to renegotiate the above contracts taking into
account the following criteria in relation to public utility services: (a) the impact of the rates on the competitiveness
of the economy and on distribution of income; (b) service quality and investment plans, when such aspects are
contemplated in the contracts; (c) the interest of users and access to the services; (d) the security of the
comprised systems; (e) the profitability of the companies.

Pending renegotiation of telephone service future rates, Telefénica cannot foresee the level of its future service
revenues or to what extent, if any, rates would keep pace with inflation and devaluation of the Argentine Peso.

Decree No. 764/00 on telecommunications deregulation establishes that providers may freely set rates and/or
prices for the services rendered and for customer categories, which shall be applied on a nondiscriminatory basis.
However, if there were no effective competition (which is the current state in all regions of Argentina), the
“historical” providers in such areas (i.e., Telefénica and Telecom Argentina Stet France Telecom S.A. (“Telecom™)
are to respect the maximum rates established in the General Rate Structure. Below the values established in such
rate structure, such providers may freely set their rates by areas, routes, long-distance segments and/or customer
groups.

To determine the existence of effective competition, the historical providers are to demonstrate that other providers
of the same service received 20% of the total revenues for such service in the local area of Basic Telephony
Service involved. Effective competition will be considered to exist in the provision of national or international iong-
distance services for calls originated in a local area of the Basic Telephony Service, when the customers in such
area are able to choose, through the dialing selection method, among more than two service providers, if each of
them offers more than one long-distance destination. '

Except for areas and services where effective competition is demonstrated to exist, the rate agreements establish
a maximum rate per pulse (now denominated in pesos).

Under the rate reguiation mechanism in effect known as price cap, Decree No. 264/98 provided a 4% reduction in
rates, on terms similar to the method provided by point 12.5.1. of the List of Conditions, that was to be applied
during each year of the transition period to basic telephone service rates; with 90% of such reduction to be applied
to domestic long distance services. Telintar, and now Telefénica as its successor was required to apply the same
4% reduction to international rates.

On November 3, 1999, the SC issued Resolution No. 2,925/99, whereby, based on the assumption of the
nonexistence of effective competition as of such date, provided a 5.5% reduction in telephone basic service rates
for the period from November 1999 through November 2000. Such reduction was applied to detailed the following
services: billing domestic and international long-distance. Likewise, the starting time of the domestic and
international long-distance reduced rate was brought forward.

In April 2000 and March 2001, Telefénica, Telecom and the SC executed rate agreements which, subject to the
approval by the Economy Ministry and of infrastructure and Housing, provided the terms under which the price

caps would be applied:

i) Price Cap as of November 8, 2000: the SC established that the rate reduction for the period November
2000/November 2001 would amount to 6.75%. The reduction would be applied through: a) discount
plans that were effective as from March 2000 (commercial and government basic rates, local measured
service, and the application of certain preferential rates of internet access), the non-application of
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charges set forth in Resolution N° 2,926/99 until November 8, 2001 and the non-application over the
year of the two semiannual adjustments to the pulse value for the above-mentioned U.S. Consumer
Price Index; b) given that such plans were brought into effect before schedule, the accumulated effects
of the above-mentioned rate reductions would be applied to the computation of price caps for the
periods beginning November 2000, 2001 and 2002 adjusted at an interest rate of 12% per year; and ¢)
furthermore, it was established that the difference between the effect of the discounts already granted
and that of a 6% reduction would be applied on November 8, 2000 across different items of the tariff
structure, and the additional 0.75% reduction was to be applied as defined by the Licensees.

ii) Price cap as of November 8, 2001: the SC established that the efficiency factor for the price cap
applicable for the period November 2001/November 2002 would amount to 5.6%. This rate reduction is
to be implemented through to: a) the non-application of the two adjustments to the pulse value for the
US Consumer Price Index for the year, adjusting the effect at the 12% annual rate in order to measure it
against the total expected 5.6% reduction, b) any balance resulting from the non-application of the
adjustment to the value of the telephone puise in the period 2000/2001, as well as any balance
remaining in respect of a variety of items included in the 2000/2001 price cap; ¢) any unapplied price
cap portion remaining after the rate reductions mentioned in a) and b) above with respect to the 5.6%
rate reduction, should be applied in the following manner: 70% as provided by Telefénica, 15% to the
local service, and 15% to other services as required by the SC, other than monthly basic charges and
the local measured service.

iii) Price cap as from November 8, 2002 through November 7, 2003: the SC established that the efficiency
factor could not exceed 5%, but it has not yet set its value. .

Although the reductions mentioned in point i), and the early reductions referred to in point ii), are being applied by
Telef6nica, the related agreements have not been yet approved by the Economy Ministry and of Infrastructure and
Housing. To date, the effect of the discount plans implemented has not been established as compared to rate
reduction percentages provided by such agreements, and the regulatory agency has not approved how to apply
the rate reduction mentioned in point i).

On the other hand, in relation to the complaint filed by Consumidores Libres Cooperativa Limitada de Provisién de
Servicios Comunitarios (“Consumidores Libres”), mentioned in Note 13.d) to the consolidated financial statements,
on October 4, 2001, the Fourth Chamber of the Federal Appellate Court on Administrative Disputes of the City of
Buenos Aires issued a temporary injunction requested by the plaintiff ordering the National Government,
Telefonica and Telecom "to refrain from applying the corrections set forth in Section 2 of the Agreements approved
by Decree No. 2,585/91 until final judgment is rendered in the case", which means that the rates may not currently
be adjusted based upon the U.S. Consumer Price Index.

In the opinion of Telefénica’s Management and its legal counsel, the outcome of these issues could exclusively
affect the maximum rates for future services that Telefonica is authorized to charge its customers regarding
services, areas, or customers in which the government did not declare the existence of effective competition. As of
December 31, 2001, these maximum rates are determined by applying to rates effective as of November 7, 2000,
the discounts applied in order to implement the price caps related to November 8, 2000, and November 8, 2001,
under the above-mentioned agreements.

The rate reduction percentage and the services to which such reductions will eventually apply depend on the final
approval of the above-mentioned rate agreements, and on the outcome of the iegal proceedings commenced by
Consumidores Libres regarding the effective rate system.

Based on current rate regulation mechanisms and considering Telefonica’s defense against the above-mentioned
legal proceedings, in the opinion of Telefénica’s Management and its legal counsel, the outcome of these issues
will not have a negative impact upon Telefénica’s financial position or a significant adverse effect on its results of
operations.

In connection with the agreements executed by the Federal Administration under public law regulations, including
public works and services, Law No. 25,561 provided for: (1) the annulment of dollar or other foreign currency
adjustments and indexing provisions; (2) the establishment of an exchange rate for dollar-denominated prices and
rates ($1 = US$ 1); (3) and the authorization for the National Executive Power to renegotiate the conditions of the
above contracts taking into account the following criteria: (a) the impact of the rates on the competitiveness of the
economy and on distribution of income; (b) service quality and investment plans, when such aspects are
contemplated in the contracts; (¢) the interest of users and access to the services; (d) the security of the
comprised systems; (e) the profitability of the companies.




Decree No. 2_93/02,. dated February 12, 2002, entrusted the Economy Ministry with the renegotiation of such
agreemgnfts, inctuding agreements that govern the provision of basic telephony services. The contractual
renegotiation proposals must be submitted to the National Executive Power within 120 days after the effective date
of this Decree.

In addition, Decree No. 764/2000 had reduced the interconnection price for the origin and destination of calls in
local areas to $1.1 cents/minute for districts with more than 5,000 inhabitants or a telephone-set density above 15
telephones every 100 inhabitants and to $1.3 cents/minutes for the rest of the districts and in the areas included in
the original license of independent operators and to $0.30 cents/minutes for the transit within local areas. A 3%
semi-annual price cap will apply during the first two years after these rules and regulations become effective.

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, Telefénica's Management is unable to foresee the final
result of the negotiation under Law No. 25,561 or the rate scheme to be effective in the future; it is possible that
such rate scheme will not maintain its value in U.S. dollars or equal purchasing power constant pesos over time in
accordance with any potential future increase in General Price Levels (“GPL"). Although, according to Telefénica's
legal counsel opinion, under general administrative law principles applicable to the Transfer contract and List of
conditions, future rates should be fixed at a level which is sufficiently fair to cover service costs, if future rates
evolve at a pace well below GPL, it would have a material adverse effect on Telefénica’s future financial position
and results of operations.

COINTEL REVENUES

Cointel’s sole substantial activity is owning a controlling interest in Telefénica’s common stock and its sole
substantial source of cash revenues is dividends paid on such stock.

COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 AND 2000

All references made below to 2001 and 2000 are to the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, and are presented in compliance with the criteria provided for in Notes 2.7. and 4. to the Company’s
financial statements and therefore, do not include the spun off loss from spun-off operations.

The amounts related to three-month period ended 2000 have been restated in order to reflect retroactive effects of
the spun-off businesses.

Net Revenues

Net revenues decreased by 9.4% to $647 million in 2001 from $714 million in 2000.

The following table shows operating revenues in millions of pesos by category of services for 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000
Basic telephone service
Measured service 198 223
Monthly basic charges (1) 171 170
Special services 70 74
Installation charges . 12 14
Public phones 46 53
Access charges 54 85
International long-distance service 34 37
Telephone equipment 8 24
Publishing of telephone directories 15 4
Other 39 30
Total 647 714

(1) Includes monthly basic charges and charges for supplemental services.

Measured service includes revenues that Telefénica collects from the traffic consisting of local and domestic long-
distance calls made by its own customers to other of its own customers through Telefénica's network, and to
customers of other operators routed through Telefonica’s networks as well as other operators’ networks. In this
latter case, Telefonica bills and collects revenues from its customers for the call, but pays other operators for the
cost of using their networks (see “Cost of Services Provided, Administrative Expenses and Selling Expenses”,
“Fees and payment for services”).
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Measured service decreased by 11.2% to $198 miilion in 2001 from $223 million in 2000. The change was
principally due to a decrease in the average number of billable domestic long-distance lines of 11% (considering
increases and decreases in long-distance lines as a consequence of competition through the so-called
“presubscription” process) and a decrease in long-distance pulses consumed of 3%.

Monthly basic charges, which include the monthly basic charges of measured service lines, as well as of prepaid
lines, increased by 0.6% to $171 million in 2001 from $170 million in 2000. The change was principally due to the
increase in average billable lines.

Special services decreased by 5.4% to $70 million in 2001 from $74 million in 2000. The changes were principally
due to: a) a decreased in revenues from intemet calls (internet traffic decreased by 19.5% to 1,570 million minutes
in 2001 from 1,950 million minutes in 2000), and b) a decrease in revenues from DTA (Digital Trunk Access)
services mainly due to the granting of greater commercial discounts on basic rate and measured service. Such
decrease was offset by an increase in the use of prepaid calling cards.

Income from installation charges decreased by 14.3% to $12 million in 2001 from $14 million in 2000. The change
was principally due to a decrease in the average installation price per line of 5% and to a decrease of 1.6% in the
amount of basic telephone lines installed during 2001.

Revenues for public phones decreased by 13.2% to $46 million in 2001 from $53 million in 2000. The decrease
was due to decreased average interconnection usage of 27% of pay-phones operated by third parties (‘telephone
stations”) and an decrease of 15.9% in consumption of street pay-phones lines. This variation was partially offset
by a decrease in the commercial discounts granted to telephone station owners.

Access charges decreased by 36.5% to $54 million in 2001 from $85 million in 2000. The decrease was principally
due a decrease of interconnection from long distance operators and the commercial discounts granted.
Additionally, revenues from celluiar interconnection decreased due to a decrease in average rates and commercial
discounts granted to customers.

International long-distance service revenues decreased by 8.1% to $34 million in 2001 from $37 million in 2000.
The changes were principally due to a decrease in consumed minutes. These consumed minutes decreased to
59.7 million minutes in 2001 from 68.8 million minutes in 2000.

Telephone equipment revenues decreased by 66.7% to $8 million in 2001 from $24 million in 2000. The change
was due to the reduction by Telefdnica of the offered product variety as from January 2001, when Telinver spun-off
the equipment and point of sales engagement that would be merged by Telefénica.

Publishing of telephone directories increased by 275% to $15 million in 2001 from $4 million in 2000. The
increase in 2001 was due to the rescheduling of the effective distribution of directories in certain areas in 2001 in
an amount of $11 million including mainly the cities Mar del Plata, Neuquen, Chubut and San Juan.

Other revenues, which primarily include the lease of direct lines and other sales to related companies, increased
by 30% to $39 million in 2001 from $30 million in 2000. The change was principally due to an approximately $5
million increase in the lease of digital direct lines and an approximately $5 million increase in other sales to
Advance.

Cost of Services Provided, Administrative and Selling Expenses

Cost of services provided, administrative and selling expenses increased by 11.0% to $597 million in 2001 from
$538 million in 2000.

The following table shows the breakdown of expenses in millions of pesos for 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000
Salaries, social security taxes and other personnel expenses 89 101
Depreciation and amortization (1) 169 158
Fees and payments for services 136 132
Management fee 20 - 32
Material consumption and other expenses 15 16
Allowance for doubtful accounts 122 39
Equipment sales cost : 9 20
Other 37 40
Total 597 538

szszrezze zzsszETTE

(1) Excluding the portion corresponding to financial expenses.
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Sa{ari_es and social security taxes decreased by 11.9% to $89 million in 2001 from $101 million in 2000. The
variation was mainly due to a significant headcount reduction in Telefénica, which decreased to 9,410 in 2001
from 9,856 in 2000. Lines in service per employee increased by 10.5% to 484 in 2001 from 438 in 2000.

Total depreciation and amortization increased by 7% to $169 million in 2001 from $158 million in 2000. In the
Company, there was a decrease due to the amortization of the intangible asset that resuited from the acquisition of
a 51% of Telefénica’s common stock in November 1990 and the organization and preoperating expenses, which
were amortized over a ten-year period by the straight line method, being totally amortized during the quarter ended
December 31, 2000. Telefénica’'s depreciation increased due to the completion of different works in progress and
the acquisition of fixed assets after December 31, 2000, the depreciation of which started as of such date.

Fees and payments for services increased from $132 million in 2000 to $136 million in 2001; therefore rising by
3.0%. The variation was basically generated by the increase in: (i) costs related to outsourcing operations and
maintaining IT systems structure for approximately $2.9 miltion; (ii) expenses for IT system analysis and
programming in the amount of approximately $3 million; and (iii) expenses related to network maintenance totaling
$4.2 million. This rise was partially offset by lower advertising expenses, which totaled $6.7 million.

The allowance for doubtful accounts charge increased by 213% to $122 million in 2001 from $39 million in 2000.
This change arises mainly from the estimated effect of the Argentine macroeconomic situation on collection terms
and delinquency levels, which has affected significantly certain type of customers (see Note 2.4. to the notes to
the consolidated financial statements).

The biggest part of the increase resulted from Telefénica Management’s estimation, computing the corresponding
financial effect, of the possible collection terms and of the receivables from the Argentine Government (which
amount past due as of December 31, 2001, is $84 million), considering collection efforts in progress and the last
information available on the basis of Argentina’s perspectives (see Note 2.4. to the notes to the consolidated
financial statements). .

Material consumption and other expenses did not reflect significant variations amounting to $15 million in 2001
and $16 million in 2000.

The management fee decreased by 37.5% to $20 million in 2001 from $32 million in 2000 mainly due to the
decrease in the operating margin before amortization and depreciation to $219 million in 2001 from $334 million in
2000.

Other costs decreased by 7.5% to $37 million in 2001 from $40 million in 2000. This variation was due to a
decrease in rentals of $5 million, the charge to allowance for impairment in value and the slow turnover of
inventories of $4 million. This decrease was partiaily offset by the new tax on checking account credits and debits
in 2001 of $4 million.

Equipment sales cost decreased by 55.0% to $9 million in 2001 from $20 million in 2000. The decreased cost of
sales results mainly from the decrease of telephony equipment and accessory sales in 2001.

Other Expenses, Net

Other expenses, net decreased to $24 million in 2001 from $30 million in 2000. This change arose mainly from
decreased charges due to less employee termination and net book value of fixed assets retired. Such decrease
was partially offset by increased in allowance for contingency.

Financial Gains and Losses

Consolidated gross capitalized interest totaled $2 million and $14 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Net financial loss decreased to a loss of $41 million in 2001 from a loss of $67 million in 2000. The change was
mainly due to a decrease in the market value of Telefdnica Class B shares which generated a loss of 20 million in

2000. As of December 31, 2001 such shares are carried in noncurrent assets together with Telefénica Class A
shares and are valued by the equity method. See Note 8.2.1. to the notes to the consolidated financial statements
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(Loss) Income Before Income Tax and Minority Interest and Net (Loss) Income for the years

{Loss) Income before income tax, minority interest and net loss from spun-off businesses was $19 million- (loss) in
2001 compared to $78 million (income) in 2000. After an income tax charge and minority interest of $18 million in
2001 and $88 million in 2000, loss from continuing operations amount to $37 million in 2001 and $10 million in
2000. The loss of Telefonica’s spun-off businesses amount to $18 million in 2000. Net loss amount to $37 million
in 2001 and $28 million in 2000.

Taxes

Turnover tax: the rate of the tax on gross revenues depends on the jurisdiction in which revenue is generated and
ranges from 2% to 6%. Operating revenues in the Company's financial statements are shown net of turnover tax.
By its Resolution No. 2,345/94, the CNT required Telefénica, based on clause 16.9.3 of the Transfer Agreement,
to transfer over to users the turnover tax rate reduction enforced by the City of Buenos Aires effective 1991. While
Telefonica met the requirement contained in the resolution by depositing in a special bank account $5.2 million
relating to amounts purportedly collected in excess and applying the required rate reduction, it also filed a motion
for reconsideration and an appeal in the alternative against that resolution. The CNT refused remedy sought by
Telefonica in Resolution No. 1,513/85, as did the Economy Ministry, Public Works and Utilities through its
Resolution No. 139, of which Telefénica was formally notified on January 30, 1996. On February 14, 1996, the
CNT issued Resolution No. 86/96 requiring that, in the first billing falling due on or after April 1, 1996, Telefénica
should refund to owners of telephone lines in the City of Buenos Aires approximately $8.0 million in principal and
$17.5 million in interest. While Telefénica has complied with the requirement, it stilt believes that the procedure
used by the CNT to calculate the refundable capital and interest is debatable, and has filed a motion for
reconsideration and an Ancillary Appeal requesting that Resolution No. 86/96 be revoked. The CNC replied the
formal notice and attached thereto a certified copy of CNC Resolution No. 84/99, which dismissed the request for
reconsideration of Resolution No. 86/96 by Telefonica at the time. In view of this situation, the judge hearing the
constitutional protection action declared a nonsuit and ruled that Telefénica should bear court costs and expenses
and legal counsels’ fees.

Subsequently, through Resolution No. 4,583/99, the SC dismissed the Ancillary Appeal against Resolution No.
86/96 that Teiefénica had filed. Telef6nica then filed the respective motion for reconsideration against Resolution
No. 4,583/99, whose outcome is pending to date.

Income Tax: the Company calculates the Income Tax charge by applying the effective tax rate of 35% to the
taxable income for the year. The Company does not consider the effect of temporary differences between Net
income and Taxable Income for the calculation of the income tax provision. Additionally, the Company calculates
the Minimum Presumed Income Tax by applying the effective tax rate of 1% on certain production assets as of the
end of each year. This tax is supplementary to Income Tax. The Company's tax liabilities shall be the higher of
these two taxes. However, if the tax on minimum presumed income exceeds income tax during one fiscal year,
such excess may be computed as prepayment of any income tax excess over the tax on minimum presumed
income that may arise in the next ten fiscal years.

As the Company estimates that the income tax and the tax on minimum presumed income will not generate any
charge at the end of the fiscal year, no income tax or tax on minimum presumed income was accrued in the
statement of income for the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, the Company has determined a total charge for minimum
presumed income tax of $0.4 million, which was included in “Other receivables™. Additionally, as of September 30,
2001, the Company has an accumulated income tax loss carryforward of about 193 miillion according to the
respective tax returns filed as of that date, which might be used to offset the future taxable income as follows:

Last year in which available Tax loss carryforward
2002 17
2004 48
2005 60
2006 68

193
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Every year in which offsetting is verified, the tax benefit will be realized if income tax (net of the offset) is equal to
or exceeds the tax on minimum presumed income, but will be reduced by any excess of the Iatter over income tax.

income tax accruals (corresponding to Telefénica) for 2001 and 2000 were calculated by applying the estimated
effective tax rate of 35% to the taxable income for each year. Telefénica does not consider the effect of temporary
differences between net income and taxable income for the calculation of the income tax accrual. :

In the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, Telefénica's income tax amounted to 30 million
and 57 million, respectively. These amounts were higher than the tax on minimum presumed income and were
charged to expense for each year and included in the “Income Tax” account. -

Tax on interest and financial cost of corporate indebtedness: this tax applies at a 15% rate to interest and
other financial expenses paid by the companies residing in Argentina Republic as a result of loans granted by
financial institutions under Law N° 21,526 or corporate bonds that are exempted under Law N° 23,576, and held
by individuals or legal entities residing abroad or individuals residing in Argentina Republic. The Law passed by
Congress last November 15, 2000, reduced the tax rate to 10% for the period January 1, 2001 through June 30,
2001 and to 8% as from July 1, 2001.

Value added tax ("VAT"): VAT does not have a direct impact on the results of operations of the Company. VAT
rates for revenues are 21%, 27%, 40.5% and 44.1%, depending on the type and tax situation of the customer.
The weighted average rate for current Telefénica's customers is between 24% and 26% of revenues. Beginning
April 1, 1895, banks must withhold, on behalf of the Argentine Government, 8% of revenues on the bills they
collect on behalf of Telefonica. VAT actually deposited by Telefénica is the net amount resulting from the amount
billed to customers minus the sum of the amounts withheld by banks and the amounts charged to Telefénica by its
suppliers in connection with the purchase of goods and services. See Tax Reform.

Other taxes: the tax assessed on Telefénica to finance the activities of the Regulatory Authority is levied on
- Telefénica total monthly revenues from the provision of telecommunications services, net of any applicable tax.

Decree No. 764/2000 approved the Rules for Universal Service which provide a subsidy mechanism for certain
customer categories and zones considered of relative high-cost as to rendering the basic telephone service,
financed with a special contribution called “investment contribution commitment” of 1% of the revenues obtained
from rendering the telecommunications services, net of any applicable tax.

A "Radioelectric rate" is also paid to the Regulatory Authority every four months in relation to radioelectric stations.
Telefénica also pays provincial stamp taxes and other provincial and municipal taxes.

Tax Reform:

From the end of the year 2000, the National Congress passed the tax reform law that introduced, in addition to the
above-mentioned changes, the following amendments:

Value-added tax: Law No. 25,360 allows VAT credits generated by depreciable real property acquired after
November 1, 2000 to be offset against other taxes, or their reimbursement to be requested, provided that such
credits can not be offset against VAT obligations arising from a year's business, and on condition that the property
of reference is still part of the tax payer's assets. Decree No. 493/01 established a 50% reduction of the capital
goods VAT rate, and at the same time revoked certain exemptions (Jlease of commercial real property and others).

Law No. 25,453, which became effective on July 31, 2001, granted the National Executive Power the powers to
amend all the aspects of the law necessary for adopting the cash basis for the tax to become due and payable
(collection of billed amounts, including the tax), instead of billing. As of the date of issuance of these financial
statements the National Executive Power has not used the granted powers.

Bank checking account transactions tax: Law No. 25,413 (effective as from March 26, 2001) added a new tax of
up to 0.6% on certain bank checking account debits and credits. The Federal Executive was in charge of setting
the conclusive tax rate within the range authorized by Congress. The rate was set at 0.25% by Decree No.
380/2001 as from April 1, 2001, and it was subsequently increased to 0.4% by Decree No. 503, 2001, in force as
from May 3, 2001. As from that date, 37.5% of this tax may be computed as payment on account of income tax,
value-added tax, or tax on minimum presumed income. On July 31, 2001, Law No. 25,453 became effective. This
law repealed certain exemptions and authorized this tax to be computed as payment on account of social security
contributions (besides the above-mentioned taxes). The Federal Executive, through Decree No. 968/01, raised the
tax rate to the maximum vaiue aillowed by law, and provided that 58% of the tax may be computed as payment on
account of other taxes. Both would be effective as from August 1, 2001. Later, Presidential Decree No. 1676/01,
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published in the Official Bulletin on December 20, 2001, reduced the computable tax to 10% effective as of
January 1, 2002, and limited its computation as value-added and income tax. Finally, Presidential Decree No.
315/02 published in the Official Bulleting on February 18, 2002, abrogated computation of 10% of this tax as
payment on account of the taxes mentioned above.

Social security contributions: as from July 1, 2001, Decree No. 814/01 increased to 16% the social security
contributions related to the following subsystems: retirement, family allowance, employment fund, and healthcare
organization for retirees and pensioners. Contributions related to the healthcare organizations system were kept at
5%. At the same time, it provided that a percentage of such contributions, variable depending on the geographic
area where the payroll-employee work is performed, be computable as a VAT credit. The net effect of both
measures is nil with respect to the rates effective through June 30, 2001.

Law No. 25,453 raised, as from August 1, 2001, the above rate from 16% to 20% for companies from the
commercial and services sector.

Decree No. 1387/01 established that contributions —other than those due to healthcare organization system and
workers' compensation system premiums-- will be fully computable as VAT credit as from April 1, 2003.

Turnover tax: Law No. 12,727 of the Province of Buenos Aires increased the turnover tax rate by 30% as from July
1, 2001 for taxpayers who in 2000 paid more than $200,000 in such tax. In the case of the telephone service, this
means raising the rate for such jurisdiction from 3.5% to 4.55%.

The above rate was passed on by the Company to the rates applied to customers receiving the service in Buenos
Aires, under the tax stability rules of the regulatory framework.

Approximate results of operations in accordance with US GAAP

The main differences between net income calculated in accordance with US GAAP and with Argentine GAAP are
described in Note 18. to the notes to the consolidated financial statements. After the cumulative effect of changes
in accounting principles in 2000 of $38 million, approximate net loss caiculated in accordance with US GAAP
amounted to $1,228 million in 2001 and $30 million in 2000.

Of total US GAAP adjustments that increase the net loss from $37 million under Argentine GAAP to $1,228 million
under US GAAP, $1,140 million relate to the effect of the devaluation of the Argentine peso mentioned in Note
22.2. to the notes to the consolidated financial statements on the valuation of net liabilities in foreign currency.
Other main effects are:

«  Adjustment for the investment in Telefonica (gain amounting to $20 million in 2000), basically related
to the elimination in 2000 of the difference in the listed price of Telefénica Class B shares accounted
for at market value under Argentine GAAP. As of December 31, 2001 such shares are carried in
noncurrent assets together with Telefénica Class A shares and are valued by the equity method,
both under Argentine GAAP and US GAAP.

¢  With regard to the adjustment for deferred income tax, which changed to a loss of $46 million in 2001
from a gain of $63 million in 2000, the variation was due to the creation of a valuation allowance for
the net deferred tax assets as of the year-end. The creation of the allowance was the result of the
estimation (considering the effects of the new economic environment and the effects of the
devaluation described in Note 22.2. to the notes to the consolidated financial statements) of the
probability of future recoverability of the net tax assets resulting from current book charges to
expense under US GAAP.

+ Netincome under US GAAP in 2000 was also affected by the initial implementation of SAB 101,
which resulted in a $111 million loss, before tax (approximately $59 million cailculated at the
Company’s equity interest in Telef6nica), corresponding to the recognition of the cumulative effect as
of October 1, 2000. Installation revenues are not included in income of the period when the
instailation takes place but deferred and amortized during a period representing the possible duration
of the relationship with the customer, related costs are not charged to income but capitalized and
depreciated in a similar period.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to $70 million and $91 million as of December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively. Cash at the end of 2000 includes $17 million included in the fine “Net assets spun-off
businesses”. Cash and cash equivalents in 2001 increased in $37 million, or 112% from $33 million at the
beginning of such period. Of the cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2001, 30% are primarily heid in U.S.
dollars and 70% are held in Argentine pesos. As a percentage of total assets, cash and cash equivalents was
1.3% at December 31, 2001.

Total cash flows from operating activities for 2001 and 2000 amounted to $190 million and $166 million,
respectively.

The ability of the Company to maintain or increase the level of cash generated from operations in the future will
depend on Telefénica’s renegotiation of telephone service future rates. The Company cannot foresee the level of
its future service revenues or to what extent, if any, rates would keep pace with inflation and devaluation of the
Argentine peso.

Cash Used for Investing Activities. Cash used for investing activities in 2001 increased in $33 million, or 53% from
$62 million in 2000. Telefénica's management cannot foresee whether this trend will continue due to current
uncertainties. ‘

The main uses of cash for 2001 and 2000 were those related to the purchase of fixed assets and payment of loans
and dividends. Funds used for the purchase of fixed assets for the three-month periods ended December 31, 2001
and 2000 totaled $95 million and $62 million (in 2000, net of 18 financed by trade and bank and financial
payables), respectively.

Cash Used for Financing Activities. Cash used for financing activities in 2001 decreased in $384 million, or 86.9%
from $442 million in 2000.

The Company’s financial liabilities, inciuding bank and financial loans, decreased in $334 million, or 12.0% to
$2,455 million in 2001 compared to $2,789 in 2000. The Company uses a variety of short- and long-term financial
instruments, principaily notes, parent loans and bank credit lines.

Additionaily, the net cash provided by Telefénica spun-off businesses amount to $25 million in 2000. See Note 4.
to the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company and Telefénica owed a total amount of approximately US$59 and US$883
million to related parties, respectively, which matures until September 2002. These agreements establish the
usual commitments for these kind of transactions, as well as clauses that establish that the creditor may
accelerate the terms of the Company’s and Telefénica’s payables (“events of anticipated maturity”) if there are
changes in the Company's and Telefonica’s equity, economic and financial situation that due to their adverse
nature may affect the Company’s and Telefénica’s capacity to comply with the obligations assumed in the
agreements or if there are restrictions that may limit the capacity of the Company and Telefénica to repay their
debts. »

The creditor has advised the Company and Telefénica that for the twelve-month period as from February 25, 2002,
(beyond the due date of such debt): (i) the effects of the Public Emergency System implemented in Argentina by
Decree No. 1,570/01, Law No. 25,561, as supplemented and amended, in force shall not be considered by the
creditor as an event of anticipated maturity; (i) the creditor shall not consider that, as of such date, loans have
become immediately due and payable in accordance with the agreements; and (iii) shall not consider that debts
have become due and payable for the Company’s failure to meet certain financial ratios.

The aggregate average interest rate of the Company's outstanding indebtedness was 8% for 2001.
Approximately, 52% of the Company’s financial liabilities was at fixed rates of interest. See note 3.j) of the
consolidated financial statements for the amounts, maturities and interest rates of the financial liabilities.

Fixed assets relating to Telefénica' s telecommunications business have been valued calculating their recoverable
value on the basis of Telefénica’ s management best estimate of future cash flows of its telecommunications
business, considering current information and future telephone service rates estimates. However, owing to the
regulatory uncertainty regarding rates evolution which, as described in Note 12.1. to the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, derive from the pending negotiation with the Government, the recoverability of the booked
value of fixed assets as of December 31, 2001, in the amount of 4,424 million will depend on the final outcome of

such negotiation.
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Foreign-Denominated Debt; Receivables and investments

As of December 31, 2001, total consolidated bank and financial payables amount to $2,455 million, of which,
$2,240 million are stated in foreign currency. Total bank and financial payables in foreign currency amount to
approximately US$2,150 million, EURO 21 million, ITL 2,335 million and yens 8,893 million. Additionally, as of
December 31, 2001, trade, tax and other payables in foreign currency amount to $199 million, of which,
approximately, $174 million are stated in US dollars. Furthermore, total receivables, investments and cash in
foreign currency amount to $183 million of which 97% are stated in US dollars.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Rates

Effective September 29, 1989, Telefonica has entered into a foreign currency swap agreement with Citibank N.A.
to hedge the risk of fluctuations of the yen-dollar exchange rate, in connection with the loan amounting to 8.8
billion Japanese yen granted by The Export Import Bank of Japan (currently the Japan Bank for International
Cooperation) and maturing in February 2011, which accrues interest at a rate of 2.3% per annum. Such swap
agreement provides a fixed exchange rate of 104.25 yen per US dollar. The interest rate paid to Citibank N.A.
during the term of the loan for the dollars received is 7.98% per annum. As of December 31, 2001, the related
liability considering the effect of the above-mentioned swap and the additional interest accrued amounts to 86
million.

Additionally, during December 1999, Telefénica has entered into a foreign currency swap agreement with Citibank
N.A. to hedge the risk of fluctuations of the euro-dollar exchange rate, in connection with the net position of assets
and liabilities in Euros, including the balance of the loan granted by The Istituto Centrale Per il Credito a Medio
Termine (“Mediocredito Centrale”) which matures in November 2014, and accrues interest at a rate of 1.75% per
annum. Such swap agreement has an 8-year term until November 2007 and provides a fixed exchange rate of
0.998 euro per US dollar. The interest rate to be paid to Citibank N.A. during the term of the loan for the dollars to
be received is 2.61% per annum.

As explained in Note 22.2. to the notes to the consolidated financial statements, as of the date of issuance of
these financial statements (February 26, 2002), the exchange rate at the “free” market was $2.10 to US$1, bid
rate, and $2.0 to US$1, asked rate. The estimated effect of the above mentioned devaluation on the Company’s
consolidated net payables in foreign currency as of December 31, 2001, calculated on the basis of exchange rates
mentioned in the above paragraph, amounts to $1,778 million, and will be recognized in the period ending as of
March 31, 2002, according to Argentine GAAP. (See Note 18. to the notes to the consolidated financia!
statemensts).

Debt Obligations

As of December 31, 2001, consolidated current assets in foreign currency are lower than consolidated current
liabilities in foreign currency in the amount of US$1,206 million ($1,206 million as of December 31, 2001), amount
that, because of the devaluation mentioned in Note 22.2. to the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
increases subsequently in $1,358 million, considering the last exchange market closing prior to the issuance of
these financial statements. N

The Company and Telefénica prepared their financial projections with the expectation that future funds required to
cover their short and long-term debt would be generated through Telefénica's operations in addition to third party
financing and access to capital markets. Alternatively, they would request the long-term refinancing of their
payables. However, because of the current macroeconomic environment in Argentina and because these
economic situations may continue to worsen over the next twelve months, third-party financing and access to the
capital markets may no longer be available to the Company. In addition, the Company’s management does not
believe that Telefénica's internally-generated funds will be sufficient to cover Telefdnica's current debt obligations
over the next twelve months.

Monetary and Currency Exchange Controls

Since early December 2001, Argentine authorities implemented a number of monetary and currency exchange
control measures that mainly included restrictions on the withdrawal of funds deposited with banks and tight
restrictions for making transfers abroad, with the exception of those related to foreign trade and other authorized
transactions.
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Subsequently, the B.C.R.A. provided that funds transferred abroad, among other transfers, by the non-financial
private sector an account of financial loans principal service, profits and distributions of dividends, carried out
within 90 days as from February 8, 2002, shall require B.C.R.A. previous consent. This shall not be necessary
when the obligation arises from payables to multilateral organizations, banks that financed investment projects
jointly with such organizations, and governmental credit agencies or those guaranteed by such entities.

While the above restriction is in force, or should it be maintained for 90 days, the Company and Telefénica are
unable to ensure that the B.C.R.A. will authorize principal payments to foreign creditors over the repayment term
and under conditions established originally. Current debt maturities affected by this situation amount to the
equivalent US$1,090 million. In addition, the equivalent amount of US$1,059 million and 175 million classified as
noncurrent in the balance sheet, result from agreements providing that the amounts owed wouid become
immediately due and payable (after certain steps have been followed) if other obligations are not met as could be
the case of the current payables above.

If default is declared on the basis of the above-mentioned reason, amounts that were disclosed as noncurrent in
the balance sheet as of December 31, 2001 on the basis of the conditions originally agreed with creditors, may
become immediately due and payable.

On the other hand, TESA has advised the Company and Telefénica that, as of the date of issuance of these
financial statements, it was still evaluating the Argentine macroeconomic context and analyzing financing
alternatives for such companies, including the possibility of refinancing or not over iong-term its current loans to
such companies and, if necessary, providing additional financing.

Consequently, the Company's and Telefénica’s ability to settle their payables to local and foreign creditors
depends upon the possibility of obtaining financing or, if not possible, of refinancing financial payables, as weli as,
if necessary, the granting of additional financing by its direct or indirect controlling companies.

Should no financing alternatives be available for the Company and Telefénica or should the Company and
Telefénica not succeed in obtaining refinancing, such companies would not have sufficient funds available to meet
their current liabilities (including those disclosed as current on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2001 and
those liabilities that would turn into current payables if creditors claimed a default) payable to local and foreign
creditors.

Although the Company and Telefonica will make their best effort to obtain such financing, as of the date of
issuance of these financial statements, it is impossible to ensure what the result of such negotiations will be or if
the restrictions for making transfers abroad will enable the Company and Telefénica to settle their current liabilities
in the normal course of business and maintain their normal operations.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
The following table represents the contractual obligations and commercial commitments of Cointel and Telefénica

as of December 31, 2001: .
Payments due by Period in millions of Pesos

Less
than 1-3 4-5 After §
Total 1year years years years

Contractual obligations
Long-term debt (2) 2,484 1,221 786 56 421
Capital lease obligations
Operating leases
Unconditional purchase obligations
Other long-term obligations 647 525 42 29 51

Total contractual cash obligations 3,131 1,746 828 85 472

Commercial Commitments
Lines of credit
Standby letters of credit

Guarantees

Standby repurchase obligations

Other commercial commitments® 760 663 57 46 25
Total commercial commitments 760 663 57 46 25

(1) Includes $597 million principally related to certain frame agreements, which Telefénica will make use of in accordance to
Telefénica’'s needs. The amounts not required by Telefénica will not constitute a formal obligation with other parties under such
agreements.

(2) Includes US$27 miilion and US$2 million related to preferred stock and preferred dividends, respectively.
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Trend information

Cointel’s sole substantial activity is owning a controlling interest in Telefénica’s common stock. Therefore, the
information about trends that follows corresponds to Telefénica’s business.

With the advent of competition since November 1999 and as fully liberalized competition commenced on
November 8, 2000, operators under additional new licenses began to provide one or more of local, domestic long-
distance and international service. Telefénica expects that the level of competition in its markets will increase in
the future. As of December 2001, more than 26 new telephony licenses for local and/or long-distance services
have been granted under Resolution 16,200/99. These licensees were not entitled to launch their services until
November 2000 when the full liberalization was introduced. As of February 26, 2002, 8 licensees are providing
local and/or fixed long-distance telephone service. These companies are Techtel S.A., Impsat, Keytech (which is
operated by AT&T Latin America), CTI, Movicom Bell South, Comsat, Telefénica (in the Northern Region) and
Telecom (in the Southemn Region).

Telefénica is subject to competitive pressures due to the development of increased domestic and international
transmission capacity. Additionally, as competition becomes more prevalent, prices paid for services may keep
falling below tariff rates, perhaps significantly.

As a result of the pre-subscription process through which customers are able to select a provider of long-distance,
certain local services customers of Telefénica opted for one of the other long-distance operators (Movicom/TCP,
Keytech, Techtel, Comsat, Impsat, CTl/Integrales and Telecom), and certain Telecom local services customers
opted for Telefonica or for Movicom/TCP or the others as their new provider of service. As of February 3, 2002,
the total number of customers gained (approximately 273,000 lines) do not compensate for the customers of
Telefonica in those customer segments that have opted for other providers (approximately 805,000 lines). In the
near future, customers will select the long-distance call provider by dialing a three-digit code. Telefénica believes
that any additional loss of long-distance revenues when this new system is implemented will depend on the
specific service and price offerings, which may vary among operators.

Because there is no precedent for competition in the Argentine telecommunications market among providers of
basic telephone services, and since the recent devaluation for the Argentine peso is a dramatic change to what
have been the economic conditions under which all domestic companies have run their businesses during the last
years, Telefénica is unable to predict the precise extent of future losses of market share, the speed with which it
might occur or the effect on Telefonica’'s overall operations or revenues.

The principal strategic objective of Telefénica is to compete successfully and to maintain a leadership position in
the Argentine telecommunications industry. Telefénica has been preparing for the new competitive environment;
however, there can be no assurance that the consequences of the introduction of competition will not materiaily
and adversely affect the business, financial condition or results of the operations of Telefénica. While there can be
no such assurance, in the opinion of Telefonica’'s management, the implementation of Telefénica's business
strategies will continue to have a beneficiai effect on the future competitiveness of its telecommunications
business, mitigating the negative effects of increasing competition in the Argentine market.

The Company and Telefénica have prepared their financing projections and plans expecting to cover future fund
needs to continue Telefonica’s investment plan and face short and long-term debt mainly with funds generated by
the operations plus bank loans and access to capital markets. Alternatively, they would request for iong-term
refinancing of their payables.

However, owing to the macroeconomic situation described in Note 22.2. to the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, third parties’ credit lines are not available in amounts sufficient to enable the Company and Telefénica
to, together with intemally generated funds, meet current debt obligations. Furthermore, it is not possible to
determine whether this situation will evolve favorably in the short term.

Since early December 2001, Argentine éuthoﬁties implemented a number of monetary and currency exchange
control measures that mainly included restrictions on the withdrawal of funds deposited with banks and tight
restrictions for making transfers abroad, with the exception of those related to foreign trade and other authorized
transactions.

Consequently, the Company’s and Telefénica’s ability to settle their payables to local and foreign creditors
depends upon the possibility of obtaining financing or, if not possible, of refinancing financial payables, as well as,
if necessary, the granting of additional financing by their direct or indirect controlling companies.
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Should not financing alternatives be available for the Company and Telefénica or should the Company and
Telefénica not succeed in obtaining refinancing, such companies would not have sufficient funds available to meet
their current liabilities (including those disclosed as current on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2001 and
suc: liabilities that would turn into current payables if creditors claimed a default) payable to local and foreign
creditors.

Although the Company and Telefénica will make their best effort to obtain such financing, as of the date of
issuance of these financial statements, it is impossible to ensure what the result of such negotiations will be or if
the restrictions for making transfers abroad will enable the Company and Telefonica to settle their current liabilities
in the normal course of business and maintain their normal operations.

AGREEMENT SIGNED BY THE COMPANY'S SHAREHOLDERS

On April 11, 2000 certain affiliates of Hicks, Muse, Tate & Furst, Incorporated (“Hicks Muse”), including Republica
Holdings, Ltd. and a Citibank N.A. affiliate (“CEl affiliates™) and TESA have entered into a Stock Exchange
Agreement (the “Contract”), in relation with certain future transactions whereby, after certain conditions were met,
as of December 15, 2000, CEI (now THA) original shareholders transferred to TESA, shares representing 80.9%
of the capital stock and 84.7% of the votes of THA, in exchange for TESA common shares issued. On June 28,
2001, TESA notified THA that the former had transferred all its shares in the latter to its subsidiary TISA.
Additionally, as of December 31, 2001, as a result of THA' s capital stock reduction, TESA indirect equity interest
in THA, increased from 80.9% to 99.99%.

CORPORATE REORGANIZATION
Tender offer for Telefénica shares

On January 12, 2000, TESA launched a tender offer for the stock of Telefénica whereby TESA offered to
exchange for its own stock any and all Telefénica Class B shares not already directly or indirectly held by TESA.
Telefonica shares subject to the TESA tender offer represented 48.2% of Telefonica capital stock at that moment.
As a result of the above-mentioned exchange of shares, and the transaction described in Note 10.2.2. to the
consolidated financial statements (“Agreement signed by the Company's Shareholders) the 88% of Telefonica
voting rights are indirectly controlled by TESA.

Telefonica reorganization

As a consequence of TESA's plan to effect a global reorganization of its group operations by line of business, on
January 30, 2001 and March 30, 2001, the Company's and Telefénica’'s Board of Directors and Telefénica's
Special Shareholders’ Meeting, respectively, resolved to reorganize some of its businesses.

After the above-mentioned reorganization, Telefénica, and consequently the Company, no longer holds an interest
in Telefénica Comunicaciones Personales S.A. (“TCP”), Advance Telecomunicaciones S.A. (‘Advance”) and
TYSSA Telecomunicaciones y Sistemas S.A. (“TYSSA”"), whose businesses had previously been reorganized.
According to the Board of Directors and the Special Shareholders’ Meetings of Telefénica and the above-
mentioned subsidiaries, Telefénica’s equity interests in the above-mentioned former subsidiaries were spun-off
(and therefore Telefonica's capital stock was reduced) and those equity interests were merged into certain
companies indirectly controlled by TESA (those companies operating the related specific business lines — Mobile
and Data).

Furthermore, as approved by the Company and Telefénica’s Board of Directors and Telefénica's Special
Shareholders Meeting, the minority shareholders, that are not related to TESA exchanged their Telefénica's
shares for shares of the companies into which the spun-off businesses were merged, in proportion to their interest
in Telefénica. As a result of the capital reduction caused by the spin-off, the shares exchanged by the minority
shareholders were cancelled, and minority shareholders will hold an equal equity interest percentage in Telefénica
and in the companies into which the spun-off businesses will be merged. Telefénica’s capital reduction amounts
to approximately 395 mitlion, from 2,141 million down to 1,746 million by setting 394,789,234 class B shares, face
value $1 per share. The effect of the reorganization on Telefénica's Shareholders’ equity as of October 31, 2000,
which amounted to 625 million, was allocated to proportionately reduce the capital stock. The remaining amount
was allocated to reduce the balance of the “Irrevocable capital contributions for future subscriptions™ and
“Comprehensive adjustment to irrevocable capital contributions for future subscriptions” accounts until the
balances are exhausted, and “Comprehensive capital stock adjustment” account. The effect on spun-off assets
and liabilities resulting from the operations of these businesses from November 1, 2000 to the effective
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reorganization date, which amounts to a net assets decrease of 24 million, has been allocated to Telefénica's
amount of “Unappropriated retained earnings” as of the effective reorganization date. On July 26, 2001 the CNV
issued Resolutions No. 13,907, 13,908 and 13,909 whereby it approved the public offering filing of Advance and
Telefonica Moviles Argentina S.A. (“TMA”) and consented to the corporate reorganization described. |n addition,
The Buenos Aires Stock Exchange authorized, subject to certain conditions, Advance and TMA to become listed.
The authorization became final after the conditions imposed were lifted. Registration with the Public Registry of
Commerce of the above-mentioned reorganization, became effective November 16, 2001 and the share exchange
mentioned above was completed on December 12, 2001. Telefénica acquired, at their listing value, the fractions of
Telef6nica shares held by minority shareholders. Total treasury shares amount to 2,355 and were acquired in the
amount of $1.021 per share. These shares must be sold within 1 year of acquisition.

As a consequence of the above-mentioned transactions, the Company did not receive shares of the companies
into which the spun-off businesses are merged. Consequently, as from the effective reorganization date (February
1, 2001) the Company’s equity interest in Telefénica Class A and B shares was increased from 51.0% t6 62.5%
and from 1.9% to 2.3%, respectively.

Telefénica reorganization transactions did not change the Company's financial position as of October 31, 2000, as
the shareholding interest increase in Telefénica described above was compensated by Telefénica's shareholders'
equity reduction resulting from the reorganization transactions. The effect of Telefénica’s spun-off assets and
liabilities amounting to 2 million, which is the result of: a) the increase of the Company’s ownership interest in
Telefénica as from the effective reorganization date, b) the effect of the spun-off assets and liabilities resuiting
from the operations of these businesses from November 1, 2000 to the effective reorganization date, and c) the
differential of the Company’s ownership interest in Telefénica (from 51.0% to 62.5%) on the dividends approved by
Telefonica on March 12, 2001, has been allocated to Cointel’s balance of “Unappropiated retained earnings” in
Cointel's statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year ended September 30, 2001.

Described below are the commitments approved by Telefénica, TCP, Telinver, TMA and Advance Board of
Directors and Special Shareholders’ Meetings on January 30, 2001 and March 30, 2001, respectively, in
connection with the reorganization:

a) Agreement between Telefénica, Telinver, TCP and Advance whereby:

- Telinver spun-off the assets and liabilities related to the sale of equipment businesses and point of sales
network and those assets and liabilities were merged into Telefénica.

- TCP spun-off certain assets and liabilities related to the data transmission business, including the
authorization to use Band “B" of the Table 1.2. of Frequencies included in Exhibit 1 of Resolution No.
869/98 of the SC in the Buenos Aires Metropolitan Area, Rosario, Santa Fe, Cordoba, Rio Cuarto,
Catamarca, Resistencia, Parana, Concordia, Tucuman, Corrientes, La Rioja, Jujuy, Salta, Posadas,
Formosa, Santiago del Estero, Neuquén, Mendoza and Bahia Blanca. The authorization had been
granted to Aki under Resolution No. 18,766/99. Those assets and liabilities were merged into Telefénica.

- Advance spun-off certain assets and liabilities related to the internet Access business (including all its
customers other than corporate customers), point-to-point lines in the southem region, 80% of the
Starnet network, 80% of the Satellite Network (equivalent to 40% of all such network) and 100% of the IP
network (Intemet Protocol Network). Those assets and liabilities were merged into Telefénica.

According to the commitment, the above-mentioned spin-off-mergers were effective as from January 1, 2001
(“Date of the First Reorganization”).

b) Agreement between Telefénica, Advance and TMA (an Argentine company indirectly controlled by TESA)
whereby Telefonica spun-off: (i) the assets and liabilities related to the data business, including Telefénica's
international data business (comprised of 100% of the identifiable assets necessary for the provision of
international data services, 14.40%, 29.56%, 23.60%, 19.30%, 80%, 16.67%, 63.64% and 15.79% of the
Unisur A Segment, Unisur B Segment, Unisur C Segment, Americas |, Americas ll, Panamericano, Atlantis Il
and Columbus cables, respectively, 10.94% of the rights of use of the Transbrasil cable and certain receivables
and liabilities related to such business), the portion of Telefénica’s goodwill related to the Advance data
business and the ownership interests in Advance, and (ii) Telefénica's consulting business (related to
Telefénica’s interest in TYSSA) that were merged into Advance. In this sense, Advance reduced its capital
stock and shareholders’ equity as a consequence of having received its own shares from Telefénica.
Additionally, Telefénica spun-off the mobile communications business related to Telefénica’'s interest in TCP.
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That business was merged into TMA. The corporate reorganization described in this paragraph is effective as
from February 1, 2001 ("Date of the Second Reorganization”).

The shares resulting from Advance and TMA capital increases related to the incorporation of Telefénica's
assets and liabilities spun-off mentioned in the preceding paragraph have been exchanged for Telefénica's
shares held by Telefonica Datacorp. S.A. and Telefénica Méviles S.A. (companies indirectly controlled by
TESA), respectively and by Telefonica’s minority shareholders.

As from February 1, 2001 ("Date of the Third Reorganization"}, Telinver spun-off and merged with Telefonica
the assets of its e-commerce business, including its 50% interest in E-Commerce Latina ("ECL"). The
preliminary spin-off/merger agreement was approved by Telefénica's Board of Directors and Special
Shareholders' Meeting on February 15, 2001 and March 30, 2001, respectively.

The companies agreed to use spin-off-merger-purpose balance sheets as of October 31, 2000 in the case of
the reorganizations described in a) and b) and December 31, 2000 in the case of the reorganization described
in c) above, for the purpose of obtaining the reorganization approvals by the Board of Directors and
Shareholders’ Meetings of the companies. Considering the effective Date of the First Reorganization, the
Second Reorganization and the Third Reorganization (the “Reorganization Dates”) established in the related
spin-off-merger agreements, the shareholders’ equity computed for purposes of these reorganizations included
the changes arising out of the operations of the spun-off businesses from November 1, 2000 (in the case of the
reorganizations described in a) and b)), and from January 1, 2001 (in the case of the reorganization described
in ¢)) to the respective Reorganization Dates.

Due to the tax effects of the reorganization and regarding its exemption from income and value-added taxes,
section 77 of the income tax law provides that Telefénica and its indirect controlling company shall, among
other things, keep for a period of two years as from the reorganization date:
a) the activities developed by the reorganized companies (or similar activities), and
b) its shares listed on self-regulated stock-exchange markets (or, otherwise, Telefénica shareholders shall
maintain an interest in the capital stock of the surviving company of at least 80% of the capital stock of
the restructured companies as of the reorganization dates).
Telefénica and its indirect controlling company intend to fulfill the requirements mentioned in a) and b) above.
The following tables show the approximate effect of the spun-off businesses on the consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the
three-month period ended on that date.

o Consolidated assets and liabilities related to businesses that were spun-off

December 31,
2000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 15
Investments 2
Trade receivables and other receivables 201
Inventories 61
Total current assets 279
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Other receivables 84
Investments 3
Fixed assets 904
Intangible assets ' 364
Total noncurrent assets 1,355

Total assets 1,634
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December 31,
2000
CURRENT LIABILITIES
PAYABLES
Trade 286
Bank and financial 572
Payroll and social security taxes 10
Taxes 9
Reserves and other 3
Total current liabilities ?&E
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES T
PAYABLES
Trade 100
Bank and financial ' 47
Total noncurrent liabilities E
Total liabllities 1,027
Total net assets of spun-off businesses _g()_7-
Minority interest in net assets of spun-off businesses (297)
Company’s interest in net assets of spun-off businesses (51%) 310

. Consolidated income (loss) of the spun-off businesses:

The results of operations related to the spun-off businesses for the three-month period ended December
31, 2000 are as follows:

2000

Net revenues 155

Cost of services provided (83)
Administrative expenses (25)
Selling expenses (63)
Operating loss , (16)
Financial loss on assets )
Financial loss on liabilities (16)
Net loss of spun-off businesses ) (35)
Minority interest of spun-off businesses 17

Company's interest in loss of spun-off businesses (18)

. Consolidated cash flows of the spun-off businesses:

The effect of the spun-off operations in the cash flows for the three-month pen‘od ended December 31,
2000 is as follows:

2000
Cash used in operating activities (18)
Cash provided by investment activities 70
Cash used in financing activities (27)

Total net cash provided by spun-off businesses 25
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Statistical Data

The following table provides certain basic information relating to the development of Telefénica's domestic
telephone system.

2001 2000
Billable lines of measured service 3,849,783 4,182,571
Lines installed 4,876,264 4,737,920
Lines in service 4,556,297 4,319,183
Lines in service per 100 inhabitants 245 247
Lines in service per employee 4842 438.2
Percentage of lines connected to digital exchanges 100% 100%

Public telephones installed 122,665 117,790
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